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Chapter 1 Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

Operating Performance in 2022

)

(m

()

(v)

Implementation Results of the 2022 Business Plan

Looking back at the past year, global inflation continued to rise due to the war between

Russia and Ukraine and the pandemic, which resulted in a weakening of global end-use

demand. With the easing of material shortages, global enterprises are facing serious

pressure regarding increased inventories. The Company achieved a 10.0% growth in

revenue in 2022 due to strict inventory control, effective inventory level control, and

concerted efforts of all employees. By region, sales in the Pan-Asia-Pacific achieved

significant growth; by product, it was mainly benefited from increased sales of switch

products. In 2022, the depreciation of the Taiwan dollar to the US dollar resulted in an

increase in purchase costs, leading to a slight decline in gross profit. In the second half of

2022, D-Link had an official mass product for paring with a Metaverse main product (VR

headset) in North America. Looking ahead to 2023, the Company will continue to enhance

its core competitiveness and strengthen its management by launching new quality

products, carrying out in-depth development of cloud platform services, and optimizing

its product mix to increase gross profit. In addition, while increasing revenue, we will

manage operating expenses in a prudent manner to improve the profitability of our main

business and continue to pay attention to market changes in response to the impact of

changes in the general environment.

Budget Implementation

The Company did not disclose its financial forecast for 2023.

Profitability analysis

With a review of the financial performance in 2022, the global consolidated revenue was

NTS$17.078 billion, an increase of 10.0% compared with 2021; the gross profit margin was

25.3%, a decrease of 1.7% from 27.0% in 2021; the net operating profit was NT$553

million, which was an increase of NT$383 million from the net operating profit of NT$170

million in 2021; the net income after tax was NT$109 million; the earnings per share after

tax was NT$0.18.

Research and Development Status

» Commercial Product Line

(1) Switch Products: In response to the renewal of product generations, we updated

the hardware solution of L3 managed switch DXS-3410/DGS-3630. In addition,
with respect to Smart switch products, we have completed the 2.5G product series
DMS-1100, added 10G Smart switch product DXS-1210, and added 100G/25G L3
core Switch product DQS-5000 to complete the product series of switches
required by enterprises and SMEs. With the support of standard SNMP, D-View8
management platform is also available to assist customers in centrally managing
their products.



(2) Enterprise Access Point (EAP) and VPN Gateway Products: In the promotion of
VPN Gateway series, D-Link has cooperated with Japanese telecom customers to
launch DBG-X2000 and DBG-X1000 products. The integration with the Nuclias
Cloud management platform provides customers with an integrated management
interface for their network development services, which can respond to the
services under various local network architectures. In addition, the updated Wi-Fi
6 EAP product series not only supports standalone usage, but also can be
integrated with Nuclias Connect (DNH-100/DNC-100) to enable customers to
easily have a centralized EAP management solution, while integrating the
applications of VPN Gateway DSR-250 and Nuclias Connect, allowing customers to
control not only the EAP but also the VPN Gateway when deploying local services
so as to provide a more secure environment for the entire local network services.

» Home Product Line

(1) Home Wireless Routers: During the development of the Wi-Fi 6 160Mhz product,
in addition to inheriting the intelligent functions of EAGLE PRO Al, the Matter
series products are planned and developed for the home loT network series. The
Wi-Fi 6 product series is expected to continue to promote the integrated
applications of Wi-Fi Dongle and VR scenarios in addition to broadband routers.

(2) 1P Camera and loT: The main development this year will focus on working with
service application vendors for Cloud to Cloud service connection. In addition to
serving users, the original cloud services can also be integrated for specific
services to increase the scope of cloud services. The application of 10T is
integrated with the services of cloud platform for industry cooperation.

» Telecom Product Line

(1) Broadband Network Products: We continue to develop XGPON product lines,
mainly XGPON modems. The Company will promote 2 box home network
solutions integrated with Wi-Fi Mesh products. In addition to the demand of
telecom providers, we have also started to plan and develop related products with
third-party partners.

(2) Mobile Broadband Products: The 5G mobile communication broadband sharing,
with the release of 5G-NR 3GPP R16 specification products, is integrated with Wi-
Fi 6 for the development of 5G CPE and 5G ODU. Together with the AX1500 LTE
Cat4/Cat6 CPE product series that integrates wireless Mesh function, it is expected
that the Company is able to meet the needs of telecom providers at different
levels.

(3) M2M Industry Application: The Company launches the industrial applications
integrated with the Internet devices. The main feature of the product is that it can
be used in various special environment. The product series mainly supports
LTE/5G networks, as well as Ethernet and Wi-Fi. The Company promotes the
Internet access of devices in various industries, the collection and monitoring of
data and status, and the integration of D-ECS platform functions to provide the
entire industry with an Internet access solution. At present, there are some
applications in the public transportation in Europe and Southeast Asia.

Il. Business Plan for 2022

(n 2022 Business objectives
The Company adheres to the following operating guidelines to achieve the established
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strategic targets.

1. Keep abreast of the trends in the networking market through global bases, formulate
innovative product development plans, enhance the partnership with key technology
strategic partners, launch high-quality leading products, and continue to develop value-
added Al-powered smart functions.

2. Stick with discipline in research and development (R&D) and production, continue to
improve processes, optimize the global supply chains, and capitalize on the Group's
synergy.

3. Global teamwork: Closely communicate the Company's strategies and policies, build
consensus across different cultures and regions, and share local successful experiences.

4. Sustainable operation: Committed to environmental protection, fulfill social
responsibilities, and continuously improve corporate governance.

Sales Forecast and Basis

According to the latest data released by IBISWorld in August 2022, the total monthly

Internet traffic in 2022 was approximately 335.3 EB (1 EB = 103 PB = 106 TB = 109 GB), an

increase of approximately 21% compared to 278.1 EB per month in 2021. Although the

growth of Internet traffic has slowed down compared to the past growth of several times
to tens of times, the annual traffic, including video streaming, Internet browsing, various
online games, gaming platforms and social networks, has continued to grow due to the
change of user habits. The growth in traffic is complemented by the demand for network
infrastructure and equipment, which includes the switches of telecom suppliers and cloud
centers, transmission equipment to enterprise-level switches, wireless base stations to
home wireless routers, broadband and mobile routers, and other networking equipment.
1. Commercial Product Line

(1) Switch Products: The switch retail market is expected to continue to decline or
remain flat this year due to inflation and currency tightening; however, demand
of enterprises and telecom markets is expected to remain flat and rise slowly due
to traffic growth. This year, in addition to the continued promotion of enterprise
cloud solutions, the various replacement solutions in response to last year's chip
shortage are gradually ready to be lunched, which will be conducive to securing
the market share of 1Gbps class switches. In addition, a series of new
10G/25G/100G switches will be launched to increase the market share of high-
end switches.

(2) Wireless Access Point and VPN Gateway Products: In the new year, we will
continue to focus on in-wall AP, based on successful cases in Japan, and expand to
other parts of the world, targeting the Internet needs of apartments, hotels, and
apartment complexes. In addition, with Wi-Fi 6 VPN Gateway and intelligent
management platform, we aim to assist SMEs in building a smoother, more
convenient, stable, and secure remote office environment.

2. Home Product Line

(1) Home Wireless Routers: In recent years, the pandemic has led to changes in living
habits. In particular, with the prevalence of distant learning, work from home,
online shopping and delivery platforms, the demand for wireless routers and
extenders at home has increased against the trend due to the impact of the
pandemic. Although the sales in the networking retail market were limited due to



inflation and purchase of essential goods in the second half of 2022, looking ahead
to 2023, the new technologies (Wi-Fi 6E, Wi-Fi 7) will also bring another wave of
replacement as they mature. The Company will launch an upgraded AQUILA PRO
Al series of EAGLE PRO Al in the first half of 2023, and introduce the Matter
technology, coupled with a series of IoT devices, to build a smart home solution
that provides services in a hope to increase sustainable revenue and stabilize
profitability.

(2) IP Camera and loT: Among all AloT devices, digital camera is the only device that
can receive images and can be considered as the hub of smart home network.
According to market research, the annual compound growth rate of demand for
camera surveillance equipment from 2021 to 2030 was approximately 8%.
However, the price has been falling due to intense competition, resulting in a
decline in the Company's market share. This year, the Company will continue to
work closely with its ODM partners, to strengthen Al integration in products and
expand the application of affordable cloud added-value services based on high-
level network security standards. The Company is expecting an increase in brand
awareness in the competition and proportion of service fee income by a series of
Matter-based smart networking devices in the future.

3. Telecom Product Line

(1) Broadband Network Products: Although the demand for copper wire is gradually
being replaced by optical fiber, there is still some demand in developing countries.
The Company continues to invest some resources to serve the existing customers
in order to secure the market share and customers. There is insufficient
bandwidth in the previous fiber optic network of GPON (2.5Gbps). The major
network companies are making every effort to gain a foothold in the 10G PON
market. With the maturity of the technology, 10G PON is expected to gradually
replace GPON in the next few years, the mainstream specifications of which
include XG-PON, XGS-PON and NG-PON2. The market share of XGS-PON (10Gbps
for both uploading and downloading) is expected to increase rapidly in recent
years in response to the emergence of KOLs and the huge traffic demand of Tik
Tok for uploading videos. Following the ongoing telecom project in 2022, XGS-PON
products will be expanded in 2023 together with a series of Mesh Router to
provide users with better home networking experience.

(2) Mobile Broadband Products: With the gradual increase of 5G coverage, 5G FWA
(Fixed Wireless Access) has become a broadband access solution in low
population density areas due to advantages such as shorter deployment time and
lower labor and equipment costs, which can increase broadband network
coverage while significantly reducing operators' fiber deployment costs. In
addition, 5G that integrated with Al and cloud computing technologies can
develop various applications and services, such as loV, smart monitoring, remote
industrial control, etc. It is also one of the most important infrastructures in the
AloT. The Company has successively launched Sub-6 5G indoor router and 5G
mobile router, and has gained market share. This year, we will strive to promote a
series of IoT devices to create AloT application service solutions for the Al industry.

() Important Production and Sales Policies
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, inflation, and monetary tightening in major countries
around the world, the change in demand in the networking market has significantly
intensified. On the other hand, although the production capacity of the master chips for



networking devices has eased due to inflation, the demand for consumer electronics
products has also declined accordingly. Based on the above factors, the general principles
of the Company's sales strategy in 2023 are still "selection" and "concentration", that is,
we will adopt the optimized product mix and work with the optimal team of ODM partners
and suppliers and adjust our sales strategies flexibly in different regions through our three
business divisions in America, Europe, and APAC & Others regions and overseas
subsidiaries on the front line, to increase our market shares in the home, commercial, and
industrial markets, while strengthening our long-term partnership with mobile network
operators.

Ill. Future Development Strategy

(n Short-term Development Strategy

1. Cooperate with high-quality ODMs to establish a controllable supply chain system with
close relationships.

2. Reshape D-Link's brand image and enhance brand value from three aspects:
specifications and prices, functional performance, and corporate identity.

3. In addition, the Company has been able to provide the specifications and functions
required by each industry and expand its market share to reduce the competition of
products with general specifications.

() Mid- and Long- term Development Strategy

1. Achieve the extreme simplification of the supply and management of networking
products with cloud computing as the main pillar.

2. Create stable and advanced networking products with excellent radio frequency and
high-speed signal technology.

3. Strengthening cooperation with Tier 2 and Tier 3 telecom operators to secure long-term
contracts with localized services.

IV. The Impact of the External Competitive Environment, Regulatory Environment,
and Macroeconomic Conditions
Competition in the networking market is fierce. Not only are new brands entering the market one
after another, but also ODMs are often directly involved in telecom bidding projects. However, the
Chinese manufacturers who are competing for market share at low prices continue to emerge,
squeezing the gross profit of the networking companies. The Company will continue to optimize its
supply chain, reform its organization, and carry out stringent inventory management to reduce costs
and expenses, as well as replace single product competition with solutions so as to increase
sustainable revenue and stabilize profitability. In addition, in response to rising security awareness
in various countries, the Company has been well-prepared for "local manufacturing". The Company
has established ESG Committee to create a sustainable business environment from three aspects,
namely environment, society, and corporate governance, in addition to striving to make profits in
the core business. In terms of the overall business environment, with the easing of the pandemic,
continuous inflation, monetary tightening and geopolitical tensions, the retail market will definitely
be significantly affected. Moreover, the sharp drop in demand will result in an acute rise in inventory
levels of customers. Furthermore, the exchange rate fluctuations due to interest rate hikes will also
affect the stability of profitability during the year. Therefore, in addition to planning, developing and



promoting various solutions as usual, the main focus of this year is to work closely with our
subsidiaries, pay attention to local situations, understand local needs and inventories, keep an eye
on central bank policies of each country, and seek expert advice to implement exchange rate risk
management.

Last but not least, we would like to express our sincere appreciation to all shareholders for your
support and trust in the Company. Our management team and all employees will strive to create the
maximum values for all shareholders.

Chairperson: Victor Kuo CEO: CJ Chang



Chapter 2 Company Profile

Date of Incorporation; 1987.06.20

Company History:

D-Link Company Ltd. was established (later changed to D-Link Corporation Ltd.)

1986 ¢ A subsidiary was established in the US in the same year.
1987 * D-Link Corporation was formally established at the Hsinchu Science Park.
1989 ¢ A subsidiary was established in the UK.
1990 ¢ Asubsidiary was established in Canada.
* A subsidiary was established in France.
* The construction of a plant in the Hsinchu Science Park was completed.
1991 ¢ Asubsidiary was established in Australia.
¢ A subsidiary was established in Germany.
* Awarded the first "Outstanding Award for Excellent Industrial Technology Development"
1992 from the Ministry of Economic Affairs.
* Awarded the "1* Taiwan Excellence Awards".
* The stock was listed for public trading with the stock code 2332 on TWSE.
1994 ¢ A subsidiary was established in Singapore.
¢ D-Link Charity Foundation was established.
¢ A subsidiary was established in India through a joint venture.
1995 * Asubsidiary was established in Latin America.
¢ Won the "4 Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 3 products
1996 e Won the "5 Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 7 products and 1 Taiwan Excellence Gold
Award.
1997 ¢ Won the "6 Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 3 products.
1998 e Won the "7t Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 2 products.
1999 ¢ Won the "8 Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 4 products and 2 Taiwan Excellence Silver
Award.
2000 ¢ Won the "9 Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 1 products.
* The subsidiary in India was listed in India's stock market as Taiwan's first company listed
in India's stock market.
2001 ¢ A subsidiary was established in Brazil.
¢ Won the "10" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 3 products and 1 Taiwan Excellence Silver
Award.
¢ A subsidiary was established in Russian.
¢ A subsidiary was established in the Middle East.
2002 ¢ Asubsidiary was established in Shiang-Hai.
¢ Won the "11" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 3 products and 1 Taiwan Excellence Gold
Award.
¢ The original OEM/ODM business department, including the Dongguan factory in China,
2003 .
was demerged into Alpha Networks Inc.
¢ Certificated with I1SO 9001 the quality management system.
¢ According to Synergy Research Group's survey, D-Link ranked first in terms of the market
2004 share in global consumer network connection products.
¢ Selected as Taiwan’s top 10 international brands by the Bureau of Foreign Trade,
Ministry of Economic Affairs.
e Won the "13™ Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 5 products.
* Officially moved into the Neihu Corporate Operational Headquarters building.
2005 ¢ A subsidiary was established in Japan.

Selected as Taiwan'’s top 10 international brands by the Bureau of Foreign Trade,
Ministry of Economic Affairs, for the second consecutive year.




Won the "14%" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 4 products.

2006

Certificated with ISO 14001 the environmental management system.

Selected as Taiwan’s top 10 international brands by the Bureau of Foreign Trade,
Ministry of Economic Affairs, for the third consecutive year.

Won the "15" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 4 products.

2007

Led the world and launched green switch of Green Ethernet, and successively launched
the "D-Link Green", a series of products to implement the Company's vision of corporate
sustainability.

Recognized by Business Week as the top 100 IT companies in the world and the IT
company with the 9" best return on investment in the world.

Selected as Taiwan’s top 10 international brands by the Bureau of Foreign Trade,
Ministry of Economic Affairs, for the fourth consecutive year.

Mr. Ken Kao, the Chairman, was awarded the "Technology and Communication
Entrepreneur Award" at the 2007 EY Entrepreneur of the Year Awards.

Won the "16" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 14 products and 1 Taiwan Excellence
Silver Award.

2008

Surpassed the standards in the industry and won TUV Rheinland STAR's highest score of
five stars for the enterprise quality rating.

Selected as Taiwan'’s top 10 international brands by the Bureau of Foreign Trade,
Ministry of Economic Affairs, for the fifth consecutive year.

Mr. Ken Kao, the founder and Chairperson of the Board, passed away.

Won the "17'" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 5 products.

2009

Awarded the Outstanding Innovation Enterprise Award at the 17™ Industrial Technology
Development Award held by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.

Mr. John Lee, the Chairman, was awarded the personal achievement award "R&D
Management Innovation Award" at the 17th Industrial Technology Development Award.
Certificated with ISO/IEC 27001:2005 the information security system.

Won the German "Red Dot Design Award 2009".

Won the Japan "Good Design Award 2009".

Won the German "iF Design Award 2009".

Won the "Japan INTEROP Design Award" with 2 products.

Won the "18" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 6 products and 1 Taiwan Excellence Gold
Award.

2010

D-Link’s network security system was recognized and patented in the UK.

Won the "Innovation Award" and the first place of Last Gadget Standing at the 2010 CES.
Won the "19" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 5 products and 1 Taiwan Excellence Gold
Award.

2011

A subsidiary was established in Korea.

Led the networking industry as the first player to launch innovative and revolutionary
new products of "D-Link Cloud Series", a pioneering initiative to integrate cloud services
for networking products.

Awarded the "Top 100 Taiwanese Brands" organized by Bureau of Foreign Trade,
Ministry of Economic Affair.

Won the "2011 Taiwan Top 20 International Brands" award organized by the Bureau of
Foreign Trade, Ministry of Economic Affairs.

Won the German "iF Design Award 2011" with 2 products.

Won the German "Red Dot Design Award 2011" with 2 products.

Won the Japan "Good Design Award 2011"

Won the "20" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 17 products.

2012

The innovative technology of "Zero Setting" was launched.

Participated in the World IPV6 Launch Day.

Awarded “2012 Taiwan Top 20 International Brands” organized by the Bureau of
International Trade, Ministry of Economic Affairs.




Awarded "Outstanding Innovation Enterprise Award" at the 2" National Industrial
Innovation Awards launched by the Ministry of Economic Affairs.

Won the German "Red Dot Design Award 2012" with 4 products.

Won the Japan "Good Design Award 2012".

Won the "21° Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 16 products and 1 Taiwan Excellence Gold
Award and 2 Taiwan Excellence Silver Award.

2013

Won first place in the wireless router evaluation conducted by Small Net Builder, a well-
known network equipment evaluation unit.

Awarded the "2013 Taiwan Top 20 International Brands" organized by Industrial
Development Bureau, Ministry of Economic Affair.

Won the German "Red Dot Design Award 2013" with 2 products.

Won the Japan "Good Design Award 2013".

Won the "Innovation Award" at the 2013 CES.

Won the "22" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 19 products.

2014

Launched the concept of "GET YOUR HOME TALKING; Smart Home - Internet of Things"
with the most comprehensive layout in the smart home field in the networking industry.
Launched the first smart socket.

Won the "2014 Taiwan Top 20 International Brands" organized by Industrial
Development Bureau, Ministry of Economic Affair.

Won the German "iF Design Award 2014" with 2 products.

Won the "23™ Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 8 products.

2015

Led the world by launching the first home-use 180° super wide-angle network cameras.
Became the first company in Taiwan to pass the latest version of 1ISO 9001:2015 and I1SO
14001:2015 certification.

Won the "2015 Taiwan Top 20 International Brands" organized by Industrial
Development Bureau, Ministry of Economic Affair.

Won the "24" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 11 products.

2016

Led the industry to launch a full range of smart home products that supported IFTTT.
Cooperated with Microsoft to enter the Super Wi-Fi market.

Won the "Innovation Award" with 2 products at the 2016 CES.

Won the "25" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 8 products.

2017

Became the first networking company in Taiwan to be verified through BSIMM.
Won the "26" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 6 products.

2018

Launched the first Open Thread Border Router (OTBR) in the world.

Certificated with BS 10012:2017 the personal information management system.
Won the "Innovation Award" with 2 products at the 2018 CES.

Won the German "iF Design Award 2018".

Won the Japan "Good Design Award 2018".

Won the"2018 COMPUTEX d&i awards".

Won the "27" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 8 products.

2019

Certificated with ISO 45001:2018 the occupational safety and health management
system.

Won the "Innovation Award" at the 2018 CES.

Won the "28" Taiwan Excellence Awards".

In a survey conducted by 1111 Job Bank, D-Link was selected by office workers as a
Happy Enterprise.

2020

Joined the Taiwan Steel Group.

Launch of brand new 5G mobile communication wireless routers management solution.
Announced that it has officially become an agent for Juniper Networks in Taiwan.
Passed the IEC 62443-4-1 Secure Product Development Lifecycle Requirements
certification.

Certificated with ISO/IEC 27001:2013 the information security system.

Won the German "iF Design Award 2020".




Won the "loT Breakthrough 2020".
Won the " Innovation Award " with 2 products at the 2020 CES.
Won the "29%" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 2 products.

Released the latest series of products at CES 2021, including mydlink home wireless
network cameras, Wi-Fi 6 wireless products, 5G wireless mobile products, and 2.5 GbE
solutions, to facilitate the digital transformation for smart homes and satisfy users’
needs in the post-pandemic era.

Announced that it has officially become the agent for the international information
security brand, Cyberbit, in Taiwan.

Launched the all-new EAGLE PRO Al series.

2021 Launched the DWA-X1850 Wi-Fi 6 USB WNIC.
Re-certificated with BS 10012:2017 the personal information management system.
Re-certificated with 1ISO 14001:2015 the environmental management system.
Won the "Innovation Award" with 2 products at the 2021 CES.
Won the German "Red Dot Design Award 2021" with 3 products.
Won the German "iF Design Award 2020" with 2 products.
Won the Japan "Good Design Award 2021" with 3 products.
Won the "30" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with 2 products.
Exclusive cooperation with Meta to create DWA-F18 virtual reality projection network
bridge, which wirelessly connects a computer to a head-mounted device, making the PC
VR experience perfect.
Joined the Metaverse Standard Forum.
Launched the "D-Link Green Pack" project.
Obtained TRUSTe Privacy Certification Label.
Implemented and verified the Taiwan Intellectual Property Management System (TIPS).
Adopted "Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD)".
Certified greenhouse gas emissions with I1SO 14064-1:2018.
Re-certificated with 1ISO 9001:2015 the quality management system.
Re-certificated with 1ISO 45001:2018 the occupational safety and health management
2022 system.

DCS-8350LH 2K QHD wireless webcam won the German "iF Design Award 2022".

M15 AX1500 Wi-Fi 6 dual band wireless router and M32 AX3200 Wi-Fi 6 dual band
wireless router won the "2022 MIT Golden Award", the only networking brand and
product that receive the award this year.

Won the "31%" Taiwan Excellence Awards" with the DWA-F18 virtual reality projection
network bridge.

Released the first sustainability report referred to SASB and compliant with the Type 2
moderate-level assurance of AA1000 ASv3 and certified by an independent inspection
agency.

Cooperated with National Taiwan University of Science and Technology to establish the
"D-Link Group Scholarship" to encourage and subsidize Ukrainian and other foreign
students to study and help introduce to and nurture more technology talent in Taiwan.

10




ITE)

uonnquIsia g ﬁhw-.._wo pueig

|suueyd

e hw-.._wWo :_.._wm_ﬂn_._mno
ABajens onpoid ki -

ajesodion

Eﬂ__mwms a.,_s
2JNpoJ
o Aiddime a®y 3onpold

32140

suonejay dljqnd

SJPO s Joupny

-]

aesodion

]
m
“ 22140 953

0S92 § UBWIIRYD _
aapiwwod 953
2aRIWWOD

uonessunay
IO PNy

si03dallg

jo pieog

Mey) euoneziuedio (1)

uoneziuesig |

Joday 2oueulanon ajelsodio) € Jaydey)

11



() Major Corporate Functions

Department

Functions

Board of Directors

Decision-making on business plans, earnings distribution, Articles of
Incorporation and important contracts, the examination and approval of
budget and final account, the appointment and dismissal of managerial officers
or other major matters.

Audit Committee

Assisting the Board of Directors in fulfilling the supervision of the Company's
adequate expression in the Company's financial statements, appointment
(dismissal) of CPAs and their independence, effective implementation of the
Company's internal control, the Company's compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, as well as the control and management of the Company's existing
or potential risks.

Remuneration
Committee

Improving corporate governance and strengthening the remuneration
management function of the Board of Directors, assisting in the
implementation and assessment of the remuneration paid to the Directors and
managerial officers of the Company.

ESG Committee

Regulating D-Link’s operation and management activities and improving the
Company’s performance in the environmental, social, and governance aspects,
thereby achieving the goal of sustainable development.

Corporate Auditor’s

Evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system and the
deficiencies during its implementation, while providing suggestions for

Office ) . .
improvement in a timely manner.
Analyzing domestic and international sustainability trends, coordinating and
ESG Office overseeing sustainability strategies and projects, and managing stakeholder

issues and sustainability issues.

Public Relations Office

Coordinating and managing the Company's external image, maintaining media
relations, handling media PR crises, and planning and executing social
engagement activities.

Product R&D Center

1. Planning and formulating the overall research and development (R&D)
strategies for products and technologies.

2. Research, planning, design, and specification setting for full range of
products.

3. Development and design of the service platform as well as planning and
management of software project schedules.

4. Software specification setting and testing for products; automatic test
development and test case setting.

5. Product software application systems, development and testing of functions.

6. Product software and hardware functions and compatibility verification;
providing quick and effective technical support services.

7. Integrating the needs across different units and product lines and
completing communication and introduction through PLM.

12




Department

Functions

. Managing the hardware and software operations and planning for global

information related systems; establishing and implementing information
standardization systems in conjunction with the IT/MIS integrated systems.

9. Handling of information security issues.

Supply Chain
Management Center

1. Management of procurement, price negotiation, delivery, and distribution

logistics of products outsourced.

. Supplier management, product supply and demand management, as well as

import and export operations.

. Integrating estimates for global procurement needs for products and

components, strategic procurement management.

. Establishing a comprehensive product development quality control system,

setting mid- and long-term quality objectives and plans, and improving
product quality and the Company's brand image.

. Performing regular audits of suppliers' product quality, development, and

production capabilities.

. Improving the service quality and accurately understanding the status of

product quality through the operation of the global RMA system and the
establishment of the global customer service center for Customer
Relationship Management (CRM).

Corporate Finance &
Operation Center

. Formulating the Company’s wealth management and investment strategies,

making effective use of funds, controlling financial risks, to achieve the
reasonable return on the Company’s overall investments.

2. Analyzing the operating performance of each operating units.

5.

. Facilitating the communication between the Company and investors to

enhance the transparency of financial information.

. Financial related business, including cash management, financing

management, hedging, credit risk management, investment management,
and stock affairs.

Conducting relevant accounting operations of the Headquarters and the
Taiwan Branch; coordinating and compiling relevant accounting operations
of the branches and subsidiaries around the world.

. Providing various financial and management reports for decision-making.
. Executing human resources-related affairs, including education and training,

recruitment and appointment, and salary management.

. Management of corporate legal affairs, business contracts, personal

information protection, litigation, intellectual property rights and other legal
matters.

. Logistics support for general affairs, property and equipment management,

and occupational safety and health management.

Brand Center

1. Execute (corporate/product) brand positioning and internal and external

branding in line with company philosophy.

13




Department

Functions

. Shape visual consistency of brand image.
. Global website planning and management.
. Collaborate with relevant departments to analyze competitors' product

design, interface, packaging and marketing design.

. Collaborate with relevant departments to design products (hardware and

software), packaging and points of sales materials for smooth delivery.

. Verify product and webpage interface usability.

Product Strategy Center

. Plan the product strategy direction according to the market competition and

future development trend.

. Competitive analysis and research, product direction development,

including new product specification and function development, product map
release, management and product acceptance, etc.

. Develop product launch strategies, formulate sales documents, and plan and

execute product business marketing plans.

. Product technical documentation, life cycle management and package

materials development design.

Channel Distribution
Center

. Responsible for the business development of D-Link global/overseas

consumer products market and effectively increase the market share of D-
Link products.

2. Develop global/overseas distribution strategies for D-Link consumer

products based on market characteristics to achieve the operational goals of
the Company.

. Develop distributor management system, channel development and

incentive strategies, and conduct regular review and revision to help
distributors achieve their performance targets.

Sales Center

. Implementing the guiding principles and operating policies stipulated by the

Headquarters for each OBUs to formulate business strategies, business
plans, and risk management policies respectively.

. Implementing the regulations stipulated by the Headquarters on the

relevant business practices of each OBUs.

3. Being Responsible for each OBU’s performance of various operating

indicators.

. Provide pre-sales technical and customer service support for products in

collaboration with OBUs.

. Reporting the local market demands and situations of each OBUs in time

and coordinating internal resources of D-Link Headquarter for enhancing the
performance efficiency of the Company overall.

14
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1. Professional Qualifications and Independence Analysis of Directors

Qualification

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of
Other Public
Companies in

Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an

Independent
Director
Title Name
Mr. Victor Kuo graduated from the |Mr. Victor Kuo serves as a Director
Graduate Institute of Electrical as a Representative of an
Engineering, National Taiwan Institutional Director. According to
University and founded Amit the regulations of the “Securities
Wireless Inc. in 1998 to develop  |and Exchange Act”, the Company
wireless loT products. He once has obtained a written statement
served as the CEO and the from him and confirmed that there
president of Amigo Technology Inc.|is no violation of Article 26-3,
listed on TPEx. He has been in the |paragraphs 3 of the “Securities
network communication industry |and Exchange Act”.
for many years and therefore
possesses complete, professional
and extensive industry knowledge.
. Victor |He serves as the Chief Strategy
Chairperson Kuo |Officer of D-Link Corporation, 0
planning the strategic
development of products,
technologies and investments in
relation to the medium and long-
term development of the
Company, as well as supervising
the risks regarding the Company's
strategies and operations, with
decision-making and risk
management capabilities.
No circumstances under any
subparagraph of Article 30 of the
Company Act.
Mr. Joseph Wang graduated from |Mr. Joseph Wang serves as a
the Department of Law, National |Director as a Representative of an
Director J\?\f::: Chung Hsing University and has Institutional Director. According to 1
served as the attorney at law of  |the regulations of the “Securities
Prolaw Law Firm. With profound |and Exchange Act”, the Company
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Title

Qualification

Name

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of
Other Public
Companies in

Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an
Independent

Director

legal expertise, which is one of the
necessary specialties for the
Board, he helps the Company’s
Board of Directors make an
evaluation before each major
decision, thereby reducing our
operational risks. In addition, he
has been the Chairman and CEO of
Gloria Material Technology Corp
and S-Tech Corp for many years,
and has been personally involved
in the management of the
companies, with extensive
experience in corporate
management. In recent years, he
has served as the top advisory
committee member of the
Corporate Sustainability
Committee of Gloria Material
Technology Corp and is committed
to promoting sustainable
development policies, leading
Gloria Material Technology Corp to
achieve the top 5% performance
of the 8th Corporate Governance
Evaluation.

No circumstances under any
subparagraph of Article 30 of the
Company Act.

has obtained a written statement
from him and confirmed that there
is no violation of Article 26-3,
paragraphs 3 of the “Securities
and Exchange Act”.

Director

Howard
Kao

After graduating from San José
State University, Mr. Howard Kao
has worked at D-Link for many
years. He served as the R&D and
management supervisor of

Mr. Howard Kao serves as a
natural-person Director. According
to the regulations of the
“Securities and Exchange Act”, the
Company has obtained a written

19




Qualification

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of
Other Public
Companies in

Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an

Independent
Director
Title Name
mydlink cloud service division of  |statement from him and
D-Link, where he was exposed to |confirmed that there is no
other start-up companies and violation of Article 26-3,
captured the latest market trends |paragraphs 3 of the “Securities
to make sophisticated technical and Exchange Act”.
and operational judgment.
Currently, he is responsible for the
management of overseas branches
and has visited India, the United
States and Australia to have a
better understanding of the
ecosystem of overseas markets
and gain international insight.
No circumstances under any
subparagraph of Article 30 of the
Company Act.
Mr. David Tai graduated from the |Mr. David Tai serves as a Director
MIT Sloan School of Management |as a Representative of an
and has worked at major Institutional Director. According to
technology companies, including |the regulations of the “Securities
TSMC and DEC, with management |and Exchange Act”, the Company
and practical experience. Since has obtained a written statement
1999, he has been involved in from him and confirmed that there
venture capital. With his extensive |is no violation of Article 26-3,
. David |experience in the technology paragraphs 3 of the “Securities
Director Tai industry, he has assisted a number [and Exchange Act”. In addition, 1
of start-up companies in Asia in although he serves as a director at
establishing business models and [several companies concurrently,
strategic plans to be listed in none of the companies, at which
China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the |he holds a position concurrently, is
United States. With an a company with direct or indirect
international perspective, he can |relations with the Company.
give professional advice to the Therefore, the Company is
Company from different convinced that the positions he
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Qualification

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of
Other Public
Companies in

Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an

Independent
Director
Title Name
perspectives. In addition, he has  |holds concurrently will not affect
served as a director or supervisor |his independence as a Director at
of a number of cross-strait D-Link.
companies, and has also served as
an advisor to the Taiwan Institute
for Information Industry on new
technology for many years, with
leadership capabilities.
No circumstances under any
subparagraph of Article 30 of the
Company Act.
Mr. Alan Yu graduated from the Mr. Alan Yu serves as a Director as
Graduate Institute of Electrical and |a Representative of an Institutional
Computer Engineering, Santa Clara |Director. According to the
University, California, U.S. He was |regulations of the “Securities and
in charge of SEB's customer Exchange Act”, the Company has
development business in East Asia |obtained a written statement from
and assisted in the smooth him and confirmed that there is no
transformation of the company, |violation of Article 26-3,
with operation and management |paragraphs 3 of the “Securities
capabilities. During the term of and Exchange Act”. In addition,
office as a senior executive, such |although he serves as an
Director Alan Yu |as CXO at Cisco, HP and other Independent Director of other 1
medium-sized enterprises as well |TWSE-listed companies
as the head in charge of the Asia  |concurrently, the number of such
Pacific region, Mr. Alan Yu companies with a similar business
observed market changes and scope is fewer than three, so he
planned the companies’ meets the Company's
operational strategies and independence criteria.
guidelines according to the
characteristics of regional markets,
with operational judgments and
decision-making capabilities. He
had handled business crisis (e.g.
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Title

Qualification

Name

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of
Other Public
Companies in

Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an
Independent

Director

China Unicom’s VoIP controversy),
political crisis (e.g. TravelSky’s
Shanghai air traffic control
system), and product quality crisis
(e.g. Toyota’s auto defect incident),
with absolute confidence in crisis
management. In addition, he has
an in-depth understanding of and
contacts in the North American,
Southeast Asian, and Japanese
markets. Through the attention to
the international situation,
technology advancement,
upstream and downstream
connections, etc., he has
established international market
insight and accumulated
knowledge of the networking
industry. Currently, he is a member
of the Risk Management
Committee of CviLux Lao Co., Ltd.
No circumstances under any
subparagraph of Article 30 of the
Company Act.

Independent

Director

Richard
Chen

Mr. Richard Chen graduated from
the Department of Accounting,
Chinese Culture University. In
addition to passing the Senior
Professional and Technical
Examination for Certified Public
Accountants, he obtained the
securities analyst and the land
administration agent licenses, with
accounting professional and

Mr. Richard Chen was elected as
an Independent Director by the
shareholders' meeting. As per the
“Securities and Exchange Act”, the
Company has obtained a written
statement from him and
confirmed that he is not under any
circumstances under Article 3 of
the “Regulations Governing
Appointment of Independent
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Qualification

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of
Other Public
Companies in

Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an

Independent
Director
Title Name

financial analysis capabilities. Directors and Compliance Matters

Therefore, he has met the for Public Companies”. In addition,

professional qualifications for an  |he is not concurrently serving as

independent director. He is also an independent director of other

the convener of the Company's companies with similar business or

Audit Committee and a member of [financial transactions. Therefore,

the Remuneration Committee and |he can exercise his powers

the ESG Committee. independently and make business

No circumstances under any decisions by exercising his own

subparagraph of Article 30 of the [judgment objectively.

Company Act.

Mr. Richard Lee graduated from Mr. Richard Lee was elected as an

the Institute of China and Asia- Independent Director by the

Pacific Studies, National Sun Yat-  [shareholders' meeting. As per the

sen University. He used to be the |“Securities and Exchange Act”, the

district court chief judge and chief [Company has obtained a written

justice. He has extensive statement from him and

experience in court proceedings as |confirmed that he is not under any

a legal specialist. He has served as |circumstances under Article 3 of

a Congressional Assistant in the the “Regulations Governing

Legislative Yuan, writing Appointment of Independent

) interpellation papers for legislators |Directors and Compliance Matters
Inde.pendent Richard and assisting in handling public for Public Companies”. In addition, 3

Director Lee petitions. He possesses cross- he is not concurrently serving as

disciplinary conceptual and an independent director of other

analytical thinking, information companies with similar business or

consolidation and crisis financial transactions. Therefore,

management skills. In addition, he |he can exercise his powers

is also a partner of a law firm and |independently and make business

is responsible for the firm's decisions by exercising his own

operational guidelines and judgment objectively.

business execution. Therefore, he

has met the professional

qualifications for an independent
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Qualification

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of
Other Public
Companies in

Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an

Independent
Director
Title Name

director. He is also the convener of

the Company's Remuneration

Committee and a member of the

Audit Committee and the ESG

Committee.

No circumstances under any

subparagraph of Article 30 of the

Company Act.

Mr. Chun-Hsiung Chu graduated  |Mr. Chun-Hsiung Chu was elected

from the master’s program, School |as an Independent Director by the

of Law, National Chung Hsing shareholders' meeting. As per the

University. He has practiced as an |“Securities and Exchange Act”, the

attorney for more than 30 years  |[Company has obtained a written

with profound legal expertise. He |statement from him and

has participated in the evaluation |confirmed that he is not under any

and operation of large-scale circumstances under Article 3 of

projects of customers in terms of |the “Regulations Governing

integrated finance, law, Appointment of Independent

technology, management, and risk,|Directors and Compliance Matters

such as the information and for Public Companies”. In addition,

Independent ::E:g communication software and he is not concurrently serving as 5

Director Chu hardware construction project of |an independent director of other

the Terminal Three of Taoyuan
International Airport and the
military procurement project of
the Ministry of National Defense,
with cross-disciplinary conceptual
and analytical thinking,
information consolidation and
crisis management skills.
Therefore, he has met the
professional qualifications for an
independent director. He has long
served as a member of the

companies with similar business or
financial transactions. Therefore,
he can exercise his powers
independently and make business
decisions by exercising his own
judgment objectively.
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Qualification

Name

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of
Other Public
Companies in

Which the
Individual is
Concurrently
Serving as an
Independent

Director

Neighborhood Committee of the
Ministry of National Defense, and
is responsible for assisting each
township in using the funds
donated by the Ministry of
National Defense for the
sustainable work of general
construction and regional
revitalization in each township. He
can provide professional advice on
the sustainable development of
the Company from different
perspectives. Therefore, he is also
the convener of the Company's
CSR Committee and a member of
the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. No
circumstances under any
subparagraph of Article 30 of the
Company Act.
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2. Diversity and Independent of Board Members

(1) Diversity of Board Members:

e The Company has formulated the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” and
stated in Article 20 that the policy of board member diversity shall include but not limited
to the following two aspects of standard:

A. Basic qualification and value: gender, age, and nationality.
B. Professional knowledge and skills: professional background (such as law, accounting,
industry, finance, marketing or technology), professional skills and industry

experience.

*  The Company has a total of 8 Directors, including 3 Independent Directors (accounting for
37.5%), with tenure of less than 3 years; Meanwhile, 2 Directors are employees
(accounting for 25%). Mr. Richard Chen has professional background in accounting and
financial analysis; Mr. Joseph Wang, Mr. Richard Lee and Mr. Chun-Hsiung Chu possess the
expertise in legal background and can provide professional advice to the Company from

different perspectives.

*  Specific management objectives and achievement of the Board's Diversity Policy:

Management Target

Status of Achievement

Directors concurrently serving as the
Company’s managerial officers shall
not exceed one-third of the total
number of the board members.

Achieved. The directors are employees accounting for 25%.

Independent Director shall serve no
more than three consecutive terms.

Achieved. All three independent directors in 12t session
served as independent directors of the Company for the first
time.

At least 1 Director has relevant
expertise in the networking industry.

Achieved. Director Victor Kuo has been in the networking
industry for many years.

At least 1 Independent Director has
professional or experience in
sustainable development.

Achieved. Independent Director Chun-Hsiung Chu is currently
a member of the Audit Committee of the Neighborhood Fee
Committee of Ministry of National Defense's each
headquarters, having encouraged and reviewed the
promotion of environmental sanitation, sustainable
development, and local creation in villages for a long time.

At least one female director.

Not Achieved. At least one female director after the re-
election of directors upon the expiration of original directors'
tenure in 2023 in order to achieve the policy of gender
equality and diversity and continuously improve corporate
governance.
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*  The implementation status of Board members diversity in 12t session is shown in the

table below:
Date: 2022.12.31
Item Basic Information Ability
Tenure of
- Age Independent ,'.,)’> z % -
3 Director o|g |83 — | 3 S
s Bl2 (&[22 |2 o |8 | =
E Sl |3 8|88 <822
o | ? S s |23 |28 |22 L
o o | € u | o c S a | 2 2 L |3 o | O EE
S =] = = S w o =R - 5 ) ) =] < 3
o =4 Q - - o - < - = 2 > = = o o
© [ [® |©C |O o O |8 | c |3 w [ | &2 |% |3 |F | =
TlElS|e S 25 8|82 E|8|E|2|5]8) ¢
o o o o W < < © o =1 3 RS z @ 2
Sis |33 |5 |88 |3 |5|% |3 |2 | ® | & |3
o I o Y O 3 2 © 2 s E] S o |~
Slal|ad|a|a M =S a 3
Name of =< s | S H =
Directors
Victor Kuo M|V v Vivi v v v |V v
Joseph Wang M v 4 v | v v ivi|iv|v
Howard Kao M|V |V v Vivi v v v |V
David Tai M v ViV iviviviv i iv | v
Alan Yu M v viviv|iv|iv]|iviv]v v
Richard Chen M v v viIivi v |V v | v v
Richard Lee M vV v v | v V|V v
Ch”r‘c':s'“"g M v v v v v vivivi]v
u

(2) Independent of Board Members: The current board of directors of the Company consists of 8
directors, including 3 independent directors (accounting for 37.5%). All directors meet the
independence criteria and have not served more than three consecutive terms. In addition,
none of the directors has a relationship within the spousal or second degree of kinship, which
complies with the provisions of Paragraphs 3, Article 26-3, of the Securities and Exchange Act.
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(IV) Separately compare and describe total remuneration, as a Percentage of net
Income stated in the parent company only financial statements or individual
financial statements, as paid by the Company and by all other companies
included in the consolidated financial statements in the most recent two years
to Directors, Supervisors, President and Vice Presidents of the Company and
the analysis and description of remuneration policies, standards, packages and
the procedure for determining remuneration, and their correlations with the
operating performance and future risk exposure.

1. Policies, Standards, Combinations for Remuneration, and the Correlation with Business

Operation Performance and Future Risks:

(1)

()

The major components of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company are
general remuneration and compensation. In accordance with Article 27 of the
“Articles of Incorporation” of the Company, the remuneration of the Directors of the
Company shall be distributed no more than one percent of the profit for the year.
The profit for the year shall refer to the profit before tax for the year less the
distribution of employees’ compensation and Directors’ compensation; The
remuneration policy of the Directors is based on the “Measures for the
Management of the Remuneration of Directors and Functional Committees”, “Rules
for Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors” and with reference to the
payment level of peer companies, the Company’s operating results and the
contribution of the Directors to the Company’s operational objectives. Independent
Directors do not participate in profit distribution. The related performance
evaluation and the reasonableness of the remuneration are reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors. The remuneration system is
reviewed from time to time in accordance with the actual operating conditions and
relevant laws and regulations.

President and Vice Presidents : Remuneration of the Company’s managerial
officers, including President and Vice Presidents, is determined in accordance with
the Company’s “Performance Evaluation Management Measures”, with reference to
the remuneration level of the industry for the position, the scope of responsibilities
of the position, the achievement of the manager’s performance and contribution to
the Company’s operational objectives. The main components of the manager’s
performance targets are operating objectives including revenue and earnings per
share after tax, and other strategic objectives such as brand value and corporate
image, corporate governance and corporate sustainability, talent retention and
development. According to the manager's attributes, the proportion of business
goals ranges from 40% to 80%, and the proportion of other strategic goals ranges
from 20% to 60%. The remuneration package comprises of fixed and variable
components, the former is the basic salary of the manager, the latter is mainly
bonus and linked to the operating performance of the Company or the center in
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which her or she belongs to. If the performance is more excellent, the proportion of

this part relative to the salary will be higher. The aforementioned performance

appraisal objectives and remuneration of managers, including the President and

Vice Presidents, are reviewed and evaluated by the Remuneration Committee, and

submitted to the Board of Directors for approval before distribution.

Future risks : The Company will review the remuneration payment system of the

Directors and managerial officers in a timely manner in accordance with the actual

operating conditions and requirements of the relevant laws and regulations, with a

view to retaining high quality decision-making and managerial level, and with a view

to effectively leading the Company’s long-term operating performance, avoiding

risks resulting from the manager’s pursuit of short-term benefits, so as to strike a

balance between sustainable operation and risk control.

2. Ratio of Directors, President, and Vice Presidents' Total Remuneration to Net Income

after Tax in Recent Two Years:

Ratio of Total Remuneration to Net Income After Tax

2022 2021
Title Consolidated Consolidated
The Company Financial The Company Financial
Statements Statements
Directors 4.82% 4.82% 2.83% 2.83%
President and Vice Presidents 35.01% 36.71% 29.77% 30.42%
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IV. Implementation of Corporate Governance

(1) Board of Directors

In 2022 (6 meetings) and 2023 (1 meetings) as of the publication date of this Annual Report,
the Company’s Board of Directors held a total of 7 meetings; the attendance of Directors is as

follows:
Number of
y Meetings Attendance Attendance
Title Name should in Person (B) Proxy | Rate (%) (B/A) Remarks
Attend (A)
. Young Syun Investment Co., Ltd.
h 7 7 100%
Chairperson Representative: Victor Kuo 00%
. Young Syun Investment Co., Ltd. o
Director Representative: Joseph Wang 7 5 71%
. Pu Ju Investment Co., Ltd. o
Director Representative: David Tai 7 6 86%
Director PuJu Investment Co., Ltd. 7 6 36%
Representative: Alan Yu
Director Howard Kao 7 6 86%
. Resigned on
o
Director John Lee 5 5 100% 2022.09.28
Independent Richard Chen 7 7 100%
Director
Independent Richard Lee 7 7 100%
Director
Independent Chun-Hsiung Chu 7 7 100%
Director

Other Mentionable Items:

. If Any of the Following Circumstances Occur, the Dates, Terms of the Meetings, Contents of Motions,
all Independent Directors’ Opinions and the Company’s Response Should be Specified:
i. Items Listed in Article 14-3 of the “Securities and Exchange Act”: The Company has established an

Audit Committee, so it is not applicabl

e.

ii. Other Matters Involving Objections or Expressed Reservations by Independent Directors that were
Recorded or Stated in Writing that Require a Resolution by the Board of Directors: None.

Il.  If there are Directors’ Avoidance of Motions in Conflict of Interest, the Directors’ Names, Contents of

Motion, Causes for Avoidance and Votin

g should be Specified:

restrictions for
the Directors.

Howard Kao,
David Tai,
Alan Yu

Meeting Date . Reason for .
N Proposal Director Recused Voting Results
(Term and Session) P Recusal 8
Proposal for the Serves as a After the acting chair
appointment of managerial consulted the attending
the Company's Victor Kuo officer directors, they agreed to
managerial concurrently at | approve it as proposed
officers the Company without objection.
Proposal for the . .
202’; Servesasa After the acting chair
2022.02.22 erformance managerial consulted the attending
(14" meeting of the P Victor Kuo officer directors, they agreed to
" target plan for .
12" term) . concurrently at | approve it as proposed
managerial - [
R the Company without objection.
officers.
Victor Kuo, Each of the direct
Release of non- ctor fiuo Hold other ac 9 © |r'ec ors
. Joseph Wang, - explained the important
competition positions

concurrently at
other companies

contents of their
personal interests and
recused themselves
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from the discussion on
and resolution of this
proposal. After the chair
or the acting chair
consulted the attending
directors, they agreed to
approve it without

objection.
P | fi . .
rop05§ or Serves as a After the acting chair
evaluation of R .
managerial managerial consulted the attending
. Victor Kuo officer directors, they agreed to
officers' 2022 ;
erformance concurrently at | approve it as proposed
2023.02.22 fesults the Company without objection.
(20 meeting of the - Discussion of
12t term) . Victor Kuo, X After the acting chair
Details of allocation for .
. Joseph Wang, consulted the attending
allocation of 2022 themselves or X
B ) Howard Kao, [T directors, they agreed to
directors . . the institutional :
compensation David Tai, director the approve it as proposed
P Alan Yu M without objection.

represented

Ill. Implementation Status of Board Evaluations:
On August 12, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company approved an amendment to the "Rules for
Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors", which stipulates that the Board of Directors shall conduct
an internal performance evaluation of the Board of Directors, its members, and functional committees at
least once a year, and an external evaluation by an external independent institution or a team of external
experts and scholars at least once every three years.
(I) External Evaluation of the Board of Directors
In May 2022, the Company appointed the Taiwan Corporate Governance Association, a non-
governmental, non-profit and independent corporation that provides professional corporate
governance system assessment and the Board of Directors’ performance evaluation services in
Taiwan, to conduct an evaluation. The association issued an evaluation report on July 7, 2022, and
the overall evaluation results were submitted to the Board of Directors on August 12, 2022 for
approval and served as a basis for review and improvement. The Scope, method and content of
the evaluation are as follow.
Evaluation Cycle Once every three years
Evaluation Period | 2021.06.01~2022.05.31
Scope of Evaluation | The Board of Directors and functional committees of the Company
Evaluation Method | Site visits
1. Composition of the Board of Directors
2. Instructions of the Board of Directors
3. Authorization of the Board of Directors
4. Supervision of the Board of Directors
5. Communication of the Board of Directors
6
7
8
1

Evaluation Items

. Internal control and risk management

. Self-regulation of the Board of Directors

. Others (such as meetings of the Board of Directors, support systems, etc.)

. We suggest the Company to further strengthen the existing whistle-blower
mechanism by setting up an independent director to receive emails in person or an
acceptance unit to receive emails simultaneously.

2. We suggest establishing a "Directors' Handbook" to clearly establish a training
system for the new directors to facilitate future implementation.

3. Itis recommended to including at least one female director.

4. Itis recommended that the Company establishes a training and succession plan for

Suggestions of
the association
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. Itis recommended that the Company reviews the design of the questionnaire for

senior managers in line with the development vision and strategy as well as the
global ESG development trend.

the Board of Directors' performance evaluation and adds forward-looking and
strategic qualitative indicators.

Implementation
status of the
Company

3.

. The Company has communicated with the independent director Mr. Chun-Hsiung

. Directors’ Handbook and a training session for new directors are already under

. The Company has established the procedure of "Senior Manager Successor

. The Company has amended the "Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board of

Chu, and has simultaneously transferred the whistleblowing mailbox to the
independent director Mr. Chu to receive emails in person.

planning by Corporate Governance Officer.
After the re-election of directors in 2023 upon expiry of term of office, at least one
female director shall be held on the Board.

Recommendation and Selection Program" and establish a comprehensive training
system on November 4, 2022.

Directors " at the Board of Directors' meeting on August 12, 2022, adding ESG-
related qualitative indicators.

(I) Internal Evaluation of the Board of Directors
The results of the Board of Directors' performance evaluation for 2022 were presented to the
Board of Directors on February 22, 2023, together with the proposal on improvement measures,
which were used as a reference for individual director's compensation and nomination for
reappointment. The overall average score of the board performance self-evaluation was 4.91
points (out of 5 points), and the overall average score of individual board members' performance
self-evaluation was 4.71 points (out of 5 points), indicating that the Board of Directors is
functioning well. In addition, we completed the Audit Committee's, Remuneration Committee's,
and the ESG Committee's performance self-evaluations, and the evaluation results all reached 4.50
points (out of 5 points), indicating that the Company’s functional committees are functioning and
operating well. The evaluation scope, method, and content are as follows:

Evaluation Once a year
Cycle
Bvaluation | ) 01.012022.12.31
Period
1. Board performance evaluation
2. Board members’ performance evaluation
Scope ,Of 3. Audit Committee
Evaluation 4. Remuneration Committee
5. ESG Committee
Evaluation Internal self-evaluation
Method
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The board performance The board members’ Functional committees’
evaluation covers six major

aspects:

performance evaluation performance evaluation
covers six major aspects:

1. Understanding of the 1.

covers:

1. Involvement in the Involvement in the

Company's operations

management (ESG)

Company goals and tasks

Company's operations

2. Improvement to the . Awareness of directors' 2. Awareness of functional
quality of decision- responsibilities committee members'
making by the board . Involvement in the responsibilities

Evaluation . . .
ltems 3. Composition and Company's operations 3. Improvement to the
structure of the Board of . Internal relationship quality of decision-
Directors management and making by functional

4. Directors’ election and communication committees
continuing education . Directors’ professionalism | 4. Composition of

5. Internal control and continuing education functional committees

6. Focus on sustainable . Internal control and selection of

members

5. Internal control (Audit

Committee Only)

IV. Measures Taken to Strengthen the Function of the Board and Results Thereof:

(1)

(1

()

(Iv)

In response to the global minimum tax regime, the PwC tax team was invited to conduct an in-
person training course to assist directors in understanding the international and domestic tax-
related risks that the Company faces in its operations and relevant response measures. A total of
66 hours of continuing education were provided to directors in 2022.

We hold important meetings and invite directors to participate in the meetings from time to time,
such as product and R&D exchange sessions, in order to increase communication and exchange
opportunities among directors and discuss the Company's growth strategies.

In order to conduct stringent review on the financial statement financial statements, the
Company's 2022 interim financial statement and annual financial statement were reviewed by the
Audit Committee and then submitted to the Board of Directors for discussion.

To enable the independent directors to fully exercise their duties and responsibilities, the
independent directors have been arranged to attend separate meetings with the auditors and the
certified public accountants on a quarterly basis.
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() Operations of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee aims to assist the Board of Directors in overseeing the quality and
integrity during the Company's implementation of accounting, auditing, and financial
reporting processes, as well as financial controls. The Audit Committee’s major tasks in 2022
are as follows:
e Reviewed quarterly financial statements.
e Formulated or amended the internal control system and relevant important measures.
e Assessed the effectiveness of internal control system.
e Regularly communicated the audit report results with the Internal Auditor as per the
annual audit plan.
e Audit of transactions in which the Company acquires or disposes of assets, and
significant endorsements or guarantees for others.
« Assessed the audit fees, independence, and suitability of CPAs.
* Reviewed investment proposals.
« Handled matters bearing on the personal interest of a director.
« Issuance of equity securities.
In 2022 (6 meetings) and 2023(1 meetings) as of the publication date of this Annual Report,
the Company’s Audit Committee held a total of 7 meetings; the attendance of Independent
Director is as follows:
Number of
Tite Name | e atend | inperson(s) | prowy | Rate(orm | "emares
(A)
Indgpendent Richard Chen 7 7 0 100% Convener
Director
Inde.pendent Richard Lee 7 7 0 100%
Director
Indgpendent Chun-Hsiung 7 7 0 100%
Director Chu

Other mentionable items:

If any of the Following Circumstances Exists, Specify the Audit Committee Meeting Date, Meeting
Session Number, Content of the Motion(s), the Content of any Dissenting or Qualified Opinion or
Significant Recommendation of the Independent Directors, the Outcomes of Audit Committee
Resolutions, and the Measures Taken by the Company Based on the Opinions of the Audit
Committee:

(1) Matters referred to in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

The Company's
Response to the Audit
Committee's Opinions

Audit Committee
Resolution Results

Meeting Date
) Proposal
(Term of Meeting)

1. Proposal for the 2021 Internal Control
System Statement.
2. Proposal for independence and suitability

evaluation report of the CPAs appointed by Submitted to the

2022.02.22
(The 11* meeting
of the 2" term)

the Company for 2022.

. Proposal for the CPAs’ fees for the

Company’s financial statements and
taxation.

. Proposal for adjustment to D-Link Group's

global investment structure.

. Release of non-competition restrictions for

directors.

All Independent
Directors agreed to
pass it without any
opinion.

Board of Directors for
a resolution and
approved by all the
Directors present.
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. Proposal for amendment to the Company's

“Group Tax Policy and Management
Regulation”.

. Proposal for amendment to the Company's

“Corporate Social Responsibility Best
Practice Principles”.

. Proposal for amendment to the “Seal

Management Regulations”.

. Proposal for amendment to the Company's

“Information Security Management Policy”.

10.

Proposal for amendment to the
Company's “Corporate Governance Best
Practice Principles”.

Some provisions of
these principles
were revised after
the discussion by
the Independent
Directors and then
approved by all the
Independent
Directors without
any opinion.

The Board of Directors
referred to the Audit
Committee’s opinion
and approved it with
the consent of all the
Directors present.

2022.03.29
(The 12 meeting
of the 2" term)

. Proposal for the Company’s 2021 business

report and financial statements.

. Proposal for the earnings distribution for

2021.

. Proposal for the amendment to the “Articles

of Incorporation”.

. Proposal for the amendment to the

“Regulations Governing the Acquisition and
Disposal of Assets”.

All Independent
Directors agreed to
pass it without any
opinion.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors for
a resolution and
approved by all the
Directors present.

2022.04.12
(The 13™ meeting
of the 2" term)

Proposal for issuance of restricted stock
awards.

All Independent
Directors agreed to
pass it without any
opinion.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors for
a resolution and
approved by all the
Directors present.

2022.05.03
(The 14" meeting
of the 2" term)

1.

2.

Proposal for the 2022 Q1 consolidated
financial statements.

Proposal for the amendment to “Internal
Audit System and Implementation Rules”
and establishment of the” Internal Audit
Procedures” and “Internal control system
self-assessment operating procedures ”.

All Independent
Directors agreed to
pass it without any
opinion.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors for
a resolution and
approved by all the
Directors present.

2022.08.12
(The 15" meeting
of the 2" term)

Proposal for the 2022 Q2 consolidated
financial statements.

Proposal for providing endorsement
guarantee to 100% indirectly invested
subsidiary of the Company.

All Independent
Directors agreed to
pass it without any
opinion.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors for
a resolution. Except
for Director John Lee,
Director Alan Yu and
David Tai, the
representatives of Pu
Ju Investment Co.,
Ltd., expressed
reservations to this
proposal. The proposal
was approved by the
rest of Directors
present.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors for
a resolution and
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. Proposal for the amendment to the

“Internal Audit Implementation Rules” and
“R&D cycle”.

. Proposal for the amendment to the “Budget

management policy”.

approved by all the
Directors present.

2022.11.04
(The 16 meeting
of the 2" term)

Proposal for the Company’s 2023 annual
audit plan.

Proposal for the amendment to the
"Implementation Measures for the
Whistleblowing System".

Proposal for the amendment to the “2022
Restricted Stock Award Plan”.

Proposal for 2022 Q3 consolidated financial
statements.

Proposal for the new acquisition of right-of-
use assets by the subsidiary of the
Company.

Proposal for cash capital reduction by the
subsidiary of the Company.

Proposal for the amendment to the “Audit
Committee Charter”.

Proposal for the amendment to the “Risk
Management Policies and Procedures”.
Proposal for the amendment to the
“Procedures for Materiality Management
and Prevention of Insider Trade”.

All Independent
Directors agreed to
pass it without any
opinion.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors for
a resolution and
approved by all the
Directors present.

2023.02.22
(The 17t meeting
of the 2" term)

10.

11.

Proposal for the 2022 Internal Control
System Statement.

Proposal for the Company’s 2022 business
report and financial statements.

Proposal for the earnings distribution for
2022.

Proposal for independence and suitability
evaluation report of the CPAs appointed by
the Company for 2023.

Proposal for the appointment of the
Company's CPA.

Proposal for the CPAs’ fees for the
Company’s financial statements and
taxation.

Proposal for the establishment of the “Non-
Assurance Services Pre-approval Policy”.
Proposal for the amendment to the “2022
Restricted Stock Award Plan”.

Proposal for the abolishment and re-
establishment of the "Rules and Procedures
of Shareholding’s Meeting".

Proposal for the amendment to the
“Operational Procedures for Lending Funds
to Others”.

Proposal for the amendment to the
“Operational Procedures for Endorsements
and Guarantees”.

All Independent
Directors agreed to
pass it without any
opinion.

Submitted to the
Board of Directors for
a resolution and
approved by all the
Directors present.

(1) Other Matters Which were not Approved by the Audit Committee but were
Approved by Two-Thirds or More of all Directors: None.

Il. If there are Independent Directors’ Avoidance of Motions in Conflict of Interest, the
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Directors’ Name, Contents of Motion, Causes for Avoidance and Voting should be
Specified: There was no recusal due to conflict of interests in 2022.

Ill.Communication Between the Independent Directors, Chief Internal Auditor, and CPAs
(Including Material Items, Methods, and Results of the Company's Finance and
Operations):

(I) The Company's Internal Auditor regularly reports to the Independent Directors alone on the
performance of the Company's annual audit plan as well as improvement and tracking of internal
control deficiencies on an annual basis. Meanwhile, the Internal Auditor submits an audit report
and defect tracking report for the previous month before the end of each month. In the event of a
major abnormal incident, the Internal Auditor will immediately report to the Independent
Directors. There was no such special situation in 2022, and the communication between the
Company's Independent Directors and the Internal Auditor is in good condition.

() The Company's CPAs report the audit or review results of the quarterly financial statement or and
other matters required by law to the Independent Directors alone at the quarterly Audit
Committee meeting. In the event of a special circumstance, the CPAs will also report to the
Independent Directors immediately. There was no such special situation in 2022, and the
communication between the Company's Independent Directors and the CPAs is in good condition.

(1) Communication between Independent Directors and the Internal Auditor, and CPAs:

1. Communication between Independent Directors and the Internal Auditor:

Date Sessmf\ of Attendee Communication Focus Indeper.rdent Directors’
Meeting Suggestions and Results
1. Report on the 1. Suggestion: Pay attention
implementation of the 2021 to the relevant laws and
Independent Director Q4 audit plan. regulations. All members
Richard Chen 2. 2021 Internal Control System were informed of the
Audit Richard Lee Statement. remaining details and
2022.02.22 Committee Chun-Hsiung Chu reported to the Board of
(2-11) . Directors.
Internal Auditor 2. Approved as proposed
Richard Yang without objection and
submitted to the Board of
Directors for approval.
1. Reportonthe 1. Suggestion: it is required
implementation of the 2021 to strengthen the
Independent Director Q4 audit plan. inspection of the storage
Richard Chen 2. The latest implementation and use of the seal;
Audit Richard Lee status of the audit and reported to the Board of
2022.03.29 Committee Chun-Hsiung Chu reporting items stipulated by Directors.
(2-12) laws and regulations. 2. No opinion.
Internal Auditor 3. Explain to the Independent 3. Hold a separate
Richard Yang Directors the execution and communication meeting
mode of the separate before the quarterly
communication meeting. regular meeting.
Independent Director 1. Report on the No opinion.
Richard Chen implementation of the 2022
Audit Richard Lee Q1 audit plan.
2022.05.03 | Committee | chyn-Hsiung Chu 2. Explanation of additions and
(2-14) Internal Auditor revisions to the internal
Richard Yang control system.
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. : ’
Date Sessm? of Attendee Communication Focus Indepen'dent Directors
Meeting Suggestions and Results
1. Reporton the 1. Mr. Chun-Hsiung Chu, an
implementation of the 2022 independent director,
Q2 audit plan. confirmed that he had paid
2. For other operations attention to and
Independent Director involving derivative financial understood during the
Audit Eic:arg I(_Zhen in.strun?ents, t.he results of course c'>f thg audit the
2022.08.12 | Committee Clhc a—rH -ee o d|scu55|9ns Wlt-h the currencies with unysual
(2-15) un-nsiung Lhu responsible units on the ratios for the hedging
Internal Auditor proposals are explained. operations of derivatives in
Richard Yang various currencies, and
noticed the rest without
any comments.
2. No opinion.
3. No opinion.
1. Report on the No opinion.
implementation of the 2022
Independent Director Q3 audit plan.
Audit E:z:::g (L::j“ 2. The explténati?r:hof the |
. preparation of the annua
2022.11.04 Co:;_rqg)tee Chun-Hsiung Chu audit plan for 2023.
Internal Auditor 3. Explanation of the progress
Richard Yang of the self-assessment and
TIPS project verification and
certification for 2022.
1. Report on the No opinion.
implementation of the 2022
Q3 audit plan.
2. The latest implementation
Independent Director status of the audit and
Audit Ric:arg Chen reporting items stipulated by
. Richard Lee laws and regulations.
2023.02.22 Co:rzl_n;;c)tee Chun-Hsiung Chu 3. The Company issued the
Internal Auditor 2022 Statement on Internal
Richard Yang Control, and the internal
auditor explained to the
independent directors the
change of the signatory (from
the President to CEO).

2. Communication Between Independent Directors and CPAs:

i Independent Directors’
Session of i .
Date . Attendee Communication Focus Suggestions and
Meeting
Results
Informed; reported to
. . the Audit Committee
1. CPAs explained details of
X . and the Board of
" the 2021 financial .
Independent Director . Directors.
. . statements audited and
Audit Richard Chen kev audit matters
2022.03.29 Committee Richard Lee v X
K 2. CPAsdiscussed and
(2-12) Chun-Hsiung Chu R .
communicated with the
CPAs . .

questions raised by the
attendees.
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Session of

Independent Directors’

Date Meetin Attendee Communication Focus Suggestions and
& Results
CPAs explained the key audit Informed; reported to
Independent Director matters in the 2022 Q1 the Audit Committee
Audit Richard Chen financial statements. and the Board of
2022.05.03 Committee | Richard Lee Directors.
(2-14) Chun-Hsiung Chu
CPAs
CPAs explained the key audit Informed; reported to
Independent Director | Matters in the 2022 Q2 the Audit Committee
Audit Richard Chen financial statements. and the Board of
2022.08.12 Committee | Richard Lee Directors.
(2-15) Chun-Hsiung Chu
CPAs
CPAs explained the key audit Informed; reported to
Independent Director | Matters in the 2022 Q3 the Audit Committee
Audit Richard Chen financial statements. and the Board of
2022.11.04 Committee | Richard Lee Directors.
(2-16) Chun-Hsiung Chu
CPAs
CPAs explained the key audit Informed; reported to
Independent Director matters in the 2022 financial the Audit Committee
Audit Richard Chen statements. and the Board of
2023.02.22 Committee Richard Lee Directors.
(2-17) Chun-Hsiung Chu

CPAs
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X. The Directors of the Company Have Attended Relevant Training Courses and the 2022 Years of
Training for Directors are as Follows:

Title Name Date of Name of Course Conducting Entity Cour_se
Course Duration
The Impact of the Global anti-Base
Erosion Rules and Taiwan's Anti- Taiwan Corporate
2022.08.12 |Avoidance System on Corporate Tax P . 3
. . . \ Governance Association
Chairperson | Victor Kuo Governance from a Director's
Perspective
2022 Webinars: Regulations for Securities & Futures
2022.10.05 3
Disposal of Stocks for Insiders Institute (SFI)
Technology Development and -
2022.06.02 |Business Opportunities of Electric lS:SctLthrL:ttfs(SZi;II):utures 3
. Howard Vehicles and Smart Cars
Director
Kao Under the Threat of Ransomware, Securities & Futures
2022.07.13 |the Legality of Cyber Security . 3
Institute (SFI)
Management Act
Analysis of Taiwan's Anti-Avoidance
FC, PEM R h Tai
2022.05.05 System (CFC, and(; S), the aiwan Corporate o 3
Impact on Wealth Inheritance and Governance Association
the Response
. Joseph Concepts, Practices and Tools of Securities & Futures
2022.05.11 . 3
Director Wang Group Tax Governance Institute (SFI)
2022.08.04 From ESG Investment and Financing |Taiwan Corporate 3
o to Corporate Sustainability Transition |Governance Association
2022.08.10 External innovation and sustainable SeCl:II’ItIeS & Futures 3
management Institute (SFI)
Director David Tai | 2022.12.22 Enterprises Face.thg Rl?ks and Crises |Taiwan Corporate o 3
Caused by the Digitization Governance Association
The Impact of the Global anti-Base
Erosion Rules and Taiwan's Anti- Taiwan Corporate
2022.08.12 |Avoidance System on Corporate Tax P . 3
. \ Governance Association
. Governance from a Director's
Director Alan Yu .
Perspective
Chinese National
2023 Global E i | ial
2022.09.26 023 Global Economic and Industria Association of Industry 3
Outlook
and Commerce
Leadgrsh!p Academy Forum: . KPMG & Taiwan Institute
2022.03.09 |Reactivating under the new reality - of Directors (TWIOD) 3
Independent | Richard seeing the new digital Taiwan
Director Chen Case Analysis of Financial Statement Accounting Research and
2022.04.07 |Fraud and How to See Key 8 . 3
- . Development Foundation
Information in Financial Statements
Leadership Academy Forum: . .
2022.03.09 |Reactivating under the new reality - KPN!G & Taiwan Institute 3
. . . of Directors (TWIOD)
seeing the new digital Taiwan
2030,2050 Green Industrial i
2022.07.05 /' Taiwan Corporate o 3
Revolution Governance Association
. Tai
Indgpendent Richard 2022.07.19 |Let's meet the new world of Net-zero aiwan Corporate - 3
Director Lee Governance Association
2022.08.04 From ESG Investmefnt aT].d Fmanc}lrﬂlg Taiwan Corporate o 3
to Corporate Sustainability Transition |Governance Association
The Impact of the Global anti-Base Taiwan Corporate
2022.08.12 |Erosion Rules and Taiwan's Anti- P . 3
R Governance Association
Avoidance System on Corporate Tax
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Governance from a Director's
Perspective

Independent Chun-

Analysis of Taiwan's Anti-Avoidance
System (CFC, PEM and CRS), the Taiwan Corporate

2022.05.05 Impact on Wealth Inheritance and Governance Association 3
the Response
The Impact of the Global anti-Base
Erosion Rules and Taiwan's Anti- Taiwan Corporate

2022.08.12 |Avoidance System on Corporate Tax 3

. Governance Association
Governance from a Director's

Perspective
ESG New E dN
ew tconomy and New Securities & Futures

2022.11.15 |Opportunities for Enterprise Institute (SFI) 3

Hsiung Chu

Transition
How the Board of Directors Use OKR -
Securities & Futures
2022.11.16 |to Improve Corporate Governance . 3
- Institute (SFI)
Efficiency
2022.12.13 Thg Opportunities and Risks In the  |Taiwan Corporate o 3
Digital Era Governance Association

XI. Succession Planning and Operation of Board Members and Key Management:
(I) Succession Planning and Operation of Board Members and Key Management
1. The structure of the Company's Board of Directors shall be decided in consideration of its

business scale, the shareholdings of its major shareholders, and practical operational
needs. The Company has stipulated in the “Articles of Incorporation” and “Rules for
Election of Directors” that the election of Directors shall be based on the candidate
nomination system in full compliance with Article 192-1 of the Company Act. In addition,
the “Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles” stipulates that the composition of
the board shall be considered in terms of diversity and that a diversity policy shall be
formulated in respect of the operation, operation type and development needs of the
Company.

2. The Company has established a database of candidates for Directors based on the

following criteria to plan for the succession of directors :

(1)"Entrepreneurial, responsible, honest and valuing teamwork", which is in line with the
Company’s core values and in line with the Company’s medium to long-term
development strategy.

(2) Familiar with the industry to which the Company belongs and has relevant experience
in the industry.

(3)His or her joining will continuously provide the Company with an effective, synergistic,
diverse and tailored board with the target is to have at least one female director.

(4)Has professional knowledge and skills required for the operation of the Company,
covering corporate strategy, accounting and tax, finance, legal, management and
international market perspective.

3. The Company continues to promote the entry of management professionals into the

Board of Directors or the boards of overseas subsidiaries, so that they are familiar with
the operations of the board and the overseas business of the group, as well as the industry
experience and decision-making ability, so as to form a succession team for the directors.

4. The Company has also set forth the “Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board of

Directors” to ensure the effectiveness in the operation of the Board and evaluate the
performance of Directors by evaluation items of performance evaluation, including the
alignment of the goals and missions of the Company, awareness of the duties,
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participation in the operation, management of internal relationship and communication,
professionalism and continuing education, internal control and expression of specific
opinion, which will be the future reference in the selection of directors.

(I1) Key Management Succession Planning and Operation

1. For the sustainable development of the Company, the Board of Directors approved the
"Succession Planning for Senior Manager" in 2022 to establish a talent selection
mechanism to identify potential successors at key management levels, and then build a
succession team through a training mechanism to improve corporate governance and
operational performance. The Company regularly promotes internal talents and gives
priority to internal promotion for management positions. For the succession planning of
key management, in addition to inventory and selection of potential successors,
performance appraisal is performed on a regular basis, which is complemented with the
guidelines of planning and mentors for individual development, to assist them to
effectively enhance their ability to shift and shorten their succession schedule.

2. The Company has established a comprehensive position agent system, arranging agents
of key management personnel to perform their duties and increasing their experience to
strengthen the senior decision-making and management capabilities.

3. The Company arranges the management personnel to attend the board meetings and
participate in regular important operating management meetings. It also assigns the
management personnel to serve on the boards of overseas subsidiaries to enhance their
functions from corporate governance, board operations, corporate operating practices,
etc., and participate in the vision and strategic direction of the group in order to hold
important management positions in the future.
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(IV) Composition, Responsibilities, and Operations of the Remuneration
Committee
1. Information of Remuneration Committee Members

Number of Other Public

Qualification Companies in Which the
Professional Qualifications, Independence Status Individual is Concurrently
Title Experience and Ability Serving as a
(Note1) Name Remuneration Committee
Member
Mr. Richard Lee graduated from  |Mr. Richard Lee was elected as an
the Institute of China and Asia- Independent Director by the
Pacific Studies, National Sun Yat- [shareholders' meeting. The
sen University. He used to be the |Company obtained a written
district court chief judge and chief |statement from him, confirming
justice. He has extensive that he complies with the positive
experience in court proceedings |and negative conditions specified in
as a legal specialist. He has served |the “Regulations Governing the
as a Congressional Assistant in the|Appointment and Exercise of
Legislative Yuan, writing Powers by the Remuneration
interpellation papers for Committee of a Company Whose
legislators and assisting in Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock
handling public petitions. He Exchange or the Taipei Exchange or
Convener/ possesses cross-disciplinary the Taipei Exchange”. It is
Independent Richard Lee |conceptual and analytical confirmed that he as an 3
Director thinking, information Independent Director can
consolidation and crisis independently exercise his powers
management skills. In addition, and make decisions, through his
he is also a partner of a law firm |professional qualifications and
and is responsible for the firm's  |experience, in alignment with the
operational guidelines and needs of the Remuneration
business execution. Therefore, he [Committee.
has met the professional
qualifications for an independent
director. He is also the convener
of the Company's Remuneration
Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the ESG
Committee.
Mr. Richard Chen graduated from |Mr. Richard Chen was elected as an
the Department of Accounting, Independent Director by the
Chinese Culture University. In shareholders' meeting. The
addition to passing the Senior Company obtained a written
Professional and Technical statement from him, confirming
Examination for Certified Public  |that he complies with the positive
Accountants, he obtained the and negative conditions specified in
Indgpendent Richard Chen [securities analyst and the land the “Regulations Governing the 3
Director administration agent licenses, Appointment and Exercise of
with accounting professional and |Powers by the Remuneration
financial analysis capabilities. Committee of a Company Whose
Therefore, he has met the Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock
professional qualifications for an |Exchange or the Taipei Exchange”. It
independent director. He is also  |is confirmed that he as an
the convener of the Company's  |independent director can
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Qualification

Professional Qualifications,

Independence Status

Number of Other Public
Companies in Which the
Individual is Concurrently

Title Experience and Ability Serv'ing asa '
(Note1) Name Remuneration Committee
Member
Audit Committee and a member |independently exercise his powers
of the Remuneration Committee |and make decisions, through his
and the ESG Committee. professional qualifications and
experience, in alignment with the
needs of the Remuneration
Committee.
Mr. Chun-Hsiung Chu graduated |Mr. Chun-Hsiung Chu was elected
from the master’s program, as an Independent Director by the
School of Law, National Chung shareholders' meeting. The
Hsing University. He has practiced [Company obtained a written
as an attorney for more than 30  |statement from him, confirming
years with profound legal that he complies with the positive
expertise. He has participated in |and negative conditions specified in
the evaluation and operation of  |the “Regulations Governing the
large-scale projects of customers |Appointment and Exercise of
in terms of integrated finance, Powers by the Remuneration
law, technology, management, Committee of a Company Whose
and risk, such as the information |Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock
and communication software and |Exchange or the Taipei Exchange”. It
hardware construction project of |is confirmed that he as an
the Terminal Three of Taoyuan independent director can
International Airport and the independently exercise his powers
military procurement project of  |and make decisions, through his
the Ministry of National Defense, |professional qualifications and
with cross-disciplinary conceptual |experience, in alignment with the
and analytical thinking, needs of the Remuneration
Independent | Chun-Hsiung |, f tion consolidation and Committee. 2
Director Chu fntorma

crisis management skills.
Therefore, he has met the
professional qualifications for an
independent director. He has long
served as a member of the
Neighborhood Committee of the
Ministry of National Defense, and
is responsible for assisting each
township in using the funds
donated by the Ministry of
National Defense for the
sustainable work of general
construction and regional
revitalization in each township.
He can provide professional
advice on the sustainable
development of the Company
from different perspectives.
Therefore, he is also the convener
of the Company's CSR Committee
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Qualification

Professional Qualifications,

Independence Status

Number of Other Public
Companies in Which the
Individual is Concurrently

Title Experience and Ability Serv'ing asa '
(Note1) Name Remuneration Committee
Member
and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.
Dr. Chien Yang graduated from Mr. Chien Yang has extensive
Computer Science, University of |academic and career experience.
Washington. He is an emeritus The Company obtained a written
professor at the National Yang statement from him, confirming
Ming Chiao Tung University. He  |that he complies with the positive
used to be a professor at the and negative conditions specified in
Institute of Business and the “Regulations Governing the
Management and the executive |Appointment and Exercise of
of EMBA, National Chiao Tung Powers by the Remuneration
University. He specializes in Committee of a Company Whose
Member Chien Yang [strategic management, Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock 4
technology management, and Exchange or the Taipei Exchange”. It
human resource management, is confirmed that he can
and has met the provisions of independently exercise his powers
Article 5 of the “Regulations and make decisions, through his
Governing the Appointment and |professional qualifications and
Exercise of Powers by the experience, in alignment with the
Remuneration Committee of a needs of the Remuneration
Company Whose Stock is Listed ~ |Committee.
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange or
the Taipei Exchange”.
Dr. Shu-Fen Wang graduated from [Ms. Shu-Fen Wang has extensive
the University of Houston in the |academic and career experience.
United States, majoring in The Company obtained a written
financial management, and is statement from her, confirming
currently an associate professor |that she complies with the positive
at the Institute of Finance, and negative conditions specified in
National Yang Ming Chiao Tung  |the “Regulations Governing the
University. She has engaged in Appointment and Exercise of
education for nearly 30 years. She |Powers by the Remuneration
specializes in corporate value Committee of a Company Whose
Member Shu-Fen Wang |analysis, business merger and Stock is Listed on the Taiwan Stock 2

acquisition issues, and financial
management, and has met the
provisions of Article 5 of the
“Regulations Governing the
Appointment and Exercise of
Powers by the Remuneration
Committee of a Company Whose
Stock is Listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange or the Taipei
Exchange”.

Exchange or the Taipei Exchange”.
It is confirmed that she can
independently exercise her powers
and make decisions, through her
professional qualifications and
experience, in alignment with the
needs of the Remuneration
Committee.
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2.

Duties of Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee is operated in accordance with the "Remuneration Committee

Charter." The main duties of this committee are described as follows:

(1) Stipulate and regularly review the policies, systems, standards, and structure of
performance assessment, salaries, and remunerations of Directors and managerial
officers.

(2) Regularly review and stipulate the salaries and remunerations of Directors and
managerial officers.

(3) Review and recommend the Board’s remuneration package for long-term incentive and
talent retention.

Operations of Remuneration Committee

(1) The Remuneration Committee is composed of 5 members.

(2) Term of office of the 4" Committee: From 2020.07.10 to 2023.06.14, the Remuneration
Committee held 4 meetings in 2022 and held 1 meeting prior to the publication deadline
of the Annual Report for 2023. The Remuneration Committee held a total of 5 meetings
on 2022.02.22, 2022.03.29, 2022.08.12, 2022.11.02 and 2023.02.22 respectively. The
attendance of the members are as follows:

Number of
Meetings Attendance B Actual
Title Name g . v Attendance Remarks
should in Person (B) | Proxy Rate (B/A)
Attend (A)
Ind dent Richard
" e.pen en char 5 5 0 100% Convener
Director Lee
Ind dent | Richard
n e-pen en IChart 5 5 0 100%
Director Chen
Chun-
Ind dent
NAEPENdent | isiung 5 5 0 100%
Director
Chu
Chi
Member en 5 5 0 100%
Yang
Shu-F
Member u-ren 5 5 0 100%
Wang

Other Mentionable Items:

If the Board of Directors Declines to Adopt or Modifies a Recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee, it Should Specify the Date of the Meeting, Session, Content of
the Motion, Resolution by the Board of Directors, and the Company’s Response to the
Remuneration Committee’s Opinion (e.g., the Remuneration Passed by the Board of
Directors Exceeds the Recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Circumstances and Cause for the Difference Shall be Specified): None.

. Resolutions of the Remuneration Committee Objected to by Members or Expressed

Reservations and Recorded or Declared in Writing, the Date of the Meeting, Session,
Content of the Motion, all Members’ Opinions and the Response to Members’ Opinion
Should be Specified: None.

The Discussion Items and Resolution Results of the Remuneration Committee in the Most
Recent Year, and the Company’s Handling of Members’ Opinions:
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Remuneration
Committee
Date and Session

Proposal

Resolution

Company's Response
Regarding the
Remuneration

Committee's Opinions

2022.02.22

1. Proposal for the appointment of
the Company's managerial
officers.

2. Proposal for the 2022
performance target plan for
managerial officers.

3. Proposal for ratification of the
employee remuneration and

Approved by all
members present
and submitted to

The 8" meeting of bonuses to the Company’s the Board of None
the 4" term . i k .
managerial officers (Assistant Directors for
Vice Presidents or above). discussion.
4. Proposal for the amendment to
the “Management Regulations on
the Remuneration of Directors
and Functional Committee
Members”.
Approved by all
2022.03.29 Proposal for 2021 employees' and | e Pers present
The 9™ meeting of Directors' compensation and submitted to None
the 4™ term distribution. the Board of
Directors for
discussion.
Reported matter: The details of allocation of 2021 directors’ None
compensation.
1. Details of allocation of 2021
employees’ compensation for
managerial officers.
2022.08.12 2. Proposal for the 2021 bonus for
The 10" meeting of the general manager of the Pan- | Approved by all
the 4t term European business group. members present
3. Proposal for the amendment to and submitted to None
the "Management Regulations on | the Board of
the Remuneration of Directors Directors for
and Functional Committee discussion.
Members".
4. Proposal for the amendment to
the "Rules for Performance
Evaluation of Board of Directors".
2022.11.02 1. Proposal for reviewing policies, Approved by all
The 11" meeting of systems, structures and members present None

the 4t term

standards of the Company's

and submitted to
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Remuneration
Committee
Date and Session

Proposal

Resolution

Company's Response
Regarding the
Remuneration

Committee's Opinions

Directors and managerial officers'
performance evaluation and
remuneration.

. Proposal for the adjustment of

the managerial officers' 2022
performance indicators (CEO and
President).

. Proposal for the establishment of

the “Succession Planning for
Senior Manager”.

the Board of
Directors for
discussion.

2023.02.22
The 12t meeting of
the 4% term

. Proposal for evaluation of

managerial officers' 2022
performance results.

. Proposal for 2022 employees'

and Directors' compensation
distribution.

. The details of allocation of 2022

directors’ compensation.

Approved by all
members present
and submitted to
the Board of
Directors for
discussion.

None
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(V) Operations of the ESG Committee
1. Information on the Members of the ESG Committee

Qualification

Number of Other
Public Companies in
Professional Qualifications, Which the Individual
Experience and Ability Independence Status is Concurrently
Serving as an ESG
Title Committee Member
(Note 1) Name
Mr. Chun-Hsiung Chu graduated from |Mr. Chun-Hsiung Chu was
the master’s program, School of Law, |elected as an Independent
National Chung Hsing University. He [Director by the shareholders'
has practiced as an attorney for more|meeting. As per the “Securities
than 30 years with profound legal and Exchange Act”, the
expertise. He has participated in the |Company has obtained a
evaluation and operation of large-  |written statement from him
scale projects of customers in terms |and confirmed that he is not
of integrated finance, law, under any circumstances
technology, management, and risk, |under Article 3 of the
such as the information and “Regulations Governing
communication software and Appointment of Independent
hardware construction project of the [Directors and Compliance
Terminal Three of Taoyuan Matters for Public Companies”.
International Airport and the military (In addition, he is not
procurement project of the Ministry [concurrently serving as an
of National Defense, with cross- independent director of other
disciplinary conceptual and analytical{companies with similar
Convener/ Chun-Hsiung [thinking, information consolidation |business or financial
Independent . ) ) 0
Director Chu and crisis management skills. transactions.

Therefore, he has met the
professional qualifications for an
independent director. He has long
served as a member of the
Neighborhood Committee of the
Ministry of National Defense, and is
responsible for assisting each
township in using the funds donated
by the Ministry of National Defense
for the sustainable work of general
construction and regional
revitalization in each township. He
can provide professional advice on
the sustainable development of the
Company from different
perspectives. Therefore, he is also
the convener of the Company's CSR
Committee and a member of the

Therefore, he can exercise his
powers independently and
make business decisions by
exercising his own judgment
objectively.
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Qualification

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of Other
Public Companies in
Which the Individual

is Concurrently

Serving as an ESG

Title Committee Member
(Note 1) Name
Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Richard Chen graduated from the [Mr. Richard Chen was elected
Department of Accounting, Chinese |[as an Independent Director by
Culture University. In addition to the shareholders' meeting. As
passing the Senior Professional and |per the “Securities and
Technical Examination for Certified [Exchange Act”, the Company
Public Accountants, he obtained the |has obtained a written
securities analyst and the land statement from him and
administration agent licenses, with  |confirmed that he is not under
accounting professional and financial |any circumstances under
analysis capabilities. Therefore, he  |Article 3 of the “Regulations
has met the professional Governing Appointment of
Independent | _. qualifications for an independent Independent Directors and
Director Richard Chen director. He is also the convener of  |Compliance Matters for Public 0
the Company's Audit Committee and |[Companies”. In addition, he is
a member of the Remuneration not concurrently serving as an
Committee and the ESG Committee. |independent director of other
companies with similar
business or financial
transactions. Therefore, he can
exercise his powers
independently and make
business decisions by
exercising his own judgment
objectively.
Mr. Richard Lee graduated from the |Mr. Richard Lee was elected as
Institute of China and Asia-Pacific an Independent Director by
Studies, National Sun Yat-sen the shareholders' meeting. As
University. He used to be the district |per the “Securities and
court chief judge and chief justice.  |Exchange Act”, the Company
He has extensive experience in court [has obtained a written
Independent Richard Lee proceedings as a legal specialist. He [statement from him and 1
Director has served as a Congressional confirmed that he is not under

Assistant in the Legislative Yuan,
writing interpellation papers for
legislators and assisting in handling
public petitions. He possesses cross-
disciplinary conceptual and analytical

thinking, information consolidation

any circumstances under
Article 3 of the “Regulations
Governing Appointment of
Independent Directors and
Compliance Matters for Public
Companies”. In addition, he is
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Title
(Note 1)

Qualification

Name

Professional Qualifications,
Experience and Ability

Independence Status

Number of Other
Public Companies in
Which the Individual

is Concurrently

Serving as an ESG
Committee Member

and crisis management skills. In
addition, he is also a partner of a law
firm and is responsible for the firm's
operational guidelines and business
execution. Therefore, he has met the
professional qualifications for an
independent director. He is also the
convener of the Company's
Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee and
the ESG Committee.

not concurrently serving as an
independent director of other
companies with similar
business or financial
transactions. Therefore, he can
exercise his powers
independently and make
business decisions by
exercising his own judgment
objectively.

2. Duties of the ESG Committee
The committee assists the Board of Directors in continuously fulfilling the corporate social
responsibility and improving corporate governance for sustainable operation. Its
responsibilities and powers should include the matters below:

(1)
()
(3)

Formulate annual plans and strategy for sustainable development.
Formulate sustainable development projects and activity plans.
Track and review the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s sustainable

development annual plan, strategy, project, and activity plan, and report to the board of
directors at least once a year.

(4)

Directors.

3. Operations of the ESG Committee
(1) The Remuneration Committee is composed of 3 members.
(2) Term of office of the 1%t Committee: From 2021.02.02 to 2023.06.14, the ESG Committee

held 1 meeting (A) in the most recent year 2022.11.02. The attendance of the members
are as follows:

Other matters to be handled by the Committee upon resolution of the Board of

. Attendance in Attendance
Title Name Person (&) By Proxy Rate (B/A) Remarks

Inde.pendent Chun-Hsiung 1 0 100% Convener

Director Chu
|
ndependent | o/ hard Chen 1 0 100%

Director
Independent | o 1 ard Lee 1 0 100%

Director
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4. ESG Committee’s Important Reports and Resolutions

Date
(Session of
Meeting)

Important Reports and Discussions

Resolution

2022.11.02
(1-2)

[Reports]

1.

6.

Implementation status of Intellectual
Property Management in 2022.

. Greenhouse Gas Inventory and Disclosure

Planning Report in 2022.

. Implementation status of the Company's

sustainable development in 2022.

. Implementation status of risk

management in 2022.

. Stakeholder engagement and

communication result in 2022.
The Company's ESG strategic objective.

No opinion; reported to the
Board of Directors.

[Discussion]

1.

Proposal for the amendment to the
“Human Rights Policy and Management
Plan”.

All Independent Directors
agreed to pass it without
any opinion and submitted
to the Board of Directors for
resolutions.

. Proposal for the amendment to the

Company’s “ESG Committee Charter”.

It is recommended that the
Company establish the
organizational structure and
responsibilities of the ESG
Office. All Independent
Directors agreed to pass it
without any opinion and
submitted to the Board of
Directors for resolutions.

. Proposal for changing the convener of the

first term of the ESG Committee.

All Independent Directors
agreed that Chun-Hsiung
Chu be the convener of ESG
Committee without any
opinion.
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(X) The Implementation of the Internal Control System Shall Disclose the
Following Items
1. Statement on Internal Control

D-Link Corporation
Statement on Internal Control System
Date: 2023.02.22

According to the results of the Company's self-assessment, the Company's statement pertaining to the

internal control system in 2022 is as follows:

I. The Company acknowledges that the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of an internal
control system is the responsibility of the Board of Directors and managerial officers, and the Company
has established an internal control system. The internal control system is designed to provide
reasonable assurance for the effectiveness and efficiency of the operations (including profitability,
performance, and protection of assets), reliability, timeliness, and transparency of reporting, and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Il.  The internal control system has innate limitations. No matter how robust and effective the internal
control system, it can only provide reasonable assurance of the achievement of the foregoing three
goals; in addition, the effectiveness of the internal control system may vary due to changes in the
environment and conditions. However, the internal control system of the Company has self-monitoring
mechanisms in place, and the Company will take corrective action against any defects identified.

Ill.  The Company uses the assessment items specified in the "Regulations Governing Establishment of
Internal Control Systems by Public Companies" (hereinafter referred to as "the Regulations") to
determine whether the design and implementation of the internal control system are effective. Based
on the process of control, the assessment items specified in the Regulations divide the internal control
system into five constituent elements: 1. control environment; 2. risk assessment; 3. control activities;
4. information and communications; and 5. monitoring activities. Each constituent element includes a
certain number of items. For more information on such items, refer to the Regulations.

IV.  The Company has already adopted the aforementioned Regulations to evaluate the effectiveness of its
internal control system design and operating effectiveness.

V. Based on the aforementioned audit findings, the Company holds that as of December 31, 2022, its
internal control procedures (including the procedures to monitor subsidiaries), effectiveness and
efficiency of operations, reliability, timeliness, transparency of reporting, and compliance with relevant
legal regulations, and design and enforcement of internal controls, are effective. The aforementioned
goals can be achieved with reasonable assurance.

VI. This statement will constitute the main content of the Company's Annual Report and the prospectus
and will be disclosed to the public. Any falsehood or concealment with regard to the contents above
will entail legal liability under Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174 of the “Securities and Exchange Act”.

VII. This Statement has been passed at the Board of Directors meeting on February 22, 2023, with none of
the eight attending Directors expressing objectives; all Directors affirmed the content of this
Statement.

D-Link Corporation
Chairperson: Victor Kuo

CEO: CJ Chang
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2. Where CPAs are commissioned to audit the Company's internal control
systems, the Audit Report Prepared by the CPAs Shall be Disclosed: None.

(x1)

For Penalties Imposed Upon the Company and Its Employees in Accordance

with the Law or Penalties Imposed by the Company Upon Its Employees for
the Violation of the Internal Control System Policy During the Most Recent
Fiscal Year up to the Date of Publication of the Annual Report, if the Result
of Such Penalties May Have a Significant Impact on the Shareholders’ Equity
or the Price of Securities, the Contents of the Penalties, Principal
Deficiencies, and Improvements Shall Be Specified: None.

(X11)

Major Resolutions Adopted at the Shareholders' Meetings and the Board of

Directors Meeting in the Most Recent Fiscal Year and as of the Printing Date

of this Annual Report.

1. Resolutions Voted on by All Shareholders Present at the Company's General
Shareholders' Meeting, and Implementation Thereof:

Date of meeting: 2022.05.27

Place of meeting: Liberty Square Convention Center —Meeting room(1F East, No. 399,
Ruiguang Rd., Neihu Dist., Taipei City)

Major Resolutions

Implementation

(1) Adopted the 2021 Business Report and
Financial Statements.

(2) Adopted 2021 earnings distribution
proposal.

(3) Approved the proposal for amendment to
the Company’s “Articles of Incorporation”.

(4) Approved the proposal for amendment to
the Company’s “Regulations Governing the
Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”.

(5) Approved the issuance of Restricted Stock
Award.

(6) Approved the release of non-competition
restrictions for directors.

(1) Resolution was passed.

(2) Resolution was passed.

(3) The resolution was passed, and the
Company completed the registration of the
amendment of the Articles of Incorporation
on July 6, 2022, which was uploaded to the
Company's website.

(4) The resolution was passed and the revised
procedures were uploaded to the Market
Observation Post System and the
Company's website on June 10, 2022.

(5) The resolution was passed and approved
by the competent authorities on November
30, 2022.

(6) Resolution was passed.

2. Major Resolutions of the Board of Directors Meetings in 2022 and as of the Printing

Date of this Annual Report for 2023:

Date of Meeting
(Term-Session)

Major Resolutions

2022.02.22 officers.

(12-14) officers.

(1) Approved the proposal for the 2021 Internal Control System Statement.
(2) Approved the proposal for the appointment of the Company's managerial

(3) Approved the proposal for the 2022 performance target plan for managerial

(4) Approved the proposal for ratification of the employee remuneration and
bonuses to the Company’s managerial officers (Assistant Vice Presidents or
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Date of Meeting
(Term-Session)

Major Resolutions

above).

(5) Approved the amendment to the “Management Regulations on the
Remuneration of Directors and Functional Committee Members”.

(6) Approved the proposal for independence and suitability evaluation report of
the CPAs appointed by the Company for 2022.

(7) Approved the proposal for the CPAs’ fees for the Company’s financial
statements and taxation.

(8) Approved the proposal for adjustment to D-Link Group's global investment
structure.

(9) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of a short-term credit line
and derivatives trading to banks.

(10) Approved the release of non-competition restrictions for the Company’s
managerial officers.

(11) Approved the release of non-competition restrictions for directors.

(12) Approved the proposal of convening the 2022 Annual General Shareholders'
Meeting.

(13) Approved matters relating shareholders’ proposals for the Company’s 2022
Annual General Shareholders' Meeting.

(14) Approved the amendment to the Company's “Group Tax Policy and
Management Regulation”.

(15) Approved the amendment to the Company's “Corporate Governance Best
Practice Principles”.

(16) Approved the amendment to the Company's “Corporate Social Responsibility
Best Practice Principles”.

(17) Approved the amendment to the “Seal Management Regulations”.

(18) Approved the amendment to the Company's “Information Security
Management Policy”.

(1) Approved the proposal for 2021 employees' and Directors' compensation
distribution.

(2) Approved the Company’s 2021 business report and financial statements.

(3) Approved the 2022 business plan and budget proposal.

(4) Approved the earnings distribution for 2021.

202122'(135'29 (5) Approved the cash dividends from capital surplus.
) (6) Approved the amendment to the “Articles of Incorporation”.
(7) Approved the amendment to the “Regulations Governing the Acquisition and
Disposal of Assets”.
(8) Approved the revision of the reason for convening the Company’s 2022 Annual
General Shareholders' Meeting.
(1) Approved the proposal for issuance of restricted stock awards.
2022.04.12 . . ,
(2) Approved the revision of the reason for convening the Company’s 2022 Annual
12-16 , .
General Shareholders' Meeting.
(1) Approved the 2022 Q1 consolidated financial statements.
(2) Approved the amendment to “Internal Audit System and Implementation
Rules” and establishment of the” Internal Audit Procedures” and “Internal
2022.05.03 control system self-assessment operating procedures”.
12-17 (3) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line and derivatives

trading with banks.
(4) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line and derivatives
trading with banks.
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Date of Meeting
(Term-Session)

Major Resolutions

(5) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line with banks.
(6) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line and derivatives
trading with banks.

(1) Approved the details of allocation of 2021 employees’ compensation for
managerial officers.

(2) Approved the 2021 bonus for the general manager of the Pan-European
business group.

(3) Approved the amendment to the "Management Regulations on the
Remuneration of Directors and Functional Committee Members".

(4) Approved the amendment to the "Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board
of Directors".

2022.08.12 (5) Approved the 2022 Q2 consolidated financial statements.
12-18 (6) Approved the proposal for providing endorsement guarantee to 100%
indirectly invested subsidiary of the Company.

(7) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line and derivatives
trading with banks.

(8) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line and derivatives
trading with banks.

(9) Approved the amendment to the “Internal Audit Implementation Rules” and
“R&D cycle ”.

(10) Approved the amendment to the “Budget management policy”.

(1) Approved the Company’s 2023 annual audit plan.

(2) Approved the amendment to the "Implementation Measures for the
Whistleblowing System".

(3) Approved the proposal for reviewing policies, systems, structures and
standards of the Company's directors and managerial officers' performance
evaluation and remuneration.

(4) Approved the adjustment of the managerial officers' 2022 performance
indicators (CEO and President).

(5) Approved the establishment of the “Succession Planning for Senior Manager”.

(6) Approved the amendment to the “Human Rights Policy and Management
Plan”.

(7) Approved the amendment to the “2022 Restricted Stock Award Plan”.

(8) Approved the 2022 Q3 consolidated financial statements.

2022.11.04 (9) Approved the new acquisition of right-of-use assets by the subsidiary of the
12-19 Company.

(10) Approved the proposal for cash capital reduction by the subsidiary of the

Company.

(11) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line and derivatives
trading with banks.

(12) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line and additional
derivatives trading with banks.

(13) Approved the amendment to the “Regulations Governing Procedure for Board
of Directors Meetings”.

(14) Approved the amendment to the “Audit Committee Charter”.

(15) Approved the amendment to the “ESG Committee Charter”.

(16) Approved the amendment to the “Risk Management Policies and Procedures”.

(17) Approved the amendment to the “Procedures for Materiality Management and
Prevention of Insider Trade”.
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Date of Meeting
(Term-Session)

Major Resolutions

(18) Approved the amendment to the “Regulations For Management of Financial
and Non-financial Information”.
(19) Approved the amendment to the “Regulations for Filing of Public Information”.

2023.02.22
12-20

(1) Approved the proposal for the 2022 Internal Control System Statement.

(2) Approved the Company’s 2022 business report and financial statements.

(3) Approved the earnings distribution for 2022.

(4) Approved the 2023 business plan and budget proposal.

(5) Approved the proposal for independence and suitability evaluation report of
the CPAs appointed by the Company for 2023.

(6) Approved the appointment of the Company's CPA.

(7) Approved the proposal for the CPAs’ fees for the Company’s financial
statements and taxation.

(8) Approved the establishment of the “Non-Assurance Services Pre-approval
Policy”.

(9) Approved the proposal for evaluation of managerial officers' 2022
performance results.

(10) Approved the amendment to the “2022 Restricted Stock Award Plan”.

(11) Approved the release of non-competition restrictions for the Company’s
managerial officer.

(12) Approved the proposal for 2022 employees' and Directors' compensation
distribution.

(13) Approved the details of allocation of 2022 directors’ compensation.

(14) Approved the proposal for application for renewal of credit line and derivatives
trading with banks.

(15) Approved the proposal for addition of the authorized traders for derivatives
trading.

(16) Approved the proposal of convening the 2023 Annual General Shareholders'
Meeting.

(17) Approved the proposal for election of the 13t board of directors.

(18) Approved matters relating shareholders’ proposals for the Company’s 2023
Annual General Shareholders' Meeting from the shareholders with at least a
1% stake in D-Link.

(19) Approved the acceptance and the nomination of nine seats of directors
(including three seats of independent directors) from the shareholders with at
least a 1% stake in D-Link.

(20) Approved the abolishment and re-establishment of the "Rules and Procedures
of Shareholding’s Meeting".

(21) Approved the amendment to the “Operational Procedures for Lending Funds
to Others”.

(22) Approved the amendment to the “Operational Procedures for Endorsements
and Guarantees”.
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(XI1) Major Issues of Record or Written Statements Made by any Director
Dissenting to Important Resolutions Passed by the Board of Directors in the
Most Recent Year and as of the Printing Date of this Annual Report:

Date of
Meeting

Term-Session

Major Resolutions

2022.02.22

12-14

Proposal: Proposal for the release of non-competition restrictions
for the Company’s managerial officers.

Directors’ dissenting opinions: Director Alan Yu, the representative
of Pu Ju Investment Co., Ltd., Director John Lee, and Director
Howard Kao expressed reservations about this proposal, while
Director David Tai, the representative of Pu Ju Investment Co., Ltd.,
expressed opposition to this proposal.

2022.03.29

12-15

Proposal: Proposal for the cash dividends from capital surplus.
Directors’ dissenting opinions: Director Alan Yu and David Tai, the
representatives of Pu Ju Investment Co., Ltd., Director John Lee, and
Director Howard Kao expressed opposition to this proposal.

2022.05.03

12-17

Proposal: Proposal for the 2022 Q1 consolidated financial
statements.

Directors’ dissenting opinions: Director John Lee requested the
management team to explain the reasons for the decrease in gross
profit margin and response measures.

2022.08.12

12-18

Proposal: Proposal for the 2022 Q2 consolidated financial
statements.

Directors’ dissenting opinions: Director John Lee, Director Alan Yu
and David Tai, the representatives of Pu Ju Investment Co., Ltd.,
expressed reservations to this proposal.

(XIV) A Summary of Resignations and Dismissals of the Company’s Chairperson,
President, Chief Accounting Officer, Financial Manager, Internal Auditor,
Corporate Governance Officer, or Research and Development Officer During
the Most Recent Fiscal Year and up to the Date of Publication of the Annual

Report:
. Date of Date of Re‘ason.s for
Title Name R . resignation or
Appointment Termination o
dismissal
President Mark Chen 2020.08.11 2023.01.06 Resigned
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V. Information Regarding CPA Professional Fees

(I) CPA Professional Fees in the Most Recent Year

Unit: NTS Thousand

CPA Firm NZ':::f Audit Period Audit Fee Aul\:I?tnF-ee Total Remarks
Non-audit fees were
mainly fees related to
. 2022.01.01 certification of profit-
Chlu.—Hua | seeking enterprise
Hsieh 2022.12.31 income tax returns
filed, employee salary
review service,
KPMG Taiwan $4,050 | $1,400 | $5,450 |transfer pricing report,
certification of value-
added non-value-
Pao-Lien 2022‘|01'01 added business tax
Chou 20221231 direct deduction

method, and review
opinion for issuance of
restricted stock award.

(1) Where the CPA Firm was Replaced, the Audit Fees Paid in the Fiscal Year When the

Replacement was Made were Less Than that in the Previous Fiscal Year Before Replacement,

the Amount of Audit Fees Paid Before/After Replacement and Reasons Thereof Shall be

Disclosed: Not applicable.

(1l1) Where Accounting Fee Paid for the Year was More Than 10% Less Than that of the Previous

Year, the sum, Proportion, and Cause of the Reduction Shall Be Disclosed: Not applicable.

VI. Replacement of CPA: Not applicable.

VII. The Company's Chairperson, President, or any Managerial Officer in Charge of
Finance or Accounting Matters Who Has, in the Most Recent Year, Held a
Position at the Accounting Firm of its CPA or at an Affiliated Firm: None.
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Vil

Equity Transfer or Changes in Equity Pledged by the Company’s Directors,

Managerial Officers, or Shareholders with Shareholding Percentage Exceeding
10% in the Most Recent Year as of the Publication Date of this Annual Report:

(1) Shareholding Changes of Directors, Managerial Officers and Major Shareholders

Unit: Share
2022 Up to 2023.03.31
. Change in . Change in
Title Name Chang.e n Quantity of Chang_e n Quantity of
Quantity of Quantity of
Shareholdin, Pledged Shareholdin, Pledged
J Shares i Shares
Victor Kuo
Chairperson (Representative of 0 0 0 0
Young Syun
Investment Co., Ltd.)
Young Syun
Institutional Investment Co., Ltd. 0 0 0 0
Director ive:
Representative: 0 0 0 0
Joseph Wang
Pu Ju Investment
Co., Ltd. 0 0 0 0
Institutional Representative:
Director David Tai 0 0 0 0
Representative:
Alan Yu 0 0 0 0
Director Howard Kao 0 0 0 0
Independent | g 1ard Chen 0 0 0 0
Director
Independent Richard Lee 0 0 0 0
Director
Independent | | 1iciung chu 0 0 0 0
Director
CEO CJ Chang 0 0 0 0
Senior Vice
predisent Sara Cheng 0 0 0 0
CFO Joanne Chen 0 0 0 0
Director of .
Materials Rita Huang 0 0 0 0
Vice .
Predisent Kevin Chung 0 0 0 0
Deputy Claire Chou 0 0 0 0
Director
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2022

Up to 2023.03.31

Change in Change in Change in Change in
Title Name > Quantity of > Quantity of
Quantity of Quantity of
Shareholding Pledged Shareholding Pledged
Shares Shares
Corporate
Governance Wynne Ho 0 0 1000 0
Officer
John Lee
Director (Resigned on 0 0 N/A N/A
2022.09.28)
Mark Chen
President (Resigned on 0 0 N/A N/A
2023.01.06)
Fred Fong
Advisor (Resigned on 0 0 N/A N/A
2022.08.01)

(I1) Stock Transfer with Related Party: None.

(1) Stock Pledged with Related Party: None.
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IX. Information on the Relationship Between the Top 10 Shareholders of the Company
2023.04.01

Shares Held by | Shares Held Name and Relationship

Name Shares Held Spo.use & in the Name between DLC’s Shareholders| Note
Minors of Others
Shares % | Shares % Shares | % Name Relation
Sapido Technology Inc. _ o -
Representative: Yun-Chin Li 59,818,400 9.97 9 0.00 00.00
E-Top Metal Co., Ltd. - _ _
Representative: Ching-Li Yen 28,904,189 4.82 0 000 00.00
Young Syun Controlling
Yitongyuan investment Co., Ltd. Investment compan
, Co., Ltd pany
Representative: 25,949,857 4.33 0 0.00 00.00 =2, -29- —
Chun-Yi Huang Chun-Yen The sister of
Huang the spouse
PuJu Investment Co,, Ltd. 15,939,120, 2.66 o 0.00 000 — —~ —~

Representative: Lori Hu

Chia Hwa Investment Co., Ltd.
Representative: 11,454,000 1.91 0 0.00 00.00 — — —
Feng-Yun Chou

Vanguard Emerging Markets
Stock Index Fund a Series of
Vanguard International Equity
Index Funds

7,378,400/ 1.23| 0 0.00 00.00 - - -

JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A.
Taipei Branch in custody for
Vanguard Total International 7,312,584 1.22| 0 0.00 00.00 — — —
Stock Index Fund a series of
Vanguard Star Funds

Yitongyuan subordinate
Young Syun Investment Co., Ltd. Investment compan
Representative: 5,998,400 1.00 0 0.00 00.00|Co., Ltd. pany | _

Chun-Yen Huang the spouse of|

YiH
Chun-Yi Huang the sister

Norges Bank 5,956,658/ 0.99 0 0.00 00.00 - - -

Chien Chin Investment Co., Ltd.
Representative: 5,434,069 0.91 0 0.00 00.00 — — —
Chih-Hao, Chien
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X. The Shareholding of the Same Invested Company by the Company, the Directors,
the Managerial officers, or Another Business that is Controlled by the Company
Directly or Indirectly

2022.12.31; Note 1: Refers to company limited

Investee

Investment by the

Investments Directly or
Indirectly Controlled by
Directors, Supervisors, and

Total Investments

Company Managerial Officers of the
Company
Shares % Shares % Shares %
D-Link Canada Inc. 5,736,000 100.00| 0 0.00 5,736,000 100.00
D-Link Systems, Inc. 48,045,007| 100.00 0 0.00|  48,045,007| 100.00
D-Link Holding Company Ltd. 68,062,500/ 100.00] 0 0.00|  68,062,500| 100.00
D-Link (Europe) Ltd. 0|  0.00 32,497,455 100.00| 32,497,455 100.00
D-Link AB 0 0.00 15,500/  100.00 15,500 100.00
D-Link (Magyarorszag) Kft 0|  0.00 300 100.00 300| 100.00)
D-Link France SARL 0 0.00 114,560, 100.00 114,560, 100.00
D-Link Polska Sp. Z.0.0. 0|  0.00 100/  100.00 100/ 100.00|
D-Link Iberia SL 0 0.00 50,000, 100.00 50,000 100.00
D-Link s.r.o. 0 0.00 100  100.00 100( 100.00
D-Link (Netherlands) BV 0|  0.00 50,000/ 100.00| 50,000/ 100.00
D-Link Mediterraneo SRL 0 0.00 50,000 100.00 50,000 100.00
D-Link (Deutschland) GmbH 0 0.00 Note 1|  100.00 Note 1| 100.00
D-Link (Holdings) Ltd. 0|  0.00 3| 100.00 3| 100.00
D-Link (UK) Ltd. 0 0.00 300,100/  100.00 300,100 100.00
D-Link Adria d.o.0. 0 0.00 Note 1|  100.00 Note 1| 100.00
000 D-Link Russia 0 0.00 Note 1|  100.00 Note 1| 100.00,
Success Stone Overseas Corp. 0|  0.00 9,822 100.00 9,822 100.00
D-Link Holding Mauritius, Inc. 0 0.00 200,000, 100.00 200,000/ 100.00
D-Link (India) Ltd. 0|  0.00 18,114,663 51.02| 18,114,663| 51.02
TeamF1 Networks Private Ltd. 0 0.00 10,500/  100.00 10,500/ 51.02
D-Link Shiang-Hai (Cayman) Inc. 0|  0.00 50,000/ 100.00| 50,000/ 100.00
D-Link (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 0|  0.00 Note 1|  100.00] Note 1| 100.00
Netpro Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 0  0.00 Note 1|  100.00 Note 1| 100.00|
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Investee

Investment by the

Investments Directly or
Indirectly Controlled by
Directors, Supervisors, and

Total Investments

Company Managerial Officers of the
Company
Shares % Shares % Shares %
D-Link International Pte. Ltd. 66,074,660 99.36 425,340 0.64/ 66,500,000/ 100.00
D-Link Korea Limited 0 0.00 330,901| 100.00 330,901| 100.00
D-Link Trade M 0 0.00 Note 1|  100.00 Note 1| 100.00
D-Link Russia Investment Co. Ltd. 0 0.00 25,000,000 100.00, 25,000,000 100.00
D-Link Malaysia Sdn Bhd 0|  0.00 800,000, 100.00 800,000/ 100.00)
D-Link Service Lithuania, UAB 0 0.00 1,000,  100.00 1,000 100.00
D-Link Sudamerica S.A. 199,999 100.00 1 0.00 200,000 100.00
D-Link Mexicana S.A de CV 152,066 100.00 3 0.00 152,069 100.00|
D-Link Japan K.K. 9,500/ 100.00 0 0.00 9,500/ 100.00
D-Link Australia Pty Ltd. 1,000,000| 100.00 0 0.00 1,000,000 100.00]
D-Link Middle East FZCO 5| 83.33 1 1667 6| 100.00
D-Link Brazil LTDA. 2,964,836,727| 100.00 100 0.00| 2,964,836,827| 100.00
D-Link Investment Pte. Ltd. 2,200,000| 100.00 0 0.00 2,200,000 100.00]
000 D-Link Trade 0  0.00 Note 1| 100.00 Note 1| 100.00
T-COM, LLC 0| 0.00 Note 1| 40.00 Note 1| 40.00
D-Link Latin-America Company Ltd. 41,000/ 100.00 0 0.00 41,000/ 100.00|
D-Link Peru S.A. 0  0.00 3,500/ 100.00 3,500/ 100.00
D-Link de Colombia S.A.S. 0  0.00 1,443,605 100.00 1,443,605 100.00
D-Link Guatemala S.A. 0  0.00 99,000,  99.00 99,000/ 99.00
D-Link Argentina S.A. 0  0.00 100/  100.00 100| 100.00
Yeo-Tai Investment Ltd. 14,600,000/ 100.00 0 0.00| 14,600,000/ 100.00
Xtramus Technologies Co., Ltd. 0 0.00 1,832,446 41.18 1,832,446| 41.18
Cameo Communications, Inc. 137,532,993 41.58 0 0.00f 137,532,993| 41.58
MiiiCasa Holding (Cayman) Inc. 0 0.0 21,000,000  28.98| 21,000,000, 28.98

Note : Investments accounted for using equity method.
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Chapter 4 Capital Overview

Capital and Shares

(1) Sources of Capital

Unit: NTS Thousand; 2023.03.31

Authorized capital Paid-in Capital Remarks
Month/ - |Issued Shares Amount Shares Amount Infraezlstzlb
Year Price (NTS (NTS Sources of Capital v Other
(K) thousands) (K) thousands) Assets Other
than Cash
Capital increase from
retained earnings 119,432
thousand. 08/21/2006
Capital increase from Department
Aug. 2006 10 | 880,000 8,800,000| 675,378 6,753,780(employee bonus by 65,000 — of Commerce,
thousand. MOEA No.
Capital increase from 09501184120
capital surplus by 477,729
thousand.
11/28/2006
Reduction of treasury Department
Nov.2006 | 10 |880,000| 8,800,000| 663,378| 6,633,780 shares by 120,000 - of Commerce,
thousand. MOEA No.
09501266710
Capital increase from
retained earnings 132,676 08/14/2007
thousand Department
Aug.2007 | 10 | 880,000 8,800,000 683,846| 6,838,456| . .. — of Commerce,
Capital increase from
employee bonus by 72,000 MOEA No.
ploy Vi 09601196230
thousand.
11/21/2007
Cash capital reduction Department
Nov. 2007 10 | 880,000 8,800,000| 547,076| 5,470,765 P — of Commerce,
1,367,691 thousand.
MOEA No.
09601286290
Capital increase from
retained earnings 109,415 08/19/2008
thousand Department
Aug. 2008 10 | 880,000 8,800,000( 565,218| 5,652,180 o — of Commerce,
Capital increase from
employee bonus by 72,000 MOEA No.
ploy Vs 09701205030
thousand.
09/08/2009
Capital increase from Department
Sep. 2009 10 | 880,000 8,800,000 647,580 6,475,803 retained earnings 823,623 — of Commerce,
thousand. MOEA No.
09801206030
10/17/2014
Reduction of treasur Department
Oct.2014 | 10 | 880,000/ 8,800,000 635,580| 6,355,803 Y - of Commerce,
shares 120,000 thousand.
MOEA No.
10301214590
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Authorized capital Paid-in Capital Remarks
Month/ | Issued Shares Amount Shares Amount Int(::raegl:zlb
Year Price (NTS (NTS Sources of Capital v Other
(K) thousands) (K) thousands) Assets Other
than Cash
10/17/2014
Capital increase from Department
Oct. 2014 10 880,000 8,800,000| 647,756| 6,477,557 |retained earnings 121,755 — of Commerce,
thousand. MOEA No.
10301214590
Capital increase from 09/02/2015
retained earnings 155,237 Department
Sep. 2015 10 | 880,000 8,800,000| 678,803| 6,788,032|thousand. — of Commerce,
Capital increased by capital MOEA No.
surplus 155,237 thousand. 10401179680
11/27/2015
Reduction of treasury Department
Nov.2015 | 10 | 880,000/ 8,800,000| 676,996, 6,769,962 - of Commerce,
shares 18,070 thousand.
MOEA No.
10401253760
04/07/2016
Reduction of treasury Department
Apr. 2016 10 | 880,000 8,800,000( 651,996, 6,519,962 — of Commerce,
shares 25,000 thousand.
MOEA No.
10501064990
10/05/2021
Cash capital reduction Department
Oct. 2021 10 | 880,000/ 8,800,000| 599,836/ 5,998,365 — of Commerce,
521,597 thousand.
MOEA No.
11001171690
Authorized Capital
Type of Stock Outstanding Unissued Shares Total Remarks
Shares
Registered Common .
Shares 599,836,473 280,163,527 | 880,000,000 Listed

Information Relating to the Shelf Registration System: None

(1) Shareholder Composition

Reference date: 2023.04.01

Shareholder .
Composition Foreign
Government | Financial Other L. Institutions
. L. L. Individuals . Total
Agencies | Institutions | legal entities and foreign
Quantity individuals
Number of 2 1 223 74,467 225 74,918
shareholders
Number of 174 12,800 | 178,305,143 | 352,387,688 | 69,130,668 | 599,836,473
shares held
Shareholding Ratio (%) 0.00 0.00 29.73 58.75 11.52 100
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() Distribution of Shareholding
Reference date: 2023.04.01

Range of number Number of Shareholding Shareholding
of shares held shareholders (shares) Ratio (%)

1—999 41,327 8,256,620 1.38
1,000 —5,000 22,420 52,965,815 8.83
5,001 —10,000 5,409 42,321,897 7.06
10,001 — 15,000 1,707 21,308,244 3.55
15,001 —20,000 1,166 21,252,886 3.54
20,001 — 30,000 949 24,048,796 4.01
30,001 —40,000 462 16,364,773 2.73
40,001 —50,000 344 15,832,364 2.64
50,001 — 100,000 639 45,532,656 7.59
100,001 — 200,000 264 37,481,019 6.25
200,001 — 400,000 129 35,542,467 5.93
400,001 — 600,000 40 19,764,896 33
600,001 — 800,000 12 8,116,093 1.35
800,001 — 1,000,000 11 9,970,791 1.66
1,000,001 or more 39 241,077,156 40.18
Total 74,918 599,836,473 100.00

(IV) List of Major Shareholders
Reference date: 2023.04.01

Name of Shares Shareholding Share.holding
Major shareholders (shares) Ratio (%)
Sapido Technology Inc. 59,818,400 9.97%
E-Top Metal Co., Ltd. 28,904,189 4.82%
Yitongyuan investment Co., Ltd. 25,949,857 4.33%
Pu Ju Investment Co., Ltd. 15,939,120 2.66%
Chia Hwa Investment Co., Ltd. 11,454,000 1.91%
Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund a
Series of Vanguard International Equity Index Funds 7,378,400 1.23%
JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. Taipei Branch in custody
for Vanguard Total International Stock Index Fund a 7,312,584 1.22%
series of Vanguard Star Funds
Young Syun Investment Co., Ltd. 5,998,400 1.00%
Norges Bank 5,956,658 0.99%
Chien Chin Investment Co., Ltd. 5,434,069 0.91%
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(V) Market Price, Net Worth, Earnings, and Dividends Per Share and Relevant
Information in the Most Recent Two Years

Unit: NTS; thousand shares; %

Year
2021 2022
Item
" . sh Highest 30.65 19.1
Market Price Per Share Lowest 16.2 138
(Note 1)
Average 20.69 16.39
Net Worth Per Share Before Distribution 14.13 14.85
(Note 2) After Distribution 13.83 14.63
Earni Per Sh Weighted Average Shares 643,610 599,837
arnings Per Share
& Earnings Per Share (Note 3) 0.38 0.18
Cash Dividends 0.30 0.2246
From Retained B -
Stock Earnings
Dividends Per Share Dividends | From Capital
Surplus
Accumulated Unpaid - -
Dividends (Note 4)
Price/Earnings Ratio 54.45 91.06
(Note 5)
Return on Ianastment Price/Dividend Ratio 63.97 72.97
Analysis (Note 6)
Cash Dividend Yield o o
(Note 7) 1.45% 1.37%

* If shares are distributed in connection with a capital increase out of earnings or capital surplus, further disclose information on
market prices and cash dividends retroactively adjusted based on the number of shares after distribution.

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 5:
Note 6:

Note 7:
Note 8:

List the highest and lowest market price of common shares in each fiscal year and calculate the average market price by
weighing transacted prices against transacted volumes in each respective fiscal year.

Calculate the net worth per share based on the number of outstanding shares at year- end. Calculate the amount of
distribution based on the amount resolved by the board of directors or resolved in the next year's shareholders meeting.

If retrospective adjustment is required due to distribution of stock dividends, the earnings per share before and after
adjustment shall be entered.

If the conditions for the issuance of equity securities stipulate that the unpaid dividends in the year can be accumulated till
the year in which there is a surplus, the cumulative unpaid dividends up to the year shall be disclosed separately.
Price/Earnings Ratio = Average closing price per share for current fiscal the year / Earnings per share.

Price/Dividend Ratio = Average closing price per share of the year / Cash dividend per share.

Cash Dividend Yield Rate = Cash dividend per share / Average closing price per share for the current fiscal year.

Net worth per share and earnings per share shall be based on the information, audited (reviewed) by CPAs, in the most recent
quarter as of the publication date of the Annual Report. The remaining fields shall be based on the information in the current
year up to the publication date of the Annual Report.

(V1) Dividend Policy and Implementation Status

1. Dividend Policy:
In response to the overall business environment and the nature industrial growth, the
Company’s long-term financial planning recruitment of domestic and foreign talents and
pursuit of sustainable business operations, the Company adopts a residual dividend policy.

The Company's “Articles of Incorporation” provides that the Company’s annual profit, if
any, at the end of the year, it shall be distributed in the following order: (1) Tax payment.
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(2) Set off accumulated deficits (3) Appropriate 10% as legal reserve. (4) Appropriate or
return to special reserve pursuant to regulations formulated by the competent authority.
(5) If there is a surplus after the preceding deductions, the balance and the accumulated
undistributed surplus will be determined by the Board for distribution. Shall the
remuneration be distributed in form of new shares, such matter shall be resolved by the
Shareholders' Meeting before distribution thereof. The total amount of shareholder
dividends shall be no less than 30% of the distributable profit of the year.

As stipulated by Article 240 and 241 of the Company Act, the Company may distribute the
dividends to be distributed, or all or part of the legal reserve and capital reserve in form of
cash and report to the Shareholders’ Meeting, after such matter has been determined by
a majority of the Directors at a meeting attended by two-thirds or more of the total
number of Directors.

Dividend types: Based on the Company’s capital budget plan, stock dividends may be
distributed to retain the required funds, and the rest are distributed in in form of cash,
provided that the cash dividends are not less than 10% of the total dividends.

2. Proposed Dividend Distribution at the Shareholders' Meeting:
The dividend distribution of the Company in 2022 was approved by the Board of Directors
on February 22, 2023. The cash dividend of NTS$0.2246 per share will be distributed based
on the shareholders and the number of shares held recorded in the register of
shareholders on the distribution date of cash dividends. After reporting to shareholders’
meeting on May 31, 2023, the Chairperson is authorized to set the ex-dividend date,
distribution date and other matters.

(V1) Impact of Issuing Stock Dividend Proposed in this Shareholders’ Meeting on
the Company’s Operational Performance and Earnings Per Share: Not
applicable.

(V1) Compensation of Employees and Directors
1. Information Relating to Percentage or Scope of Compensations for Employees and
Directors in the “Articles of Incorporation”:
The Company shall distribute 1% to 15% of the current year's profit for employee
remuneration and no more than 1% of the current year's profit for the remuneration to
Directors. However, the Company shall reserve a portion to make up for the losses in
advance, if applicable.

2. The Basis for Estimating the Amount of Remuneration to Employees and Directors, for
Calculating the Number of Shares to be Distributed as Employee Compensation, and the
Accounting Treatment of the Discrepancy, if any, Between the Actual Distributed
Amount and the Estimated Figure, for the Current Period:

The remuneration to the Company's employees and directors is estimated based on the
Company's net income before tax for the period less the employees’ remuneration and
directors’ remuneration multiplied by the percentages for employees’ remuneration and
directors’ remuneration stipulated in the “Articles of Incorporation” and recognized in
operating costs or operating expenses for the same period. Any difference between the
estimated amount and the amount distributed as resolved by the Board of Directors is
accounted for as changes in estimates and recognized in the subsequent year’s profit or
loss.

3. Distribution of Remuneration of Employees and Directors Approved by the Board of
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Directors:

(1) Amount of remuneration distributed to employees and Directors in the form of cash
or stock: The Board of Directors approved employees’ remuneration of NT$7,371,623
and directors’ remuneration of NT$737,162 on February 22, 2023, and all paid in
cash.

(2) The amount of any employee remuneration distributed in stocks, and the amount as
a percentage of the sum of the after-tax net income stated in the parent company
only financial reports or individual financial report: Not applicable.

4. Information of Distribution of 2021 Remuneration of Employees and Directors (with an
Indication of the Number of Shares, Monetary Amount, and Stock Price, of the Shares
Distributed) and, if there is Any Discrepancy Between the Actual Distribution and the
Recognized Employee and Director Remuneration, Additionally the Discrepancy, Cause,
and How it is Treated:

In 2021, the Company’s actual distribution of employees’ compensation and directors’

remuneration were $12,621 thousand and $1,262 thousand, respectively. There is no

difference between the amounts approved by the board of directors.

(1X) Buy-back of the Company's Treasury Stock: None.
Il. Issuance of Corporate Bonds: None.
lll. Issuance of Preferred Shares: None.
IV. Issuance of Overseas Depository Receipts: None.

V. Status of Restricted Stock Award: The Company approved the resolution on the
issuance of restricted stock awards at the shareholders' meeting on May 27, 2022,
obtained approval from the FSC on November 30, 2022, and authorized the Board of
Directors for issuance within one year upon approval.

VI. Status of New Shares Issuance in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions: None.

VII. Financing Plans and Implementation: None.
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Chapter 5 Operational Overview

Business Activities

Business scope

1. Main Lines of Business

The Company sells networking and connectivity systems and products for service providers,
small and medium businesses, enterprises, and consumers. In recent years, we have
developed cloud applications and management platforms, and provided three major

application service solutions: smart home, smart business, and smart industry.

2. Revenue of Major Product Lines

Unit: NTS Thousand

The Company All Consolidated Entities
Products Total Sales Percentage of Total Sales Percentage of
Amount in 2022 Sales (%) Amount in 2022 Sales (%)
Networking Products 6,937,651 95.81 16,875,066 98.81
Service revenue 303,178 4.19 202,822 1.19
Total 7,240,829 100.00 17,077,888 100.00

3. Current Main Products
» Commercial Product Line

(1

(2)

Switch products: In response to the renewal of product generations, we updated
the hardware solution of L3 managed switch DXS-3410/DGS-3630. In addition,
with respect to Smart switch products, we have completed the 2.5G product
series DMS-1100, added 10G Smart switch product DXS-1210, and added
100G/25G L3 core Switch product DQS-5000 to complete the product series of
switches required by enterprises and SMEs. To assist customers in centrally
managing their products, D-Link also provides D-View8 management platform
with standard SNMP supporting.

Enterprise Access Point(EAP) and VPN Gateway Products: In the promotion of
VPN Gateway series, D-Link has cooperated with Japanese telecom customers to
launch DBG-X2000 and DBG-X1000 products. The integration with the Nuclias
Cloud management platform provides customers with an integrated
management interface for their network development services, which can
respond to the services under various local network architectures. In addition,
the updated Wi-Fi 6 EAP product series not only supports standalone usage, but
also can be integrated with Nuclias Connect (DNH-100/DNC-100) to enable
customers to easily have a centralized EAP management solution, while
integrating the applications of VPN Gateway DRS-250 and Nuclias Connect,
allowing customers to control not only the EAP but also the VPN Gateway when
deploying local services so as to provide a more secure environment for the
entire local network services.

» Home Product Line

(1)

Home Wireless Routers: The development of the Wi-Fi 6 160Mhz product is
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going on. To inheriting the intelligent functions of Eagle PRO Al, the Matter series
products are under planning and developing for the home loT network series.
Beside broadband router series, D-Link will keep developing the integrating
applications with Wi-Fi dongle and VR scenario in Wi-Fi 6 product series.

(2) 1P Camera and loT: The main development will focus on working with service
application vendors for cloud-to-cloud service connection this year. Beside
serving original user, D-Link also focus on integrating specific service based on
original cloud service to increase the scope of cloud service. The application of
10T is also integrated with the services of cloud platform for industry
cooperation.

» Telecom Product Line

(1) Broadband Network Products: We continue to develop XGPON product lines,
mainly XGPON modems. The Company will promote 2 box home network
solutions integrated with Wi-Fi Mesh products. In addition to the demand of
telecom providers, we have also started to plan and develop related products
with third-party partners.

(2) Mobile Broadband Products: The As the release of 5G-NR 3GPP R16
specification, 5G mobile communication broadband sharing will develop 5G CPE
and 5G ODU with integrating Wi-Fi 6. Integrating the product series of AX1500
LTE Cat4/Cat6 with Wi-Fi mesh function, it is expected to meet the different
requests form telecom provider.

(3) M2M Industry Application: The Company launches the industrial applications
integrated with the Internet devices. The main feature of the product is that it can
be used in various special environment. The product series mainly supports
LTE/5G networks, as well as Ethernet and Wi-Fi. The Company promotes the
Internet access of devices in various industries, the collection and monitoring of
data and status, and the integration of D-ECS platform functions to provide the
entire industry with an Internet access solution. At present, there are some
applications in the public transportation in Europe and Southeast Asia.

» Cloud Service Platform

Inheriting the existing D-Link cloud service platform, the Company has implemented

unified management, monitoring, access, and sharing of network applications for

consumer (mydlink), commercial (Nuclias / D-View), and industrial (D-ECS) products,
providing home users, SMEs network, and system service providers with a more
convenient cloud management platform solution, thereby saving the costs of
architecture and time of establishment, and enhancing the product value of various
product lines of the Company. In addition, the promotion of the service fee
mechanism can increase the Company's revenue and enable the platform service to
operate more steadily towards sustainable operation.

4. New products and Technologies Under Development

» Commercial Product Line

(1) Switch Products: The demand for Internet bandwidth traffic is increasing year by
year, and the demand for large bandwidth switches is also on a rise. Based on the
existing switch product lines, D-Link continues to focus on the development of
10G/100G related switch product lines to cope with the increasing demand for
bandwidth in business application scenarios.

(2) Enterprise Access Point(EAP) and VPN Gateway Products: Given the wireless
generation with the prevalence of Wi-Fi-6 for home use, D-Link is planning to
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move from Wi-Fi-6 80Mhz to Wi-Fi-6 160Mhz for the enterprise wireless base
station product line, while developing new Classic and Lite products for
enterprise wireless base stations. Due to the increased awareness of network
transmission security, many application scenarios require VPN deployment.
Regarding the VPN product planning, in addition to the existing products, D-Link
is also updating our products, focusing on the development of products that
enhance the VPN efficiency to meet the demand for secure data transmission
and transmission speed.

» Home Product Line

(1) Home Wireless Routers: Wireless products are gradually adopting Mesh as their
main function in the market; therefore, we continue to update the functions of
Mesh products for generations in the development of related products. In
addition, with the launch of the Wi-Fi 7 solution, we plan to follow the release of
the standard specification for further development. The products are expected to
be launched by the end of the year.

(2) 1P Camera and loT: With the official release of the Matter 1.0 specification, we
have planned the D-Link IoT product chain. First of all, we will focus on the
applications of Matter smart plug and digital camera, and launch the total loT
solution of D-Link, integrating the Matter eco-chain solution through Wi-Fi, BT,
Thread and other interfaces.

» Telecom Product Line

(1) Broadband Network Products: The XGPON product series will be enhanced to
complement the basic GPON product line, integrate D-Link' existing Wi-Fi product
line, APP applications, and cloud platform services to provide a complete solution
for the use of home broadband network, and assist telecom operators in
establishing device management services at low construction costs.

(2) Mobile Broadband Products : We will focus on the development of 5G mobile
broadband devices which integrated Wi-Fi 6 and Wi-Fi 7 mobile broadband
products for home use, together with broadband network solutions, to cover
more than 80% home networking applications, enabling D-Link to become a
strong support for the telecom product lines and strength our competitiveness in
the market.

(3) M2M Industry Application : We will successively launch an integrated solution
of LTE/5G mobile devices and industrial switch and promote private network
solutions for 5G mobile networks. D-Link will focus on supporting the Internet
access needs in the industrial applications.

» Cloud Service Platform
Beside adding new products to the service list under the existing service
architecture, D-Link expands project services actively based on the existing
supporting devices so as to increase platform service revenue.

(1) Industry Overview

1. Development Status of the Industry
(1) Local Area Network (LAN)
Given the low-cost and easy-to-install characteristics of Ethernet, the LAN cabling at
the network access layer and above around the world is still dominated by Ethernet.
With the evolution of mobile Internet technology and the needs for greater bandwidth,
2.5G/ 10G/100G switches will gradually replace Gigabit switches.
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The popularity of mobile Internet has compensated for the inability to deploy wired
network backbones in some regions. In addition, the speed of 5G mobile
communication networks has led to the replacement of wired networks. In terms of
the home networking, the changing habits of consumers have brought about a further
need for replacement of wireless routers in the home. Wireless routers are becoming
more attractive and integrated into home life due to the demand for faster, more
stable, and easier settings, the concept of wireless network access at every corner, as
well as the simple, modern design that blends in with the living room, along with the
connection to various voice assistants. It is expected to drive a huge wave of
replacement.
As Amazon, Google, and Apple are leading the Matter specification, home loT related
products are bound to be launched one after another, and integrated with the
promotion of various applications such as Home Care and Home Automation, which
will definitely drive the market demand of such industry in these years.

(2) Wide Area Network
At present, broadband Internet access medium is entering the fiber optic generation at
a faster pace. Various passive optical network (PON) technologies are also thriving,
including EPON, GPON, GEPON, and 10G PON. With the increasing popularization of
Wi-Fi 6/6E/7 and mobile 5G, 10G PON, with its advantages of 10 times the downlink
and unlink transmission speed and supporting Mobile Backhaul, has become the
mainstream technology, taking the network market by storm.

Although LTE is still the mainstream of wireless wide area communication, 5G is bound
to become the key infrastructure, with the increasing demand for greater bandwidth
and the various services driven by technologies such as Al and big data. In addition to
networking devices that access the Internet via 5G network, 5G O-RAN and Mobile
Edge Computing are important areas for networking industry development.

2. Relevance of Upstream, Midstream, Downstream of the Industry

Network IC design PCB suppliers Antenna manufacturing
Semiconductor Network chipset manufacturing Passive component Suppliers Case manufacturing
industry DRAM manufacturing Connectors Cable and wiring industry
Other electronic components

Packaging and Testing industry Power supply

[ ' I

Research and development
Networking

Information system and its peripherals suppliers equipment suppliers I

Brand marketing

2 Electronic product
System integrators Cloud services providers
& ® L distributors ‘
Telecommunications and Internet Enterprise and s $ .....| SOHO group and household
service industries institutional users | users

3. Development Trend and Competition of Products

(1) Innovation Results and Core Values Over the Past Three Years
A. Focus on the development of a variety of cloud applications and solutions
through the D-Link Cloud
At the end of 2011, the Company first launched the "Nuclias Series" platform for
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the networking industry. In recent years, it has gradually introduced various
applications and integrated commercial solutions to the platform, which has
brought the Nuclias to be more in line with customers' needs. The Nuclias cloud
platform integrates various products, including switches, wireless access points,
and security gateways. It allows customers to set up a wireless LAN (hot spot) in a
very short time, to not only lower the technical threshold for users, reduce the
manpower, time, and cost required for network management but enhance
network security.

In addition, after years of cultivation in the home cloud “mydlink”, D-Link has also
commenced C2C services, cooperating with different Internet service providers to
offer specific service models through mydlink, with the capability of D-Link
devices.

B. D-Link Security Surveillance Service Solution
The mydlink service solution is centered on surveillance, and the existing
switches, 10T, and software are integrated into one cloud service platform to
allow customers to select, purchase, operate, and maintain security control
equipment and systems more conveniently and easily, which significantly saves
users' time and cost. Moreover, products of the same brand can avoid the issue of
product incompatibility and provide users with a more stable security surveillance
environment.
D-Link has also commenced C2C services through the home cloud “mydlink”,
cooperating with different Internet service providers to offer specific service
models through mydlink, with the capability of D-Link devices.

C. LTE /5G Advanced Technology Application
The Company's advanced cloud mobile solutions can help mobile operators
provide users with ultra-fast Internet speeds to allow them to enjoy high
throughput and greater mobility. The integration and innovation of LTE/5G
routers and cloud services will completely change users' perception and habits of
using the Internet. In the future, users can connect to the Internet through
various CPE products anytime and anywhere, and experience the freedom and
fun of the real high-quality mobile Internet access.

(2) Product Competition
At present, the leading players in high-end networking products are major networking
companies in the United States. Major companies are leading the technology in the
core layer of network, while the Company's strengths lie in the products at the
aggregation layer and the access layer of network.

In terms of enterprise network, major competitors include Cisco and HP. As the
Company has been devoted to the field of Ethernet for many years, it has established a
complete supply chain ecosystem, including software and hardware R&D, production,
technological support, as well as customer education and training. Although facing the
threat of low-price competition from China's companies, the Company is still very
competitive.

In wireless LANs, low-end switches, and broadband product segments, low-priced
brands, such as TP-Link, have developed rapidly in China and emerging countries,
which has resulted in price competition in the retail/telecom market. In addition to
consolidating the supply chain to reduce costs, the Company will enhance its
technology and services to gain customers' recognition and break away from the price
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competition.

(1l1) Technologies and Recent R&D Efforts

1.

R&D Expenditure in the Most Recent Two Years
Unit: NTS Thousand

Year The Company Consolidated Company

2022 333,990 530,747

2021 587,011 873,752

Product/System Development Success and Specific Results
The Company launches new upgraded, improved, or innovative products every quarter.

The Company remains a global leading brand in wireless, broadband, SMEs and home
network product markets. The main products recently launched include cloud switches,
2.5Gbps smart switches, enhanced enterprise integrated wireless solutions; EAGLE PRO
Al Wi-Fi Mesh routers, bridges, and access points; multifunctional wireless broadband
4G/5G routers and developed AloT applications in various industries; high-resolution
two-way IP cameras for real-time voice chat, peripheral devices related to smart homes,
and cloud network management platforms.

Year

Item

2011

(1) Smart TV-related support network multimedia playing function, over-the-top (OTT) service,
somatosensory games, and online community functions, such as D-Link Boxee Box, D-Link
Yahoo Box, and D-Link Android Box

(2) A new generation of 10G Data Center switches.

(3) mydlink instant online security monitoring technology on iPhone, iPad, and Android Phone.

(4) HD media routers that support wireless transmission of high-definition video and audio.

(5) Smart Antenna, a wireless base station that supports longer transmission distances.

(6) Wireless transmission that supports Intel wireless display to TV.

(7) USB3.0 cards and hubs.

2012

1

The hybrid network power cord wireless router and wireless base station that also support
802.11n wireless network and power cord network, with a transmission speed of up to
300Mbps (wireless)/500Mbps (power cord).

(2) 802.11ac wireless routers and AP and USB/PCIE wireless network cards.

3

mydlink cloud network product series, including cloud routing, cloud storage, cloud
monitoring.
(4

Various apps in cloud routing, cloud storage, cloud monitoring on smart phones and tablets.
(5) mydlink solutions for commercial cloud services. Intelligence video surveillance system (IVS).

2013

(1) Baby Cam: a series of dedicated webcam for baby care.

(2) High-sensitivity nighttime full-color series network cameras.
(3) 11ac + 3G + IP cam portable mobile routers.

(4) mydlink shareport mobile device integrated data access.

(5) D-store business linkage solutions.

(6) The 11ac version of all wireless devices is fully launched.

2014

(1) Smart home loT: Guji Cloud wirelessly connects smart homes with the mydlink cloud platform

to provide a complete solution in wireless service, security, and energy conservation to ensure
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Year

Item

connected operation with mydlink Home app.

(2) Uland Web Ul icons are updated; simple setting can be carried out through with mydlink lite,
mydlink home, and QRS app.

(3) The LTE smart home gateway leads the world with LTE CAT6(300Mbps), and the 11ac 3x3
router provides VoLTE and Wi-Fi-calling voice services on the OSGi JAVA open platform.

(4) Logging onto Facebook fan page through Facebook Wi-Fi allows for the free use of Wi-Fi
services to enhance interaction with customers.

(5) Company BYOD certification and authorization solution.

2015

(1) Cloud services platform and enterprise cloud equipment.

(2) A new generation of high-power output PoE switches and metro Ethernet switches.
(3) mydlink Home series of services and products.

(4) A new generation of 11ac Wave2 routers.

(5) 4G LTE machine-to-machine (M2M) and vehicle communication modules.

2016

(1) Apple Homekit certified 180° IP-CAM.
(2) Wave 2 MU-MIMO AC1900/2600.

(3) Business cloud for telecom.

(4) Launched smart industrial switches.

(5) Tri-band AP with the Smart Antenna function.

2017

(1) Mesh is integrated into the switches and routers.

(2) A new generation of digital camera product groups, such as LTE, battery, and dual-eye camera.
(3) Al-related technologies, e.g., face recognition are applied to digital camera products.

(4

5G generation product planning and vertical market exploration.

2018

(1) Data Center switches.

(2) Nuclias enterprise cloud management system that supports Hot Spot AP, switches, and
cameras.

(3) Exploration of 5G mobile communication broadband gain routers and 5G small cell technology.

(4

Vertical integration of artificial intelligence, facial recognition, license plate recognition,
camera, network storage, 4G router, cloud management systems, toll systems, and complete
solutions.

(5) Mesh home wireless routers and secured home wireless routers.

(6) Complete smart home solutions.

2019

(1) Cloud switches.

(2) 2.5Gbps smart switches.

(3) New Covr series of cross-generation Mesh wireless network routers.
(4

Door and window sensors, motion detection sensors, and smart switches that support Amazon
Echo Plus.

(5) LTE M2M VPN/Wi-Fi wireless routers.

(6) 5G NR wireless routers and MiFi (sub-6GHz).

2020

(1) A wireless router in alignment with the 802.11ax wireless standard (Wi-Fi 6).

(2) Avariety of 5G mobile wireless routers will provide a full range of solutions, including DWP-1020
5G outdoor CPE, DWR-978 5G wireless router, and DWR-2101 5G Wi-Fi 6 wireless router.

(3) The new body temperature measurement solution, DCS-9500T.

(4) EasyMesh™ dual-band wireless router, COVR-1100.
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Year

Item

(5) New smart network management switches: DXS-1210 series and DGS-1520 series.
(6) DCS-8526LH Full HD rotary wireless network camera.

(7) DSP-W320 outdoor wireless smart socket.

(1) Launched the EAGLE PRO Al series wireless router, including Wi-Fi 6/5/4 product series, with the
wireless sharing function, combined with many Al analysis functions to inform users of home

network status.

(2) Introduced Multi-G stackable smart network management switches to meet speed
requirements of different applications.

(3) Included the mobile router in Wi-Fi 6, equipped with the EasyMesh and the EAGLE PRO Al

2021 functions, with the wired network sharing function, allowing users to expand the scope of
sharing through the EasyMesh function in the mobile sharing mode.

(4) Adopted the new-generation chipset for 5G mobile routers and launched outdoor and indoor
models as well as industrial 5G mobile gateways, with models corresponding to various needs
during the emergence of 5G applications.

(5) Launched a new generation of IP Cam solutions and reduce product lines, and launched Taiwan
chip manufacturers’ latest solutions, which have already met the market demand.

(1) The peripheral WI-FI-6 USB Dongle DWA-F18, developed in cooperation with Meta in VR
products, wirelessly transmits data to completely enhance the wired ecology of VR and entirely
expand the VR space applications.

(2) We are launching various series of Multi-G switch solutions one after another.

2022 (3) Nuclias Cloud platform services and VPN network security switches are updated for the next

generation.
(4) 5G mobile communication products are updated to 3GPP R16 compliant solutions and

integrated with the Wi-Fi-6 technology.

(5) Solutions to build a C2C business model for cloud platform services.

(IV) Long- and Short-term Business Development Plans
1. Short-term Development Strategy

(1)

()

Cooperate with High-quality ODMs to Establish a Controllable Supply Chain System
with Close Relationships.

D-Link, as one of a few networking brand companies in Taiwan, has established
subsidiaries and nearly 100 sales offices around the world. The Company will be
committed to forming in-depth strategic alliances with high-quality networking ODMs
to distribute advanced products to the distribution channels so as to maximize the
benefits of the brand.

Reshape D-Link's brand image and enhance brand value from three aspects,
specifications and prices, functional performance, and corporate identity (CI).

The Company's products will feature "optimal cost" and "outstanding and user-
satisfactory performance", and the Company will launch the EAGLE PRO Al series with
corporate identity (Cl) product appearance and user experience in home, commercial,
and industrial markets, to gradually win over customers and polish D-Link's brand
image.
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(3) Meeting the needs of each industry with the required specifications and functions.

By providing the specifications and functions required by each industry, the Company
will expand its market share to reduce the competition of products with general
specifications.

2. Medium and long-term Development Strategy

(1) Achieve the extreme simplification of the supply and management of networking
products with cloud computing as the main pillar.
For general consumers and SMEs, the operation and maintenance (installation,
maintenance, upgrade, and management) of networking products are still quite a
challenging task. The Company's mydlink, D-ECS, and Nuclias cloud systems are the
most user-friendly systems to use and manage. In the future, “cloud functions” and
“scope of products covered” will be expanded to fully achieve the concept of
convenient networking services.

(2) Create stable and advanced networking products with excellent radio frequency and
high-speed signal technology.

Networking products have entered a new era of intensive technologies, such as 10Gbps
transmission and millimeter wave media. Radio frequency and high-speed signal
technology will be the Company's advantages to surpass its competitors. The Company
will continue to develop in this field in the future and maintain its leading position in
technology and products.

(3) Strengthening cooperation with Tier 2 and Tier 3 telecom operators to secure long-
term contracts with localized services.
The Company will focus on total solutions, including aggregation switch, broadband
router (DSL, GPON, 4G/5G), home router (Wi-Fi/Mesh Router), together with network
management system, software customization and update tools, remote maintenance
management platform and localization services to secure long-term contracts.

Il. Market and Sales Overview

() Market Analysis
1. Sales Regions of Main Products
Unit: NTS Thousand

Year 2021 2022
Region Amount Percentage (%) Amount Percentage (%)

America 5,922 0.42 793,231 10.95

o Europe 73,924 5.31 1,547,964 21.38

3 Asia and 670,649 48.16 4,281,350 59.13
B others

Subtotal 750,495 53.89 6,622,545 91.46

Domestic Sales 642,080 46.11 618,284 8.54

Total 1,392,575 100.00 7,240,829 100.00

Note: To present the figures of the Company.

Unit: NTS Thousand
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Year 2021 2022
0, 0
Region Amount Percentage (%) Amount Percentage (%)
America 1,599,246 10.30 1,332,290 7.80
m Europe 5,036,179 32.44 4,887,624 28.62
x
3 Asia and 8,250,293 53.14 10,239,690 59.96
- others
Subtotal 14,885,718 95.88 16,459,604 96.38
Domestic Sales 639,183 4.12 618,284 3.62
Total 15,524,901 100.00 17,077,888 100.00

Note: To present the consolidated figures of the Company.

2. Overview of Supply and Demand and Projected Growth

According to the latest data released by IBISWorld in August 2022, the total monthly

Internet traffic in 2022 was approximately 335.3 EB (1 EB = 103 PB = 106 TB = 109 GB), an

increase of approximately 21% compared to 278.1 EB per month in 2021. Although the

growth of Internet traffic has slowed down compared to the past growth of several times

to tens of times, the annual traffic, including video streaming, Internet browsing, various

online games, gaming platforms and social networks, has continued to grow due to the

change of user habits. The growth in traffic is complemented by the demand for network

infrastructure and equipment, which includes carrier switches and data center switches,

access network equipment, enterprise-level switches, wireless access points, wireless

routers, broadband and mobile routers, and other networking equipment.

(1) Switch
The switch market, which is the backbone of the network, has always been the
biggest beneficiary of traffic growth. Just as higher-end switches and management
systems is required for core network and data centers require switches that are highly
scalable and capable of handling large amount of data exchanging as well as
supporting redundancy, the enterprise market needs to gradually upgrade and
replace legacy switches in response to the increasing data processing needs and
reduce O&M Cost. Therefore, the switch market will always thrive. According to
Gartner's Enterprise Networking Equipment Forecast (2Q22), the expenditure of the
entire enterprise networking equipment market grew from US$66.9 billion in 2020 to
USS$80.6 billion in 2022, with a conservative estimate of US$94.5 billion by 2026; of
which, enterprise switches and data center switches grew from US$33.6 billion in
2020 to US$39.3 billion in 2022, with an estimate of US$41.8 billion by 2026.

(2) Wi-Fi Product
In addition to backbone switches, Wi-Fi routers are the central hub of home
networking devices. Various mobile devices such as mobile phones, tablets, smart
TVs, and loT devices require the router as a relay to connect to the internet at home.
In recent years, the home wireless routers and wireless extenders markets have
surged against the trend as a result of the boost in demand for remote operations
due to the impact of the pandemic. According to the report on home wireless router
market share released by the BRI (Business Research Insights) in December 2022, the
market size is estimated to be US$2.97 billion in 2022 and USS$5.07 billion in 2028,
with a compound annual growth rate of approximately 7.7%.

(3) Mobile & Broadband Router
Global telecom service providers are turning to fiber optic networks in response to
the limitation of copper bandwidth. According to a market research institution, the
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market value of GPON in 2021, including OLT (Optical Line Terminal), ONU (Optical
Network Unit), ONT (Optical Network Terminal) and ODN (Optical Distribution
Network), was amounted to over US$10 billion in aggregate, and is estimated to
reach as high as USS$30 billion in 2028, with an annual compound growth rate of over
10%. Among which, XGS-PON has gradually replaced GPON (2.5Gbps) with its
symmetric advantage (10Gbps for both uplink and downlink) to meet the demand of
next generation network for video uploading and sharing.
Since the launch of 5G network in various countries, the adoption rate and coverage
has gradually increased and caught up with 4G LTE. According to the report issued by
Ericsson, a leading telecom equipment provider, in November 2022, 5G subscribers
will reach 1 billion by the end of 2022, and is estimated to reach 5 billion by 2028,
therefore it is expected that 5G infrastructure, including base stations and
transmission line, will be largely deployed in the coming years. Comparing to fixed
broadband such as DSL or GPON which will need a cabling to reach subscribers’ home
at higher cost and much longer time, 5G FWA (Fixed Wireless Access) can easily reach
subscribers home via air interface, as a result it has become the most cost-effective
alternative to deliver broadband services to rural area without laying a cable.
According to TrendForce, a market research institution, 5G FWA equipment
shipments will reach 7.6 million units in 2022, representing an annual growth rate of
111% compared to 3.6 million units in 2021, and are estimated to reach as high as
22.5 million units by 2025. In addition, 5G that integrated with Al and cloud
computing technologies can develop various applications and services, such as loV,
smart monitoring, remote industrial control, etc. It is also one of the most important
infrastructures in the AloT. All the major networking companies have been preparing
for the most important growth stage of mobile broadband routers, and are seeking
opportunities for corporate transformation by adopting new business models as
appropriate.

(4) AloT
With more and more mature of key technologies to AloT, lots of emerging application
and services are gradually affecting people's work and life. According to Gartner loT
Forecast Report (2022, Jan), the overall loT market will grow from US$366 billion in
2021 to US$767.2 billion in 2030, with a compound annual growth rate of
approximately 8.6%. Among which, the global revenue of various surveillance
cameras (commercial, residential, outdoor, and automatic number-plate recognition)
will grow from US$47.5 billion in 2021 to US$94.5 billion in 2030, representing a
compound annual growth rate of approximately 7.9%. In addition, the 0T related
applications, including vehicles, smart buildings, industrial automation, smart
transportation, medical, retail, etc., will bloom in the next decade, connecting more
individuals, families, companies, organizations, and even data, knowledge,
entertainment, career, and life.

3. Competitive Niche

(1) We continue to create product differentiation and market segmentation through our
strong R&D team and cross-industry alliances with our leading cloud service
platforms and continuous launch of innovative products.

(2) The overall networking product lines are complete, and core advantages can be
created with solutions and service business models.

(3) The Company has well-established marketing and service channels around the world,
with the advantages of instant local services and production as well as customization.
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(4) We work with the world's leading service provides to thoroughly understand the
needs and trends of new technologies in telecom segment, and provide industry-
leading solutions with feedback from our global marketing network.

4. Favorable and Unfavorable Factors for Long-term Growth and Countermeasures
(1) Favorable Factors

A.

The Global Networking Market has Development Potential

According to the latest ITU-T estimates, the global Internet users will reach 5.3
billion in 2022, an increase of approximately 400 million people from 4.9 billion
people in 2021, representing an annual growth rate of 8.2%. In addition, the total
global Internet bandwidth was 932 Thit/s in 2021, an annual growth rate as high as
30% from 719 Thit/s in 2020. In addition to the rising demand for mobile devices,
the network infrastructure has continued to accelerate the replacement. Various
emerging applications and services, such as smart home, loV, smart store, and
remote industrial control, have become matured. The booming networking
industry and market has brought about infinite business opportunities.

. The Company will Work Closely with Upstream Chip Suppliers to Highlight Brand

Value with Differentiated Software

The Company will form strategic alliances with major networking chip suppliers to
strive to launch its products to the market in the shortest possible time with the
first launch of new chips adopted. The Company will provide software with
excellent performance to increase customer stickiness to the brand.

. Global Operations and Local Services

D-Link has established subsidiaries and nearly 100 sales offices in more than 50
countries around the world. The business covers a population of approximately
6.7 billion, accounting for 85% of the global population. It integrates global
resources to provide the operation model of local services.

. Flexible and Efficient Supply Chains

In order to reduce manufacturing costs and increase shipment flexibility, the
current supply chains are mainly in Taiwan and mainland China. In the future, the
supply chains can be applied to countries that require “local production” through
turnkey transfer at any time to comply with local regulations.

. Keeping Abreast of Customer Needs

We can create a smart home environment with mydlink as a platform, a smart
enterprise environment with Nuclias as a platform, and a smart industrial
environment with D-ECS as a platform to further provide customers with the best
application services.

. Cross-industry Strategic Alliance

D-Link has actively worked with the major telecom/distributors/third-party
software suppliers around the world as strategic partners to create an advantage
for growth, mutual benefit, and a win-win outcome.

(2) Unfavorable Factors

A.

Intense Market Competition and Price-undercutting Pressure
New competitors are gradually entering the market, leading to a price war, which
will affect the Company's profit.

Countermeasures:
a. To reduce prices with large quantities by reducing the number of suppliers and
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reducing the number of product models to concentrate on a few ones.

b. Reduce the distribution levels, investment in e-commerce, strengthen branches’
ability to serve customers, and replace the low-price competition with the overall
service quality.

c. We are developing a series of service-oriented solutions to replace the previous
single product competition, including enterprise cloud solutions, consumer cloud
integration, and three smart applications, in order to provide differentiated products
and services, create market segmentation, and break away from red sea price
competition.

d. Master the core networking technology to improve product quality and respond to
market demand quickly.

B. Market Shrinkage by Geopolitical Tensions and Inflation
The ongoing war between Russia and Ukraine, inflation and the monetary
tightening cycle by central banks worldwide are likely to bring about a crowding-
out effect in the Netcom consumer market, further worsening the current state of
rising inventory levels in the retail market, which is expected to affect the
achievement of the 2023 target.

Countermeasures:

a. Closely monitor market changes with overseas branches and adjust supply and
demand in time.

b. We will invest more resources in the enterprise and telecom markets to meet our
customers' medium- and long-term strategic goals and replace products with services
to increase our sustainable source of revenue.

() Main Uses and Production Process of the Main Products
1. Key Applications of Main Products

Main Products Key Applications

Relieving network bandwidth to achieve the purpose of fast

Switches L.
data transmission.

Connecting and integrating multiple devices between different

Internet Equipment
quip networks.

Digital Subscriber Line Devices |Providing broadband access to telephone lines.

Local area network composed of wireless transmission

Wireless Network Equipment
technology.

Providing home computer and peripheral network equipment

Home Network Equipment
auip through the Internet and telephone lines.

Providing home digital devices and wireless home security
Digital Home Appliances automatic control devices for audio-visual multimedia
applications.

Network Security Equipment |Providing network transmission security.

Relieving the network bandwidth to achieve the purpose of

Optical Access Equipment
P quip data security and fast transmission.

Mobile Communication Connecting Internet applications through mobile
Equipment communication networks.

2. Production Process of Main Products
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The Company does not engage in the manufacture of products. All products were
outsourced manufactured.

(1l1) Supply Status of Main Materials

As the Company does not engage in the manufacturing of products, the supply of raw
materials is not applicable.

(IV) Information of Major Suppliers and Clients
1. Information of important suppliers and clients in the most recent two years: The
consolidated Company did not have any clients whose individual amount accounted for
more than 10% of the total sales revenue in 2022 and 2021.
2. Major suppliers in the most recent two years:

Unit: NTS Thousand

2021 2022
g Percentage of Relationshi Percentage of Relationshi
3 Name Amount Annual Net with the Issqu Name Amount Annual Net with the Issu';r
Purchases (%) Purchases (%)
Cameo Affiliated
1 Company H 1,367,433 11 — Communications, 1,631,359 13| companies of
Inc. the Company
) Alpha Networks 1,197,765 10 _ Alpha Networks 997,738 3 _
Inc. Inc.
Cameo Affiliated
3 Communications, 1,043,972 9| companies of Company | 960,029 7 —
Inc. the Company
4 Other 8,491,540 70 — Other 9,309,255 72 —
Net purchases 12,100,710 100 — Net purchases 12,898,381 100 —

Analysis of changes: As a result of the change in sales portfolio, the proportion of purchases from Cameo

Communications, Inc., Alpha Networks Inc. and Company | increased and the proportion of purchases from
Company H decreased.
Note 1: The name, total trade amount, and the proportion to the total purchase of major suppliers that
have accounted for at least 10% of procurement in the most recent two years. However, for those suppliers
whose name cannot be disclosed according to the contract, or the trade counterpart is a non-related party
individual, a code name can be used instead.
Note 2: Only the consolidated operating figures are demonstrated.

(V) Production Volume and Value in the Most Recent Two Years: Not applicable.

(V1) Sales Volume and Value in the Most Recent Two Years

Unit: NTS Thousand/Pcs (EA)

Annual Sales Value 2021 2022
and Volume
Local Export Local Export
Main
Products Volume | Amount| Volume Amount | Volume |[Amount| Volume Amount
N:::’:J':t':g 368,960| 604,680| 33,269,917 14,759,827| 2,616,441| 503,248| 33,935,200 16,371,818
Service Revenue — 34,503 — 125,891 — 115,262 — 87,560
Total 368,960| 639,183 33,269,917 14,885,718| 2,616,441| 618,510| 33,935,200/ 16,459,378

Remarks: Only the consolidated operating figures of the Company are demonstrated.

147




lll. Employee Statistics for the Most Recent Two Years

As of
Year 2021 2022 March 31, 2023
Number of Direct Labor 0 0 0
umber o Indirect Labor 555 515 530
Employees
Total 555 515 530
Average Age 39.78 41.67 41.61
Average Years of Service 6.73 7.07 7.02
Ph. D 0.54 0.19 0.19
Educati Master 34.05 29.32 29.25
Distl:;:l:?ult(i):n Bachelor 52.25 55.53 55.65
High school 12.43 14.95 14.91
Percentage (%) -
Below high
0 0 0
school

IV. Environmental Protection Expenditures

Any losses suffered by the Company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the
Annual Report publication date due to environmental pollution incidents
(including any compensation paid and any violations of environmental protection
laws or regulations found in environmental inspection, specifying the disposition
dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, and the content
of the dispositions), and disclosing an estimate of possible expenses that could be
incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to be taken. If a
reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot
be made shall be provided: None.

V. Labor Relations

(1) Implementation of Employee Welfare System
1. Employee Welfare Measures

(1) Insurance: In addition to employee insurance in accordance with the government's
regulations, the Company provides free employee group insurance and family
preferential group insurance. Employees are also provided with travel safety insurance
and medical insurance coverage for sudden illnesses during overseas business trips, so
that employees can work without worries.

(2) Facility: The Company not only provides comfortable and novel workplace in the Neihu
office but also sets up an employee restaurant, coffee bar, outdoor coffee shop,
vending machines, employee lounge and employee fitness center, basketball court,
aerobics dance classroom, and various fitness equipment for employees. In addition,
the Company hired two disabled massage therapists to provide employees with stress
relief massage.

(3) Other Welfare: D-Link Employee Welfare Committee is responsible for various
employee benefit services, such as: It subsidizes employees to establish clubs and
organize various club activities and holds small and medium-sized activities in the
Company to build employees’ consensus; each employee can apply for a birthday
subsidy every quarter, which can be used for gatherings or afternoon tea in the
department; In 2022 and 2023, each employee is eligible to apply for travel subsidies
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on a pro-rata basis for employees with less than one year of service. The Company
provides subsidies for wedding, birthday, childbirth, funeral, hospitalization,
emergency assistance, etc.; the Company provides employees with cash gifts on three
major holidays.

2. Continuing Education and Training

Based on the organizational strategy, vision and value, the Company has been developing a
comprehensive training program for new employees, general employees, junior
supervisors, middle-level supervisors and senior supervisors, and other staff attributes.
Based on off-the-job training, on-the-job training, and self-development, the Company aims
to strengthen the human capital of the organization and build the D-Link learning system to
enhance the sustainable management capability of the Company.

Under the Company’s learning system, the off-the-job training includes new employee
training, general training, professional training, and management training. On-the-job
training includes work substitution arrangement, job coaching, job expansion and job
enrichment to extend the depth and breadth of the work, and further accumulate
professional strengths through coaching and assistance, participation in different projects,
or internal classroom sharing. Self-development includes education, study, or participation
in internal and external book clubs and seminars to enhance ability.

The Company has planned a complete training program for new recruits, including
orientation on the first day of arrival, which helps new recruits quickly understand the
Company's system and related benefits in a focused, in-depth manner. Subsequently, the
Company arranges regular education training for new employees, introducing information
about the Company's history, core value, products, and occupational safety and health in
compliance with laws and regulations to strengthen the sense of belonging and recognition
of the Company. Since October 2022, the Company has also included "Human Rights
Promotion", "Intellectual Property and Personal Data Act Promotion", "Ethical
Management Promotion" and "Gender Equality and Prevention of Sexual Harassment in the
Workplace Promotion" as mandatory courses for new employees.

The Company encourages employees to participate in internal classroom and work
experience sharing. Depending on the job attributes and professional skills required by
each unit, we offer training courses internally or arrange external organizations for relevant
professional training. Senior employees also have the opportunity to take on coaching and
mentoring roles to help new employees/interns/work-study students quickly integrate into
the work and life at D-Link.

At the same time, the Company offers common training that incorporates corporate
sustainability goals, health promotion and legal compliance needs, and provides training
and promotion through various channels (video broadcast on TV on the first floor lobby,
internal/external physical or online courses), including courses related to intellectual
property and Personal Data Act, courses related to ethical management, courses related to
gender equality and prevention of sexual harassment in the workplace, courses related to
human rights, courses related to information security awareness, courses related to legal
compliance, and seminars related to health promotion, in order to enhance the work-life
balance of employees.

In 2022, the Company arranged a total of 206 training sessions, with a total of 5,755
participants and 8,022.7 hours of course time; 143 internal training sessions were held,
with 5,644 participants and 7,250.7 hours of course time; 63 external training sessions were
held, with 111 participants and 772 hours of course time; 65 training sessions were held for
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new employees, with 227 participants and 516 hours of course time. 4 corporate
sustainability-related courses were held, with 1,994 participants and 1,248.5 hours of
course time; 6,977 corporate sustainability-related videos were played, with a total of 296.8
hours.

In addition to the pursuit of business growth and profitability, corporate sustainability relies
on long-term adaptive education and development of talent. From 2022 to March 2023,
the Company cooperated with nine schools, including Tsing Hua University, Taipei University
of Education, Taiwan Ocean University, Tamkang University, United University, Yuan Ze
University, Aletheia University, Taipei University of Technology, and Takming University of
Science and Technology, to employ a total of 11 interns and 6 work-study students to the
Company for internship or work-study through the universities’ industrial internship or
work-study program. It aims to provide a bridge for students to be in line with the industry
in advance, and arrange coaches to provide timely guidance for further cultivation. In June
2022, the Company cooperated with National Taiwan University of Science and Technology
to establish the "D-Link Group Scholarship", offering 10 full scholarships for master's
degrees to encourage and subsidize Ukrainian and other foreign students to study in
Taiwan. In the future, these international students will also have the opportunity to join the
Company or its group companies for internship and employment. In addition to enhancing
global talent deployment and achieving the vision of sustainable corporate development,
the Company also hope to take the lead to introduce to and nurture more technology
talent in Taiwan.

. Retirement System

The Company's retirement matters are handled in accordance with the Labor Standards
Act, and also the Labor Pension Act launched in 2005 for the implemented new pension
system. The Company's employees may choose between the old or new pension system
based on their own will. For the old pension system, the Labor Retirement Reserve Fund
Supervisory Committee is established, and a Labor Retirement Reserve Fund Account is set
up according to the law, to which a fund is appropriated monthly accordingly. The
retirement reserve fund is set aside at 2% of the actual salary at the contribution rate
approved by the competent authority on a monthly basis and deposited in a special
account in the Bank of Taiwan.

The Company amended its employee retirement regulations in April 2020, which were
approved by the Department of Labor, Taipei City Government. The balance of the Bank of
Taiwan's labor retirement reserve fund is NT$80,571 thousand. In 2022, the Company
recognized pension expense of NT$622 thousand and recorded a defined benefit asset of
NT$10,204 thousand in excess of the defined benefit obligation in the retirement reserve
fund account. For employees who meet the retirement requirements under the law,
pension payments are based on the length of service and the average salary for the six
months prior to retirement, with two bases for each year of service up to and including 15
years and one base for each year of service over 15 years, subject to a maximum
accumulation of 45 bases. In accordance with Article 3 of the Regulations for the Allocation
and Management of the Workers' Retirement Reserve Funds, the accumulated amount of
the Company's labor retirement reserve fund is sufficient to cover the future retirement of
all employees who chose the old pension system. After consideration and approval by the
Labor Retirement Reserve Fund Supervisory Committee, the Company has reported to the
Department of Labor, Taipei City Government to suspend the appropriation of the labor
retirement reserve fund from January 2023 to December 2023 (Notice of Department of
Labor, Taipei City Government No. 1126002643).
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The Labor Retirement Reserve Fund Supervisory Committee meets once every three
months. In 2022, the Labor Retirement Reserve Fund Supervisory Committee held four
meetings (3/25, 6/24, 8/8, 12/6), and may hold temporary meetings if necessary. In 2022, a
total of two applications for labor retirement reserve fund under the old pension system
were approved, and the pension were paid in accordance with law.

In accordance with the Labor Pension Act, the Company's defined contribution plan is
based on a contribution rate of 6% of employees' monthly wages to the individual labor
pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance, while overseas subsidiaries make
contributions in accordance with the relevant local laws and regulations. The Company and
overseas subsidiaries recognized pension expense of NT$118,269 thousand in 2022.

. Labor-management Agreements

As the Company has attached great importance to labor-management harmony and
employee' rights and benefits since the establishment, our labor-management relations
have been harmonious and positive. We hold labor-management meetings regularly every
quarter to discuss labor-management issues and reach consensus through thorough
communication.

The Company started the "Appointment with Supervisor" event at the end of 2022.
Through this activity, employees can interact directly with senior executives and express
more ideas and opinions.

(1) In 2022, the Company held 4 labor relations meetings, and all the motions were voted
by the representatives of both employers and employees. All the employees'
responses were appropriately answered by the relevant units or departments. In
addition, the minutes of the four labor relations meetings in 2022 have been
published for the information of the employees.

*Time/date and motions of labor-management meetings:

Date/Time of Meeting Meeting Agenda

[Motion 1] Amendment to the Work Rules

[Motion 2] The leave requirement for health check-ups of

employees.

[Motion 3] Is there more than one approved health check-up

facility available for employees to choose from?

[Motion 4] Does the Company provide assistance in applying

for national defense leave?

10:00, March 22, 2022
(Wednesday)

[Motion 1] D-Link 2023 business calendar

[Extemporary Motion 1] In response to the pandemic, the

10:00, June 22, 2022 Company currently offers remote work applications.
(Wednesday) If the pandemic is over, can the Company provide

remote work applications for other diseases (e.g.,

enterovirus, influenza, etc.)?

10:00, September 21,
2022 (Wednesday)
10:00, December 21, |[Motion 1] The time for the quarterly labor relations meeting

2022 (Wednesday) in 2023 is set.

None.

*Employee feedback of labor-management meetings:
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Date/Time of Meeting

Meeting Agenda

10:00, March 22, 2022
(Wednesday)

No employee feedback.

10:00, June 22, 2022
(Wednesday)

No employee feedback.

10:00, September 21,
2022 (Wednesday)

[Feedback1]

[Feedback2]

[Feedback3]

[Feedback4]
[Feedback5]

[Feedback6]

[Feedback?]

[Feedbacks8]

[Feedback9]

Is it possible to leave work half a day earlier on
important holidays?

Is there a "birthday leave" measure?
Employees can choose a day off in the month
of your birthday.

Will there be a "start-of-school leave for
children of the first grade in the elementary
school"?

Is there a "scholarship for children's
education"?

Can people with long-term family care needs or
pregnant women apply to work from home?
Can those who work past 9: 30 a.m. and clock
in to work take 0.5 hours off and work until 6:
30 p.m.?

Is there an increase in meal subsidies for
employees to increase their willingness to have
meals?

Is there a possibility to reinstate the "shuttle
bus" that was used before the pandemic?

Can we consider adding a lunch box order
service?

10:00, December 21,
2022 (Wednesday)

[Feedback1]

[Feedback2]

[Feedback3]

Can we add accidental medical insurance to our
group insurance?

The traffic congestion in the Neihu is getting
worse, can we extend the flexible working
hours by half an hour?

Can the flat parking spaces be restored to
basketball courts?

(2) In December 2022, the Company started to hold the "Appointment with Supervisor"
event to provide more opportunities for employees to interact directly with senior
executive. As of the end of March 2023, four events were held, with 11 applicants and
a total of 10 participants.

(3) The Employee Welfare Committee of D-Link holds regular welfare committee meetings
to provide employee-related benefits. A total of 9 Employee Welfare Committee
meetings were held in 2022.

(4) The Company launched the employee satisfaction and engagement survey in
December 2022. The survey was completed in January 2023, with a completion rate of
71.5% and a valid response rate of 64.4%.

5. Protection Measures for Employees' Rights and Interests
The Company's protection of employees' rights and interests, in addition to the actual
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implementation in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the management will
improve the software and hardware facilities based on the employees' needs. In a year
where there is a surplus, employees are also paid with compensation according to the
Company's “Articles of Incorporation”, so that employees can share the results of the
operations.

In addition, the Company has set up internal complaint channels, and employees can file

complaints through the channels below:

Complaint hotline: (02) 6600-0123 ext.1850

Complaint mailbox: A complaint may be placed in the complaint mailbox next to the HRD

mailbox of the Human Resources Department on the 1st floor of the Company or mailed to

D-Link850 employee complaint mailbox at (114) No. 289, Xinhu 3rd Road, Neihu District,

Taipei City.

Complaints email: dlink850@dlinkcorp.com

6. Protection Measures for Work Environment and Employees' Personal Safety

In addition to following the regulations and guidelines of the central competent authority,

the Company has passed the certification of the ISO 9001 quality management system (the

certificate is valid from Nov. 1, 2019, to Nov. 1, 2022), ISO 14001 environmental

management system (the certificate is valid from Oct. 29, 2021, to Oct. 29, 2024), and the

latest version of the ISO 45001 occupational safety and health management system (the

certificate is valid from Jan. 31, 2022, to Jan. 30, 2025). Through the certification by these

professional organizations, the Company's environmental maintenance and employees'

safety and health management at work are strengthened to achieve the protection of the

work environment and employees' personal safety and health. Relevant operations are as

follows:

6.1 Physical examinations for new employees and health checkups for existing employees

6.2 Identification, assessment, and control of work environment or job hazard

6.3 Management of machinery, equipment, or devices

6.4 Labeling and identification of hazardous materials

6.5 Sampling strategy planning and sample identification for hazardous operating
environments

6.6 Matters concerning safety assessment over processes or construction in hazardous
workplaces

6.7 Matters concerning procurement management, contract management, and
management changes

6.8 Formulation of safety and health work standards

6.9 Regularinspection, key inspection, job check, and on-site inspection tour

6.10 Safety and health education and training

6.11 Management of personal protective equipment

6.12 Matters concerning health examination, health management, and health promotion

6.13 Collection, sharing, and application of safety and health information

6.14 Emergency response measures and training

6.15 Investigation, handling, and statistical analysis of occupational disasters, false alarms,
and events affecting physical and mental health

6.16 Measures for safety and health management recording and performance evaluation

(1) Any Losses Incurred as a Result of Labor Disputes in the Most Recent Fiscal
Year, and During the Current Fiscal Year up to the Publication Date of the
Annual Report (Including any Violations of the Labor Standards Act found in
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Labor Inspection, the Disposition Dates, Reference Numbers, the Articles Of
Law Violated, the Contents of Law Violated, and the Content of the
Dispositions), and an Estimate of Possible Expenses that Could be Incurred
Currently and in the Future and Countermeasures Being or to be Taken Shall be
Disclosed. If a Reasonable Estimate Cannot be Made, an Explanation Shall be
Provided: None.

VI. Cybersecurity Risk Management Framework:

U]

Information and Communications Security Management Structure,
Information and Communications Security Policy, Substantial Management
Proposals, and Resources Invested in Information and Communications

Security Management.
1. Information and Communications Security Management Structure

(1)

Information Security Governance Organization of D-Link

The Company has established the Information Security Management Committee in
2022, with the President as the convener to supervise the implementation of the
Company's information security policy. To keep abreast of the information and
communication security, we, in compliance with the ISO 27001: 2013 information
security management system standard and the “Regulations Governing
Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies”, assign the
Information Technology and Security Department to be dedicated to information
security and the head of the department to serve as the representative of
information security management, coordinating the formulation and execution of
information security and protection policies, risk management, and compliance
audit. Each information security business-related unit (product, personal data,
privacy, etc.) assigns its information security representative to regularly convene
information security meetings to discuss information security policies and other
relevant major issues and supervise the Company-wide operations of information
security and the effectiveness of the information security risk management
mechanism, while this organization regularly reports to the Board of Directors on the
effectiveness of the overall operations and systems.

The Board of Directors adopted the “Information Security Management Policy” on
February 22, 2022, and held the first Information Security Management Committee
on July 25, 2022. We ensure the confidentiality, integrity, availability, and legality of
our information assets through regular annual inspections.
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(2) Information Security Organizational Structure of D-Link

D-Link Corporation
Information Security Management

Highest Management

Committee Organization
Decision Making

Board of Directors

// Information Security

Convenor President

Management Committee

Information Security Head of IT & Information
WEREREREEEENEOS Security Dept.

|

Product Information Privacy Protection
Security Representative Representative
IEC 62443-4-1] (TRUSTe)

2. Information and Communications Security Policy
(1) Information Security Management Strategy and Framework of D-Link

A. The Company has passed the ISO/IEC 27001:2013 Information Security
Management System (ISMS) international standard certification. The certificate is
valid from October 16, 2020, through October 15, 2023. The adoption of the
1SO27001 information security management system has strengthened the ability
to respond to information security incidents, thereby protecting the Company’s
and customers’ asset security. In the third quarter of 2023, we plan to conduct
external audits and obtain certification for the new three-year ISO/IEC
27001:2013 international standard and complete the conversion to ISO/IEC
27001:2022 within the deadline, incorporating the information security-related
controls of the new standard into the Company's information security control
regulations in order to enhance the Company's information security.

B. The Company has passed the IEC62443-4-1:2018 Secure Product Development
Lifecycle Requirements, and the certificate is valid from November 30, 2020,
through November 29, 2025. With that, we follow the strictest security standards
from product design, development, testing to introduction in the product life
cycle.

C. The Company has passed the BS 10012:2017 Personal Information Management
System (PIMS), and the current certificate is valid from December 1, 2021, to
November 30, 2024, regulating all relevant procedures and applicable documents
in addition to the compliance with the EU General Data Protection Regulation
(GDPR) requirements.

D. The Company has obtained the TRUSTe Certified Privacy seal in March 2022. To
duly fulfill our commitment to privacy protection and security, we have been
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working closely with TrustArc Inc., a globally recognized authority on data privacy
management, since 2014. It provides services, including privacy assessment,
certification, and monitoring tools. Our website open to the public and domain
have passed its audit and certification, and we have thus obtained the TRUSTe
Certified Privacy seal. In 2023, we will continue to comply with the requirements
of the standard to achieve the protection of customer data privacy.

(2) Corporate Information Security Risk Management and Continuous Improvement
Framework
The Company has long been focusing on the development of network equipment
and services. Information security is one of the critical tasks to which the Company
attaches great importance and pays attention. Employees, organizations, suppliers,
and operations-related information, and hardware and software equipment are all
within the scope of concern. The Company, in compliance with 1ISO27001: 2013
information security management system standard, formulate information security
policies, strengthens information security management and ensures that important
information assets are protected from internal, external, intentional, or accidental
threats to maintain the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our information.
Through information assets and risk management procedures, we have built and
maintained the Company's crucial information assets based on a Plan-Do-Check-Act
model to ensure the continuous operations of the Company's business, reduce
business risks, improve service quality, and ensure that all information security
policies, procedures, and operating guidelines can be consistently and effectively
implemented in the Company.

3. Specific Management Plans
(1) Information Security Protection and Control

¢ Adopt advanced technology to scan computers and update
Network Security software, strengthen software firewalls and computer control,
and prevent the spread of computer viruses.

* Improve the endpoint anti-virus and virus scan mechanism to
prevent ransomware and malicious programs from intruding into

Device Security the Company.

¢ Strengthen the detection of malware and Trojan horse
attachments for our email system.

* Develop security checks, evaluation standards, and improvement
goals for application development processes.

* Continue to enhance the security control mechanism for
applications and patch potential loopholes.

Application Security

* Establish a user password management mechanism and a
network security service mechanism, separate internal network
from external connection, and control remote work, to safeguard
network and data security.

Access Control

* To ensure the confidentiality of the Company's system operations
Password Key and accounts, conduct necessary password and key management,
Management minimize the risk of leakage, and properly protect the Company's
confidential and sensitive information.

* Establish a business continuity operation plan for important
systems and hold exercises annually to ensure the continuous
operation of the Company's business.

Business Continuity
Management
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Information Security | ® Establish information security incident notification and response
Incident procedures to reduce the damage caused by information security
Management incidents.

(2) Check and Continuous Improvement

¢ Increase employees' vigilance against email social engineering
Education And attacks and implement phishing email defense and detection.

Training ¢ Regularly hold business continuity exercises to increase
employees' awareness of information security.

* Entrust a third party to regularly conduct assessments of the
Company's information security:
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 information security management system
IEC 62443-4-1:2018 product security development system
certification
BS 10012:2017 personal data protection management system

Information Security
Risk Management
Monitoring

¢ Entrust a third party to perform vulnerability scans on a regular
basis, collect external threat information on a regular basis, and
conduct risk assessments based on the information content to
strengthen protection against external information security
threats.

* The Company has joined the Taiwan Computer Emergency
Response Team/Coordination Center (TWCERT/CC) to regularly
collect external threat information and conduct risk assessment
based on the information content. Our information security
personnel confirm and track the results of processed various
information, thereby strengthening the protection against
external information security threats.

External Threat
Detection
Protection

4. Resources Invested in Information and Communications Security
Management
In 2021, the Company passed three international information security certifications,
namely ISO/IEC 27001: 2013 information security management system, IEC 62443-4-1:
2018 product security development system, and BS 10012: 2017 personal data protection
management system.
In 2022, the Company convened more than 20 internal and external information security-
related meetings or training sessions and conducted information security education and
promotion for all employees on the internal website every quarter. We held one safety
education and training and two safety simulation tests for all employees. In addition,
there is 1 dedicated personnel in the dedicated information security unit, and 7 assistants
in information security and network management, operation and maintenance, who
receive at least a total of 24 hours of professional information security training each year.

(I1) Any Losses Incurred as a Result of Major Information and Communications Safety Incident
in the Most Recent Fiscal Year and Current Fiscal Year up to the Publication Date of the
Annual Report, and an Estimate of Possible Expenses that could be Incurred Currently and,
in the Future, and Countermeasures Being or to be Taken Shall be Disclosed. If a Reasonable
Estimate cannot be Made, an Explanation shall be Provided:

1. The Company passed the ISO/IEC 27001:2013 information security audit in October
2022. There were no major defects identified in the information security audit, nor
significant information security incidents, such as violations of information security,
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leakage of customer data, or fines taking place.

2.  The Company passed the BS 10012:2017 data protection audit in October 2022. There
were no major defects identified in the personal data protection audit, nor significant
information security incidents, such as violation of information security and personal
data protection, leakage of customers’ and employees’ data, or fines taking place.

In addition, there was no case of complaint, leading to a legal action taken by a third
party or a competent authority against D-Link Corporation, for violation of customers’
personal data protection or the loss of customers’ data.
VII. Important Contracts: The company has valid contracts that do not significantly
impact equity except for short-term loan contracts as of the printing date of this
annual report.
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Chapter 6 Financial Information

I. Condensed Balance Sheet, Statement of Comprehensive Income and CPA’s
Audit Opinion in the Most Recent Five Years

() Condensed Parent Company Only Balance Sheet—-Based on IFRS

Unit: NTS Thousand

Year Financial Information for Most Recent Five Years (Note 1)
tem 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Current Assets 1,487,687|  987,330| 2,243,494 766,388 2,815,776
Property, Plant, and Equipment 751,255 745,800 752,385 727,507 719,682
Intangible Assets 151,887| 122,932 74,300 45,462 59,415
Other Assets 10,982,572| 10,200,988 8,878,933| 9,424,327| 9,873,738
Total Assets 13,373,401| 12,057,050| 11,949,112 10,963,684 13,468,611
Before 3,452,468| 2,718,198| 1,731,164 1,373,995 2,708,233
I, Distribution
Current Liabilities After
Er 3,582,867| 2,718,198| 1,926,763| 1,553,946 2,842,950
Distribution
Non-current Liabilities 721,446  865438] 958,453 1,112,331 1,850,706
Before 4,173,914| 3,583,636| 2,689,617| 2,486,326| 4,558,939
s Distribution
Total liabilities After
N 4,304,313| 3,583,636| 2,885,216 2,666,277| 4,693,656
Distribution
Equity Attributable to Owners of 9,199,487 8,473,414 9,259,495 8,477,358 8,909,672
the Parent
Ordinary Shares 6,519,961 6,519,961 6,519,961 5,998,365 5,998,365
Capital Surplus 1,669,905 1,598,807| 1,523,313| 1,522,573| 1,342,623
Before 2,324,141 1,759,933| 2,825,412| 2,822,455/ 2,972,141
. . Distribution
Retained Earnings After
er 2,258,942| 1,759,933| 2,629,813 2,822,455 2,837,424
Distribution
Other Equity Interest (1,314,520)| (1,405,287)| (1,606,191)| (1,866,035) (1,403,457)
Treasury Stock - — — — —
Non-controlling Interests - — — — —
Before 9,199,487| 8,473,414| 9,259,495 8,477,358 8,909,672
. Distribution
Total Equity After
N 9,069,088| 8,473,414| 9,063,896 8,297,407| 8,774,955
Distribution

Note 1: The Individual financial data in the most recent five years has been audited by CPAs.
Note 2: 2022 earnings distribution proposal has been approved by the Board of Directors.
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(1) Condensed Parent Company Only Income Statement—Based on IFRS

Unit: NTS Thousand

Year Financial Information for Most Recent Five Years (Note 1)
Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Operating Revenue 1,726,707 1,701,547/ 1,508,054| 1,392,575/ 7,240,829
Gross Profit 1,077,499 902,899 868,868 871,694 952,336
Operating Profit (Loss) (263,323) (427,246) (628,024) (332,301) (86,286)
Non-operating Income and
Expenses 380,575 (86,309)| 1,942,807 570,833 225,610
Profit (Loss) Before Tax 117,252 (513,555) 1,314,783 238,532 139,324
Net Profit (Loss) from Continuing
Operations 106,374 (508,327)| 1,239,925 239,197 109,233
Loss from Discontinued _ _ o _ _
Operations
Net Profit (Loss) 106,374 (508,327)| 1,239,925 239,197 109,233
Other Comprehensive Income
(Income After Tax) (92,412) (77,652)]  (199,443)]  (304,130) 498,950
Total Comprehensive Income 13,962 (585,979) 1,040,482 (64,933) 608,183
Net Income Attributable to
Owners of the Parent 106,374 (508,327)| 1,239,925 239,197 109,233
Net Income Attributable to Non- o o o - -
controlling Interests
Total Comprehensive Income
Attributable to Owners of the 13,962 (585,979)| 1,040,482 (64,933) 608,183
Parent
Total Comprehensive Income
Attributable to Non-controlling — — — — —
Interests
Earnings Per Share 0.16 (0.78) 1.90 0.38 0.18

Note 1: The Individual financial data in the most recent five years has been audited by CPAs.
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(1) Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheet—Based on IFRS
Unit: NTS Thousand

Year Financial Information for Most Recent Five Years (Note 1)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Item
Current Assets 12,329,689, 10,161,487 12,551,922| 10,109,933| 11,103,868
Property, Plant, and Equipment 1,101,557 1,081,754 1,029,671 974,725 978,816
Intangible Assets 622,270 586,308 511,329 472,238 516,922
Other Assets 3,553,307 3,881,461 1,857,308 2,946,968 2,821,935
Total Asset 17,606,823 15,711,010 15,950,230 14,503,864| 15,421,541
Before 7,663,344 5937,479| 5,346,116 4,589,921 4,953,414
. Distribution
Current Liabilities After
. 7,793,743 5,937,479 5,541,715 4,769,872 5,088,131
Distribution
Non-current Liabilities 326,547 847,492 863,759 911,607 906,671
Before 7,989,801 6,784,971| 6,209,875 5,501,528 5,860,085
o Distribution
Total Liabilities After
- . 8,120,290 6,784,971 6,405,474 5,681,479 5,994,802
Distribution
Equity Attributable to Ownersof | 19 4o7|  g473414) 9259495 8,477,358 8,909,672
the Parent
Ordinary Shares 6,519,961 6,519,961 6,519,961 5,998,365 5,998,365
Capital Surplus 1,669,905 1,598,807 1,523,313 1,522,573 1,342,623
. Be‘fore' 2,324,141 1,759,933 2,825,412 2,822,455 2,972,141
i . Distribution
Retained Earnings After
. 2,258,942 1,759,933 2,629,813 2,822,455 2,837,424
Distribution
Other Equity Interest (1,314,520)| (1,405,287)| (1,609,191)| (1,866,035)| (1,403,457)
Treasury Stock - — — — -
Non-controlling Interest 417,445 452,625 480,860 524,978 651,784
Before 9,616,932 8,926,039 9,740,355 9,002,336| 9,561,456
. Distribution
Total Equity After
— . 9,486,533 8,926,039 9,544,756 8,822,385 9,426,739
Distribution

Note 1: The Individual financial data in the most recent five years has been audited by CPAs.
Note 2: 2022 earnings distribution proposal has been approved by the Board of Directors.
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(Iv) Consolidated Condensed Income Statement—Based on IFRS

Unit: NTS Thousand

Year Financial Information for Most Recent Five Years (Note 1)
Jtem 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Operating Revenue 19,383,203| 16,996,048 15,179,443| 15,524,901| 17,077,888
Gross Profit 5,601,988 4,739,532 4,775,295 4,188,757 4,314,830
Operating Profit (Loss) 248,971 (384,756) 80,226 169,868 552,508
E")‘(:::’Sl:‘:'a““g Income and 48,426 95,203 1,416,500 224,855 (94,930)
Profit (Loss) Before Tax 297,397 (289,553) 1,496,726 394,723 457,578
o”:: r‘;:?::s“'“s) from Continuing 145453|  (441,741)) 1,310560|  318,111] 260,382
Loss from Discontinued - - o - o
Operations
Net Profit (Loss) 145,453 (441,741) 1,310,560 318,111 260,382
Other Comprehensive Income
(Income After Tax) (115,769) (97,830)|  (235,153)|  (327,143) 495,406
Total Comprehensive Income 29,684 (539,571) 1,075,407 (9,032) 755,788
Net Income Attributable to
Owners of the Parent 106,374 (508,327) 1,239,925 239,197 109,233
Net Income Attributable to
Non-controlling Interests 39,079 66,586 70,635 78,914 151,149
Total Comprehensive Income
Attributable to Owners 13,962 (585,979) 1,040,482 (64,933) 608,183
of the Parent
Total Comprehensive Income
Attributable to 15,722 46,408 34,925 55,901 147,605
Non-controlling Interests
Earnings Per Share 0.16 (0.78) 1.90 0.38 0.18

Note 1: The financial information in the most recent five years has been audited by CPAs.

(V) Information on CPAs and Auditors’ Opinion in the Most Recent Five Years

Year Name of CPA Audit Opinion

2018 Pao-Lien Chou and Chiu-Hua Hsieh 'Unquallfled opinion
(emphasis of matter or other matters)

2019 Pao-Lien Chou and Chiu-Hua Hsieh Unql_‘a“ﬂed opinion

(emphasis or other matters)

2020 Pao-Lien Chou and Chiu-Hua Hsieh 'Unquallfled opinion
(emphasis of matter or other matters)

2021 Chiu-Hua Hsieh and Pao-Lien Chou Unqualified opinion
(emphasis of matter or other matters)

2022 Chiu-Hua Hsieh and Pao-Lien Chou .Unquallfled opinion
(emphasis of matter or other matters)
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Financial Analysis in the Most Recent Five Years

() Comprehensive Analysis of Parent Company Only Financial Information (IFRS):

Year Financial Analyses for Most Recent Five Years
(Note 1)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Item (Note 3)
Financial |Debt to Assets Ratio 31.21 29.72 22.51 22.68 33.85
Structure : X :
(%) s:;:)e?tfyL%TagnIe;T dcggl"ti:'r;:nt 1,224.55| 1,136.15| 1,230.69| 1,165.26| 1,342.54
Current Ratio 43.09 36.32 129.59 55.78 103.97
S°'(‘{,2)“°V Quick Ratio 39.01)  31.18) 121.11] 45.62|  87.23
Times Interest Earned 7.24) (42.18) 148.76 42.79 32.11
Accounts Receivables Turnover
(times) 7.60 6.27 5.33 5.65 7.58
Average Collection Days 48.02 58.21 68.48 64.60 48.15
Inventory Turnover (times) 6.24 6.20 4.39 4.07 23.84
Operating As:counts Payables Turnover 3.82 3.60 3.22 3.79 6.80
Performance |(times)
Average Days in Sales 58.49 58.87 83.14 89.68 15.31
Property, Plant, and Equipment
Turnover (times) 2.21 2.27 2.01 1.88 10.01
Total Assets Turnover (times) 0.13 0.13 0.13 0.12 0.59
Return on Total Asset (%) 0.88 (3.92) 10.39 2.13 0.92
Return on Equity (%) 1.17 (5.75) 13.98 2.70 1.26
Profitability |[Ratio of Income Before Tax to
Analysis Paid-in Capital (%) 1.80 (7.88) 20.17 3.98 2.32
Net Profit Margin (%) 6.16| (29.87) 82.22| 17.18 1.51
Earnings Per Share (NTS) 0.16 (0.78) 1.90 0.38 0.18
Cash Flow Ratio (%) 10.82 13.93 Note 2| Note 2 4.92
Cash Flow |Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (%) 44.68 90.47 53.58 24.13 11.95
Cash Reinvestment Ratio (%) 3.48 2.43 Note 2| Note 2 Note 2
Operating Leverage 0.56 0.72 0.83 0.69 (1.87)
Leverage . -
Financial Leverage 0.95 0.97 0.99 0.98 0.95

Analysis of Financial Ratio Difference in the Most Recent Two Years
1. Increase in Debt to Assets Ratio, Current Ratio, and Quick Ratio: It was due to the change in the
transaction pattern of the consolidated company from 2022. D-Link Corporation purchased inventory
from suppliers and resold it to other subsidiaries for distribution, which required more working capital,
resulting in a significant increase in cash, accounts receivable, inventory, accounts payable and loans
from subsidiaries.
2. Decrease in Times Interest Earned: Mainly due to decrease in earnings before interest and tax in 2022.
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. Increase in Accounts Receivables Turnover, Property, Plant, and Equipment Turnover, and Total Asset
Turnover, and decrease in Average Collection Days: It was due to the change in the transaction pattern
of the consolidated company from 2022. D-Link Corporation purchased inventory from suppliers and
resold it to other subsidiaries for distribution, resulting in a significant increase in operating revenue
and accounts receivable.

. Increase in Inventory Turnover, Account Payables Turnover and decrease in Average Days in Sales: It
was due to the change in the transaction pattern of the consolidated company from 2022. D-Link
Corporation purchased inventory from suppliers and resold it to other subsidiaries for distribution,
resulting in a significant increase in operating costs, inventory and accounts payable.

. Decrease in Return on Total Asset, Return on Equity, Ratio of Income Before Tax to Paid-in Capital and
Earnings Per Share: Mainly due to the decrease in net income before and after tax in 2022.

. Decrease in Net Profit Margin: It was due to the change in the transaction pattern of the consolidated
company from 2022. D-Link Corporation purchased inventory from suppliers and resold it to other
subsidiaries for distribution, resulting in a significant increase in operating revenue and a decrease in
net income after tax in 2022.

. Increase in Cash Flow Ratio: Mainly due to the net cash inflow from operating activities in 2022.

. Decrease in Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio: It was due to the change in the transaction pattern of the
consolidated company from 2022. D-Link Corporation purchased inventory from suppliers, resulting in
a significant increase in inventory and an increase in cash dividends for the last five years.

. Decrease in Operating leverage ratio: It was due to the change in the transaction pattern of the
consolidated company from 2022. D-Link Corporation purchased inventory from suppliers and resold
it to other subsidiaries for distribution, resulting in an increase in fixed operating costs and a net
operating loss for the period.

Note 1: The individual financial information for the most recent five fiscal years has been audited and attested

by CPAs using IFRS.

Note 2: The cash reinvestment ratio is negative, and therefore a cash flow analysis is not applicable.
Note 3: The following calculation formulas shall be listed at the end of this Table in the Annual Report.
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() Comprehensive Analysis of Consolidated Financial Information (IFRS):

Year| Financial Analyses for the Past Five Fiscal Years
(Note 1)

Item (Note 3) 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Financial |Debt to Assets Ratio 45.38 43.19 38.93 37.93 38.00
T B e e ont | 87303 825.14] 94597 92358 976.84

Current Ratio 160.89 171.14 234.79 220.26| 224.17
S°'(‘f,2;‘cy Quick Ratio 117.27| 120.09| 185.03| 141.21| 138.10

Times Interest Earned 13.33 (6.16) 53.92 16.24 27.03

Accounts Receivables Turnover 4.15 4.09 437 4.65 4.86

(times)

Average Collection Days 87.95 89.24 83.52 78.49 75.10

Inventory Turnover (times) 3.31 3.13 3.13 3.25 2.90
Operating As:counts Payables Turnover 4.01 3.81 3.68 4.22 4.59

Performance |(times)

Average Days in Sales 110.27 116.61 116.61 112.30 125.86
property, (':'i‘r“r:‘;'sf“d Equipment 16.75| 1557|1438 1549  17.48
Total Assets Turnover (times) 1.11 1.02 0.96 1.02 1.14
Return on Total Asset (%) 0.90 (2.28) 8.44 2.23 1.83
Return on Equity (%) 1.12 (5.48) 13.29 2.55 1.18
P’::\':;‘:s'i';ty g:?«;?ir?fcl:;ﬁg?‘szore Tax to a56| (4.44) 2296| 658 7.3
Net Profit Margin (%) 0.55 (2.99) 8.17 1.54 0.64
Earnings Per Share (NTS) 0.16 (0.78) 1.90 0.38 0.18
Cash Flow Ratio (%) 12.77 0.78 17.62 (36.41) 3.90
Cash flow |Cash Flow Adequacy Ratio (%) 53.93 193.65 251.89 15.61 17.28
Cash Reinvestment Ratio (%) 8.88 Note 2 8.28 Note 2| Note 2
Operating Leverage 2.45 0.03 5.18 2.77 1.50

Leverage
Financial Leverage 1.11 0.90 1.54 1.18 1.03

Analysis of Financial Ratio Difference in the Most Recent Two Years
1. Increase in Times Interest Earned: Mainly due to the increase in net earnings before interest and tax

and a decrease in interest expenses.
2. Decrease in Return on Equity, Net Profit Margin, Earning Per Share: Mainly due to the decrease in

net income after tax attributable to the owners of the parent company in 2022.

3. Increase in Cash Flow Ratio: Mainly due to the increase in net cash inflow from operating activities

in 2022.

4. Decrease in Operating Leverage: Mainly due to the decrease in fixed costs in 2022.

Note 1:

using IFRS.

Note 2:
Note 3:

1. Financial structure
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Note 4:

Note 5:

(1) Debt to Assets Ratio = Total liabilities/Total assets.

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant, and equipment = (Shareholders’ equity +
Noncurrent liabilities)/Net property, plant, and equipment.

2. Solvency
(1) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities
(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventories - Prepaid Expenses)/Current liabilities.

(3) Times Interest Earned = Earning before interest and tax expenses/Interest expenses.

3. Operating Performance
(1) Accounts receivable turnover (times) (including accounts receivable and notes receivable

from business operations) = Net sales/Average account receivable (including accounts
receivable and notes receivable from business operations).

(2) Average collection days = 365/Accounts receivables turnover.

(3) Inventory turnover = Cost of Goods Sales/Average inventory.

(4) Accounts Payable turnover (times) (including accounts payable and notes payable from
business operations) = Cost of Goods Sales/Average accounts payable (including accounts
payable and notes payable from business operations).

(5) Average days in sales= 365/Inventory turnover.

(6) Property, plant, and equipment turnover = Net sales/Average net property, plant, and
equipment.

(7) Total assets turnover = Net sales/Average total assets.

4. Profitability Analysis
(1) Return on total assets = [Net income + Interest expenses x (1 — effective tax rates)]/Average

total assets.

(2) Return on equity = Net income (loss) after tax/Average total equity.

(3) Net profit margin = Net income (loss) after tax/Net sales.

(4) Earnings per share = Net income (loss) attributable to owners of the parent/Weighted
average number of shares outstanding. (Note 4)

5. Cash flow
(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flows from business activities/Current liabilities.

(2) Net cash flow adequacy ratio = Five-year sum of net cash flow for business activities /Five-
year sum of(Capital expenses + Additional inventory sum + Cash dividend).

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (cash from business activities - Cash dividend)/(Gross property,
plant, and equipment + Long-term investments + Other non-current assets + Working
capital). (Note 5)

6. Leverage
(1) Operating leverage ratio= (Net operating revenue - variable operating costs and

expenses)/operating income (Note 6).

(2) Financial leverage = Operating profit/(Operating profit - Interest expenses).

Special attention should be paid to the following when calculating earnings per share by the above

equation:

1. The weighted average quantity of outstanding common shares shall be taken as the standard,
not the quantity of outstanding shares at the end of the year.

2. If there is any cash capital increase or treasury stock transaction, take the circulation periods
into account when calculating the weighted average quantity of outstanding shares.

3. If there is any capitalization of retained earnings or capital surplus, the annual and semi-
annual earnings per share of past years shall be retrospectively adjusted pro rata to the size of
the capital increase, without considering the issuance period of the capital increase.

4. If the preferred shares are non-convertible cumulative preferred shares, the dividend for the
fiscal year (whether it has been distributed or not) shall be deducted from the net income after
tax or added to the net loss after tax. If the preferred shares are non-cumulative, the dividend
shall be deducted from the net income after tax if there is net income after tax and no
adjustment is required in case there is loss.

Special attention shall be paid to the following when making the calculations for cash flow analysis:

1. Net cash flow from operating activities refers to the net cash inflow from operating activities in
the cash flow statement.
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Note 6:

Note 7:

2. Capital expenditures refers to the annual cash outflow used in capital investment.

3. Increase in inventory is counted only when the balance at the end of the period is greater than
the balance at the beginning of the period. If the inventory has decreased at the end of the
year, it is counted as zero.

4. Cash dividends include the cash dividends of common stock and preferred stock.

5. Gross property, plant and equipment refers to the total property, plant and equipment without
deduction of accumulated depreciation.

The issuer shall categorize the operating costs and operating expenses into fixed ones and variable

ones in accordance with their properties. If the categorization is subject to estimation or subjective

judgment, attention shall be paid to ensure that it is done rationally and consistently.

In the case of a company whose shares have no par value or a par value other than NT$10, any

calculations that involve paid-in capital ratio shall be replaced with the equity ratio belonging to the

owner of the parent company, as shown in the balance sheet.
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lll. Audit Committee’s Report on the 2022 Financial Statements

D-Link Corporation
Audit Committee's Review Report

The 2022 parent company only financial statements and consolidated
financial statements, which were agreed upon the Audit Committee and
resolved by the board, were audited by the CPAs Chou, Pao-Lien and
Hsieh, Chiu-Hua of KPMG, and a review report was issued.

In addition, the Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s 2022
Business Report, and the proposal for earnings appropriation. These have
been reviewed and determined by the Audit Committee in accordance
with Article 14-4 of the “Securities and Exchange Act” and Article 219 of

the “Company Act”, | hereby submit this Report.

Best regards

2023 Annual General Shareholders’ meeting, D-Link Corporation

Convener of the Auditing Committee: Chen, Chin-Ming
February 22, 2023
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Iv.

V.

VI.

Financial Statements for the Most Recent Year: Please refer to pages 187 to 275 of
this Annual Report.

Individual Financial Statements Audited and Attested by CPAs for the Most Recent
Year: Please refer to pages 276 to 378 of this Annual Report.

The Company and its Affiliated Companies Encountered any Financial Difficulties
that Affect the Company’s Financial Status in the Most Recent Year as of the
Publication Date of this Annual Report: None.
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Chapter 7

Review of Financial Conditions, Financial

Performance, and Risk Management

I.  Analysis of Financial Status

Unit: NTS Thousand

Year Difference
Item 2021 2022 Amount Perc(ci/?)tage
Current Assets 10,109,933 | 11,103,868 993,935 10
Property, Plant, and Equipment 974,725 978,816 4,091 -
Intangible Assets 472,238 516,922 44,684 9
Other Assets 2,946,968 | 2,821,935 (125,033) (4)
Total Assets 14,503,864 | 15,421,541 917,677 6
Current Liabilities 4,589,921 | 4,953,414 363,493 8
Non-current Liabilities 911,607 906,671 (4,936) (1)
Total Liabilities 5,501,528 | 5,860,085 358,557 7
Share Capital 5,998,365 5,998,365 — —
Capital Surplus 1,522,573 | 1,342,623 (179,950) (12)
Retained Earnings 2,822,455 2,972,141 149,686 5
Other Items of Shareholders' Equity| (1,341,057) (751,673) 589,384 (44)
Total Equity 9,002,336 9,561,456 559,120 6

Remarks: Only the consolidated operating figures of the Company are demonstrated.

Analysis of changes in increase/decrease ratio exceeding 20%: The increase in equity for this
period compared with 2021 was mainly due to the increase in the other equity of exchange
differences on translation of foreign financial statements.

Financial Performance

(1) Analysis of Financial Performance

Unit: NTS Thousand

ol aom | o | boesel | Perepee
Net Operating Revenue 15,524,901 | 17,077,888 1,552,987 10
Operating Costs 11,336,144 | 12,763,058 1,426,914 13
Gross Profit 4,188,757 4,314,830 126,073 3
Operating Expenses 4,018,889 3,762,322 (256,567) (6)
Net Operating Income 169,868 552,508 382,640 225
Non-operating Income and Expenses 224,855 (94,930) (319,785) (142)
Esig;zfi:ngzrea;i:‘n‘:om 394,723| 457,578 62,855 16
Less: Income Tax Expenses 76,612 197,196 120,584 157
Net Profit 318,111 260,382 (57,729) (18)

Remarks: Only the consolidated operating figures of the Company are demonstrated.

Analysis of changes in increase/decrease ratio exceeding 20%:
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1. The increase in net operating income for the period was mainly due to the increase in revenue
and decrease in operating expenses for the period °

2. The increase in non-operating income and expense was mainly due to the increase in foreign
exchange loss and the decrease in gain or loss of affiliates recognized under the equity method
in 2022.

3. The increase in income tax expense was mainly due to the increase in income tax expense as a
result of the increase in profitability of the subsidiaries and the recognition of deferred income
tax expense.

4. The remaining items are exempted from analysis as the change ratio is within 20%.

(1) Expected Sales Volume and its Basis, Potential Impact on the Company’s

Future Financial Operations, and Response Plans Thereof:

The competition in the networking market is fierce. Not only are there new brands entering
the market, but ODMs participating directly in the networking project biddings. However, the
Chinese manufacturers who are competing for market share at low prices continue to
emerge, squeezing the gross profit of the networking companies. The Company will continue
to optimize its supply chain, reform its organization, and carry out stringent inventory
management to reduce costs and expenses, as well as replace single product competition
with solutions so as to increase sustainable revenue and stabilize profitability. Moreover, in
response to the rising awareness of safety, social responsibility and environmental protection
in various countries, the Company is well prepared for "local manufacturing". The Company
has established the ESG Committee. In addition to recording profits in its core businesses, the
Company also aims to create a sustainable operating environment in the three aspects:
environment, society, and corporate governance. In terms of the overall business
environment, With the easing of the pandemic, continuous inflation, monetary tightening and
geopolitical tensions, the retail market will definitely be significantly affected. Moreover, the
sharp drop in demand will result in an acute rise in inventory levels of customers.
Furthermore, the exchange rate fluctuations due to interest rate hikes will also affect the
stability of profitability during the year. Therefore, in addition to planning, developing and
promoting various solutions as usual, the main focus of this year is to work closely with our
subsidiaries, pay attention to local situations, understand local needs and inventories, keep an
eye on central bank policies of each country, and seek expert advice to implement exchange
rate risk management. The following explains the annual sales focus of the three major
product lines.

1. Commercial Product Line

(1) Switch Products
The switch retail market is expected to continue to decline or remain flat this year due to
inflation and currency tightening; however, demand of enterprises and telecom markets is
expected to remain flat and rise slowly due to traffic growth. This year, in addition to the
continued promotion of enterprise cloud solutions, the various replacement solutions in
response to last year's chip shortage are gradually ready to be lunched, which will be
conducive to securing the market share of 1Gbps class switches. In addition, a series of new
10G/25G/100G switches will be launched and supplemented by a more complete network
management system (D-View 8) to increase the market share of high-end switches.

(2) Wireless Access Point and VPN Gateway Products
In the new year, we will continue to focus on in-wall AP, based on successful cases in Japan,
and expand to other parts of the world, targeting the Internet needs of apartments, hotels,
and apartment complexes. In addition, with Wi-Fi 6 VPN Gateway and intelligent
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management platform, we aim to assist SMEs in building a smoother, more convenient,
stable, and secure remote office environment.

2. Home Product Line

(1)

(2)

Home Wireless Routers

In recent years, the pandemic has lead to changes in living habits. In particular, with the
prevalence of distant learning, work from home, online shopping and delivery platforms, the
demand for wireless routers and extenders at home has increased against the trend due to
the impact of the pandemic. Although the sales in the networking retail market were limited
due to inflation and purchase of essential goods in the second half of 2022, looking ahead to
2023, the new technologies (Wi-Fi 6E, Wi-Fi 7) will also bring another wave of replacement
as they mature. The Company will launch an upgraded AQUILA PRO Al series of EAGLE PRO
Al in the first half of 2023, and introduce the Matter technology, coupled with a series of loT
devices, to build a smart home solution that provides services in a hope to increase
sustainable revenue and stabilize profitability.

IP Camera and loT

Among all AloT devices, digital camera is the only device that can receive images and can be
considered as the hub of smart home network. According to market research, the annual
compound growth rate of demand for camera surveillance equipment from 2021 to 2020
was approximately 8%. However, the price has been falling due to intense competition,
resulting in a decline in the Company's market share. This year, the Company will continue to
work closely with its ODM partners, to strengthen Al integration in products and expand the
application of affordable cloud added-value services based on high-level network security
standards. The Company is expecting an increase in brand awareness in the competition and
proportion of service fee income by a series of Matter-based smart networking devices in the
future.

3. Telecom Product Line

(1)

()

Broadband Network Products

Although the demand for copper wire is gradually being replaced by optical fiber, there is still
some demand in developing countries. The Company continues to invest some resources to
serve the existing customers in order to secure the market share and customers. There is
insufficient bandwidth in the previous fiber optic network of GPON (2.5Gbps). The major
network companies are making every effort to gain a foothold in the 10G PON market. With
the maturity of the technology, 10G PON is expected to gradually replace GPON in the next
few years, the mainstream specifications of which include XG-PON, XGS-PON and NG-PON?2.
The market share of XGS-PON (10Gbps for both uploading and downloading) is expected to
increase rapidly in recent years in response to the emergence of KOLs and the huge traffic
demand of Tik Tok for uploading videos. Following the ongoing telecom project in 2022, XGS-
PON products will be expanded in 2023 together with a series of Mesh Router to provide
users with better home networking experience.

Mobile Broadband Products

Compared to traditional wired broadband, which requires a great amount of manpower and
time of deployment, the mobile broadband has the advantages of shorter deployment time
and lower deployment costs; however, it is still limited by the base station coverage and
backhaul network bandwidth. With the gradual increase of 5G coverage, 5G FWA (Fixed
Wireless Access) will definitely become a powerful tool for Internet service providers to
expand their customer base. The Company has been investing in projects and launching 5G
NR indoor routers and 5G mobile routers to gain market share and assist telecom customers
in increasing broadband coverage in a shorter period of time. Likewise, the Mesh, which can
be integrated with various mesh routers under development to meet the needs of customers

172



at all levels, is also one of the key development and promotion focus of the year. With the
M2M solution under planning, we expect to embrace a wave of sales growth and lay a solid
foundation for new industrial applications and services to increase sustainable revenue.

lll. Analysis of Cash Flow

(I) Change in Cash Flow in the Most Recent Fiscal Year

Unit: NTS Thousand

Net Cash Flow

Cash Inflows (Outflows)

Remedial Measures for

Begisr::; of from from Investment, Cash Surplus Cash Inadequacy
Year Operating Financing Activities and (Inadequacy) Investment | Financing
(1) Activities Exchange Rate Changes | (1) + (2) +(3) lan |

(2) (3) P pran
2,195,080 193,180 324,825 2,713,085 - -

()

Analysis of Change in the Cash Flow during the Year:
(1) Operating Activities: The net cash inflow from operating activities was mainly due to operating profit,
and depreciation and amortization.
Investment Activities: Net cash inflow was mainly due to the repayment of the liquidation of
subsidiaries, net of the purchase of equipment and intangible assets.
(3) Financing Activities: Net cash outflow from financing activities was mainly due to cash dividends and
repayment of lease principal.
(4) Effect of Exchange Rate: Cash inflow was mainly due to the effect of translation of subsidiaries'
financial statements due to the appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the Taiwan dollar.

(m

liquidity.

Improvement Plan for Insufficient Liquidity: The Company does not suffer from insufficient

(1) Cash Liquidity Analysis for the Coming Year (2023): The Company maintains a stable cash
flow and manages cash expenditures based on cash on hand and cash flow from operating
and investing activities. The Company also evaluates financial market conditions and
prudently plans financing activities to ensure sufficient capital.

IV. Major Capital Expenditure for the Most Recent Fiscal Year and its Impact on the
Company's Finances and Operations; None.

V. Investment Policy in the Last Year, Main Causes for Profits or Losses, Improvement

Plan, and Investment Plans for the Coming Year

(I)  The Company’s 2022 parent company only financial statement recognizes the gain on
investment of NT$199,951 thousand (a gain of NT$7,177 thousand on a consolidated basis).
The Company's profit was mainly attributable to the continuous upgrading of network
equipment, the alleviation of shortage of parts and components. Encouraged by the various
broadband network policies of governments in Europe, the U.S., South Asia and Southeast
Asia, countries around the world are actively promoting the construction of network
infrastructure, which drives the increase in demand for network equipment, resulting in
profitability for the Company.

(1) In the future, the Company will continue to perform post-investment management and
prudently evaluate our investment plan in alignment with our business development and
operational needs, to reinforce our competitiveness in this industry.

VI. Risk Management and Assessment for the Most Recent Year as of the Publication

173




Date of this Annual Report

(1) Effects of Changes in Interest Rates, Foreign Exchange Rates and Inflation on
Corporate Finance, and Future Response Measures:
Unit: NTS Thousand

Item 2021 2022
Net Interest Income or Expense 22,617 16,013
Net Foreign Exchange Gain and Loss (Note 1) (53,809) (155,992)

Note 1: Including the profit and loss on financial assets and liabilities but not the profit
and loss on exchangeable corporate bonds.

Countermeasures:

1. With respect to interest rates, the Company's consolidated net interest income and
expenses in 2022 was NT$16,013 thousand. The Company's operations are mainly
denominated in U.S. dollars and New Taiwan dollars. The interest income and expenses
were mainly affected by the cash position and interest rates in the U.S. and Taiwan markets.
The Company will maintain regular evaluation of interest rates on deposits and borrowings
to reduce the risk of interest rate fluctuations.

2. As for the exchange rate, the Company's consolidated exchange loss amounted to
NT$155,992 thousand in 2022. The loss increased due to the appreciation of the U.S. dollar
and the larger fluctuations of exchange rates in some emerging markets. The Company
tracks the changes in foreign exchange exposure in a timely manner, establishes a stringent
control process, and uses derivative instruments to carry out stable hedging operations.
Moreover, the Company also seeks the lowest transaction costs from banks for foreign
exchanges or derivative commitments to reduce exchange losses. We regularly analyze the
Group's exposure and the reasonableness of the exchange gain or loss after hedging, and
track market information and research reports to formulate the most appropriate hedging
strategy with reference to the volatility of the exchange rate market, and dynamically adjust
the hedging ratio to reduce the exchange risk.

3. Inflation in recent years has not caused a significant impact on the Company's profit or loss.
The Company will also continue to monitor the general economic changes and changes in
market conditions to prevent inflation from affecting the Company’s profit or loss.

(1) Policies, Main Causes of Gain or Loss and Future Response Measures with
Respect to High-risk, High-leveraged Investments, Lending or Endorsement
Guarantees, and Derivatives Transactions:

The Company is not engaged in high-risk and high-leveraged investments, and based on the
principle of effective use of the Group's resources, there are funds lent to subsidiaries and
endorsements and guarantees provided to subsidiaries, which are all conducted in
accordance with the Company's Procedures for Loaning of Funds to Others, Procedures for
Making Endorsements/Guarantees, and relevant laws and regulations. Derivatives trading is
aimed at hedging foreign exchange risks and reducing exchange rate fluctuations, and is
handled in accordance with the relevant regulations of the Company's “Handling Procedures
for Engaging in Acquisition or Disposal of Assets and the Procedures for Derivatives Trading”.
The implementation and the profit and loss situation are reported to the Board of Directors
on a regular basis. All information on aforementioned derivatives trading is disclosed on
MOPS on a monthly basis as required for investors’ reference.
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() Future Research & Development Projects and Corresponding Budget:

(v)

V)

(Vi)

The Company's R&D expenditure in 2023 covers various development projects, including
switches, wireless products, and loT technology, which have been included in the execution
project, and extended to solution integration and cloud platform R&D in various fields. The
R&D expenditure is estimated to be NTS600 million.

Effects of and Response to Changes in Policies and Regulations Relating to
Corporate Finance and Sales: None.

Effects of and Response to Changes in Technology (Including Information and
Communication Security Risks) and the Industry Relating to Corporate Finance
and Sales:

The Company has established comprehensive information security protection measures for
network and computers but cannot guarantee that the computer systems that control or
maintain important corporate functions, including business operations and accounting, are
completely immune to cyberattacks from any third-party. The illegal intrusion of the
cyberattacks into the Company's internal network system to carry out activities to sabotage
the Company's operations and undermine our goodwill. In the event of a severe cyberattack,
the Company's system may lose important data, and our operations may be suspended.

We continue to review and evaluate our information security regulations and procedures and
reinforce and update the information security protection system to ensure its appropriateness
and effectiveness. However, it cannot guarantee that the Company will not be exposed to new
risks and attacks amid the ever-changing information security threats.

Cyberattacks may also attempt to steal the Company’s trade secrets and other confidential
information, such as customers’ or other stakeholders’ proprietary information and
employees’ personal data. Malicious hackers may also try to put viruses, destructive software,
or ransomware in the Company's network system to interfere with our operations so as to
extort money, gain control over our computer system, or spy on our confidential information.
These attacks may result in delays or interruptions in our business orders. With that, we may
compensate customers for their losses or bear substantial costs to take remedial and
improvement measures to reinforce the Company's cybersecurity systems; or bear significant
legal responsibility for relevant legal cases or regulatory investigations due to leakage of data
on employees, customers, or third parties to whom the Company has a confidentiality
obligation.

To prevent and reduce the damage caused by such attacks, the Company implements relevant
improvement measures and continues to update and enhance the anti-virus mechanism to
prevent the intrusion of hackers and malicious software; strengthens the network firewall and
network control to prevent the spread of viruses across different computers; adopts advanced
solutions to detect and deal with malicious software; improves phishing email detection;
regularly offers employee education and training and entrusts external experts to conduct
information security assessments.

Impact of Changes of Corporate Images on Risk Management and Response
Measures:

The Company values its corporate reputation, actively protects corporate image and engages
in community activities. We have defined the relevant risks and formulated communication
strategies for internal and external stakeholders to protect corporate image and goodwill. In
the past year, there were no risk events affecting the corporate image.
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(VIl) Expected Benefits from, Risks Relating to and Response to Merger and
Acquisition Plans: None.

(VIIl) Expected Benefits from, Risks Relating to and Response to Factory Expansion
Plans: None.

(1X) Risks Relating to and Response to Excessive Concentration of Purchasing
Sources and Excessive Customer Concentration: The Company's procurement and sales
customers are all renowned global manufacturers. We adopt a non-single-supplier system for
procurement to reduce the risk of concentration. Product sales are led by subsidiaries, covering dozens
of countries around the world, including Pan-European, Pan-American and Pan-Asia-Pacific. There is no
risk of concentration of sales.

(X) Effects of, Risks Relating to and Response to Large Share Transfers or Changes

in Shareholdings by Directors, Supervisors, or Shareholders with Shareholdings
of over 10%: None.

(XI1) Effects of, Risks Relating to and Response to the Changes in Management
Rights: None.

(XN1) Litigious and non-litigious matters. List major litigious, non-litigious or
administrative disputes that: (1) involve the Company and/or any Company
Director, Company supervisor, the general manager, the de facto responsible
persons, major shareholder holding a stake of greater than 10 percent,
and/or Company or Companies controlled by the Company; and (2) have
been concluded by means of a final and unappealable judgment, or are still
under litigation. Where such a dispute could materially affect shareholders’
equity or the prices of the Company's securities, the Annual Report shall
disclose the facts of the dispute, amount of money at stake in the dispute,
the date of litigation commencement, the main parties to the dispute, and
the status of the dispute as of the date of publication of the Annual Report:

1. UNM Rainforest Innovations filed a lawsuit against the Company in February 2020,
alleging that some of D-Link's products infringed its patents. The Company has retained
attorneys to defend the case in collaboration with product suppliers. Based on the

evaluation, the Company believes the litigation will not cause a significant impact on its
current operations.

2. Atlas Global Technologies LLC filed a lawsuit against the Company in April 2022, alleging
that some of D-Link's products infringed its patents. The Company has retained attorneys
to defend the case in collaboration with product suppliers. Based on the evaluation, the
Company believes the litigation will not cause a significant impact on its current
operations.

(Xl)  Other Material Other Material Risks and Response Measures:
1. Green Products:

(1) Continue considering adverse environmental impacts when developing new
products in the product life cycles, and reduce disposable packaging waste
generation.

(2) For key raw materials, continue using low-energy consumption chips and follow

176



related international energy consumption specifications.

2. Extreme Climate Risks:

(1) Continue to achieve energy conservation, water conservation, and waste
reduction goals to prevent extreme climate risks from the source.

(2) Regularly update D-Link’s climate-related financial disclosure (TCFD) evaluations.

3. Human Resources Management: Formulate talent cultivation and development plans.

4. Human Rights Issue: Formulate and amend human rights policies and management
plans in response to future trends.

5. Work Model Changes Caused by the COVID-19 Pandemic: Review and incorporate
working mechanisms promoted in response to the pandemic into future human
resource management policies.

6. Operational Risk:

(1) Regularly review and manage the comparison between sales results and
inventories through strategic meetings.

(2) Formulate response strategies for fluctuating chip prices and unstable supply to
ensure delivery and inventory optimization.

7. Geopolitical Risks:

(1) Inresponse tothe China-U.S. trade sanctions, the Company has shifted to Group-
oriented manufacturing and towards MIT as the primary production direction.

(2) Strengthen cooperation with Taiwanese platform manufacturers to avoid
political factors affecting the Company’s product development and sales.

(3) Collect reports or market surveys to understand and respond to market
conditions in advance.

(4) We continue to pay attention to the risks arising from the Russia-Ukraine war
(such as shipment risks, exchange rate changes, etc.).

8. Intellectual Property Rights:

(1) Adopt active assessment, control, and response measures for intellectual
property rights disputes and formulate dispute resolution strategies according
to the dispute resolution mechanism.

(2) Formulate the intellectual property management plan and introduce the Taiwan
Intellectual Property System (TIPS).

VII. Other Material Matters; None.
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Chapter 8 Special Disclosure

Summary of Affiliated Companies

(I) Organization Structure of Subsidiaries: Please refer to page 179 of this
Annual Report.

(I1) Basic Information of Subsidiaries: Please refer to pages 180 to 181 of this
Annual Report.

(111) Shareholders in Common of the Company and its Subsidiaries with
Deemed Control and Subordination: None.

(IV) Directors, Supervisors, and Presidents of Subsidiaries: Please refer to pages
182 to 184 of this Annual Report.

(V) Business Operations of the Subsidiaries: Please refer to pages 185 to 186 of
this Annual Report.

(V1) Consolidated Financial Statements of Subsidiaries: Please refer to pages
187 to 275.

Private Placement of Securities in the Most Recent Year as of the Publication
Date of this Annual Report; None.

. The Shares in the Company Held or Disposed of by Subsidiaries in the Most

Recent Year as of the Publication Date of this Annual Report: None.
. Other Necessary Remark: None.

Any Event Which has Material Impact on the Shareholders’ Equity or Securities
Prices as Prescribed in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of the
“Securities and Exchange Act” that have Occurred in the Most Recent Year as of
the Publication Date of this Annual Report; None.

178



Pl 0D
(leybueys)

SPEIL Hu-a

Fa00L

PR

©'o'p BUPY oIS
H-a > wun-a

eyaq|
v_..__._ a Au-a

{uewden)
IeH Bueys

elewalens 3001 a
HU-q
SnOunER {sBUIploH) g eysjod Q
g S Hur-a * g
1583 3|PPIN (%2901
ATEA | +—ry _Em__._ume aouery
HEEE BEFOO D ﬁ AUy P_B 5o Aur-a
| Elquojod CIENE Y
wooy | 20HUN-D Hur-a osuenzppai, |  [fezsioredse
%00k Jur-a Nur-a
—
rﬁ 'S niad uedep EESINE
] ®EOO | HUM-Q Hrn-a *00H | spuEUsUIaN
%00k JuBUsaAl| Aur-a é: a
m. L6 EE BISSNY YuIl-g
= peco %001
S BUEDIXBIY |, WapElL
£ Hurt-a qur-a
5 . 00T adoingy
o L6866
m Yk Z00'0 EaI0y u ﬁ B15sny %000 Ju-a
= Au-a Jun-a ﬁoa I
Ly baoos
g |
> La| EIUBWEPNS |euoieulaju) | %90 BuipjoH swalsis epeUED
Auin-a Hu-a JquT-a HqUT-a Jur-a AUT-a

%001

—!

%004 ﬁ .x_mmmm.mma —. %0000 _;%n.mm _ ,—#8_ — %001 ﬁon_

7207 L€ 980 J0 Y uonelodios yurj-a

Hey) uoneziuebi) dnois) Jurj-q

1ey) uoneziuedio dnoun (1)

179



(1) Basic Information of Subsidiaries

Unit: NTS Thousand

Date of Actual paid- R R
Name ) . Address ) i Primary business
incorporation in capital
37708 Laird Road, Unit 6-9, Mississauga, ON, Marketing and after-
D-Link Canada Inc. 1990.02.15 g 130,089 e .
Canada L5L 0A2, sales service
14420 Myf Ri ite 100 Irvi A 92 Marketil fter-
D-Link Systems, Inc. 1986.01.17 0 Myford Road suite 100 Irvine, CA 92606, 1,566,108 arketing an(fi after-
USA sales service
OMC Chambers, Wickh Cay 1, Road Town,
D-Link Holding Company Ltd. 1998.06.04 ambers, Wickhams Lay £, Road fown 2,090,063 Investment
Tortola, British Virgin Islands
. Artemis Building, Odyssey Business Park, West Marketing and after-
D-Link (E Ltd. 1995.05.30 1,463,158
ink (Europe) End Road, South Ruslip, HA4 6QE, London UK sales service
D-Li B, BOX 11 164 22 Ki i -
D-Link AB 1994.09.14 ink AB, BOX 1104, 164 22 Kista, Stockholm, 7181 Marketing ang after-
Sweden sales service
. Robert Karoly Korut 59, H-1134 Budapest, Marketing and after-
D-Link (Magyarorszag) Kft 2007.06.29 402 i
Hungary sales service
. 14 Place Georges Pompidou, Montigny-le- Marketing and after-
D-Link France SARL 1990.06.19 3,766 .
Bretonneux 78180, France sales service
Marketing and after-
D-Link Polska Sp Z.0.0. 2006.02.06 ul. Olkuska 7, 02-604 Warsaw, Poland 883 8 .
sales service
. . Calle Muntaner, 239-253, Floor 3 A 08021 Marketing and after-
D-Link Iberia SL 2000.07.07 . 1,573 .
Barcelona, Spain sales service
. Building City Empiria, 15th fl. Na Strzi 1702/65, Marketing and after-
D-Li T 2010.03.01 252
ink s.r.o 010.03.0 140 62 Praha- Praha 4, Czech Republic 5 sales service
Té ishoek 1, 5481 VR, Schijndel,, Marketil d after-
D-Link (Netherlands) BY 20010315 | ouwisnoek s, chiinde 1,607 | rKeting and atter
Netherlands sales service
Marketil d after-
D-Link Mediterraneo SRL 2000.06.02  |Via Negroli 35, 20133 Milano, Italy 1,733| " areeting andatter
sales service
. Schwalbacher Strasse 74 D-65760 Eschborn, Marketing and after-
D-Link (Deutschland) GmbH 1991.08.14 104,887 .
Germany sales service
Artemis Building, Od Busi Park, West
D-Link (Holdings) Ltd. 1995.03.02 emis bullding, Udyssey business Farx, tes - Investment
End Road, South Ruslip, HA4 6QE, London UK
D-Link (UK) Ltd. 1989.08.01 Artemis Building, Ody.ssey Business Park, West 11,494 Marketing anq after-
End Road, South Ruslip, HA4 6QE, London UK sales service
. . . . . Marketing and after-
D-Link Adria d.o.o. 2011.03.03 Cvjetno naselje Il 8, Zagreb Croatia 305 .
sales service
(000 D-Link Russia 2002.07.25 Graphsky per., 14, 129626 Moscow, Russia 4,235| After-sales service
Palm Grove House, P.O. Box 438, Road Town,
Success Stone Overseas Corp. 2010.01.05 i L 301,614 Investment
Tortola, British Virgin Islands
D-Link Holding Mauritius, Inc. 20000021  |Oth Floor, Raffles Tower, 19 Cybercity, Ebene, 325,642  Investment
Mauritius
Kalpataru Square, 2nd Floor, Unit no. 24, Marketing and after
D-Link (India) Ltd. 2008.05.26 Kondivita Lane, Off Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri 26,358 salesgser ice
Vi
East, Mumbai — 400059, India
The V Ascendas IT Park, Capella Building, Floor
'Team F1 Networks Private Limited 2012.02.06 2, Plot No.17, Madhapur, Hyderabad 500081, 39 R&D
India
P.O. BOX 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way,
D-Link Shiang-Hai (Cayman) Inc. 2002.04.08 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, 618,843 Investment
Cayman Islands
Trading of network
. . equipment and
Room 612, 6F, No. 88, Taigu Road, China N
D-Link (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 2002.08.13 o g 704,139 wireless
(Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone -
communication
systems
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City

Date of Actual paid- R R
Name . R Address N i Primary business
incorporation in capital
8F, Building 1, No. 641 Tianshan Road, Shiang- .
Netpro Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 20011113 7 ufiding %, No fanshan Road, shfang 21,550 R & D and trading
Marketing,
) ) No. 2 International Business Park #05-27/28 arketing
D-Link International Pte. Ltd. 1994.08.31 X 1,844,261 procurement and
The Strategy (Tower 2), Singapore 609930 X
after-sales service
(Guro-Dong, E&C Venture Dream Tower 2) RM Marketing and after-
D-Link Korea Limited 2011.03.16 1303, 55, Digital-ro 33-gil, Guro-gu, Seoul, 40,367, sales service
08376 Korea
MD-2001, N i C. Blvd. hisi Marketil fter-
D-Link Trade M 2013.05.21 09 , Negruzzi C. Blvd., 8, Chisinau, 9 arketing an(?i after-
Republic of Moldova sales service
. X OMC Chambers, Wickhams Cay 1, Road Town,
D-Link Russia Investment Co.Ltd. 2014.01.20 . L 614,902 Investment
Tortola, British Virgin Islands
Strata office SO-20-8, Menara 1, KL Eco City, JIn. .
. ) K Marketing and after-
D-Link Malaysia Sdn Bhd 2015.03.13 Bangsar, Kg. Hj. Abdullah Hukum 59200, Kuala 5,583 .
. sales service
Lumpur Malaysia
D-Link Service Lithuania, UAB 2017.12.05  |zirmunu 139, LT-09120, Vilnius, Lithuania 3,9g7| Marketing and after-
sales service
P Ah 12, oficina 2. . i Marketi fter-
D-Link Sudamerica S.A. 1999.01.11 a?eo umada 312, oficina 236, Cd. Santiago 4,277 arketing an(fi after-
Chile sales service
. X Gabriel Mancera 1041 Col. Del Valle, C.P. 03100 Marketing and after-
D-Link Mexicana S.A de CV 2007.11.13 L 240,454 .
/ México, D.F sales service
2F, SOWA Gotanda Bldg., 2-7-18 .
. . . . Marketing and after-
D-Link Japan K.K. 2005.07.11 Higashigotanda, Shinagawa-ku, Tokyo 141- 22,259 .
sales service
0022, Japan
6-10 Talavera Rd, North Ryde, NSW 2113, Marketing and after-
D-Link Australia Pty Ltd. 1991.05.29 ) v 20,931 € anc
Sydney Australia sales service
Plot No. $31102, P.O. Box:18224 J | Ali F Marketil d after-
D-Link Middle East FZCO 2002.07.17 ot No. 531102, P.O. Box:18224 Jebel Al Free 5,047| V' ar<eting and atter
Zone South, Dubai UAE. sales service
. ) Avenida das Nagdes Unidas, 18.801 sala 513 - Marketing and after-
D-Link Bl LTDA. 2001.09.12 ~ 174,491
ink Brazil LTDA 001.09 CEP 04757-020 - SKO PAULO, Brazil 74,49 sales service
D-Link Investment Pte.Ltd. 20131200  |NO- 2 International Business Park #05-27/28 67,558|  Investment
The Strategy (Tower 2), Singapore 609930
Marketi d after-
000 D-Link Trade 2010.12.29  [Shabulina Proezd 16, 390043, Ryazan, Russia 31,434| ¥ OrKEting and atter
sales service
P.O. BOX 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, .
) . . Marketing and after-
D-Link Latin-America Company Ltd. 2001.04.11 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205, 307,080 sales service
Cayman Islands
German Schreiber 276 Urb. Santa Ana Of. 240 Marketing and after
D-Link Peru S.A. 2004.06.01 entre cdra 1y 2 Canaval y Moreyra Lima — San 28 8 A
) sales service
Isidro, Peru
Marketi d after-
D-Link de Colombia S.A.S. 2006.07.07 Carrera 7B No 126-74,, Bogota Colombia 9,216 arketing an- arer
sales service
D-Link Guatemala S.A. 2005.12.07  |Guatemala CA. 20| Marketing and after-
sales service
. . . . Marketing and after-
D-Link Argentina S.A. 2006.08.02 Buenos Aires - Argentina 493 .
sales service
. 6F., No. 289, Xinhu 3rd Rd., Neihu Dist., Taipei
'Yeo-Tai Investment Ltd. 1999.12.17 146,000 Investment
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(IV) Directors, Supervisors, and Presidents of Subsidiaries

Shareholding

Name Title Name or representative | ¢ Perc(s/:\)tage

D-Link Canada Inc. Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00
D-Link Systems, Inc. Director CJ Chang 0 0.00)
. . Director Victor Kuo 0 0.00
D-Link Holding Co. Ltd. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00
Director CJ Chang 0 0.00

) Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00
D-Link (Europe) Ltd. Director Claude Chou 0 0.00
Company Secretary| Dinesh Kerai 0 0.00

Director Claude Chou 0 0.00

D-Link AB Director Arnold Dekker 0 0.00
Director Thomas Von Baross 0 0.00

Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00

D-Link (Magyarorszag) Kft Director Claude Chou 0 0.00
Director Thomas Von Baross 0 0.00

Director Sara Chen 0 0.00

D-Link France SARL Director Claude Chiu 0 0.00
. Director Claude Chou 0 0.00
D-Link Polska Sp. Z 0.0. Director Thomas Von Baross 0 0.00
Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00

D-Link Iberia SL Director Andy Chen 0 0.00
Director Claude Chou 0 0.00

Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00

D-Link s.r.o. Director Claude Chou 0 0.00
Director Thomas Von Baross 0 0.00

_ Director Claude Chou 0 0.00
D-Link (Netherlands) BV Director Thomas Von Baross 0 0.00
Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00

D-Link Mediterraneo SRL Director Andy Chen 0 0.00
Director Claude Chou 0 0.00

Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00

D-Link (Deutschland) GmbH Director Claude Chou 0 0.00
Director Thomas Von Baross 0 0.00

D-Link (Holdings) Ltd. Co. Director victor Kuo Z 2
Company Secretary| Dinesh Kerai 0 0.00

] Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00
D-Link (UK) Ltd. Company Secretary| Dinesh Kerai 0 0.00
000 D-Link Russia Director Vladimir Lipping 0 0.00
Success Stone Overseas Corp. B::Zgg: ZT;? gElearrl}gg 8 888
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Shareholding

Name Title Name or representative Percentage

Shares (%)
Director Victor Kuo 0 0.00]
. . - Director CJ Chang 0 0.00]
D-Link Holding Mauritius, Inc. Director Karen Ah Soon 0 0.00]
Director Nathalie Wong 0 0.00
Chairperson Howard Kao 0 0.00
Director Mukesh Lulla 2,634,356 7.38
. . Independent Director Rajaram Ajgaonkar 0 0.00
D-Link (India) Ltd. Independent Director Satish Godbole 25 0.00!
Independent Director Madhu Gadodia 0 0.00
Managing Director & CEO | Tushar Sighat 16,427 0.05
. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00;
L‘!’ea.m(Fjl Networks Private Director Tushar Sighat 0 0.00]
imite Director Raj Jadhav 0 0.00
D-Link Shiang-Hai (Cayman) Director Victor Kuo 0 0.00]
Inc. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00!
Chairperson CJ Chang 0 0.00
. ) Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00
D-Link (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. - 5 oo Howard Kao 0 0.00
Supervisor Claire Chou 0 0.00
Chairperson CJ Chang 0 0.00
Netpro Trading (Shanghai) Co., | Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00
Ltd. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00
Supervisor Claire Chou 0 0.00
Director Victor Kuo 0 0.00;
D-Link International Pte Ltd. Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00
Director Jacky Chang 0 0.00!
. Chairperson CJ Chang 0 0.00
D-Link Korea Ltd. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00
D-Link Trade M Administrator Denis Culicovschi 0 0.00
D-Link Russia Investment Co. | Director Victor Kuo 0 0.00
Ltd. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00
Director Lim Bee Lian 0 0.00]
D-Link Malaysia Sdn Bhd Director Suzairi Bin Abdul o 0.00,

Rahman

D-Link Service Lithuania, UAB | President Ramune Drobaviciene 0 0.00
D-Link Sudamerica S.A. Director Andy Chen 0 0.00,
D-Link Mexicana S.A de C.V Director Sophia Luke 0 0.00
Chairperson CJ Chang 0 0.00
) Director Chin-Hsin Liao 0 0.00!
D-Link Japan KK. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00!
Supervisor Claire Chou 0 0.00!
Director CJ Chang 0 0.00
D-Link Australia Pty Ltd. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00
Director Reardon Graeme 0 0.00]
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Shareholding

Name Title Name or representative Percentage
Shares
(%)

Director CJ Chang 0 0.00
D-Link Middle East FZCO Director Joanne Chen 0 0.00,
Director Gary Yang 0 0.00;
; Director Alex Chiang 0 0.00
D Link Network Director Teddy Liang 0 0.00

. . .| José Roberto Arruda
D-Link Brazil LTDA. Legal Representative Moreira Filho 0 0.00,
. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00
D-Link Investment Pte. Ltd. Director Jacky Chang 0 0.00
000 D-Link Trade Director & President | Vladimir Lipping 0 0.00
D-Link Latin-America Company | Director Sara Cheng 0 0.00
Ltd. Director Howard Kao 0 0.00
D-Link Peru S.A. Director Andy Chen 0 0.00
D-Link de Colombia S.A.S. Legal Representative| Sophia Luke 0 0.00
D-Link Guatemala S.A. Director Andy Chen 0 0.00
D-Link Argentina S.A. Legal Representative| Ricardo Scherianz 0 0.00
. Chairperson Victor Kuo 0 0.00
Yeo-Tai Investment Ltd. Director C) Chang 0 0.00

Note: Not institutional representatives of the Company; the disclosed number of shares held is
held by individuals, and the remaining Directors, Supervisors and Presidents are designated
by the Company or its 100%-owned subsidiaries.
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(V) Business Operations of the Subsidiaries

Unit: NTS Thousand

. . Total Operating | Operating P&Lfor “.'e
English name Capital | Total Assets Liabilities Net Value Revenue Profit current period| EPS (NTS)
(after taxes)

D-Link Canada Inc. 130,089 335,958 176,373 159,585 300,493| (132,430) (133,045) (23.19)
D-Link Systems, Inc. 1'566'12 2,231,936 698,137| 1,533,799 821,289 23,867 44,144 0.92
D-Link Holding Company Ltd. 2'090'02 1,909,388 27,493| 1,881,895 - (542) 182,310 2.68
D-Link (Europe) Ltd. 1'463'12 1,975,853| 927,238| 1,048,615 2,928,010/ (247,088) (253,432) (7.80)
D-Link AB 7,181 25,957 9,563 16,394 41,329 1,609 1,008 65.03
D-Link (Magyarorszag) Kft 402 7,209 1,619 5,590 8,328 803 59 196.67
D-Link France SARL 3,766 131,422 89,509 41,913 448,448 6,394 2,134 18.63
D-Link Polska Sp. Z o.0. 883 31,591 8,021 23,570 53,338 4,293 1,113 11,130.00
D-Link Iberia SL 1,573 159,920 94,549 65,371 332,698 2,115 4,532 90.64
D-Link s.r.o. 252 6,437 2,063 4,374 8,689 368 412 4,120.00
D-Link (Netherlands) BV 1,697 10,728 2,352 8,376 13,572 658 539 10.78
D-Link Mediterraneo SRL 1,733 196,505 168,152 28,353 541,390 9,487 749 14.98
D-Link (Deutschland) GmbH 104,887 288,426 88,376 200,050 651,594 1,966 10,169 N/A

D-Link (Holdings) Ltd. - 9,348 - 9,348 — - - -
D-Link (UK) Ltd. 11,494 9,348 - 9,348 - - - -
D-Link Adria d.o.0. 305 1,203 — 1,203 — (7) (7) N/A

00O D-Link Russia 4,235 5,688 71 5,617 574 94 327 N/A

Success Stone Overseas Corp. 301,614 171,688 736 170,952 — (16,870) (484) (49.26)
D-Link Holding Mauritius, Inc. 325,642 1,040,489 —| 1,040,489 - (503) 154,913 774.57
D-Link (India) Ltd. 26,358 2,170,511 839,796| 1,330,715| 4,286,462 383,011 308,594 8.69
Team F1 Network Private Ltd. 39 78,737 10,341 68,396 36,532 4,976 6,374 607.05
D-Link Shiang-Hai (Cayman) Inc. | 618,843 - 266,983| (266,983) — — 281,526 5,630.53
D-Link (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. 704,139 953,699| 1,233,020 (279,321)| 1,022,379 67,125 280,732 N/A

ﬂzt'pro Trading (Shanghai) Co., | 5, 55 16,943  2544| 14,399 18,554 935 794 N/A

D-Link International Pte. Ltd. 1'844'2615 3,378,420| 581,163| 2,797,257| 2,491,496 87,374 (267,555) (4.02)
D-Link Korea Ltd. 40,367 65,588 105,332 (39,744) 63,352 (3,158) (6,351) (19.19)
D-Link Trade M 9 436 628 (192) 1,169 119 6 N/A

LDt'dL'i”k Russia Investment Co. | 61, 905 767,444 —| 767,444 - (136) (43,985) (1.76)
D-Link Malaysia Sdn Bhd 5,583 13,668 5,792 7,876 23,717 1,129 155 -
D-Link Service Lithuania, UAB 3,287 9,752 5,135 4,617 12,967 833 556 556.00
D-Link Sudamerica S.A. 4,277 17,523 9,760 7,763 25,343 547 (2,162) (10.81)
D-Link Mexicana S.A de C.V 240,454 3,444 - 3,444 — 306 (12,784) (84.07)
D-Link Japan K.K. 22,259 901,236 283,719 617,517 766,956 23,137 15,302 1,610.70
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. . Total Operating | Operating P&Lfor t}'1e
English name Capital | Total Assets Liabilities Net Value Revenue Profit current period| EPS (NTS)
(after taxes)
D-Link Australia Pty Ltd. 20,931 278,513 113,313 165,200 330,442 13,538 8,931 8.93
D-Link Middle East FZCO 5,047 2,072,071 996,283| 1,075,788| 3,472,213 149,946 148,303|24,717,166.67
D-Link Brazil LTDA. 174,491 246,195 425,728| (179,533) 126,372 (71,006) (38,146) (0.01)
D-Link Investment Pte. Ltd. 67,558 48,170 1,852 46,318 — (186) 129,066 58.67
000 D-Link Trade 31,434 1,004,428 956,287 48,141| 1,827,477 226,426 129,252 N/A
LDt’dL_i”k tatin-America Company | 37 g9 8,743 639,034| (630,291) - - - -
D-Link Peru S.A. 28 8,775 323 8,452 6,735 211 (1,380) (394.29)
D-Link de Colombia S.A.S. 9,216 10,268 5,351 4,917 5,287 849 (139) (0.10)
D-Link Guatemala S.A. 20 888 326 562 — - - -
D-Link Argentina S.A. 493 85 12 73 — - - -
Yeo-Tai Investment Ltd. 146,000 44,494 60 44,434 — (85) (1,916) (0.13)
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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the consolidated financial statements of D-LINK
CORPORATION as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation
of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated
Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards No. 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements." endorsed by the
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. In addition, the information required to be
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements.
Consequently, D-LINK CORPORATION and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of consolidated
financial statements.

Company name: D-LINK CORPORATION
Chairman: Kuo, Chin-Ho
Date: Febuary 22, 2023
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KPMG

&161110615{5 &R 758 6818(A 16101 X1B) B Tel + 88628101 6666
68F., TAIPEI 101 TOWER, No. 7, Sec. 5, % R Fax + 886 2 8101 6667
Xinyi Road, Taipei City 110615, Taiwan (R.O.C.) 2] i Web kpmg.com/tw

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of D-LINK CORPORATION:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of D-LINK CORPORATION and its subsidiaries, which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of another auditor (please refer to Other Matter paragraph),
the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of D-LINK CORPORATION and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021 in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers
and with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“ IFRSs” ), International Accounting Standards
(“ IASs” ), Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the D-LINK CORPORATION
and its subsidiaries in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Account of
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirement.
Based on our audits and the report of another auditor, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of D-Link International Pte. Ltd. and D-Link Brazil LTDA,
subsidiaries of D-Link Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022 and the financial statements
of D-Link International Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of D-Link Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31,
2021. Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose reports have been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for above subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of
other auditors. The financial statements of above subsidiaries reflects the total assets constituting 5% of the
consolidated total assets at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the total revenues constituting 8% and 7% of the
consolidated total revenues for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

KPMG, a Taiwan partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiiated with KPMG Intemational Limited, a private English company lirited by guarantee
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D-LINK CORPORATION has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, on which we have issued an unmodified opinion with other matters
paragraph.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Valuation of inventories
Please refer to Note 4(i) for accounting policy of inventory, Note 5(b) for accounting estimations
and assumption uncertainty of inventory valuation, and Note 6(e) for the write-down of
inventories to net realizable value.
Key Audit Matter Explanation:
Most inventories of the Consolidated Company are internet solution products, which are measured
at the lower of cost or net realizable value. As a result of competitive and rapidly changing
environment where the Consolidated Company is located in, its internet solution products may become
out-of-date and can no longer meet the market needs, resulting in a fluctuation in the market needs
and the price of these products. The estimation of the net realizable value involves a subjective
judgment of the Consolidated Company’ s management, which results in a risk that inventory cost
may exceed its net realizable value.
How the matter was addressed in our audit:
For valuation of inventories, we observed the physical count of inventories at year end to
inspect the condition of inventories; reviewed the inventory aging reports; review the net realizable
value basis adopted by the Consolidated Company's management to verify whether the allowance
for obsolete inventory estimated by the Company is in accordance with the inventory provision
policy. We also assessed the appropriateness of the Consolidated Company’ s relevant disclosure of
inventories.

2. Revenue recognition
Please refer to Note 4(q) for accounting policy of revenue recognition and Note 6(u) for sales details
of the consolidated financial statements.
Key Audit Matter Explanation:
The Consolidated Company sells internet related products and services, and aims to offer high-
quality internet solution proposals to global consumers and enterprises. Revenue is the key performance
indicator to evaluate the Consolidated Company's performance. Consequently, we have determined
revenue recognition to be a key audit matter. b
How the matter was addressed in our audit:
We tested the effectiveness of the Consolidated Company’ s controls on revenue recognition;
evaluated whether the terms of sale were consistent with the accounting standards and checked
relevant sales documents; analyzed and compared the changes in sales to major customers to assess

the reasonableness of revenue recognition.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs,
IASs, IFRIC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing D-LINK
CORPORATION and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate D-LINK CORPORATION and its subsidiaries or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing D-LINK CORPORATION and its subsidiaries’
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of D-
LINK CORPORATION and its subsidiaries’ internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on D-LINK CORPORATION and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause D-LINK CORPORATION and its
subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Consolidated Company to express an opinion on the group financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Hsieh, Chiu-Hua and
Chou, Pao-Lian.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
Febuary 22, 2023

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated financial position, financial
performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republlc of China and
not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated fi are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and lidated financial the Chinese version shall prevail.
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4000
5000

6100
6200
6300
6450

7100
7010
7020
7050
7060
7950

8300
8310

8311
8316

8320

8349

8360

8361
8370

8399

8300

8610
8620

8710
8720

(English Tr ion of C i Fi ial S Originally Issued in Chinese)

D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Net operating revenues (notes 6(u) and 7)
Operating costs (notes 6(e), (q) and 7)
Gross profit from operations
Operating expenses: (notes 6(c), (h), (@), (j), (k), (m), (p), () and (v))
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Expected credit gain (note 6(c))

Net operating income
Non-operating income and expenses:
Interest income (notes 6(w) and 7)
Other income (notes 6(w) and 7)
Other gains and losses (notes 6(f), (w), (y) and 7)
Finance costs (notes 6(m) and (w))
Share of profit of associates accounted for using equity method (note 6(f))

Profit before tax
Less: Income tax expenses (note 6(r))
Net profit
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(note 6(s))
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Unrealized (losses) gains from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method,
components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Less: income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss

Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(notes 6(s) and (x))
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using equity method,
components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Less: income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified
to profit or loss (note 6(r))

Other comprehensive income (loss), net
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Net profit attributable to:

Owners of parent

Non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Owners of parent
Non-controlling interests

Basic earnings per share (New Taiwan dollars) (note 6(t))
Diluted earnings per share (New Taiwan dollars) (note 6(t))

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2022 2021
Amount % Amount %
$ 17,077,888 100 15,524,901 100
12,763,058 75 11,336,144 73
4.314.830 25 4.188.757 27
2,308,556 13 2,306,285 15
926,216 5 850,067 5
530,747 3 873,752 6
(3.197) _ - 11215y _ -
3.762,322 21 4.018.889 26
552,508 4 169.868 1
24,594 - 47,997 -
6,066 - 3862 -
(115,191) (1) 4391 -
(17,576) - (25,908) -
7177 - 194,513 1
(94.930) __ (1) 224,855 1
457,578 3 394,723 2
197.196 1 76.612 -
260,382 2 318.111 2
20,106 - (1.687) -
16,112) - 54984 -
9376) - (14,416) -
(5.382) _ - 38.881 -
587,444 3 (412,625)  (2)
10,500 - 871 -
(97.156) __(1) 45730 -
500,788 2 (366.024) 2)
495.406 2 (327.143) 2)
$ 755,788 4 (9.032) -
$ 109,233 1 239,197 2
151,149 1 78.914 -
$ 260,382 2 318.111
$ 608,183 3 (64,933) -
147,605 1 55,901 -
$ 755,788 4 (9,032) _ -
$ 0.18 0.38
$ 0.18 0.38
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(English Tr ion of Ci i i

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Expected credit loss reversal gain
Net (gain) loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income
Share of gain of associates accounted for using equity method
Gain on disposal of investments
(Reversal gain) write-down loss of inventories to net realizable value
Other
Total adjustments to reconcile profit
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Increase in notes receivable
Increase in accounts receivable
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable due from related parties
Decrease (increase) in other receivables
Decrease in lease payment receivable
Increase in inventories
Decrease (increase) in prepayment for purchase
(Increase) decrease in other current assets
Increase in other non-current assets
Total changes in operating assets
(Decrease) increase in current contract liabilities
Increase (decrease) in notes payable
Decrease in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable to related parties
Decrease in other payable
Decrease in current provisions
Increase (decrease) in current refund liabilities
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities
Increase in other non-current liabilities
Total changes in operating liabilities
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities
Total adjustments
Cash flows from (used in) operations
Interest received
Dividends received
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Proceeds from capital reduction of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Acquisition of i d for using equity method
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
(Increase) decrease in refundable deposits
Increase in other receivables
Acquisition of intangible assets
Liquidation refund
Other investing activities
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
(Decrease) increase in guarantee deposits received
Payment of lease liabilities
Cash dividends paid (including subsidiaries)
Capital reduction payments to shareholders
Net cash flows used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period

'

See accc ying notes to d financial
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i Originally Issued in Chinese)
D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

2022 2021
$ 457,578 394,723
208,202 230,097
30,813 43,264
(3,197) (11,215)
(18,252) 19,335
17,576 25,908
(24,594) (47,997)
(578) (1,155)
(7177 (194,513)
(10,929) (6.487)
(75,099) 235,732
80.811 (15.149)
197,576 277.820
22,658 (55,197)
(377) (2.636)
(12,021) (337,013)
5433 (10,509)
41,601 (3.716)
27,499 16,602
(710,107) (1,111,228)
103,908 (67,649)
(85,414) 44,715
(40.663) (41.813)
(647.483) (1.568.444)
(25,758) 10,838
2,045 (219)
(138,003) (39,952)
448,256 (79,324)
(27,022) (472.875)
(14,867) (30,965)
16,815 (98,710)
10,365 (1,994)
37,054 15587
308,885 (697.614)
(338.598) (2.266.058)
(141.022) (1.988.238)
316,556 (1,593,515)
24221 31,748
578 1,155
(22,261) (9,931)
(125.914) (100.581)
193,180 (1.671.124)
- 56,244
578 -
- (812,484)
(57.259) (42,375)
- 246
(14,773) 1,189
- (214,785)
(43,975) (18,819)
212,619 -
(4.537) (23.575)
92,653 (1.054.359)
(3.830) 12,576
(150,693) (166,739)
(200,749) (207,380)
- (521.596)
(355.272) (883.139)
587,444 (412,625)
518,005 (4,021,247)
2,195,080 6216327

$ 2,713,085

2,195,080



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollar, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

D-LINK CORPORATION (the “Company”) was incorporated on June 20, 1987 under the approval of
Ministry of Economic Affair, Republic of China (“ROC”). The address of its registered office is No. 289,
Xinhu 3rd Rd., Neihu Dist., Taipei City 114, Taiwan. The main operating activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Consolidated Company”) include the research, development,
and sale of local area computer network systems, wireless local area computer networks ("LANs"), and
spare parts for integrated circuits.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for release by the
Board of Directors on Febuary 22, 2023.

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. which have already been adopted.

The Consolidated Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have
a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements, from January 1, 2022:

o Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use”
o Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”
e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

o Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework™

(b) The impact of IFRS endorsed by the FSC but not yet effective
The Consolidated Company assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments to IFRSs,
effective for annual period beginning on January 1, 2023, would not have a significant impact on its
consolidated financial statements:
o Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

o Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

o Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

(Continued)
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D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards, which may be relevant to the Consolidated Company,
have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), but have yet to be
endorsed by the FSC:

Standards or Effective date per
Interpretations Content of amendment IASB
Amendments to [AS 1 Under existing IAS 1 requirements, January 1, 2024
“Classification of Liabilities ~ companies classify a liability as current
as Current or Non-current” when they do not have an unconditional

right to defer settlement for at least 12
months after the reporting date. The
amendments has removed the requirement
for a right to be unconditional and instead
now requires that a right to defer settlement
must exist at the reporting date and have
substance.

The amendments clarify how a company
classifies a liability that can be settled in its
own shares — e.g. convertible debt.

Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-  After reconsidering certain aspects of the January 1, 2024
current Liabilities with 2020 amendments to IASI, new
Covenants” amendments clarify that only covenants

with which a company must comply on or

before the reporting date affect the

classification of a liability as current or

non-current.

Covenants with which the company must
comply after the reporting date (i.e. future
covenants) do not affect a liability’ s
classification at that date. However, when
non-current liabilities are subject to future
covenants, companies will now need to
disclose information to help users
understand the risk that those liabilities
could become repayable within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The Consolidated Company is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned
standards or interpretations on its consolidated financial position and consolidated financial
performance. The results thereof will be disclosed when the Consolidated Company completes its
evaluation.

The Consolidated Company does not expect the following other new and amended standards, which
have yet to be endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial
statements:

(Continued)
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D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture”

IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information *

IFRS16 “Requirements for Sale and Leaseback Transactions”

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies:

The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized
below. The following accounting policies were applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements.

(@)

(b)

Sta

tement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the “Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” (hereinafter referred to as “the
Regulations” ) and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed by the FSC.

Basis of Preparation

(O]

(i)

Basis of Measurement

Except for the following significant accounts, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis:

1)  Financial instruments (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value;

2)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value;

3)  Equity-settled share-based payment are measured at fair value;

4)  The defined benefit liabilities are measured at fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Consolidated Company is determined based on the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in New Taiwan Dollar, which is the Consolidated Company’s functional currency.
All financial information presented in New Taiwan Dollar has been rounded to the nearest
thousand.

(Continued)
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D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of consolidation

®

(i)

Principle of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are
entities controlled by the Company. The Company ‘controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. Intragroup
balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from Intragroup
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The
Consolidated Company attributes the profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests, even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The Consolidated Company prepares consolidated financial statements using uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances.

Changes in the Consolidated Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received will be recognized directly in equity, and the Consolidated Company will attribute
it to the owners of the parent.

List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements

Shareholdin;
Name of Principal December 31, December 31,
investor Name of idiary activity 2022 2021 Note
The Company D-Link Holding Company Ltd. (D-Link Investment company 100.00 % 100.00 %
Holding)
The Company D-Link Canada Inc. (D-Link Canada) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
sales service
The Company D-Link Japan K.K. (D-Link Japan) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
sales service
The Company D-Link Investment Pte Ltd. (D-Link Investment company 100.00 % 100.00 %
Investment)
The Company and D-Link Sudamerica S.A. (D-Link Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
D-Link Holding ~ Sudamerica) sales service
The Company and D-Link Brazil LTDA (D-Link Brazil) ~ Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
D-Link Holding sales service
The Company D-Link Latin America Company Ltd. ~ Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
(D-Link L.A.) sales service
The Company and D-Link Mexicana S.A de C.V (D-Link Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
D-Link Mexicana) sales service
Sudamerica
The Company and D-Link Systems, Inc. (D-Link Systems) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 % D-Link Holding
D-Link Holding sales service transferred

1.56% of its
shareholding in
D-Link System
to the Company

in November,
2022.
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Shareholding
Name of Principal December 31, December 31,
investor Name of idiary activity 2022 2021 Note
The Company and D-Link International Pte. Ltd. (D-Link Marketing, purchase 100.00 % 100.00 %
D-Link Holding  International) and after-sales
service
The Company and D-Link Australia Pty Ltd. (D-Link Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 % D-Link
D-Link Australia) sales service International
International transferred 0.1%
of its
shareholding in
D-Link Australia
to the Company
in December,
2022.
The Company and D-Link Middle East FZCO (D-Link Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
D-Link ME) sales service
International
D-Link D-Link Korea Limited (D-Link Korea) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
International sales service
D-Link D-Link Trade M (D-Link Moldova) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
International sales service
D-Link D-Link Russia Investment Co., Ltd. Investment Company 100.00 % 100.00 %
International (D-Link Russia Investment)
D-Link D-Link Malaysia SDN. BHD Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
International (D-Link Malaysia) sales service
D-Link D-Link Service Lithuania, UAB Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
International (D-Link Lithuania) sales service
The Company Yeo-Chia Investment Ltd. (Yeochia) ~ Investment company - % - %  Completed
liquidation
process on July
19, 2022 (note)
The Company Yeo-Mao Investment Inc. (Yeomao) Investment company - % - %  Completed
liquidation
process in
October 2022
(note)
The Company Yeo-Tai Investment Inc. (Yeotai) Investment company 100.00 % 100.00 %
D-Link Holding ~ D-Link (Europe) Ltd. (D-Link Europe) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
sales service
D-Link Holding ~ D-Link Shiang-Hai (Cayman) Inc. Investment company 100.00 % 100.00 %
(D-Link Shiang-Hai (Cayman))
D-Link Holding  D-Link Holding Mauritius Inc. Investment company 100.00 % 100.00 %
(D-Link Mauritius)
D-Link Holding ~ OOO D-Link Russia (D-Link Russia)  After-sales service 100.00 % 100.00 %
D-Link OO0O D-Link Trade (D-Link Trade) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
Investment sales service
D-Link Holding ~ Success Stone Overseas Corp. Investment company 100.00 % 100.00 %
(Success Stone)
D-Link Holding ~ Wishfi Pte. Ltd. (Wishfi) Research, - % 100.00 % Cancellation of
development, registration in
marketing and after- January, 2022
sales service
D-Link Mauritius D-Link India Ltd. (D-Link India) Marketing and after- 51.02 % 51.02 %
sales service
D-Link Mauritius  TeamF1 Networks Private Limited Research and 100.00 % 100.00 %

and D-Link
India

(TeamF1 India)
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Shareholding
Name of Principal December 31, December 31,
investor Name of idiary activity 2022 2021 Note
D-Link Europe  D-Link (Holdings) Ltd. and its Investment 100.00 % 100.00 %
subsidiary D-Link (UK) Ltd. company, marketing
(D-Link UK) and after-sales
service
D-Link Europe ~ D-Link France SARL (D-Link France) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
sales service
D-Link Europe ~ D-Link AB Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
sales service
D-Link Europe  D-Link Iberia SL (D-Link Iberia) Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
sales service
D-Link Europe  D-Link Mediterranco SRL Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
(D-Link Mediterraneo) sales service
D-Link Europe  D-Link (Netherlands) BV Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
(D-Link Netherlands) sales service
The Company and D-Link (Deutschland) GmbH Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
D-Link Europe (D-Link Deutschland) sales service
D-Link Europe ~ D-Link Polska Sp. Z.0.0. Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
(D-Link Polska) sales service
D-Link Europe  D-Link (Magyarorszag) kft Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
(D-Link Magyarorszag) sales service
D-Link Europe ~ D-Link s.r.o Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
sales service
D-Link Shiang-  D-Link (Shiang-Hai) Co., Ltd Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
Hai (Cayman) (D-Link Shiang-Hai) sales service
D-Link Shiang-  Netpro Trading (Shiang-Hai) Co., Ltd ~ Research, 100.00 % 100.00 %
Hai (Cayman) (Netpro Trading ) development and
trading
D-Link D-Link Adria d.o.o. Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %  In liquidation
Mediterraneo sales service process
D-Link D-Link Peru S.A. Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
Sudamerica and sales service
D-Link L.A.
D-Link D-Link de Colombia S.A.S Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %
Sudamerica sales service
D-Link D-Link Guatemala S.A. Marketing and after- 99.00 % 99.00 %  In liquidation
Sudamerica sales service process
D-Link D-Link Argentina S.A. Marketing and after- 100.00 % 100.00 %  In liquidation
Sudamerica sales service process

Note : Yeochia and Yeomao went into liquidation process at December 1, 2021. Since December 31,
2021, Yeochia and Yeomao reports were not included in the consolidated financial statement
because of losing control over them.

(iii) Subsidiaries excluded from the consolidated financial statement: None.
Business combination

The Consolidated Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method. The
goodwill arising from an acquisition is measured as the excess of (i) the consideration transferred
(which is generally measured at fair value) and (ii) the amount of non-controlling interest in the
acquiree, both over the identifiable net assets acquired at the acquisition date. If the amount
calculated above is a deficit balance, the Consolidated Company recognized that amount as a gain on
a bargain purchase in profit or loss immediately after reassessing whether it has correctly identified
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed.
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All acquisition-related transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except for the issuance of debt or
equity instruments.

Foreign currency
(i)  Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
Consolidated Company entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each subsequent reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the
functional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:

- an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income;

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
(i) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into the Consolidated Company’s functional currency at
the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into the Consolidated Company’s functional currency at the average exchange rate.
Exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

(i)  Itis expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
(ii) It is held the primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The asset is cash and cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

(i) Itis expected to be settled, in the normal operating cycle;

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
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(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) The Consolidated Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at
the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by issuing of equity instruments do not
affect its classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Time deposits which meet the above definition and are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes should be
recognized as cash equivalents.

Financial Instruments

Accounting receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated.
All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Consolidated
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it
is an accounts receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. An accounts receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

(i)  Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis or a settlement date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)—equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets
are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Consolidated Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the next reporting period following the change in the
business model.

1)  Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss provision. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI )

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Some accounts receivables are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling by the Consolidated Company,
therefore, those receivables are measured at FVOCI. However, they are included in the
‘accounts receivable’ line item.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the
Consolidated Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’ s fair value in other comprehensive income. This election is made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date, usually the ex-dividend date,
on which the Consolidated Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets and beneficiary certificate. On
initial recognition, the Consolidated Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset, which meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
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These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Business model assessment

The Consolidated Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model
in which a financial asset is held at portfolio level because this best reflects the way the
business is managed and information is provided to management. The information
considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies
in practice. These include whether management’ s strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the
duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Consolidated
Company’s management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, and are consistent with the
Consolidated Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘ principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial assets on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Consolidated Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument.
This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could
change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Consolidated Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
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terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;
prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Consolidated Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets
(e.g. non-recourse features)

Impairment of financial assets

The Consolidated Company recognizes loss provision for expected credit losses (ECL)
on financial assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents,
notes and accounts receivables, other receivables, finance lease payment receivable,
refundable deposits and other financial assets), debt investments measured at FVOCI and
contract assets.

The Consolidated Company measures loss provision at an amount equal to lifetime ECL,
except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss provision for accounts receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Consolidated Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Consolidated Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based
on the Consolidated Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment as
well as forward-looking information.

The Consolidated Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 90 days past due.

The Consolidated Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial
asset is more than 360 days past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Consolidated Company in full.
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ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to
the Consolidated Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Consolidated Company expects to receive). ECL are discounted at the effective interest
rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Consolidated Company assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial
asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 365 days past due;

the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss provision for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss provision is
charged to profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the asset.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Consolidated
Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or
a portion thereof. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Consolidated Company’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Consolidated Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Consolidated Company
neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Consolidated Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets
recognized in its statement of balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are
not derecognized.
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(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Consolidated Company are classified as
financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities that are not classified as held-for-trading or measured at fair value
through profit or loss, which comprise loans, accounts payable, and other payables, are
measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost at the time of initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost
calculated using the effective interest method. Interest expense not capitalized as capital
cost is recognized in non-operating income and expenses, and is included in other gains
and losses.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Consolidated Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Consolidated Company also
derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based
on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Consolidated Company currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them
on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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(iii) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Consolidated Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency exposures. Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted
for separately if the host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the
economic characteristics and risks of the non-financial asset’s host contract are not closely
related to the embedded derivatives and the host contract is not measured at FVTPL.

The Consolidated Company designates certain hedging instruments (derivate financial
instruments) as cash flow hedges.

At inception of hedging relationships, the Consolidated Company documents the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Consolidated Company
also documents the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging
instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the hedged item and hedging
instrument are expected to offset each other.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging
instruments that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under © other equity— gains (losses) on hedging
instruments’, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception
of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the
same line as the recognized hedged item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
removed from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial
asset or non-financial liability. Furthermore, if the Consolidated Company expects that some or
all of the loss accumulated in other equity will not be recovered in the future, that amount is
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or the hedging instrument is
sold, expires, is terminated or is exercised, then hedge accounting is discontinued
prospectively. When hedge accounting for cash flow hedges is discontinued, the amount that
has been accumulated in other equity remains in equity until, for a hedge of a transaction
resulting in the recognition of a non-financial item, it is included in the non-financial item’s
cost on its initial recognition or, for other cash flow hedges, it is reclassified to profit or loss in
the same period or periods as the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit or loss. If the
hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, then the amounts that have been
accumulated in other equity are immediately reclassified to profit or loss.
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Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bring the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted-average method. Net realizable value is
based on the estimated selling price of inventories; less, all further costs to completion and all
relevant marketing and selling costs. Related expenses/losses and incomes of inventory are included
in the cost of sales.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Consolidated Company has significant influence, but not
control, over the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the
Consolidated Company holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.

Investments in associates are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes
transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in associates includes goodwill arising
from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The consolidated financial statements include the Consolidated Company’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associates, after adjustments to align the accounting policies
with those of the Consolidated Company, from the date on which significant influence commences
until the date on which significant influence ceases.

Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Consolidated Company and an
associate are recognized only to the extent of unrelated Consolidated Company’s interests in the
associate.

When the Consolidated Company subscribes to additional shares in an associate at a percentage
different from its existing ownership percentage, the resulting carrying amount of the investment
will differ from the amount of the Consolidated Company’s proportionate interest in the net assets of
the associate. The Consolidated Company records such a difference as an adjustment to investments,
with the corresponding amount charged or capital surplus. The aforesaid adjustment should first be
adjusted under capital surplus. If the capital surplus resulting from changes in ownership interest is
not sufficient, the remaining difference is debited to retained earnings. If it resulted in a decrease in
the ownership interest, except for the adjustments mentioned above, the related amount previously
recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate will be reclassified to profit or
loss proportionately on the same basis as if the Consolidated Company had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition, and subsequently at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation expense is calculated based on the depreciation method, useful life, and residual
value which are the same as those adopted for property, plant and equipment.
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Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment property is recognized as non-operating income on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the
total rental income, over the term of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Consolidated Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative
periods are as follows:

1)  Buildings and improvements: 5~60 years
2)  Transportation, office equipment and others: 2~9 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If
expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.

Reclassification to investment property

A property is reclassified to investment property at its carrying amount when the use of the
property changes from owner-occupied to investment property.
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(m) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Consolidated Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

@

As a lessee

The Consolidated Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Consolidated Company’s incremental borrowing
rate. Generally, the Consolidated Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount
rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
—  payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

— there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

—  there is a change in the Consolidated Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee; or

— there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether
it will exercise an option to purchase the underlying assets, or

— there is a change of its assessment on whether it will exercise an extension or termination
option; or

— there is any lease modifications
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When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Consolidated Company accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss
any gain or loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Consolidated Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that do not meet
the definition of investment property as a separate line item respectively in the statement of
financial position.

The Consolidated Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for short-term lease and leases of low-value assets, including office building and office
equipment. The Consolidated Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these
leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

From January 1, 2021, when the basis for determining future lease payments changes as
required by interest rate benchmark reform, the Consolidated Company will remeasure the
lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using the revised discount rate that
reflects the change to an alternative benchmark interest rate.

As a lessor

When the Consolidated Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement
whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the
Consolidated Company makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers to the
lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset.
If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operating lease.
As part of this assessment, the Consolidated Company considers certain indicators such as
whether the lease is for the major part of the economic life of the asset.

When the Consolidated Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the
head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If a head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Consolidated Company applies the exemption described above, then it
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Consolidated Company
applies IFRS15 to allocate the consideration in the contract.

The Consolidated Company recognizes a finance lease payment receivable at an amount equal
to its net investment in the lease. Initial direct costs, such as lessors to negotiate and arrange a
lease, are included in the measurement of the net investment. The interest income is recognized
over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment in the lease. The Consolidated Company recognizes lease payments received under
operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as part of other income.
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Intangible assets

(O]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Goodwill and trademark
1) Recognition

Goodwill and trademark arise from acquisition of subsidiaries are included in intangible
assets.

2)  Subsequent measurement

Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. As regards to the
investments accounted for using equity method, the carrying value of goodwill consists
of the carrying value of its investment. The impairment loss is attributed to parts of
investments accounted for using equity method other than goodwill or other assets.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Amortization
The amortized amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value.

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of intangible assets, other than goodwill, from the date that they are available for use. The
estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

1)  Computer software: 1~8 years

2)  Patents: Amortization is recognized using the term of patent contract. The estimated live
is 11~16 years

3)  Other intangible asset: 3 years

The residual value, amortization period, and amortization method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life shall be reviewed at least annually at each fiscal year-end. Any change shall
be accounted for as changes in accounting estimates.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Consolidated Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets (other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.
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For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
cash-generating units (CGUs). Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs
or groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Consolidated Company has a present
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation.

(i) Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

(i) Legal proceedings and royalties

Legal proceedings and royalties are estimated at the expected relevant cost based on historical
experiences.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Consolidated Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Consolidated Company
recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a
service to a customer.

The main operating activities of the Consolidated Company is research, development, and sales of
LANSs and spare part for integrated circuits. The Consolidated Company recognizes revenue when
control of the products has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer, the
customer has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance
with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Consolidated Company has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

(Continued)

215



(0]

D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Company grants its customers the right to return the product. Therefore, the
Consolidated Company reduces revenue by the amount of expected returns and recognizes a refund
liability. Accumulated experience is used to estimate such returns at the time of sale at a portfolio
level (expected value method). Because the number of products returned has been steady for years, it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. At
each reporting date, the Consolidated Company reassesses the estimated amount of expected returns.

The Consolidated Company often offers volume discounts to its customers. Revenue from these
sales is recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts. Accumulated experience is used to estimate the discounts, using the expected value
method, and revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal will not occur. A refund liability is recognized for expected volume discounts payable to
customers in relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period. As of the reporting date, all
expected payment of the related sale discounts paid to the customers is recognized under return
liabilities.

The Consolidated Company offers a standard warranty for the consumer electronics sold to provide
assurance that the product complies with agreed-upon specifications and has recognized warranty
provisions for this obligation; please refer to note 4(p).

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
Consolidated Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

In case of fixed-price contracts, the customers pay the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If
the services rendered by the Consolidated Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognized.

A contract liability is a Consolidated Company’ s obligation to transfer goods to a customer for
which the Consolidated Company has received consideration.

Employee benefits
(i)  Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are employee benefit
expense as the related service is provided.

(i) Defined benefit plans

The Consolidated Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Consolidated Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is
given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

(Continued)

216



D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings. The Consolidated Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the net defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Consolidated Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a
defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

(iii) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Consolidated Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Income Taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

The Consolidated Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes,
including uncertain tax treatment, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore
accounted for them under TAS37.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
recognized except for the following:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at
the time of the transaction;

(ii) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Consolidated Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

(iii) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and reflect
uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

(i)  The Consolidated Company has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and

(ii) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1)  the same taxable entity; or

2) different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax assets and liabilities on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be
realized.

Earnings per share

The Consolidated Company discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company. The calculation of basic earnings (loss) per
share is based on the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company divided
by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings
(loss) per share is based on the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company,
divided by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as convertible bonds, employee stock options,
and employee bonus settled using shares that have yet to be approved by the Board of Directors
meeting. Increasing shares from the transfer of unappropriated earnings, capital surplus, and
employee profit sharing is computed retroactively.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Consolidated Company that engages in business
activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses
relating to transactions with other components of the Consolidated Company). Operating results of
the operating segments are regularly reviewed by the Consolidated Company’ s chief operating
decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial information.
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Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Regulations and the IFRSs
endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgement, estimates, and assumptions that affect the
application of the accounting policies and the reporting amount of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the next period.

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statement is as follows:

(a) Impairment of Accounts receivable

The Consolidated Company has estimated the loss provision of accounts receivable that is based on
the risk of a default occurring and the rate of expected credit loss. The Consolidated Company has
considered historical experience, current economic conditions and forward-looking information at
the reporting date to determine the assumptions to be used in calculating the impairments and the
selected inputs. Refer to Note 6(c) for further description of the impairment of accounts receivable.

(b) Valuation of inventories

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Consolidated Company
estimates the net realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end
of the reporting period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The net
realizable value of the inventory is mainly determined based on the demand of products in the future.
Due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes in the net realizable
value of inventories.

(c) Judgment on substantial control over the investee

The Company held 41.58% of issued shares of Cameo Communication, Inc., and is the single largest
shareholder of the investee. However, the specialization of Cameo Communication, Inc., such as
manufacturing, product development and business development is different from the Company. Besides,
the main management of Cameo Communication, Inc. is not appointed by the Company, which shows that
the Company has no actual ability to lead the relevant business activities of Cameo Communication Inc.
As a result, the Company has no substantial control over Cameo Communication, Inc., only significant
influence.
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(6) Explanation of significant accounts:
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Cash on hand $ 4,173 2,840
Checking and saving accounts 2,530,494 2,087,817
Time deposit 178.418 104,423
Cash and Cash Equivalents S 2,713,085 2,195,080

Please refer to 6(y) for the exchange rate risk and sensitivity analysis of financial assets and
liabilities of the Consolidated Company.

A time deposit is qualified as a cash equivalent when it has a maturity of three months or less from
the date of acquisition and it is held for the purpose of short-term cash commitments. Otherwise, it is
classified as other current assets.

(b) Financial Assets and Liabilities
(i)  Details as follows

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss - current
Beneficiary certificates — mutual funds $ 267,398 278,623
Cross currency swaps 17,234 73
Forward foreign exchange contracts 198 648
$ 284,830 279,344
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
- current
Cross currency swaps $ 1,361 13,722
Forward foreign exchange contracts 13,970 2,646
$ 15,331 16,368
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December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - non-current
YouXiang Electronic Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

(YouXiang) $ 4,111 3,882
Kaimei Electronic Corp. (Kaimei) 12,377 29,207
StemCyte International. LTD (Stemcyte) 215 211

$ 16,703 33,300

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

On February 17, 2021, the Consolidated Company increased investment in Cameo and
the shareholding ratio increased from 17.35% to 41.58%. The Consolidated Company
transferred financial assets from financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income to investments accounted for using equity method and
reclassified financial assets from other equity loss to retained earnings amounting to
54,847 thousand.

The Consolidated Company sold a total of 2,753,041 shares of Z-Com in 2021, disposed
at the price of $23,251 thousand, and reclassified financial assets from other equity loss
to retained earnings amounting to $6,921 thousand .

The Consolidated Company sold 288,000 shares of Kaimei in November 2021, disposed
at the price of $32,788 thousand, and reclassified financial assets from other equity gain
to retained earnings amounting to $16,208 thousand.

The Consolidated Company sold 18,950 shares of Stemcyte in October 2021, disposed at
the price of $205 thousand, and reclassified financial assets from other equity loss to
retained earnings amounting to $39 thousand.

On July 14, 2022, Kaimei reduced its capital by 20% in cash and refund the capital
reduction payment amounting to $578 thousand.

For disclosures on credit, currency and interest rate risks in financial instruments, please
refer to note 6(y).

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no financial assets are pledged as collateral.
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(i)  Sensitivity analysis — equity market price risk:

If the security price changes, and if it is on the same basis for both years and assumes that all
other variables remain the same, the impact on other comprehensive income will be as follows:

2022 2021
After-tax other After-tax other
Security price at comprehensive After-tax ~ comprehensive After-tax
reporting date income (loss) profit (loss)  income (loss) profit (loss)
Increase 3% $ 470 6,257 970 6,520
Decrease 3% $ (470) (6,257) (970) (6,520)

(iii) Non-hedging-derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge certain foreign exchange and interest risk
arising from the Consolidated Company’s operating, financing and investing activities. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, transactions that did not qualify for hedging accounting have
been presented as the following held-for-trading financial assets:

1)  Derivative financial assets

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Contract Contract
amount amount
(thousand) Currency Maturity date  (thousand) Currency Maturity date
Cross currency swaps:
usD S 28,200 UsD 2023.01~03 - - -
EUR - - - 4,000 EUR 2022.01
PY 1,800,000 PY 2023.01~02 - - -
CNH 127,134 CNH 2023.01 - - -
Forward foreign
exchange contracts:
EUR (sell) 1,400 EUR 2023.02 3,000 EUR 2022.01
CAD (sell) 900 CAD 2023.01~02 700 CAD 2022.01
JPY (sell) - - - 448,900 JPY 2022.01~02
(Continued)

222



D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2)  Derivative financial liabilities

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Contract Contract
amount amount
(thousand) Currency Maturity date (thousand) Currency Maturity date
Cross currency swaps:
Usb $ - - - 1,700 usD 2022.02
CNH 41,664 CNH 2023.01 133,670 CNH 2022.01
GBP - - - 1,000 GBP 2022.01
EUR 3,200 EUR 2023.01~02 22,000 EUR 2022.01~02
JPY - - - 1,800,000 IPY 2022.01~03
CAD 500 CAD 2023.01 1,100 CAD 2022.01
AUD 600 AUD 2023.01 300 AUD 2022.01
RUB - - - 150,028 RUB 2022.01
Forward foreign
exchange contracts:

IDR (sell) 21,805,000 IDR 2023.01 - - -

BRL (sell) 26,625 BRL 2023.01 80,445 BRL 2022.01
INR (sell) 227,782 INR 2023.01 188,766 INR 2022.01
CAD (sell) 1,000 CAD 2023.02 - - -
EUR (sell) 6,300 EUR 2023.01~02 - - -
AUD (sell) 1,700 AUD 2023.01~03 1,000 AUD 2022.01
GBP (sell) - - - 500 GBP 2022.01
KRW (sell) 4,420,970 KRW 2023.01 2,144,020 KRW 2022.01
JYP (sell) 1,025,060 JPY 2023.01~03 - - -
CNH (buy) 24,301 CNH 2023.01 - - -

(¢) Notes and accounts receivable and other receivables

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Notes receivable for operating activities $ 5,660 5,283
Accounts receivable 3,498,986 3,497,623
Account receivable - related parties 5,127 10,502
Other receivables 20,102 274,322
3,529,875 3,787,730

Less: Loss Provision (77.291) (83,158)
$ 3,452,584 3,704,572
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The Consolidated Company applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses,
i.e. the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all notes and accounts receivable and other
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, notes and accounts receivable and other
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and ability to pay all due,
as well as incorporated forward looking information. The loss provision as of 2022 and 2021 was

determined as follows:

Gross carrying

December 31, 2022
Weighted-average

amount loss rate Loss provision
Current $ 2,782,658 0.38% 10,705
90 days or less past due 668,017 0.43% 2,887
91 to 180 days past due 4,019 17.75% 713
181 to 270 days past due 986 41.45% 409
271 to 360 days past due 213 70.32% 150
More than 360 days past due 73,982 84.38% 62,427
$ 3,529,875 77,291
December 31, 2021

Gross carrying

Weighted-average

amount loss rate Loss provision
Current $ 3,228,796 0.32% 10,413
90 days or less past due 472,980 0.20% 929
91 to 180 days past due 1,159 15.42% 179
181 to 270 days past due 4,927 66.26% 3,265
271 to 360 days past due 1,191 72.12% 859
More than 360 days past due . 78,677 85.81% . 67513

The movement in the provision for notes and accounts

follows:

$ 3,787,730

83,158

receivable and other receivables were as

2022 2021
Balance at January 1, 2022 and 2021 $ 83,158 104,954
Expected credit loss reversed (3,197) (11,215)
Amounts written off (10,600) (5,717)
Others 7.930 (4,864)
Balance at December 31, 2022 and 2021 S 77,291 83,158
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Finance lease payment receivable

The Consolidated Company leased out its office building and warehouse. It classified the sub-lease
as a finance lease because the sub-lease is for the whole of the remaining term of the head lease.

A maturity analysis of lease payments, which reflects the undiscounted lease payments to be

received after the reporting date, is as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
Less than one year $ 36,559 30,030
One to two years 38,978 32,966
Two to three years 40,187 35,147
Three to four years 37,944 36,237
Four to five years - 34,216
Total lease payments receivable 153,668 168,596
Unearned finance income (9,151) (12,717)
Total lease payments receivable (Present value of lease
payments receivable) $ 144,517 155,879
Inventories
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Finished goods S 4,069,166 3,348,193

The operating cost comprises of cost of goods sold, write-down loss (reversal of write-down loss) of
inventories to net realizable value, warranty costs and other loss (gain). For the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the cost of good sold were $12,583,111 thousand, and $10,825,721
thousand, respectively. The loss on product warranty, obsolescence and order cancellation amounted
to $255,046 thousand and $274,691 in 2022 and 2021, respectively. In 2022, the Consolidated
Company assessed the net realizable value of inventories in consideration of the market share trend
and the life cycle of products, and reversed the write-down loss of inventories to net realizable value
to reduce cost of goods sold by $75,099 thousand. In 2021, the Consolidated Company recognized
write-down loss of inventories to net realizable value of $235,732 thousand, because of the shortage

of materials and the increase in logistics time to increase stocking.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no inventories were pledged as collateral.
Investments accounted for using equity methods

Investments accounted for using equity methods were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
Associates $ 1,420,297 1,407,915
(Continued)

225



D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Associates
Main operating
Ownership interest/Voting
Name of relationship location/ Registered rights held
Name of with the Consolidated Country of the December 31, December 31,
Associate Company Company 2022 2021
Cameo The major business activities are manufacturing Taiwan 41.58 % 41.58 %

Communication, and selling of network system equipment and its

Inc. (Cameo) components, as well as researching and developing

of related technologies. It is the supplier of the

Consolidated Company.

The financial information on Cameo is summarized as follows:

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Net assets attributable to investee's sharcholders

Operating revenue

Net income

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable to
investee's shareholders

226

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
$ 3,871,200 1,693,178
1,732,411 3,397,654
1,484,128 875,644
885,525 1,084,837
$ 3,233,958 3,130,351
$ 3,233,958 3,130,351
2022 2021
3,379,117 2,479,234
$ 94,973 390,654
8,634 (57,188)
$ 103,607 333,466
$ 103,607 333,466
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2022 2021

The Consolidated Company’s share in associate’s

net assets at beginning of year $ 1,301,552 -
Comprehensive income attributable to the

Consolidated Company 43,061 189,571
Increase of investment - 1,111,981
The Consolidated Company’s share in associate’s

net assets at end of year 1,344,613 1,301,552
Less: unrealized gains (30,471) (9,185)
Add: goodwill 102,489 102,489
Carrying amounts of investments accounted for

using equity method S 1,416,631 1,394,856

The financial information of insignificant associates

The associates financial information of the Consolidated Company's equity-method
associates, which were insignificant, was summarized as follows. The financial
information was included in the Consolidated Company's consolidated financial
statements.

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Carrying amounts of insignificant associates $ 3,666 13,059
2022 2021
Attributable to the Consolidated Company
(Loss) gain from continuing operations $ (11,026) 1,115
Other comprehensive income 1,633 198
Total comprehensive (loss) income $ (9,393) 1,313

The market value of public listed or OTC investees of the Consolidated Company
accounted for using equity method was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Cameo $ 1,416,590 1,567,876

The Consolidated Company originally held 17.35% shares of Cameo and accounted for
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income $414,471 thousand.
The Consolidated Company increased investments amounted $799,999 thousand in
Cameo on February 17, 2021 and became to hold 41.58% shares of Cameo after
increasing investments. Therefore, the Consolidated Company had a significant influence
on Cameo and accounted for investments accounted for using equity methods.

(Continued)
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4)  The Consolidated Company invested $12,485 thousand in T-COM, LLC in April 2021,
with a shareholding ratio of 40%. Therefore, the Consolidated Company had a significant
influence on T-COM, LLC and accounted for investments accounted for using equity
methods.

(i) Pledges

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no investment accounted for using equity methods has
been pledged as collateral.

Subsidiaries have material non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests of subsidiary that were material to the Consolidated Company were as
follows:

Ownership interests/voting

Main operating location/ rights held by NCI
Registered country December 31,  December 31,
Name of subsidiary of the Company 2022 2021
D-Link India India 48.98 % 48.98 %

The following summarizes the financial information for D-Link India prepared in accordance with
the IFRS (modified for the fair value adjustments on acquisition) and the differences in the
Consolidated Company’s accounting policies. The information incurred prior to the inter-company
eliminations with other companies in the Consolidated Company.

The financial information of D-Link India was summarized as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Current assets $ 1,945,176 1,624,500
Non-current assets 585,254 541,480
Current liabilities 818,382 753,636
Non-current liabilities 21.414 15.976
Net assets S 1,690,634 1,396,368
Net assets attributable to non-controlling interests S 651,784 524,978
2022 2021
Operating revenues S 4,286,462 3,197,447
Net profit 308,594 161,114
Other comprehensive loss (7,236) (46,985)
Total comprehensive income S 301,358 114,129
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests $ 151,149 78,914
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling
interests $ 147,605 55,901
(Continued)
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2022 2021
Cash flows (used in) from operating activities $ (1,195) 3,100
Cash flows from (used in) from investing activities 9,496 (61,344)
Cash flows used in financing activities (39,222) (24,134)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents $ (30.921) (82,378)
Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interests $ 20,799 11,783
(h) Property, plant and equipment
2022
Balance at
Balance at December 31,
January 1, 2022 Increase Decrease Others 2022
Cost:
Land $ 544,139 - - 2,174 546,313
Buildings 864,812 919 - 34,369 900,100
Others 1,223,381 56,340 (167,275) 45,016 1,157,462
2,632,332 57,259 (167,275) 81,559 2,603,875
Accumulated
depreciation:
Buildings 546,482 16,208 - 12,215 574,905
Others 1,111,125 62,287 (166,653) 43,395 1,050,154
1,657,607 78,495 (166,653) 55,610 1,625,059
$ 974,725 (21,236) (622) 25,949 978,816
2021
Balance at
Balance at December 31,
January 1, 2021 Increase Decrease Others 2021
Cost:
Land $ 544,586 - - (447) 544,139
Buildings 875,425 717 - (11,330) 864,812
Others 1,360,132 41,658 (145,694) (32,715) 1,223,381
2,780,143 42,375 (145,694) (44.492) 2,632,332
Accumulated
depreciation:
Buildings 534,595 15,644 - (3,757) 546,482
Others 1,215,877 69.718 (145,025) (29,445) 1,111,125
1,750,472 85.362 (145,025) (33,202) 1,657,607
$ 1,029,671 (42,987) (669) (11,290) 974,725

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no property, plant and equipment has been pledged as collateral.
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(i)  Right-of-use assets

The Consolidated Company leases buildings, office equipment and transportation equipment.
Information about leases is presented below:

Office Transportation
Buildings equipment equipment Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 457,383 8,077 48,109 513,569
Increase 151,568 839 11,844 164,251
Decrease (168,382) (337) (26,367) (195,086)
Others 24,393 558 1,246 26,197
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 464,962 9,137 34,832 508,931
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 644,005 8,047 58,254 710,306
Increase 108,011 - 2,257 110,268
Decrease (233,925) (394) - (234,319)
Others (60,708) 424 (12,402) (72,686)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 457,383 8,077 48,109 513,569
Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 203,434 2,173 29,787 235,394
Increase 113,267 2,150 13,894 129,311
Decrease (145,117) (337) (24,453) (169,907)
Others 9.476 218 930 10,624
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 181,060 4,204 20,158 205,422
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 212,885 3,080 24,183 240,148
Increase 124,855 2,339 17,145 144,339
Decrease (122,643) (3,010) (8,673) (134,326)
Others (11,663) (236) (2,868) (14,767)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 203,434 2,173 29,787 235,394
Carrying amount:
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 283,902 4,933 14,674 303,509
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 253,949 5,904 18,322 278,175

The Consolidated Company leases offices and warehouses under an operating lease in 2022 and
2021, please refer to note 6(p).

(Continued)
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Investment property

Cost:
Land
Buildings

Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings

Accumulated impairment:
Buildings

Cost:
Land
Buildings

Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings

Accumulated impairment:
Buildings

Book value

Fair value

2022
Balance at Balance at
January 1, December 31,
2022 Increase Decrease 2022
30,000 - - 30,000
22,196 - - 22,196
52,196 - - 52,196
12,320 396 - 12,716
1,000 - - 1,000
38.876 (396) - 38.480
2021
Balance at Balance at
January 1, December 31,
2021 Increase Decrease 2021
30,000 - - 30,000
22,196 - - 22,196
52,196 - - 52,196
11,924 396 - 12,320
1,000 - - 1,000
39,272 (396) - 38.876
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
$ 38.480 38.876
$ 73,181 51,328

Investment properties are commercial real estate that are leased to third parties. The lease contract
includes an initial non-cancellable period of 3 years. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the
lessee and no contingent rents are charged. For further information of rental income, please refer to
note 6(w). Besides, direct operating expenses related to investment property were $292 thousand,
and $296 thousand in 2022 and 2021.
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As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the fair value of investment property has been evaluated based
on the comparable transactions of property similar in location and category.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no investment property has been pledged as collateral.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Trademark

Patents

Computer software costs

Other intangible assets

Goodwill

Trademark

Patents

Computer software costs

Other intangible assets

Other Payables

Salary payable
Other payable-other

Lease liabilities

$

$

$

$

2022
Balance at Balance at
January 1, December
2022 Increase Decrease  Amortization Others 31,2022
287,518 - - - 17,573 305,091
132,660 - - - 14,459 147,119
15,027 - - (2,692) - 12,335
19,139 1,072 - (13,809) - 6,402
17,894 42,903 (711) (14.312) 201 45,975
472,238 43,975 (711) (30,813) 32,233 516,922
2021
Balance at Balance at
January 1, December
2021 Increase Decrease  Amortization Others 31,2021

295,459 - - - (7,941) 287,518
136,579 - - - (3,919) 132,660
17,719 - - (2,692) - 15,027
43,113 4,147 (2,321) (25,800) - 19,139
18,459 14,672 - (14,772) (465) 17,894
511,329 18,819 (2,321) (43,264) (12,325) 472,238

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
$ 231,312 321,201
644,831 586,649
$ 876,143 907,850

The amounts of lease liabilities for the Consolidated Company were as follows:

Current

Non-current
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December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
$ 144,423 142,551
$ 309,563 297,900
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The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:

2022 2021
Interests on lease liabilities S 14,170 16,777
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 53,847 46,917
COVID-19-related rent concessions $ (23) (52)

The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Consolidated Company were as
follows:

2022 2021
Total cash outflow for leases S 218,710 230,433

(i)  Real estate leases

As of December 31, 2022, the Consolidated Company leases buildings for its office space. The
leases of office space typically run for one to ten years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease for an additional period of the same duration after the end of the contract term.

(i)  Other leases

The Consolidated Company also leases office equipment with contract terms of one to three
years. In some cases, the Consolidated Company has options to purchase the assets at the end
of the contract term; in other cases, the Consolidated Company guarantees the residual value of
the leased assets at the end of the contract term.

Current provisions

For the years ended December 31, 2022

Balance at Balance at
January 1, Effect of December 31,
2022 Increased Used Reversed exchange 2022
Warranties $ 114,732 7,688 (14,867) - (1,246) 106,307
Legal proceedings
and royalties 119.067 106.963 - (34.134) 7,706 199.602
$ 233,799 114,651 (14,867) (34,134) 6,460 305,909
For the years ended December 31, 2021
Balance at Balance at
January 1, Effect of December 31,
2021 Increased Used Reversed exchange 2021
Warranties $ 127,303 12,950 (21,717) - (3,804) 114,732
Legal proceedings
and royalties 132,650 52,431 (9,248) (55,628) (1,138) 119,067
$ 259,953 65,381 (30,965) (55,628) (4,942) 233,799
(Continued)
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Refund liabilities
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Refund liabilities S 473,514 456,699

Refund liabilities were predicted payments to the customers based on expected volume discounts
and the right to the returned goods.

Operating leases

The Consolidated Company leased out its investment property. The Consolidated Company has
classified these leases as operating leases, because it does not transfer substantially all of the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets. Please refer to note 6(j) for the operating
leases of investment property.

A maturity analysis of lease payments, showing the undiscounted lease payments to be received after
the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Within one year $ 3,166 353
One to two years 691 -
Total undiscounted lease payments $ 3,857 353

Employee benefits

(i)  The reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit obligations and fair value of plan
assets for the Company were as follows :

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Present value of the defined benefit obligations $ 70,547 86,814
Fair value of plan assets (80,571) (75,551)
Net defined benefit (assets) liabilities $ (10,024) 11,263

Based on the Company’s pension plan, each employee earns two units for the first fifteen years
of service, and one unit for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of forty-five
units. Payments of retirement benefits are based on the number of units accrued and the
average monthly salaries for the last six months prior to retirement.

1)  Composition of plan assets

The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of each employee’s monthly
wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of Taiwan in accordance with the
provisions of Labor Pension Act, whereby, the labor pension reserve account will make
pension payment in advance.

(Continued)
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The Company’s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to
$80,571 thousand at the date of reporting date. For information on the utilization of the
labor pension fund assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please

refer to the website of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

Movements in present value of the defined benefit obligations

The movement in present value of the defined benefit obligations for the Company were

as follows:
2022 2021
Defined benefit obligations at January 1 $ 86,814 91,577
Current service costs and interests 1,227 1,197
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liabilities
— Actuarial losses due to changes in
demographic assumption - 118
— Actuarial gains from changes in the financial
assumptions (5,647) (5,109)
— Actuarial (gains) and losses from changes in
experience adjustments (8,629) 7,971
Benefits paid (3,218) (8.940)
Defined benefit obligations at December 31 $ 70,547 86,814

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets

The movements in the present value of the plan assets in 2022 and 2021 for the Company

were as follows:

2022 2021
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 75,551 80,892
Interest income 605 324
Remeasurement of the net plan assets
— Actuarial return on plan assets (excluding
interests) 5,830 1,293
Contributions made 1,803 1,982
Benefits paid (3,218) (8,940)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 80,571 75,551
(Continued)
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Expenses recognized in profit or loss

The expenses recognized in profit or loss for 2022 and 2021 for the Company were as
follow:

2022 2021
Current service costs $ 532 831
Net interest on the net defined benefit liabilities 90 42
$ 622 873

2022 2021
Operating costs $ 9 14
Selling expenses 355 485
Administrative expenses 136 164
Research and development expenses 122 210
$ 622 873

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities recognized in other comprehensive
income

The Company’s remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities recognized in other
comprehensive income as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

2022 2021
Balance on January 1 $ 49,017 47,330
Recognized (20.106) 1,687
Balance on December 31 $ 28,911 49,017

Actuarial assumptions

The Company’s principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

2022.12.31 2021.12.31
Discount rate 1.400 % 0.800 %
Future salary increases 3.000 % 3.000 %

The Company has a net defined benefit asset as of December 31, 2022 and no provision
is expected to be made within one year.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit plans were 13.00 years and 14.00 years
in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

(Continued)
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7)  Sensitivity analysis

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the impact on present value due to the changes in the
actuarial assumptions was as follows:

Effective of defined
benefit obligations
Increase Decrease
December 31, 2022
Discount rate (0.25% change) $ (2,202) 2,289
Future salary increases (0.25% change) 2,071 (2,007)
December 31, 2021
Discount rate (0.25% change) (2,955) 3,080
Future salary increases (0.25% change) 2,788 (2,696)

The analysis of the impact of sensitivity was based on the situation that other
assumptions remain constant. In actual situation, many changes in assumption might be
linked. The method used in the sensitivity analysis was consistent with the calculation of
pension liabilities in the balance sheets.

The assumptions used to prepare sensitively analysis in this period were the same as the
previous financial statements.

(i) Defined contribution plans

The Company set aside 6% of the contribution rate of the employee’s monthly wages to the
labor pension personal account of the Bureau of the Labor Insurance in accordance with the
provisions of the Labor Pension Act. The Company set aside a fixed amount to the Bureau of
the Labor Insurance without the payment of additional legal or constructive obligations.

The amount of the Consolidated Company’s pension expenses under defined contribution
pension plans in 2022 and 2021 was as follows:

2022 2021
Operating costs $ 7,414 5,908
Operating expenses $ 110,855 125,698
(Continued)
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Income Taxes

Income tax expenses for the Consolidated Company were summarized as follows:

2022 2021
Current income tax expense $ 141,227 85,199
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 55,969 (8,587)
Income tax expenses S 197,196 76,612

The amount of income tax expense (benefit) recognized in other comprehensive income for the
Consolidated Company was as follows:

2022 2021
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial
statements S 97,156 (45,730)

Reconciliation of income tax expense and profit before tax for the Consolidated Company was as
follows:

2022 2021
Profit before income tax $ 457,578 394,723
Income tax using the Company’s statutory tax rate 91,516 78,945
Effect of tax rate in foreign jurisdiction (3,088) (18)
Share of profit (loss) of associates accounted for using equity
method 6,356 (22,223)
Tax-exempt income (2,861) (41,730)
Change in unrecognized temporary differences 111,254 (12,032)
Income tax adjustments on prior years and others (5.981) 73,670
$ 197,196 76,612
(Continued)

238



D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Deferred tax assets and liabilities
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(i)

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets

The unrecognized deferred income tax assets for the Consolidated Company were as follows:

Deductible temporary differences

Unrealized expenses

Provisions for warranty

Unrealized impairment

Write-down of inventories to net realizable value

Others

Operating loss carry forward

Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
$ 66,311 91,619
12,796 12,572
24,318 24,318
26,720 39,998
107,455 60,350
237,600 228,857
1,217,104 1,114,593
$ 1,454,704 1,343,450

The movements in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

Balance at January 1, 2022
Recognized in profit or

loss

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
financial

Balance at December 31,
2022

Balance at January 1, 2021

Recognized in profit or
loss

Exchange differences on
translation of foreign
financial

Balance at December 31,
2021

Exchange
differences
on
translation
of foreign
Intra-group  financial ~ Unrealized Write-down Loss carry
transactions  statements expenses  of inventory  Bad debts forward Others Total
$ 43,265 323,611 26,166 69,281 391 370,746 36,496 869,956
(15.771) - (22,071) (24,449) (140) (54,001) 30,746 (85.686)
- (97.156) - - - - - (97.156)
S 27,494 226,455 4,095 44,832 251 316,745 67,242 687,114
$ 65,518 277,881 20,856 25,945 874 288,955 65,606 745,635
(22.253) - 5310 43336 (483) 81,791 (29.110) 78,591
- 45,730 - - - - - 45,730
$ 43,265 323,611 26,166 69,281 391 370,746 36,496 869,956
(Continued)
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Investments
under equity
method Others Total
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 296,579 56,258 352,837
Recognized in profit or loss (53,512) 23.795 (29.717)
Balance at December 31, 2022 S 243,067 80,053 323,120
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 242,431 40,402 282,833
Recognized in profit or loss 54,148 15,856 70,004
Balance at December 31, 2021 S 296,579 56,258 352,837

In accordance with the laws of each registered country, the assessed losses can be used to
offset current-year net income. In addition, pursuant to the ROC Income Tax Act, net loss of
the Company and Yeotai as assessed by the tax authorities can be carried forward for ten

consecutive years to reduce future taxable income.

As of December 31, 2022, the

Consolidated Company’s unused loss carry forward available to offset future taxable income

and the year of expiry were as follows:

Consolidated
entity Year of loss

The Company 2017

The Company 2019

The Company 2020

The Company 2021

Yeotai 2014

Yeotai 2016

Yeotai 2019

D-Link Europe 2003, 2015~2016 and
2021~2022

D-Link Brazil 2014~2019 and
2021~2022

D-Link Shiang-Hai 2017~2020

D-Link Mexicana 2014~2015 and
2017~2019

D-Link Systems 2018~2021

D-Link International 2015~2019

D-Link Korea 2012~2019 and 2021

D-Link Trade 2022

Year of expiry

2027
2029
2030
2031
2024
2026
2029

Unlimited

Unlimited
2022~2025

2024~2025 and
2027~2029

2038~2041
Unlimited

2022~2029 and 2031

2032

Unused amount

1,487,026
162,350
620,355
258,641

2,749
1,330
5,947

502,939

997,752
383,261

121,308
454,169
1,391,932
73,044
11,504

. ¥ DA 4

$ 6,474,307

The income tax return of the Company and Yeotai has been examined by the tax authority

through 2020.
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Capital and other equity

®

(i)

(iii)

Common stock

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the authorized capital amounted to $8,800,000 thousand
(including $750,000 thousand authorized for the issuance of the employee stock options). As
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, all the paid-in capital consisted 599,837 thousand shares,
with a par value of $10 per share, amounting to $5,998,365 thousand.

For the purpose of enhancing the return on equity and the structure of capital, the capital
reduction through cash $521,596 thousand return to shareholders was proposed by the
Company’s Board of Directors on March 17, 2021, capital reduction 8% of common shares.
This capital reduction was approved by the shareholders’ meeting on July 5, 2021, and had the
effective registration by the competent Authority. The record date of the capital reduction is on
September 1, 2021, and all relevant change registrations of the capital reduction was finished
on October 5, 2021.

Capital surplus
The balances of capital surplus for the Consolidated Company were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Common stock in excess of par value $ 1,037,080 1,217,030
Treasury share transactions 39,310 39,310
Expiry of share-based payment transactions 129,459 129,459
Expiry of redeemed options of convertible corporate bonds 81,454 81,454
Changes in equities of the Company's ownership interests

in subsidiaries 55,320 55,320

Total $ 1,342,623 1,522,573

According to the R.O.C. Company Act, realized capital surplus can only be reclassified as
share capital or be distributed as cash dividends after offsetting against losses. The
aforementioned realized capital surplus includes share premium and donation gains. According
to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, the
amount of capital surplus to be reclassified under share capital should not exceed 10% of the
paid-in capital each year.

On March 29, 2022, the Company's Board of Directors decided to distribute the cash dividends
by using the capital surplus of $0.3 per share, with the ex-dividend base date and cash payment
date set on August 2, 2022 and August 31, 2022, respectively.

Retained earnings

1) Legal reserve
According to the R.O.C. Company Act No. 237, the Company must retain 10% of its net
profit as a legal reserve until such retention equals the total paid-in capital.
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In accordance with Ruling No. 10802432410 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
on January 9, 2020, the amount of retained earnings allotted to legal reserve shall be
calculated based on "net earnings after income taxes, plus any other amount recognized
in undistributed retained earnings" since the earnings distribution in 2019. When the
legal reserve has exceeded 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital, the excess may be
distributed as dividends in cash or stocks based on the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting if there is no accumulated deficit.

Special reserve

In accordance with Ruling issued by the Financial Supervisory commission, a special
reserve equivalent to the net debit balance of other shareholders’ equity shall be set aside
from the current earnings and the prior unappropriated earnings. The Company shall not
distribute the special reserve equivalent to the net debit balance of shareholders’ equity
from the prior fiscal years set aside from the prior unappropriated earnings. The amount
of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net debt balance of other shareholders’ equity
shall qualify for distribution.

Earning distribution

In accordance with the Company’s articles of incorporation, if there are earnings at year-
end, 10 percent should be set aside as legal reserve until such retention equals the total
paid-in capital after the payment of income tax and offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years. Also set aside from or reverse special reserve in accordance with the
Securities and Exchange Act. The remaining portion will be combined with earnings
from prior years, and the Board of Directors can propose appropriations of earnings to be
approved by the shareholders’ meeting.

The Company’s appropriation of earnings for 2021 has no earnings to distribute after
earnings being retained as legal reserve and special earnings. The appropriation of
earnings for 2021 was approved by the shareholders' meeting on May 27, 2022.

The Company’s appropriation of earnings for 2020 had approved in the Board meeting
held on March 17, 2021. After offsetting accumulated losses from prior years, the Board
of Directors decided to distribute cash dividends $0.3 per share. The appropriation of
earnings for 2020 was approved by the sharecholders’ meeting on July 5, 2021.
Information on the appropriation of earnings for 2020 was available at the Market
Observation Post System website.

Dividend policy

The Company has carried out its Residual Dividend Policy to align with the (i) whole
market (ii) industrial growth characteristics (iii) long term financial plan (iv) talent
acquisition, and (v) pursuing sustainable business development. After deducting the
balance from the items mentioned above, the Board of Directors shall adopt a proposal
for the residual balance and the previous year’s earnings to be submitted for approval
during the shareholders’ meeting. The total amount of dividends to be distributed to the
shareholders shall be no less than 30% of the distributable earnings for the current year.
According to the budget plan for its capital, the Company shall distribute stock dividends
to retain the required funds; and any remainder, which should not be less than 10% of the
total dividends, can be distributed by cash.

(Continued)

242



D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(iv) Other equity

Unrealized gains
(losses) on financial
assets measured at
Exchange differences  fair value through

on translation of other
foreign financial comprehensive

statements income
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ (1,863,596) (2,439)
The Consolidated Company 493,832 (16,112)
Associates 10,500 (9,376)
Associates-liquidation - (16,266)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ (1,359,264) (44,193)

Unrealized gains
(losses) on financial
assets measured at
Exchange differences fair value through

on translation of other
foreign financial comprehensive
statements income
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ (1,520,585) (88,606)
The Consolidated Company (343,882) 54,984
Associates 871 (14,416)
Disposal - 45,599
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ (1,863,596) (2,439)
(v) Non-controlling interests
2022 2021
Balance at the beginning of the period $ 524,978 480,860
Net income attributable to non-controlling interest:
Net income 151,149 78,914
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial
statements (3,544) (23,013)
Cash dividends distributed by subsidiaries (20,799) (11,783)
Balance at the end of the period $ 651,784 524,978

(t)  Earnings per share
The calculation of earnings per share of the Consolidated Company were as follows:

(i)  Basic earnings per share

2022 2021
Net profit of the parent company for the year $ 109,233 239,197
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2022 2021
Outstanding ordinary shares 599,837 634,610
Basic earnings per share $ 0.18 0.38
(i) Diluted earnings per share
2022 2021
Net profit of the parent company for the year $ 109,233 239,197
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares
(basic) 599,837 634,610
Employees’ compensation has not been resolved by the
Board of Directors 677 1,071
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares
(diluted) 600,514 635,681
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.18 0.38

For calculation of the dilutive effect of the stock option, the average market value was assessed
based on the quoted market price where the Company’s option was outstanding.

(u) Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)  The Consolidated Company’s revenue from contracts with customers

Major product / service lines 2022 2021
Network communication products $ 16,875,066 15,364,507
Services 202,822 160,394

$_ 17,077,888 15,524,901

Primary geographical markets 2022 2021
American $ 1,332,290 1,599,246
European 4,887,624 5,036,179
Asia and others 10,857,974 8.889.476

$_ 17,077,888 15,524,901

(i) Contract liabilities
1) The Consolidated Company recognized contract revenue related to contract liabilities:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Current contract liabilities (sales) S 109,075 134,833
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2)  The beginning contract liabilities were recognized as income of $91,923 thousand, and
$70,256 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Employees’ compensation and Directors’ remuneration

In accordance with the Articles of Association, if the Company incur profit for the year, the
Company should contribute a minimum of 1% to a maximum of 15% of annual profit as Employees’
compensation and less than 1% of annual profit as Directors’ remuneration. However, if the
Company has accumulated deficits, the profit should be reserved to offset the deficits. The profit
shall be considered as the annual income before tax, excluding Employees’ compensation and
Directors’ remuneration. The amount of remuneration of directors and the compensation for
employees shall be decided by two-third of the voting rights exercised by the directors present at the
Board of Directors’ meeting who represent a majority of the directors and reported at stockholders’
meeting. The recipients of shares and cash may include the employees of the Company’s affiliated
companies who meet certain specific conditions.

In 2022 and 2021, the Company’s estimated its Employees’ compensation amounted to $7,372
thousand and $12,621 thousand, respectively, and Directors’ remuneration amounted to $737
thousand and $1,262 thousand, respectively. The estimated amounts mentioned above are calculated
based on the profit before tax, excluding the Employees' compensation and Directors' remuneration
of each period, multiplied by the percentage of Employees' compensation and Directors'
remuneration as specified in the Company's Articles of Association. These remunerations were
expensed under operating expenses during 2022 and 2021.

There was no difference between the Company’s estimated and the actual distribution amount in
2021. Related information would be available at the Market Observation Post System website.

Other income and losses

(i) Interest income

2022 2021
Interest income from bank deposits $ 19,419 31,748
Other interest income 5,175 16,249
Total $ 24,594 47,997

(ii) Other income

2022 2021
Rent income $ 5,488 2,707
Dividend income 578 1,155
Total $ 6,066 3,862
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(iii) Other gains and losses

2022 2021
Gain on disposals of investments $ 10,929 6,487
Foreign exchange losses (174,244) (34,474)
Valuation gains (losses) from financial assets and

liabilities 18,252 (19,335)
Others 29.872 51,713
Total $ (115,191) 4,391
(iv) Finance costs

2022 2021
Interest expense $ (3,406) 9,131)
Lease liability interests (14,170) (16,777)
Total $ (17.576) (25,908)

Reclassification adjustments of components of other comprehensive income

Details of the reclassification adjustments of components of other comprehensive income were
summarized as follow:

2022 2021
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial
statements
Change in exchange from the Consolidated Company $ 590,988 (389,612)
Change in exchange from non-controlling interests (3.544) (23.013)

Change in exchange differences on translation of foreign
financial statements recognized in other comprehensive
income $ 587,444 (412,625)

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted
for using equity method

Change in foreign currency exchange from associates $ 10,500 871
Share of other comprehensive income $ 10,500 871
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(y) Financial instruments
(i)  Category of financial instruments
1)  Financial Assets

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Cash and cash equivalents S 2,713,085 2,195,080
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss -

current 284,830 279,344
Notes receivable, accounts receivable and other

receivables (including related parties) 3,452,584 3,704,572
Finance lease payment receivable (current and non-

current) 144,517 155,879
Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income - non-current 16,703 33,300
Refundable deposits and other current assets 208,005 214,717

$ 6,819,724 6,582,892

2)  Financial liabilities

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss - current $ 15,331 16,368
Notes payable, accounts payable and other payables
(including related parties) 3,812,705 3,532,487
Lease liability (current and non-current) 453,986 440,451
Guarantee deposits received 79.030 82,860
$ 4,361,052 4,072,166

(ii)  Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk:
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the maximum exposure to credit risk has amounted to
$6,819,724 thousand and $6,582,892 thousand, respectively.
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(iii) Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Carrying  Contractual Within six 6-12 Over five
amount cash flows months months 1-2 years 2-5 years years
December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Notes payable $ 2,056 2,056 2,056 - - - -
Accounts payable 2,198,737 2,198,737 2,198,737 - - - -
Accounts payable - related
parties 735,769 735,769 735,769 - - - -
Other payables 876,143 876,143 876,143 - - - -
Lease liability 453,986 487,056 81,919 77,138 131,905 190,915 5,179
Guarantee deposits
received 79,030 79,030 79,030 - - - -
Derivative financial
liabilities
Cross currency swaps
Outflow $ 1,361 313,330 313,330 - - - -
Inflow - 311,564 311,564 - - - -
Forward foreign exchange
contracts
Outflow 13,970 1,005,124 1,005,124 - - - -
Inflow - 988,556 988,556 - - - -
$_4,361,052 _ 6,997,365 _ 6,592,228 77,138 131,905 190,915 5,179
Carrying  Contractual Within six 6-12 Over five
amount cash flows months months 1-2 years 2-5 years years
December 31, 2021
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Notes payable $ 11 11 11 - - - -
Accounts payable 2,336,740 2,336,740 2,336,740 - - - -
Accounts payable - related
parties 287,886 287,886 287,886 - - - -
Other payables 907,850 907,850 907,850 - - - -
Lease liability 440,451 469,512 83,910 70,557 101,921 202,940 10,184
Guarantee deposits
received 82,860 82,860 82,860 - - - -
Derivative financial
liabilities
Cross currency swaps
Outflow $ 13,722 1,883,133 1,883,133 - - - -
Inflow - 1,869,634 1,869,634 - - - -
Forward foreign exchange
contracts
Outflow 2,646 558,157 558,157 - - - -
Inflow - 545,260 545,260 - - - -
$_ 4,072,166 _ 8,941,043 _ 8,555,441 70,557 101,921 202,940 10,184
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The Consolidated Company does not expect that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis
could occur significantly earlier or at significantly different amount.

(iv) Currency risk

1) The Consolidated Company’ s significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as

follows:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currency rate TWD currency rate TWD
Financial assets (note):
Monetary items:
CLP $ 51,842 0.03 1,852 94,235 0.04 3,069
IPY 900,870 0.23 211,078 1,051,213 0.24 253,026
CAD 6,125 22.68 138,914 11,342 21.74 246,587
UsD 209,971 30.71 6,447,767 173,724 27.69 4,810,424
MXN - 1.49 - 2,274 1.38 3,059
BRL 10,070 5.89 59,263 41,159 4.96 204,229
AUD 4,749 20.93 99.394 5,750 20.08 115.478
$_ 6,958,268 5,635,872
Non-monetary items:
UsD $ 8,849 30.71 271,724 10,210 27.69 282,716
Derivative instruments:
EUR $ - 32.87 13 14 31.36 437
usb 52 30.71 1,585 - - -
IPY 55,377 0.23 12,975 1,163 0.24 280
CNH 606 4.41 2,674 - - -
CAD 8 22.68 185 - 21.74 4
IDR - 0.0020 _ - - - T
S 17,432 721
Financial liabilities (note):
Monetary items:
IPY $ 2,094,822 0.23 490,827 1,949,949 0.24 469,350
CAD 3,470 22.68 78,691 888 21.74 19,316
EUR - 32.87 - 10,051 31.36 315,254
BRL 21,851 5.89 128,603 21,834 4.96 108,341
usD 149,608 30.71 4,594,173 114,882 27.69 3,181,083
CLP 131,909 0.03 4,713 162,786 0.04 5,301
AUD 2,560 20.93 53,591 1,668 20.08 33,494
MXN - 1.49 - 111 1.38 150
S__5350.598 _ 4132289
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currency rate TWD currency rate TWD
Derivative instruments:
EUR $ 118 32.87 3,885 119 31.36 3,736
GBP - 37.15 - 16 37.39 607
CAD 3 22.68 68 9 21.74 187
IPY 19,859 0.23 4,653 29,626 0.24 7,131
IDR 10,137 0.0020 19 - - -
KRW 117,881 0.03 3,171 3,866 0.03 104
BRL 341 5.89 2,007 264 4.96 1,309
UsD - 30.71 - 46 27.69 1,278
INR 151 0.37 56 - - -
CNH 175 4.41 772 331 4.34 1,439
AUD 33 20.93 700 12 20.08 243
RUB - 0.44 - 896 0.37 334
$ 15,331 16,368

Note: Disclosure in the consolidated financial statements of the financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency is limited
to information on subsidiaries directly held by the Company.

The Consolidated Company’ s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the
translation of the foreign currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, other receivables, loans, accounts payable and other
payables that are denominated in foreign currency. A 1.5% of appreciation (depreciation)
of each consolidated components currency, other than the functional currency, against
the functional currency for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 would have
increased or decreased the net income after tax by $22,526 thousand and $21,654
thousand and increased or decreased the equity by $65 thousand and $61 thousand,
respectively, assuming all other variables were held constant.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

1))

The information of levels in the fair value hierarchy

The Consolidated Company measures the financial instruments at fair value based on a
recurring basis. The level of fair values was as follows:

December 31, 2022

Assets and liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Measured at fair value on recurring
basis

Non-derivative assets and liabilities

Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - current $ 267,398 267,398 - -
Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 16,703 12,377 - 4,326
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Assets and liabilities Total

Derivatives
Assets:
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - current 17,432
Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - current 15,331

Assets and liabilities Total
Measured at fair value on recurring
basis
Non-derivative assets and liabilities
Assets:

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - current $ 278,623

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 33,300

Derivatives
Assets:

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss - current 721

Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - current 16,368

2)  Valuation techniques

December 31, 2022

Level 1 Level 2

- 17,432

- 15,331

December 31, 2021

Level 1 Level 2
278,623 -
29,207 -
- 721
- 16,368

Level 3

Level 3

4,093

The Consolidated Company measures the fair value of financial instruments that are
traded in active markets by a quoted price. The market price of stock exchange is based
on the listed equity instruments. For other financial instruments like forward currency
option contracts, cross currency swaps and foreign currency option contracts, the
Consolidated Company measures the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities using
the observable inputs and the valuation technique from the perspective of market

participants.

3)  Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2

In 2022 and 2021, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 of the fair value

hierarchy.

251

(Continued)



4)

5)

D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Reconciliation of level 3 fair values

Financial
assets at fair
value through
other
comprehensive
income

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 4,093
Recognized in other comprehensive income 233
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 4,326
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 3,739
Recognized in other comprehensive income 354
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 4,093

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total gains and losses that were
included in unrealized gains and losses from financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income were as follows:

2022 2021
Total gains and losses recognized:

In other comprehensive income, and presented in “unrealized
gains from financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income” 233 354

Quantified information on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) used in fair value
measurement

The Consolidated Company’s financial instruments that use Level 3 inputs to measure
fair value include fair value through other comprehensive income — equity investments.

Quantified information of significant unobservable inputs was as follows:
Inter-relationship

between significant
unobservable inputs

Valuation Significant and fair value

Item technique unobservable inputs measurement
Financial assets at fair ~ Net Asset Value Net Asset Value Not applicable
value through other Method
comprehensive income-
equity investments
without an active market
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(vi) Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

1)  Information of fair value

Except for those listed in the table below, the carrying amounts of the Consolidated
Company’ s financial instruments not measured at fair value, including cash and cash
equivalents, notes receivable, accounts receivable/payable and other receivables/
payables, approximate their fair values. Moreover, lease liabilities are not measured at

fair value.
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
Non-financial assets:
Investment property $ 38,480 73,181 38,876 51,328

December 31, 2022
Assets and liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-financial assets:
Investment property $ 73,181 - - 73,181
December 31, 2021
Assets and liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-financial assets:
Investment property $ 51,328 - - 51,328

2)  Valuation techniques

The assumptions used by the Consolidated Company to determine the fair value were as
follows:

a)  The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and other financial instruments
that approximate their fair value due to their short maturities or similar to the future
receipt and payment price.

b) The fair value of investment property that was based on the comparable deal
information with similar location and category.

(z) Financial risk management

®

Overview

The Consolidated Company was exposed to the following risks rising from financial
instruments:

1) Creditrisk
2)  Liquidity risk
(Continued)
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3)  Market risk

The following likewise discusses the Consolidated Company’ s objectives, policies and
processes for measuring and managing the above-mentioned risks. For more disclosures about
the quantitative effects of these risk exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Structure of risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
risk management framework. The Board has given the department directors a task to establish
and dominate regulations of risk management to effectively ensure operations of risk
management. The personnel change in department directors should be reported to the Board of
Directors.

The Consolidated Company use internal control systems, risk management procedures, and
regulations of risk management as the basis of various business risk management standards.
The Consolidated Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze
the risks faced by the Consolidated Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Consolidated Company’s activities.
The Consolidated Company, through training and management standards and procedures, aims
to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee oversee how management monitors compliance
with the Consolidated Company’ s risk management policies and procedures and review the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Consolidated
Company. The Board of Directors and Audit Committee are assisted in their oversight role by
Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Board of Directors and Audit
Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Consolidated Company if a customer or
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations and arises
principally from the Consolidated Company's receivables from customers, investment in
securities and hedge derivatives.

1) Accounts receivable

The credit risk exposure of the Consolidated Company arises from the operations and
financial conditions of each customer and the political and economic stability of the
Consolidated Company’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate in. However, the Consolidated Company operates
worldwide, and thus, risk is diversified. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, revenue
from each customer does not exceed 10% of the Consolidated Company’ s revenue,
therefore, there is no concentration of credit risk.
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The Consolidated Company has completed in setting the credit risk management policies,
and has established Institutional Credit Review Committee and Credit Risk Management
Department, which are responsible for managing credit policies and client’s credit risk.
Based on the global risk management, credit rating and analysis are required to
customers on credit in advance and granted credit limits. For customers who made their
payments other than cash, regular reviews on credit limits are required to ensure the
creditworthiness of customers.

Allowance for bad debt is set based on the lifetime expected credit loss of each customer.
In order to mitigate the risk of default, the Consolidated Company has purchased
guarantees, with appropriate insured amount for customers in high-risk countries. High
risks customers without insurance should make their payments in advance or provide
sufficient credit guarantees. In addition, when the creditworthiness of customers worsens,
they should be placed on a restricted customer list. The credit rating for these customers
should be downgraded and the transactions on sales credit should be restricted.

The Consolidated Company has set the allowance for bad debt account to reflect the
possible losses on accounts and other receivables. The allowance for bad debt account
consists of specific losses relating to individually significant exposure from customers
with financial difficulties or operating conflicts. The allowance for bad debt account is
based on expected credit loss and historical collection record of similar financial assets
or the possibility of breaching the contracts.

2)  Investment in securities and derivative financial instruments

The credit risk exposure in the bank deposits, fixed income investments and derivative
financial instrument are measured and monitored by the Consolidated Company’ s
finance department. As the Consolidated Company will select financial institutions with
good credit ratings as its counterparties and diversify its investment in different financial
institutions, and do not expect to have any default risks and significant concentration of
credit risk.

3)  Guarantees

The Consolidated Company’s policies is to provide financial guarantees only to wholly
owned subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Consolidated Company has
not provided any guarantees to a third party.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Consolidated Company will encounter difficulty in meeting
the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Consolidated Company’ s approach to manage liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Consolidated Company’s reputation. The Consolidated Company aims to
maintain the level of its cash and short-term bank facilities at an amount in excess of expected
cash flows on financial liabilities over the succeeding 60 days. This excludes the potential
impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.
The Consolidated Company had unused credit facilities for $3,236,868 thousand as of
December 31, 2022.
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Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates or equity prices that affects the Consolidated Company's income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters to minimize the influence on
change in market price or control within expectable scope.

The Consolidated Company buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial liabilities, in
order to manage market risks. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines of risk
management.

D

2)

Currency risk

The Consolidated Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and loans that
are denominated in currencies other than its respective functional currencies. The
functional currencies of the Consolidated Company are primarily denominated in US
Dollars (USD) and New Taiwan Dollars (TWD) and include denominated in Euro
(EUR), Chinese Yuan (CNY), Japanese Yen (JPY) and Brazilian Real (BRL) of other
countries in which the subsidiaries registered. Purchases are mainly denominated in USD
while sales are denominated in USD, EUR, CNY, TWD, British Pounds (GBP),
Australian Dollar (AUD), Canadian Dollar (CAD), JPY, South Korean Won (KRW),
Russian Ruble (RUB), Indian Rupee (INR), Indonesian Rupiah (IDR), BRL, and so on.

At any point in time, the Consolidated Company hedges its currency risk based on its
actual and forecast sales over the following six months. The Consolidated Company also
uses nature hedges to hedge the net risk position after offseting assets and liabilities
denominated in the same foreign currencies and maintained the hedge ratio at 50% and
above. The Consolidated Company uses forward exchange contracts and foreign-
exchange options, with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date, to hedge
its currency risks.

Generally, the currencies of loans in the Consolidated Company are denominated in its
functional currencies and are incorporated in net exposure on loan requirement
denominated in foreign currencies as mentioned above to ensure the net exposure is
maintained at acceptable level.

Transactions in derivative financial instruments adopt economic hedge to prevent
currency risk from financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The
gains and losses of hedged items are expected to offset gains or losses that arise from the
fluctuations in exchange rates. The valuation gains and losses on financial assets consist
of transactions that do not qualify as hedging accounting.

Interest rate risk

The Consolidated Company’ s bank loans are at fixed rate. Therefore, the change in
market interest rate will not affect the cash flow of the future interest payment of the
Consolidated Company, hence, there is no significant interest rate risk.

(Continued)
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3)  Other price risks

The Consolidated Company holds both monetary funds and bond funds, where their
prices are affected by changes in mutual funds. The abovementioned mutual funds are
widely used as fixed income investments, with large market scale, stable market prices,
and high liquidity. The Consolidated Company is held for the purpose of short-term
capital allocation with a period of approximately 3 months. The finance department will
monitor the changes in market and dispose of the investments, if necessary.

Capital management

The Consolidated Company’ s fundamental management objective is to maintain a strong capital
base. Capital consists of ordinary shares, capital surplus, retained earnings and other equities. The
Board of Directors monitors the capital structure regularly and selects the optimal capital structure
by considering the capital scale, overall operating environment, operating characteristics of the
industry in order to support future development of the business. The current aim for debt-to-equity
ratio is set within 100%. As of the reporting date, the debt-to-equity ratio is considered appropriate.

Debt-to-equity ratio:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Total liabilities $ 5,860,085 5,501,528
Less: cash and cash equivalents (2,713.,085) (2,195.080)
Net debt $ 3,147,000 3,306,448
Total equity $ 9,561,456 9,002,336
Debt-to-equity ratio 32.91% 36.73%

As of December 31, 2022, the methods of the Consolidated Company’ s capital management
remained unchanged.

Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

Information of non-cash-traded investing and financing activities for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 were as follows:

(i)  For right-to-use assets, please refer to note 6(i).
(i) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Non-cash changes

January 1, Fair value December 31,
2022 Cash flows  Exchange changes Others 2022
Lease liabilities $ 440451 (150,693) - - 164,228 453,986
Others 82,860 (3.830) - - - 79,030
Total liabilities
from financing
activities $_ 523311 (154,523) - - 164,228 533,016
(Continued)
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Non-cash changes

January 1, Fair value December 31,
2021 Cash flows  Exchange changes Others 2021
Lease liabilities $ 496,974 (166,739) - - 110,216 440,451
Others 70,284 12,576 - - - 82,860
Total liabilities
from financing
activities $__ 567,258 (154,163) - - 110,216 523,311

(7) Related-party transactions:

(2)

(b)

Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have transactions with related party during the periods covered in the
consolidated financial statement:

Name of related party Relationship with the Consolidated Company

Cameo Communication, Inc. An associate (Due to increasing shareholding in February
2021, the Consolidated Company became to have
significant influence with it and the relationship
changed from the corporate director to an associate.)

Perfect Choice Co., Ltd. An associate

T-COM, LLC (T-COM) An associate

Yeochia Investment Ltd. An associate (The company was liquidated in July, 2022)

Yeomao Investment Inc. An associate (The company was liquidated in October,
2022)

Amigo Technology Inc. Other related party

Amit Wireless Inc. Other related party

Sapido Technology Inc. Other related party

E-Sheng Steel Co., Ltd. Other related party

Significant related party transactions

(i)  Sales and service revenue

2022 2021
Associates $ 104,996 15,597
Others 4,347 -
$ 109,343 15,597

The average credit terms extended to related parties and third-party customers were
approximately 30-90 days. However, credit terms to related parties might be further extended
when necessary.
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Purchases

Associates:

Cameo

Other related parties:

Amigo
Amit

2022 2021
$ 1,631,359 1,043,972
902,254 158,950
6,700 2,241
$ 2,540,313 1,205,163

The payment term of related parties was 30-90 days. There were no significant differences in
payment terms between related parties and third-party suppliers.

Receivables from related parties

Account

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
Other receivables
Other receivables
Other receivables
Other receivables
Other receivables

December 31, December 31,

Relationship 2022 2021
Associates —Cameo $ - 86
Associates — T-COM 3,217 10,101
Associates —PC 1,800 -

Other related parties — Sapido 10 -
Associates —Cameo 73 -
Associates — Yeochia - 71,169
Associates — Yeomao - 143,616
Associates —T-COM 65 -
Other related parties — Amigo 18 21,942
Other related parties — Amit - 5,573
$ 5,183 252,487

The Consolidated Company’ s other receivables arose from the liquidation of its affiliates,
Yeochia and Yeomao. Yeochia and Yeomao were liquidated in July and Octorber, 2022,
respectively, resulting in the losses under other equity to be transferred to retained earnings
amounting to $16,266 thousand.
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(iv) Payables to related parties

December 31,

December 31,

Account Relationship 2022 2021
Accounts payable Associates —Cameo $ 530,536 176,131
Accounts payable Other related parties — Amigo 203,678 109,935
Accounts payable Other related parties — Amit 1,555 1,820
Other payables Associates —Cameo 3,396 6,310
Other payables Other related parties — Amigo 12,235 -

Other payables Other related parties — Amit 6,490 659
Other payables Other related parties — Sapido 2,100 -
Contract liabilities Associates —T-COM 8,137 -

$ 768,127 294,855

The Consolidated Company's other payables to affiliates, which include equipment payables
and others. Contract liabilities arose from the advance charges of sales consideration to

affiliates.

(v) Property transaction

The acquisition of mold equipment and intangible assets from the related parties were as

follows:
2022 2021
Associates:
Cameo 7,510 3,436
Other related parties:
Amigo 32,574 5,814
Amit 472 -
Sapido 2.000 -
$ 42,556 9,250
(vi) Services purchased from related parties
The services purchased from related parties were as follows:
2022 2021
Associates:
Cameo 847 12,208
Other related parties:
Amigo 10,102 3,436
Amit 14,466 -
$ 25,415 15,644
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(vii) Other income and losses

Account Relationship 2022 2021
Other gains and losses ~ Associates — Yeochia $ 286 -
Other gains and losses ~ Associates — Yeomao (2,453) -
Other gains and losses ~ Other related parties — Amigo 96 -
Other interest income  Other related parties — Amigo 373 272
$ (1,698) 272

Other income and losses consist of interest income, gain on disposal of miscellaneous
equipment and other losses arising from the liquidation of interest from associates.

(viii) Lease

The Consolidated Company leased the office building to other related parties— Amigo and
entered into a one-year lease agreement for $3,663 thousand with reference to the office rental
rate in the neighboring areas in October 2021. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, the Consolidated Company recognized rent income of $3,488 thousand and $1,300
thousand, respectively.

The Consolidated Company also leased the office building to Cameo and entered into a one-
year lease agreement for $640 thousand in March 2022. For the year ended December 31,
2022, the Consolidated Company recognized rent income of $524 thousand.

(¢) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 45,338 85,582
Post-employee benefits 904 5,959
$ 46,242 91,541

(8) Pledged assets:

The carrying values of pledged assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Pledged assets Object 2022 2021

Other current assets and other non-current ~ Rental deposits,

assets

performance bond
and time deposits S 97,164 77,143
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(9) Significant contingent liabilities and unrecognized commitments:

(2)

(®)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

(2

The Consolidated Company’ s subsidiary, D-Link Brazil, had disputes regarding prior year's
insufficient invoices attached to sales return with the local tax authorities, and had filed litigation.
D-Link Brazil had accrued possible tax, interest and penalty.

The Consolidated Company’ s subsidiary, D-Link India, had disputes regarding prior year's
declaration tax on customs with the local tax authorities. Based on its evaluation, the Consolidated
Company believes the litigation will not have any significant impact on its current operations.

UNM Rainforest Innovations filed a lawsuit against the Company in February 2020, alleging that
some of the D-Link’s products infringed its patents. The Company has retained its attorneys in the
US and is currently building defense with product suppliers. Based on its evaluation, the
Consolidated Company believes the litigation will not have any significant impact on its current
operations.

Israel Consumers Council filed a group lawsuit against the Consolidated Company's subsidiary,
D-Link International, in 2020, alleging that D-Link International was suspected of restricting product
resale prices in Israel. D-Link International has appointed its attorneys to handle and negotiate a
settlement. Based on its evaluation, the Consolidated Company believes the litigation will not have
any significant impact on its current operations.

In 2022, Atlas Global filed a lawsuit against the Company, alleging that some of D-Link’s products
have infringed its patents. Hence, the Company has appointed attorneys to handle the case. The
Consolidated Company believes the litigation will not have any significant impact on its current
operations.

In 2022, TurboCode LLC filed a lawsuit against the Company, alleging that some of the D-Link’s
products infringed its patents. Hence, the Company has appointed attorneys to handle the case. The
Consolidated Company believes the litigation will not have any significant impact on its current
operations.

The Consolidated Company is currently under negotiations with a number of companies regarding
the royalty on patents. In addition to the abovementioned lawsuits, there are other disputes that are in
the negotiation process, and therefore the amount of liabilities is unclear. The Consolidated
Company has accrued the possible expense.

(10) Losses Due to Major Disasters: None.

(11) Subsequent Events: None.
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(12) Other:

(2)

The information on employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization expenses, by function, is
summarized as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2022 2021
By function| Cost of |Operating Cost of |Operating
By item Goods Sold | Expense Total  |Goods Sold | Expense Total
Employee benefits
Salaries 72,135| 1,927,470 | 1,999,605 58,220 | 2,058,494 | 2,116,714
Labor and health insurance 2,600 99,919 102,519 2,381 127,032 129,413
Pension 7,423 111,468 118,891 5,922 126,557 132,479
Others 8,664 218,930 227,594 8,352 236,925 245,277
Depreciation 12,164 196,038 208,202 13,528 216,569 230,097
JAmortization 31 30,782 30,813 36 43,228 43,264
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(13) Other disclosures:
(a) Information on significant transactions:

The following is the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Consolidated Company:

(i)  Loans to other parties:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Highest
balance Collateral
of financin Actual | Range of |Purposes of| Transaction Maximum
er usage | interest | fund | amountfor | Reasons imit of
parties amount  [rates during| financing | business for funding | fund
Nameof | Nameof | Account | Related |duringthe | Ending | during the | the period | for the | between two | short-term [ Allowance Toan limits | financing
Number | lender | borrower | name party period | balance | period (%) | borrower |  parties | financing |for bad debt| Ttem Value | (Note) | (Note)
1 [pLink ID-Link ther Yes 317459 317459 317450 380 2 - perating - - - 2,797,257 2797257
Jinternational  [Shiang Hai - freceivables- apital
elated
parties
1 [pLink ID-Link ther Yes 597.646[ 360357 360357 - 2 - onvert - - - 2,797,257 2797257
Jinternational  [Shiang Hai - freceivables- rom
elated Account
parties eceivables
2 [p-Link Russia [D-Link ther Yes 752346 752346 752346 - 2 - - - - 767444 767444
Jinvestment  |Corporation receivables-
clated
[parties.
3 [p-LinkJapan [D-Link ther Yes w1749 w1749 421749 0.50 2 - - - - 617517 617517
JKK. “orporation [receivables-
clated
[parties.
4 [pLink ID-Link ther Yes 164349 164349 101,897 1.00 2 - - - - 200,050 200,050
|Deutschland) [Europe eceivables-
smbH clated
[parties.

Note 1: Purpose of fund financing for the borrower
1. For those companies with business transaction with the Company, please fillin |

2. For those companies with short-term financing needs, please fill in 2.

Note 2: Total amount of loans from D-Link International to the Company and the parent company’s 100% directly or indirectly owned over bsidiaries shall not exceed 100% of the net worth of D-Link Intemational

Note 3: Total amount of loans from D-Link Russia Investment to the Company shall not exceed 100% of the net worth of D-Link Russia Investment

Note 4: Total amount of loans from D-Link Japan K K. to the Company shall not exceed 100% of the net worth of D-Link Japan K X.

Note 5: Total amount of loans from D-Link (Deutschland) GmbH to the Company and the ultimate parent company’s 100% directly or indirectly owned overseas subsidiaries shall not exceed 100% of the net worth of D-Link
(Deutschland) GmbH.

Note 6: Only disclose funding loan limits that are stil valid until the end of 2022.

(i) Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Ratio of
Counter-party of accumulated
guaranteeand  [Limitation on|  Highest amounts of Parent ubsidiary [E:
endorsement amount of | balance for | Balance of Property | guarantees and company to
guarantees | guarantees | guarantees | Actual | pledged for |endorsements to] Maximum |endors to| third parties
and and and usage | guarantees |net worth of the | amount for |guarantees tof third parties | on behalf of
onshi amount and atest guarantees | third parties | on behalf of | companies in
Name of with the | for a specific|  during as of du financial and onbehalfof | parent Mainland
No. Name | Company | enterprise | the period _|reporting date| _period Amount statements subsidiary | _company China
0 [pLink  |pLink > 1.999.455 122473 122473 62324 - 137% 5,998,365 v N N
“orporation [Europe
0 |pLink  |p-Link 2 1.999.455 153,540 153540 57152 - 172% 5,998,365 v N v
Corporation [Shiang-Hai

Note 1: The endorsement and guarantee amount for a single company shall not exceed 1/3 of the Company’s capital.

Note 2: The total amount of endorsement and guarantee shall not exceed the Company’s capital.

Note 3: Relationship between the endorser/guarantor and the party being endorsed/guaranteed is classified into following categories
1. Having business relationship.

2. The Company owns more than 50% equity shares in the entity, directly or indirectly.

An entity owns more than 50% equity shares in the Company, directly or indirectly.

Note 4: The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
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(iii) Securities held as of December 31, 2022 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures):

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars/shares)

Category and Ending balance Highest

Name of holder name of Relationship Account Percentage of A percentage of
! N ¢ 2 Fair value h

security __|with company| title lownership (%)) lownership (%)

Shares/Units |Carrying valug] Note

D-Link [EHOO INone [Financial assets at 749,663 - 411 % - 4.11 %
ICorporation [fair value through
Iprofit or loss-non-
urrent

D-Link [EWAVE [None [Financial assets at 83,334 - 1.89 % - 1.89 %
[Corporation Ifair value through
rofit or loss-non-
urrent

D-Link [TGC [None [Financial assets at 500,000 - 1.84 % - 1.84 %
(Corporation fair value through
[profit or loss-non-
leurrent

ID-Link ICHIA None [Financial asscts at 73,500 B 6.68 % B 6.68 %
(Corporation information fair value through
Corporation Iprofit or loss-non-
current

ID-Link [UBICOM INone [Financial assets at 926,814 - 3.05 % - 3.05 %
ICorporation [fair value through
Iprofit or loss-non-
urrent

D-Link PurpleComm, Inc. [None [Financial assets at 3,385.417 - 14.10 % - 14.10 %
(Corporation lair value through
rofit or loss-non-
urrent

D-Link slobal Mobile  [None [Financial assets at 6,600,000 - 239 % - 239 %
(Corporation “orp. fair value through
profit or loss-non-
leurrent

[D-Link Holding _[Best 3C None [Financial assets at 600,000 B 188 % B 1.88 %
fair value through
Iprofit or loss-non-
current

ID-Link Holding ~ [E20 INone [Financial assets at 252,525 - 0.05 % - 0.05 %

Ifair value through
rofit or loss-non-
urrent

[Veotai Stemeyte one [Financial assets at 18,950 215 0.01 % 215 0.01 %

lair value through
ther

comprehensive

lincome-non-
urrent

Yeotai [Kaimei None [Financial assets at 231,342 12377 021 % 12377 021%

Ifair value through
ther

lcomprehensive
income-non-
urrent

D-Link India ICICIMUTUAL ~ [None [Financial assets at 310,132 37716 - 37,716 - %
FUND lfair value through
[profit or loss-
urrent

D-Link India [ADITYA BIRLA  [None [Financial assets at 258,923 34,297 - 34,297 - %
IMUTUAL FUND [fair value through
rofit or loss-
leurrent

ID-Link India INIPPON INDIA  |None [Financial assets at 16,719 33,606 - 33,606 - %
[UTUAL FUND [fair value through
[profit or loss-
leurrent

[D-Link India [TATA MUTUAL |[None [Financial assets at 25,004 32,126 B 32,126 %

[FUND [fair value through

Iprofit or loss-
urrent

D-Link India SBIMUTUAL  [None [Financial assets at 27.909 35,895 - 35,895 - %

FUND lfair value through

[profit or loss-
urrent
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Category and

Ending balance

Highest

[FUND

lfair value through
[profit or loss-
urrent

Name of holder nameof | Relationship | Account Shares/Units e vatug Pereentage of [T percentage of |
security __|with company| title Carrying value| o\ norship (%) lownership (%) Note
ID-Link India [FIDFC MUTUAL |None [Financial assets at 20,926 33,788 - 33,788 o %
FUND Ifair value through
[profit or loss-
current
ID-Link India [UTIMUTUAL _ [None [Financial assets at 27,093 37,690 , 37,690 T %
FUND lfair value through
[profit or loss-
urrent
D-Link India_|AXIS MUTUAL _|None [Financial asscts at 24,571 22,280 E 22,280 T %

(iv) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of
the capital stock: None

(v)  Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None

(vi) Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None

(vii) Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the
capital stock:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

266

Transactions with terms Notes/Accounts
Transaction details different from others receivable (payable)
Percentage of [Percentage of totall
total notes/accounts
IName of [Nature of Purchase/ purchases/ receivable
lcompany Related party ionship _[(Sales) Amount (Sales) __|[Payment terms| _Unit price _|Payment terms|Ending balance| __(payable) Note
ID-Link ID-Link [Subsidiary |(Sales and (920,101 (13) % 60 days 82,248 5%
ICorporation  [International lervice revenue)|
ID-Link ID-Link Systems [Subsidiary |(Sales and (540,088 ) % 75 days — - 240,255 14%
|Corporation lservice revenuc))
ID-Link ID-Link Canada [Subsidiary |(Sales and (158,061 2 % 60 days - - 43,643 3%
|Corporation lservice revenuc)
ID-Link ID-Link Europe [Subsidiary \(Sales and (1,547,963 (22) % 60 days 280,006 17%
|Corporation lservice revenue)
ID-Link ID-Link ME [Subsidiary [(Sales and (1,302,058 (18) % 60 days - - 382,258 23%
|Corporation lservice revenue)|
ID-Link ID-Link [Subsidiary |(Sales and (199,263 3) % 60 days. 26,026 2%
|Corporation ~ |Australia kervice revenue)|
ID-Link ID-Link Japan  [Subsidiary  [(Sales and (622,582 © % 60 days — — 143,758 9%
|Corporation lservice revenuc))
ID-Link ID-Link India  [Subsidiary |(Sales and (939,617 (13) % 45 days 225,073 13%
ICorporation lervice revenue)|
ID-Link ID-Link Trade [Subsidiary [(Sales and (140,493 @ % 180 days - - . %
|Corporation lservice revenuc))
ID-Link ‘ameo “ameo is an [Purchase 1,434,699 23 90 days - - (453,134)| Q2N%
|Corporation lassociate of the
[consolidated
korporation
ID-Link [AMIGO ther related  [Purchase 706,972 11 % 90 days - - (146,742)| (9)%
|Corporation Iparty
ID-Link ID-Link [Parent company [Purchase 841,882 54 % 60 days - — (82,248) (61)%
International  [Corporation
ID-Link Systems [D-Link [Parent company |Purchase 560,936 90 % 75 days (240,255)| (59)%
Comporation
ID-Link Canada [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 156,763 73 % 60 days - - (43,643)] (67)%
“orporation
ID-Link Europe [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 1,540,225 82 % 60 days (280,006)| (75)%
(Corporation
ID-Link ME  [D-Link IParent company [Purchase 1,301,467 0 % 60 days - - (382,258) 48)%
“orporation
ID-Link ID-Link [Parent company [Purchase 198,788 91 % 60 days (26,026)| (94)%
|Australia (Corporation
ID-Link Japan ~ [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 597478 85 % 60 days — - (143.758)| (86)%
Corporation
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Transactions with terms Notes/Accounts
Transaction details different from others receivable (payable)
Percentage of [Percentage of totall
notes/accounts
Name of Natureof  [Purchase/ purchases/ receivable
lcompany [Related party ionship _|(Sales) Amount (Sales) _|Payment terms| _Unit price _|Payment terms|Ending balance] __(payable) Note
ID-Link India ~ [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 879724 22 % 45 days - - (225,073) (36)%
(Corporation
D-Link Trade ~ [D-Link IParent company [Purchase 140,405 180 days - - - %
(Corporation
ID-Link ID-Link Europe [The ultimate ~ [(Sales) (3268200 (13)% 60 days - - (1,362) %
International [parent company
s D-Link
ICorporation
ID-Link D-Link ME  [The ultimate ~ [(Sales) (246,990]  (10) % 60 days - - 203,906 15%
International Iparent company
is D-Link
“orporation
ID-Link ID-Link Trade  [The ultimate ~ [(Sales) (351349 (14)% 180 days - - 502,756 36%
lInternational [parent company
s D-Link
“orporation
ID-Link Europe [D-Link [The ultimate ~ [Purchase 326,820 17 % 60 days - - 1362 %
linternational ~ [parent company
is D-Link
(Corporation
D-Link ME [D-Link The ultimate ~ [Purchase 246,990 8 % 60 days - - (203,906) (26)%
lInternational  [parent company
s D-Link
“orporation
D-Link Trade ~ [D-Link [The ultimate ~ [Purchase 351349 23 % 180 days (502,756) (55)%
linternational arent company
s D-Link
(Corporation
ID-link Shiang-  [D-Link Trade ~ [The ultimate ~ [(Sales) (886.577) (87 % 150 days - - 397,466 96%
[Hai Inc [parent company
s D-Link
“orporation
[D-Link Trade ~ [D-link Shiang-  [The ultimate ~ [Purchase 886,577 58 % 150 days (397.466) “3)%
IHai (Cayman) ~ [parent company
inc. s D-Link
Corporation

Note : The subsidaris' intcrcompany transactions had been liminated inthe consolidated inancial statcmens,
(viii) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the capital stock:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Name of Nature of Ending Turnover Overdue (Note 1) Amounts received in Allowance
subsequent period
company Related party i i balance rate Amount Action taken (Note 2) for bad debts
ID-Link Corporation ~[D-Link Systems [Subsidary 240,2: 4.67 - - 69,360 -
ID-Link Corporation  [D-Link Europe [Subsidary 280,006 10.70 - - 98,535 -
[D-Link Corporation ~[D-Link ME [Subsidary 382,258 678 - - 61,415 -
ID-Link Corporation  [D-Link Japan [Subsidary 143,758 8.31 - - 51,579 -
ID-Link Corporation ~[D-Link India [Subsidary 225,073 731 - - 128,083 -
[D-Link International [D-Link ME [The ultimate parent 203,906 0.65 203,906 - - -
company is D-Link
Corporation
ID-Link International [D-Link L.A. [The ultimate parent 638,497 - 638,497 - - -
company is D-Link
“orporation
ID-Link International [D-Link Brazil [The ultimate parent 167,458 0.03 167,458 - 17,897 -
ompany is D-Link
[Corporation
ID-Link International [D-Link Trade The ultimate parent 502,756 056 465919 - 56,392
company is D-Link
Corporation
[D-link Shiang-Hai ~ [D-Link Trade [The ultimate parent 397,466 5.95 - - 82,289 -
inc. company is D-Link
“orporation

Note 1: Over three months during the normal credit period.
Note 2: The amount represents collections subsequent to December 31, 2022 up to February 10, 2023,

Note 3: The transactions had been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.
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(ix) Trading in derivative instruments:

(x)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Derivative Instruments Holding Contract
Company Name Category Purpose Amount Book Value | Fair Value
[Non-trading:
ID-Link Corporation ICross currency swap JUSD JUSD 28,200 1,585 1,585
ID-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap VPY VPY 1,800,000 12,975 12,975
D Link International (Cross currency swap ICNH ICNH 127,134 2,674 2,674
ID-Link Corporation IForward foreign exchange IEUR (Sell) IEUR 1,400 13 13
contract
ID-Link Corporation IForward foreign exchange ICAD (Sell) ICAD 900 185 185
lcontract
ID-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap IEUR IEUR 2,400 (71) (71)
ID-Link International (Cross currency swap IEUR I[EUR 800 (709) (709)
D-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap IAUD IAUD 600 (56)| (56)|
ID-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap ICAD ICAD 500 (50) (50)
ID-Link International (Cross currency swap ICNH ICNH 41,664 (475) (475)
ID-Link Corporation IForward foreign exchange IEUR(Sell) I[EUR 6,300 (3,105) (3,105)
contract
ID-Link Corporation IForward foreign exchange JAUD (Sell) IAUD 1,700 (644) (644)
icontract
D-Link Corporation Forward foreign exchange ICAD (Sell) ICAD 1,000 (18) (18)
contract
ID-Link International [Forward foreign exchange IDR (Sell) I[DR 21,805,000 (19) (19)
lcontract
D-Link India Forward foreign exchange INR (Sell) INR 227,782 (56) (56)
contract
ID-Link International [Forward foreign exchange IBRL(Sell) IBRL 26,625 (2,007) (2,007),
lcontract
D-Link International Forward foreign exchange “NH (Buy) “NH 24,301 (297) (297)
contract
ID-Link Corporation IForward foreign exchange VPY(Sell) VPY 1,025,060 (4,653)| (4,653)|
lcontract
ID-Link International IForward foreign exchange IKRW(Sell) IKRW 4,420,970 (3,171) (3,171),
contract

Business relationships and significant intercompany transactions:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Nature of Intercompany transactions
No.  [Name of company| Name of counter-party | r Account name Amount Trading terms || e age of the consolidated
0 |p-Link [D-Link Systems 1 lInvestments 1,507,525 10%
“orporation laccounted for
lusing equity
Imethod
0 [D-Link ID-Link International | lInvestments 2,478 811 16%
“orporation faccounted for
sing equity
Imethod
0 |p-Link [D-Link Holding 1 [Investments 1,664,029 11%
[Corporation faccounted for
1sing equity
method
0 |p-Link D-Link Australia | [Investments 156,385 - 1%
ICorporation laccounted for
using equity
method
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Nature of Intercompany tr
X y S ! ] ) ) [Percentage of the
No. [Name of company| Name of party Account name Amount Trading terms et revenue or total assets
0 ID-Link ID-Link ME 1 [[nvestments 1,033,412 - %
“orporation laccounted for
lusing equity
method
0 ID-Link ID-Link Japan 1 [[nvestments 626,409 - 4%
Corporation faccounted for
lusing equity
method
0 |p-Link D-Link Brazil 1 [nvestments (179,589 - )%
“orporation laccounted for
lusing equity
Imethod-credit
0 ID-Link ID-Link L.A. 1 [nvestments (627,565 - )%
“orporation faccounted for
1sing equity
Imethod-credit
0 ID-Link ID-Link International 1 [Sales and service 920,101 60 Days 5%
ICorporation Irevenue
0 ID-Link ID-Link Systems 1 [Sales and service 540,088 75 Days 3%
ICorporation evenue
0 |p-Link ID-Link Europe 1 [Sales and service 1,547,963 60 Days 9%
“orporation revenue
0 |p-Link ID-Link ME 1 [Sales and service 1,302,058 60 Days 8%
“orporation revenue
0 ID-Link ID-Link Australia 1 [Sales and service 199,263 60 Days 1%
“orporation evenue
0 ID-Link ID-Link Japan 1 [Sales and service 622,582 60 Days 4%
“orporation revenue
0 ID-Link ID-Link India 1 [Sales and service 939,617 45 Days 6%
“orporation lrevenue
0 ID-Link ID-Link Systems 1 [Accounts 240,255 75 Days 2%
ICorporation Ireceivable—related
[party
0 ID-Link ID-Link Europe 1 [Accounts 280,006 60 Days 2%
ICorporation Ireceivable—related
[party
0 ID-Link ID-Link ME 1 [Accounts 382,258 60 Days 2%
ICorporation Ireceivable—related
[party
0 ID-Link ID-Link India 1 [Accounts 225,073 45 Days 1%
ICorporation lreceivable—related
[party
1 ID-Link Holding  [D-Link Mauritius 3 [[nvestments 1,040,489 - 7%
faccounted for
lusing equity
method
1 ID-Link Holding  [D-Link Europe 3 [[nvestments 970,342 - 6%
faccounted for
lusing equity
Imethod
| |P-Link Holding  [Success Stone 3 llnvestments 170,952 - 1%
laccounted for
sing equity
Imethod
1 ID-Link Holding  |D-Link Shiang-Hai 3 [Investments (266,983 - )%
Cayman) faccounted for
lusing equity
Imethod-credit
2 ID-Link ID-Link ME 3 [Accounts 203,906 60 Days 1%
[International receivable-related
[party
2 ID-Link ID-Link L.A. 3 [Accounts 638,497 75 Days 4%
[International receivable-related
[party
2 ID-Link ID-Link Brazil 3 [Accounts 167,458 75 Days 1%
[International receivable-related
[party
(Continued)
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Nature of Intercompany tr
X y . ! ] ) ) [Percentage of the
No. [Name of company| Name of party | r Account name Amount Trading terms et revenue or total assets
2 ID-Link ID-Link Trade 3 [Accounts 502,756 180 Days 3%
[International receivable—related
[party
2 ID-Link ID-Link Europe 3 |(Sales) 326,820 60 Days 2%
[International
2 ID-Link ID-Link ME 3 \(Sales) 246,990 60 Days 1%
[International
2 ID-Link ID-Link Trade 3 \(Sales) 351,349 180 Days 2%
[International
2 ID-Link ID-Link Russia Investment 3 [nvestments 767,444 - 5%
[International faccounted for
using equity
method
3 ID-Link Mauritius |[D-Link India 3 [nvestments 1,038,838 - 7%
faccounted for
using equity
method
4 |D-Link Shiang-Hai|D-Link Shiang-Hai 3 lInvestments (279,321 E 2%
Cayman) laccounted for
lusing equity
Imethod-credit
5 ID-Link Europe ID-Link Deutschland 3 [nvestments 200,050 - 1%
laccounted for
lusing equity
method
6 |D-Link Shiang-Hai|D-Link Trade 3 (Sales) 886,577 150 Days 5%
6 ID-Link Shiang-Hai[D-Link Trade 3 |Accounts 397,466 150 Days 3%
[receivable—related
party

Note 1: Parties to the intercompany transactions are identified and numbered as follows:

1. “0” represents the Company.

2. Subsidiaries are numbered from “1”.

Note 2: Intercompany relationships and significant intercompany transactions are disclosed only for the amounts that exceed 1% of consolidated net operating revenues or
total assets.

Note 3: Nature of relationship are listed as below:

No. I represents the transaction from parent company to subsidiary

No. 2 represents the transaction from subsidiary to parent company

No. 3 represents the transaction from subsidiary to subsidiary

Note 4: The transactions have been el in the

(b) Information on investees:

financial

The following is the information on investees for the year ended December 31, 2022 (excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars/shares)

rm Origioal Tnvestment st Batines 2 of December 31,3073 Tighest | Netimeome | Swareor
Name of businesses and December 31, | December 31, Percentage of percentage of |
investor Name of investee| Location products 2022 2021 Shares ownership Carrying value| ownership of investee Note
ID-Link ID-Link Systems  JUSA. [Marketing and after-sales 1,672,702 1,625,875 48,045,007 100.00 %) 1,507.525 100.00 % 44,144 |D-Link Corporation
‘orporation kervice in USA. lacquired 1.56% of the
shareholder D-Link Systems|
[from D-Link Holding in
Noverber, 2022
ID-Link [D-Link Canada ‘anada [Marketing and after-sale: 216,354 216,354 5,736,000 100.00 %) 153,846 100.00 % (133,045, (133,045)
ID-Link ID-Link ingapore Global marketing, 1,941,986 1,941,986 66,074,660 99.36 %) 2478811 99.36 % (267,555 (37. 100% shares owned by D-
orporation  [International Iprocurement and after- [Link Corporation and D-
fsale service |[Link Holding Share of loss
f investee includes the
Jamounts of sations
lbetween affliated companies
ID-Link ID-Link L.A. “ayman Island [Marketing and after-sale: 326,600 326,600 41,000 100.00 %4 100.00 %] - -
ID-Link ID-Link “hile [Marketing and after-sale: 6,512 6,512 199,999 100.00 % 9.134 100.00 % (2.161 (2,161){100% shares owned by D-
orporation  [Sudamerica kervice in Chile [Link Corporation and D-
[Link Holding
(Continued)
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Main Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2022 ighest | Netincome | Share of
Name of businesses and December 31, | December 31, Percentage of ercentage of [ (losses)
investor _|Name of investee| _Location products 2022 2021 Shares ownership [ Carrying value| _ownership | of investee | of investee Note
ID-Link ID-Link Mexicana [Mexico [Marketing and after-sale: 301,036 301,036 1 100.00 % 3444 100.00 (12,785 (12,785)]100% shares owned by D-
“orporation kervice in Mexico [Link Corporation and D-
[Link Sudameric
ID-Link ID-Link Brazil ~ [Brazil [Marketing and after-sale: 932,197 932,197 2.964,836,727 100.00 4 (79,589 10000 % (38,146 (38.943)]100% shares owned by D-
Corporation bervice in Brazil [Link Corporation and D-
[Link Holding
ID-Link ID-Link ME AE [Marketing and after-sale: 71484 71484 5 1033412 83.33 % 148,303 [ 148,303 [100% shares owned by D-
orporation hervice in Middle East [Link Corporation and D-
and Africa [Link International
ID-Link ID-Link Australia  [Australia [Marketing and after-sale: 16,764 16,744 1,000,000 100.00 % 156,385 100.00 % 5931 8,931 |D-Link International
orporation hervice in Australia and ransferred 0.1% of its
INew Zealand lsharcholding in D-Link
Australia to the Company in
[December, 2022.
ID-Link ID-Link Holding ~ [B.V.1 Jinvestment company 2242837 2242837| 68,062,500 100.00 % 1,664,029 100.00 % 182310 62,373 [Share of profit of investee
Corporation fincludes the amounts of
fransations between affliated|
companies.
ID-Link ID-Link jermany [Marketing and after-sale: 120,050 120,050 - - i 120,050 - 10,169 - [100% shares owned by D-
Corporation  [Deutschland bervice in Germany (Note2) [Link Corporation directly
fand indirectly. Share of
[profit of associates
ccounted for using equity
Imethod was recognized in
ID-Link Europe.
ID-Link ID-Link Japan  [iapan [Marketing and after-sale 595310 595310 9.500 100.00 % 626,409 100.00 %) 15,302 15,302
“orporation kervice in Japan
ID-Link ID-Link ingapore Jinvestment company 67,191 67,191 2,200,000 100.00 % 46,318 100.00 % 129,066 129,066
Corporation  [Investment
ID-Link [Veochia [Taiwan Jinvestment company - - - - - - - - |Liquidation completed in
orporation (Note2) uly, 2022
ID-Link [Veomao [Taiwan Jinvestment company - - - - - - - - |Liquidation completed in
Corporation ctober, 2022
ID-Link [Veotai [Taiwan Jinvestment company 146,000 146,000 [ 14,600,000 100.00 % 44434 100.00 % (1.916) (1,916
orporation
ID-Link [Cameo Taiwan [Manufacturing and sell 1102479 1102479 137,532,993 41.58 % 1416631 41.58 % 94973 18,203 [Share of profit of investee
“orporation computer networks fincludes the amounts of
kystem equipment and its ransations between afliated|
components and related companies.
technology research and
development
ID-Link ID-Link Trade  [Russia [Marketing and after sales| 66,538 66,538 - 100.00 % 48,141 100.00 % 129252 129252
Jinvestment bervice in Russia (Note2)
ID-Link Trade ~ [T-COM [Russia [Marketing and after sales| 12,485 12,485 - 40.00 1874 40.00 % (4293 (8.468)
bervice in Russia (Note2)
ID-Link ID-Link Australia _[Australia [Marketing and after sales| - 2 - - - - - - |p-Link intemational
Jinternational hervice in Australia and ransferred 0.1% of its
New Zealand Isharcholding in D-Link
I
ID-Link ID-Link ME IAE [Marketing and after sales| 34260 34.260 1 16.67 % 32428 16.67 % 148,303 - [P-Link ME share's profit
linternational kervice in Middle East Irecognized in D-Link
nd Africa “orporation
ID-Link ID-Link Korea ~ [Korea [Marketing and after sales| 44,300 44,300 330,901 100.00 % (o744 10000 % (6351 (6351
finternational hervice in Korea
ID-Link ID-Link Trade M. [Republic of [Marketing and after sales| 13 13 - 100.00 %4 a92) 100,00 % 6 6
linternational [Moldova bervice in Moldova (Note 2)
ID-Link ID-Link Russia ~ [BVI Jinvestment company 789,757 789757 25.000.000 100.00 % 767,444 100.00 % @985 (43.985)
finternational ~~ [investment
ID-Link ID-Link Malaysia [Malaysia [Marketing and after sales| 6,130 6,130 500,000 100.00 % 7.876 100.00 % 155 155
linternational hervice in Malaysia
ID-Link ID-Link Lithuania. [Lithuania [Marketing and after sales| 3574 1,000 100.00 % 4617 100.00 %) 556 556
linternational kervice
ID-Link Holding [D-Link Europe ~ [UK. [Marketing and after sales| 971,293 971203 32497455 100.00 % 970,342 10000 % (253432)
bervice in Europe
ID-Link Holding - [D-Link ingapore [Global marketing, 8,466 8,466 425,340 0.64 % (15,047) (267,555 - |p-Link Intemational share's
linternational Iprocurement and after loss recognized in D-Link
Jales service Corporation
ID-Link Holding 000 D-Link ~ [Russia [After sales service in 11309 11309 - 100.00 % 5617 100.00 % 327 327
[Russia [Russia (Note2
ID-Link Holding - [D-Link Mauritius [Mauritius Jinvestment company 186,759 186,789 200,000 100.00 % 1,040,489 100.00 % 154913 154913
ID-Link Holding [D-Link Shiang- ~ [Cayman Islands ~ [Investment company 654,974 654,974 50,000 100.00 % (266,983 100,00 % 281,526 281,526
[Hai (Cayman)
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Main Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2022 ighest | Netincome | Share of
Name of businesses and December 31, | December 31, Percentage of ercentage of [ (losses)
investor _|Name of investee| _Location products 2022 2021 Shares ownership [ Carrying value| _ownership | of investee | of investee Note
ID-Link Holding [D-Link Systems  [USA [Marketing and after sales| - 49.320 - - % - BED - - [p-Link Holding transferred
kervice in USA 1.56% of its shareholding in
ID-Link System to the
“ompany in November,
022,
ID-Link Holding - [Wishfi Singapore [Research, development, - - - - % - - - - Cancellation of registration
Imarketing and afier sales in January, 2022
ID-Link Holding ~[Success Stone ~ [BVI Jinvestment company 297,027 9822 100.00 % 170.952 100.00 % (484 (484
ID-Link Holding ~[MiiiCasa Holding |Cayman Island ~ [investment company 61,087 61087 21,000000 28.98 % B 28.98 % - -
ID-Link Holding [D-Link Brazil  [Brazil [Marketing and after sales| - - 100 - - -9 (38,146 - [p-Link Brazit share's foss
kervice in Brazil lrecognized in D-Link
‘orporation
ID-Link Holding [D-Link “hile [Marketing and after sales| - - [ - B - B7 2.162 - [p-Link Sudamerica share's
Sudamerica kervice in Chile loss recognized in D-Link
“orporation
ID-Link Mauritius [D-Link India ~~ [india [Marketing and after sales| 340319 340,319 18,114,663 51.02 % 1,038,838 51.02 %4 308,594 157,445
kervice in India
ID-Link Mauritius [TeamF 1 India ~ [india [Technical services for 8 1 0.01 % 14 0.01 % 6374 1{100% shares owned by D-
boftware and hardware [Link Mauritius and D-Link
fsystem integration jindia
ID-Link India ~ [TeamF1 India ~ [india [Technical services for 84,114 84,114 10499 99.99 % 125,258 99.99 % 6374 6,373 [100% shares owned by D-
boftware and hardware [Link Mauritius and D-Link
fsystem integration jindia
D-Lisk LA~ [D-Link PeruS.A. Peru [Marketing and after sales| - - 1 0.03 % 3 0.03 % (1.380) - [pLinkPerus.A. share's
kervice in Peru loss recognized in D-Link
[sudamerica
ID-Link ID-Link de olombia [Marketing and after sales| 22213 2213 1,443,605 100.00 % 4917 100.00 %4 (139 139
JSudamerica ~ [Colombia SAS. kervice in Colombia
ID-Link ID-Link GuatemalafGuatemala [Marketing and afier 410 410 99.000 99.00 % 562 99.00 % - - [intiquidation process.
JSudamerica  [S.A kervice in Guatemala
ID-Link ID-Link Peru S.A. [Peru [Marketing and after sales| 38 38 3.499 99.97 % 8,449 99.97 %] (1,380 (1,380
[Sudamerica bervice in Peru
ID-Link ID-Link Mexicana [Mexico [Marketing and after sales| 6 6 3 - o 6 BT (12,784 - [p-Link Mexicana share's
[Sudamerica kervice in Mexico loss recognized in D-Link
[Corporation
ID-Link ID-Link Argentina [Argentina [Marketing and after sales| 2750 2,750 100 100.00 % 7 100.00 % - - [p-Link Argentina share's
JSudamerica ~ [S.A bervice in Argentina Jprofit recognized in D-Link
Isudamerica. In liquidation
Jprocess
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link ermany [Marketing and after sales| 131,769 131,769 - 100.00 % 200,050 100.00 % 10169 10,169
[Deutschland hervice in Germany (Note2)
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link AB weden [Marketing and after sales| 9.022 9.022 15,500 100.00 % 16,394 100.00 % 1,008 1,008
bervice in Sweden
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link Iberia SL. [Spain [Marketing and after sales| 1976 1976 50,000 100.00 % 65,371 100.00 %4 4532 4,532
kervice in Spain
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link italy [Marketing and after sales| 2177 2177 50,000 100.00 % 27,150 100.00 % 749 749
[Mediterranco SRL| hervice in aly
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link UK Jinvestment company - - 3 100.00 % 9,348 100.00 %4 - -
[(Holdings)Ltd
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link France ~ [France [Marketing and after sales| 5,287 114,560 100.00 % 41913 100.00 %4 2,134 2,134
S kervice in France
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link etherlands [Marketing and after sales| 2,132 2132 50,000 100.00 % 8376 100.00 539 539
[Netherlands hervice in Netherlands
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link Polska Sp [Poland [Marketing and after sales| 1210 1210 100 100.00 % 23,570 100.00 % [NIE) 113
[z.00. hervice in Poland
ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link JHungary [Marketing and after sales| 523 523 300 100.00 % 5,590 100.00 %4 59 59
Magyarorszag kervice in Hungary
ID-Link Europe  [D-Link sro Crech [Marketing and after sales| 329 329 100 100.00 % 4374 100.00 %4 412 412
kervice in Czech
ID-Link ID-Link UK UK [Marketing and after sales| - - 300,100 100.00 % 9,348 100.00 % - -
[Holdings)Ltd bervice in UK
ID-Link ID-Link ADRIA ~ [Croatia [Marketing and after sales| 326 326 - 100.00 % 203 100.00 % ) (7fin liquidation process
Mediterraneo ~ [d.o.0. kervice in Croatia (Note2)
[Veotai [Xtramus Taiwan [Research, development, 38110 38110 1,832,446 4118 Y, 1792 4118 % (5,969 (2,558

[Technologies Co.
lLid.

Imanufacturing and sell o
esting equipment for
Inetwork

Note I: Including recognition of profit (loss) from associates

Note 2: Limited Company

Note 3: The transactions have been climinated in the consolidated financial statements.
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D-LINK CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Information on investment in Mainland China:

(i)  The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Accumulated Accumulated
outflow of outflow of
Main Total investment | _Investment flows | investment from [ Net Highest Accumulated
businesses | amount | Method from Taiwan as of income | Percentage |p " Book i of
Name of and of paid-in of Taiwan as of December 31, | (losses) of of income value | earningsin
investee | products | capital |i 1,2022] Outflow | Inflow 2022 of the investee] ownership | ownership | (losses) | (Note2) |current period
D-Link  [Buyandsellof | 598,806[ 5 598,806 - - 598,806 280.732| 100.00% | 10000% | 280732 (279.321 -
IShiang-Hai fnetworking
lequipment and
Iwireless system|
Netpro |Research, 2049% ] 5 20,037 - B 20,037 794 100.00% | 100.00% 794 12399 -
Trading  [development
land trading
lbusiness
[YouXiang [Technical 62610 3 - - B B 502| 9.86% 9.86% B EATH] B
[Service and
lImport/Export
rading
[business

Note 1: Method of Investment:

Type 1: Direct investments in Mainland China

Type 2: Indirect investments in Mainland China

Type 3: Others

Note 2: The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD 30.7100, CNY 4.4100 as of December 31, 2022.

(ii) Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

Company A lated I in Mainland |I Amounts Authorized by
Name China as of December 31, 2022 Investment Commission, MOEA Upper Limit on Investment
D-Link 618,843 574,462 Note
Corporation

Note: Since the Company has obtained the Certificate of Headquarter Operation, there is no upper limitation on investment
in Mainland China.

(iii) Significant transactions:

The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiary in Mainland China, which were eliminated in the preparation
of consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in “Information on significant transactions”.

Major shareholders:

Shares

Percentage

Sharehold

’s Name

|Sapido Technology Inc.

59,818,400 9.97 %l
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(14) Segment information:

The Consolidated Company has three reportable segments: American markets, European markets, Asia
markets and others. Those reportable segments are primarily operated in research, development and
selling of computer network and equipments and wireless communication products.

The Consolidated Company's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer geographical
products and services.

The income tax expenses are managed on a group basis, and operating segment profit (loss) is determined
by the profit before taxation. The reportable amount is similar to the report used by the chief operating
decision and make a performance evaluation.

The Consolidated Company’s operating segment information and reconciliation were as follows:

(a) Reportable segment profit or loss, segment assets, segment liabilities, and their measurement and
reconciliations.

The Consolidated Company uses the internal management report that the chief operating decision
maker reviews as the basis to determine resource allocation and make a performance evaluation.

2022
Adjustments
American European Asia markets and
markets markets and others eliminations Total

Revenue:

Third-party customers ~ § 1,332,290 4,887,624 10,857,974 - 17,077,888

Inter-company 30411 22.969 2.839.566 (2,892,946) -

Total revenue $ 1,362,701 4,910,593 13,697.540 (2,892,946) 17,077,888

Reportable segment profit

(loss) $ (140,985) (86,434) 1,465,273 (780,276) 457,578

2021
Adjustments
American European  Asia markets and
markets markets and others eliminations Total

Revenue:

Third-party customers ~ § 1,599,246 5,036,179 8,889,476 - 15,524,901

Inter-company 23,999 4,045 3,977,356 (4,005.400) -

Total revenue $ 1,623,245 5,040,224 12,866,832 (4,005,400) 15,524,901

Reportable segment profit

(loss) $ (208,701) 57,325 1,266,460 (720,361) 394,723

(Continued)
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Adjustments
American European  Asia markets and
markets markets and others eliminations Total

Reportable segment assets:
December 31, 2022 $_ 2,954,333 4,585,624 23,412,208 _ (15,530,624) 15,421,541

December 31, 2021 $__ 3,133,150 3,967,148 20,546,004 (13,142,438) 14,503,864

The material reconciling items of the above reportable segment were as below:

Total reportable segment revenues after eleminating the intergroup revenues were $2,892,946
thousand and $4,005,400 thousand for 2022 and 2021, respectively.

(b) Products and services information
For revenue from the external customers of the Consolidated Company, please refer to 6(u).

(¢)  Geographic information

Country 2022 2021
Non-current assets
Taiwan $ 856,630 828,286
India 496,376 459,859
Other countries 728.589 664,301
Total $ 2,081,595 1,952,446

Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment, investment property, right-of-use assets,
intangible assets, and other assets, but excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

(d) Major customers

There were no individual customers representing greater than 10% of consolidated revenue for 2022
and 2021.

275



k% ERREBARRGTHY

KPMG

B16/11061515 BHB5ER 7976818(£ 16101 K1&) E & Tel + 886 2 8101 6666
68F., TAIPEI 101 TOWER, No. 7, Sec. 5, 13 H Fax + 886 2 8101 6667
Xinyi Road, Taipei City 110615, Taiwan (R.O.C.) #@ ik Web kpmg.com/tw

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of D-LINK CORPORATION:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of D-LINK CORPORATION, which comprise the statements of
financial position as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of another auditor (please refer to Other Matter paragraph),
the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Norm of
Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants of Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirement. Based on our audits and the report of another
auditor, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of
our opinion.

Other Matter

We did not audit the financial statements of D-Link International Ptd. Ltd. and D-Link Brazil LTDA,
subsidiaries of D-Link Corporation as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the financial
statements of D-Link International Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of D-Link Corporation as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2021. Those statements were audited by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for above subsidiaries, is based solely on the report
of other auditors. Investments accounted for using equity method of above subsidiaries reflect the total assets of
$1,374,993 thousand and $1,429,875 thousand, constituting 10% and 13%, of the total assets at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Besides, the share of profit (loss) of subsidiaries accounted for using equity
method of $(68,403) thousand and $56,946 thousand, constituting (49)% and 24%, of the net profit before tax
for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

KPMG, a Taiwan partnership and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiiated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

1. Evaluation of investments accounted for using equity method

Please refer to Note 4(h) “Summary of significant accounting policies — Investment in associates”, Note 4(i)
“Summary of significant accounting policies — Investment in subsidiaries”, and Note 6(e) “Explanation of
significant accounts - Investments accounted for using equity methods” of the parent-company-only financial
statements.

Key Audit Matter Explanation:

Investments accounted for using equity method is a material asset to D-LINK CORPORATION, and is
significant in its financial statements, with a carrying amount amounting to $8,453,274 thousand as of
December 31, 2022. Therefore, it has been identified as the key matter in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

Our principal audit procedures included: Communicating with other auditors who audited the financial
statements of the associates and subsidiaries of D-Link Corporation, including issuing group audit instruction
to subsidiaries and associates, and obtaining the financial statements audited by other auditors. Another
auditors performing audit procedures on inventories, accounts receivable and revenue, such as inventory
evaluation, accounts receivable evaluation, as well as reviewing the correctness of value and timing of
revenue recognition, reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of main operation changes of the
investments; comparing the financial statements of the Company’s investments accounted for using equity
method with the group reporting information provided by other auditors, and issuing confirmation letters; as
well as considering the adequacy of company’s disclosures on its accounts.

2. Revenue recognition

Please refer to Note 4(p) for accounting policy of revenue recognition and Note 6(r) for sales details of the
financial statements.

Key Audit Matter Explanation:

The Company sells internet related products and services, and aims to offer high-quality internet solution
proposals to global consumers and enterprises. Revenue is the key performance indicator to evaluate the
Company's performance, and thus, needs significant attention in our audit.

How the matter was addressed in our audit:

We tested the effectiveness of the Company’s controls surrounding revenue recognition; reviewed relevant
sales documents to evaluate whether terms of sales are consistent with the accounting standards; analyzed
and compared the changes in sales to major customers to assess the reasonableness of revenue recognition.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs, IASs,
interpretation as well as related guidance endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing D-LINK CORPORATION’ s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate D-LINK CORPORATION or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing D-LINK CORPORATION’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise
professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
D-LINK CORPORATION” internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on D-LINK CORPORATION’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause D-LINK CORPORATION to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the investment in other
entities accounted for using the equity method to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Hsieh, Chiu-Hua and
Chou, Pao-Lian.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
February 22, 2023

Notes to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of
any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial statements are those
generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying parent company only financial statements are the English translation of the
Chinese version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the
English and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and parent company only financial statements, the Chinese version shall
prevail.
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

D-LINK CORPORATION
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars , Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Net operating revenues (note 6(r) and 7)

Operating costs (notes 6(d) and 7)

Gross profit from operations

Less:Unrealized gross profit from sales

Realized gross profit from operations

Operating expenses: (notes 6(c), (f), (g), (h), (i), (k), (n) and (s))
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses

Expected credit loss (reversal gain) (note 6(c))

Net operating loss
Non-operating income and expenses:
Interest income (notes 6(t) and 7)
Other income (notes 6(t) and 7)
Other gains and losses (notes 6(b), (n), (t) and 7)
Finance costs (notes 6(k), (n), (t) and 7)

Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using equity method (note 6(c))

Profit before tax

Less: Income tax expense (benefit) (note 6(0))

Net profit

Other comprehensive (loss) income:

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans (note 6(n))

Unrealized (losses) gains from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive loss of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using equity
method, components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(notes 6(p) and (u))
Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements

Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using equity
method, components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit

or loss (note 6(0))

Other comprehensive income (loss), net
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Basic earnings per share (New Taiwan dollars) (note 6(q))

Diluted earnings per share (New Taiwan dollars) (note 6(q))

See accompanying notes to parent company only financial statements.
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2022 2021
Amount %o Amount %

S 7,240,829 100 1,392,575 100
6,127,608 85 520,881 37
1,113,221 15 871,694 63

160.885 2 -
952,336 13 871,694 _ 63
404,427 6 367,216 25
299,984 4 249,976 18
333,990 5 587,011 42
221 - (208) _ -
1,038,622 15 1,203,995 85
(86,280) _ (2) (332,301) _(22)
2,586 - 3,549 -
9,422 - 5,119 -
18,129 - (15914) (1)
(4,478) - (5,708) -
199.951 3 583,787 42
225,610 3 570.833 41
139,324 1 238,532 19
30,091 - (665) __ -
109233 1 239,197 _ 19
20,106 - (1,687) -
(16,112) - 49,816 4
9,376) - (9,248) (1)
(5382) _ - 38.881 3
590,988 8 (389,612) (28)
10,500 - 871 -
97,156 1 (45,730) 3)
504332 _ 7 (343.011) _(25)
498,950 7 (304.130) _(22)

$ 608,183 8 (64,933) _ (3)

S 0.18 0.38

$ 0.18 0.38
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

D-LINK CORPORATION
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2022 2021
Cash flows from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax S 139,324 238,532
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 55,572 60,514
Amortization expense 28,670 40,760
Expected credit loss (reversal gain) 221 (208)
Net (gain) loss on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (15,964) 30,439
Interest expense 4,478 5,708
Interest income (2,586) (3,549)
Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using equity method (199,951) (583,787)
Unrealized profit from sales 160,885 -
Profit from lease modification (237) -
Gain on disposal of property, plan and equipment ) )
Other 88.054 (2.114)
Total adjustments to reconcile profit (loss) 119,138 (452,242)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase in notes receivable (377) (2,637)
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (23,796) 17,690
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable due from related parties (1,424.325) 16,756
Decrease in other receivable 1,169 909
(Increase) decrease in inventories (292,632) 34,603
Increase in other current assets (42,737) (26,473)
(Increase) decrease in other non-current assets (14,688) 1,722
Total changes in operating assets (1.797.386) 42,570
Increase in contract liabilities 11,034 14,740
Increase in notes payable 2,045 -
Increase in accounts payable 926,888 2,558
Increase in accounts payable to related parties 593,767 3,131
Increase (decrease) in other payable 23,125 (218,024)
Decrease in provisions (7.407) (14,626)
Increase (decrease) in refund liabilities 1,925 (7,742)
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 24,527 (6,252)
Increase (decrease) in other non-current liabilities 8,842 (1,108)
Total changes in operating liabilities 1,584,746 (227.323)
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities (212,640) (184.753)
Total adjustments (93.502) (636.995)
Cash flow from (used in) operations 45,822 (398,463)
Interest received 2,586 3,549
Dividends received 106,141 203,607
Interest paid (5.920) (5,873)
Income taxes paid (15.383) (33.331)
Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities 133.246 (230.511)
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities:
Increase in investments accounted for using equity method (24,446) (799,999)
Proceeds from capital reduction of investments accounted for using equity method - 267,512
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (44,494) (31,601)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 5
Increase in refundable deposits (15,358) -
Acquisition of intangible assets (43,334) (11,922)
Return from liquidation 212,619 -
Other investing activities - (309)
Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities 84.991 (576.314)
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities:
Decrease in other short-term loans (325,154) (98,360)
Increase in other long-term loans 752,346 -
Payment of lease liabilities (2,641) (3,582)
Cash dividends paid (179,950) (195,597)
Capital reduction payments to sharcholders - (521.596)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 244,601 (819,135)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 462,838 (1,625,960)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 151,391 1.777.351
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 614,229 151,391

See accompanying notes to parent company only financial statements.
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(English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified)

(1) Company history

@

(©)]

D-LINK CORPORATION (the “Company”) was incorporated on June 20, 1987 under the approval of
Ministry of Economic Affair, Republic of China (“ROC”). The address of its registered office is No.289,
Xinhu 3rd Rd., Neihu Dist., Taipei City 114, Taiwan. The main operating activities of the Company
include the research, development, and sale of local area computer network systems, wireless local area
computer networks ("LANs"), and spare parts for integrated circuits.

Approval date and procedures of the financial statements:

The accompanying financial statements were approved and authorized for release by the Board of
Directors on February 22, 2023.

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial
Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. which have already been adopted.

The Company has initially adopted the following new amendments, which do not have a significant
impact on its financial statements, from January 1, 2022:

o Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use”
o Amendments to IAS 37 “Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract”
e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

o Amendments to IFRS 3 “Reference to the Conceptual Framework™
(b) The impact of IFRS issued by the FSC but not yet effective

The Company assesses that the adoption of the following new amendments, effective for annual
period beginning on January 1, 2023, would not have a significant impact on its financial statements:

e Amendments to IAS 1 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies”
o Amendments to IAS 8 “Definition of Accounting Estimates”

o Amendments to IAS 12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction”

(Continued)
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D-LINK CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

The impact of IFRS issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

The following new and amended standards, which may be relevant to the Company, have been
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), but have yet to be endorsed by the

FSC:
Standards or Effective date per
Interpretations Content of amendment IASB
Amendments to [AS 1 Under existing IAS 1 requirements, January 1, 2024

“Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current”

Amendments to TAS 1
“Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants”

companies classify a liability as current
when they do not have an unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least 12
months after the reporting date. The
amendments has removed the requirement
for a right to be unconditional and instead
now requires that a right to defer settlement
must exist at the reporting date and have
substance.

The amendments clarify how a company
classifies a liability that can be settled in its
own shares — e.g. convertible debt.

After reconsidering certain aspects of the January 1, 2024
2020 amendments1, new IAS 1

amendments clarify that only covenants

with which a company must comply on or

before the reporting date affect the

classification of a liability as current or

non-current.

Covenants with which the company must
comply after the reporting date (i.e. future
covenants) do not affect a liability’s
classification at that date. However, when
non-current liabilities are subject to future
covenants, companies will now need to
disclose information to help users
understand the risk that those liabilities
could become repayable within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The Company is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its financial position and financial performance. The results thereof will be

disclosed when the Company

completes its evaluation.

The Company does not expect the following other new and amended standards, which have yet to be
endorsed by the FSC, to have a significant impact on its financial statements:

o Amendments to IFRS 10 and TAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and
Its Associate or Joint Venture”
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IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts” and amendments to IFRS 17 “ Insurance Contracts”
Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information “

Amendments to IFRS16 “Requirements for Sale and Leaseback Transactions”

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies:

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the parent company only financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented.

(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” .

(b) Basis of Preparation

®

(i)

Basis of Measurement

Except for the following significant accounts, the financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis:

1)  Financial instruments (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value;

2)  Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value;

3)  Equity-settled share-based payment are measured at fair value;

4)  The defined benefit liabilities are measured at fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is determined based on the primary economic
environment. The financial statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollar, which is the
Company’ s functional currency. All financial information presented in New Taiwan Dollar
has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(c) Foreign currency

®

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
Company entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
subsequent reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the
functional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Nonmonetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:

- an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
income;

- qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
(ii) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated to the Company’s functional currency at exchange rates at
the reporting date. Income and expenses of foreign operations are translated to the Company’s
functional currency at average exchange rate for the period. Foreign currency differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

(i) Itis expected to be realized or intends to sell or consume it in its normal operating cycle;
(ii) It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) The asset is cash and cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or
used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

(1) It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
(i) It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
(iii) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in it is settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are shortterm, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Time deposits which meet the above definition and are held for the purpose
of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes should be
recognized as cash equivalents.
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Financial Instruments

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

(O]

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis or a settlement date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)—equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial assets
are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model.

D

2)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI )

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Some accounts receivables are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling by the Company, therefore, those
receivables are measured at FVOCI. However, they are included in the ° trade
receivables’ line item.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Company’s right
to receive payment is established.

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets and beneficiary certificate.
Trade receivables that the Company intends to sell immediately or in the near term are
measured at FVTPL; however, they are included in the ‘trade receivables’ line item. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a
financial asset is held at portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is
managed and information is provided to management. The information considered
includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies
in practice. These include whether management’ s strategy focuses on earning
contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the
duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;
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how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets
held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the
reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for
derecognition are not considered sales for this purpose, and are consistent with the
Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ° principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial assets on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time
value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a
profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;
prepayment and extension features; and

terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse features)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, fianacial assets
measured at amortized costs, notes and trade receivables, other receivables, leases
receivable, guarantee deposit paid and other financial assets), debt investments measured
at FVOCI and contract assets.
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
loss (ECL), except for the following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Company’ s historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-
looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 360 days past due or the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Company in full.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to
the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at
amortized cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
¢ credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
assets is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;
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the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

-it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charged to profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the asset.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its
statement of balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

(i) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1)

2)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as financial liabilities
or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or
it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss.
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Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

3)  Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities that are not classified as held-for-trading or measured at fair value
through profit or loss, which comprise loans and account payable, and other payables, are
measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost at the time of initial
recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost
calculated using the effective interest method. Interest expense not capitalized as capital
cost is recognized in non-operating income and expense, and is included in other gains
and losses.

4)  Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

5)  Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency exposures.
Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the
host contract is not a financial asset and certain criteria are met.

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the
economic characteristics and risks of the non-financial asset’s host contract are not closely
related to the embedded derivatives and the host contract is not measured at FVTPL.

The Company assigned parts of hedge instruments (derivate financial instruments) to hedge its
cash flow.
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At initial designated hedging relationships, the Company documents the risk management
objectives and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The Company also documents the economic
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the
changes in cash flows of the hedged items and hedging instrument are expected to offset each
other.

Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bring the
inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value. Inventory write-downs are made on an item-by-item basis. Cost is determined using
the weighted-average method. Net realizable value is based on the estimated selling price of
inventories; less, all further costs to completion and all relevant marketing and selling costs. Related
expenses/losses and incomes of inventory are included in the cost of sales.

Investment in associates

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, over
the financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Company
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting power of another entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The carrying amount of the investment in
associates includes goodwill arising from the acquisition less any accumulated impairment losses.

The parent company only financial statements include the Company’s share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of equity-accounted investees, after adjustments to align the accounting
policies with those of the Company from the date that significant influence commences until the date
that significant influence ceases.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and an associate are recognized
only to the extent of unrelated the Company’s interests in the associate.

If an associate issues new shares and the Company does not acquire new shares in proportion to its
original ownership percentage but still have significant effect, the change in the equity shall be used
to adjust the capital surplus or retained earnings, and investments are accounted for using equity
method. If it resulted in a decrease in the ownership interest, except for the adjustments mentioned
above, the related amount previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the
associate will be reclassified proportionately on the same basis as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Investment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries that the Company has significant influence over their financial and operating policies
are accounted for using the equity method. Under equity method, profit or loss and comprehensive
income in the parent company only financial statements are consistent with the profit or loss and the
comprehensive income that are attributable to the owners of the parent in the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, equity in the parent company only financial statements are consistent with
the equity attributable to owners in the consolidated financial statements.
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The Company recognizes any changes in its subsidiaries’ equity, which did not result in the changes
of its influence within the transaction regarding its owners’ equity.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial
recognition, and subsequently at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation expense is calculated based on the depreciation method, useful life, and residual
value which are the same as those adopted for property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount) is recognized in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment property is recognized as other revenue on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognized as an integral part of the total rental
income, over the term of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment
(i)  Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less, accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

(i)  Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative
periods are as follows:

1)  Buildings and improvements: 5~55 years

2)  Transportation, office equipment and others: 2~9 years
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Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. If
expectations differ from the previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change in
an accounting estimate.

Reclassification to investment property

A property is reclassified to investment property at its carrying amount when the use of the
property changes from owner-occupied to investment property.

Leases

The Company assesses wherther a contract is or contains a lease on the date of its establishment, and
a contract is or contains a lease if the contract transfers control over the use of the identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.

®

As a leasee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally,
the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—  fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

—  variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
—  payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

—  there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

—  there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee; or
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—  there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether
it will exercise an option to purchase the underlying assets, or

— there is a change of its assessment on whether it will exercise a extension or termination
option; or

— there is any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Company accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and
lease liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-
term leases of office buidling that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets, including office equipment. The Company recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

As a leasor

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease commencement whether each lease
is a finance lease or an operating lease. To classify each lease, the Company makes an overall
assessment of whether the lease transfers to the lessee substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease
is a finance lease; if not, then the lease is an operating lease. As part of this assessment, the
Company considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of the
economic life of the asset.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and
the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a
head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above,
then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.

If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS15 to
allocate the consideration in the contract.

The lessor recognizes a finance lease receivable at an amount equal to its net investment in the
lease. Initial direct costs, such as lessors to negotiate and arrange a lease, are included in the
measurement of the net investment. The lessor recognizes the interest income over the lease
term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’ s net
investment in the lease. The Company recognizes lease payments received under operating
leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term as rental income’.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses.

The amortized amount is the cost of an asset less its residual value. Amortization is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date
that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are
as follows:

(i)  Computer software: 2~8 years

(i) Patents: Amortization is recognized using the term of patent contract. The estimated live is 16
years

(iii) Other intangible asset: 3 years

The residual value, amortization period, and amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life shall be reviewed at least annually at each fiscal year-end. Any change shall be accounted
for as changes in accounting estimates.

Impairment — non-derivative financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. Goodwill
is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation.
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(i)  Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

(i) Legal proceedings and royalties

Legal proceedings and royalties are estimated at the expected relevant cost based on historical
experiences.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Company recognizes revenue when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a good or a service to a customer.

The main operating activities of the Company is research, development, and sales of LANs and spare
part for integrated circuits. The Company recognizes revenue when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer, the customer has full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customer’s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customer, and
either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Company has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have
been satisfied.

The Company often offers volume discounts to its customers. Revenue from these sales is
recognized based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate the discounts, using the expected value method, and
revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not
occur. A refund liability is recognized for expected volume discounts payable to customers in
relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period.

The Company offers a standard warranty for the consumer electronics sold to provide assurance that
the product complies with agreed-upon specifications and has recognized warranty provisions for
this obligation; please refer to note 6(1).

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the Company
has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

In case of fixed-price contracts, the customers the fixed amount based on a payment schedule. If the
services rendered by the Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognized.

A contract liability is a the Company’s obligation to transfer goods to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration.
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(q) Employee benefits

®

(i)

(iii)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an
employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by
the employees.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods,
discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings. The Company determines the net interest expense (income)
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined
benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined
benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Income Taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

The Company has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain
tax treatment, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under
1AS37.
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Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred taxes shall not be recognized
for the following exceptions:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at
the time of the transaction;

(i) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

(iii) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and reflect
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

(i)  The entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(ii) The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

1)  the same taxable entity; or

2)  different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Earnings per share

The Company discloses the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
equity holders. The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to the
ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
outstanding. The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company, divided by the weighted-average number of ordinary shares
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outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, such as
convertible notes, employee stock options, and employee bonus settled using shares that have yet to
be approved by the Board of Directors meeting. The effect on net income per common share from
the increase in stock from the transfer of unappropriated earnings, capital surplus, and employee
profit sharing is computed retroactively.

Operating segments

The Company discloses the informations of operating segments in the consolidated financial
statements. Therefore the Company does not disclose such information in the parent company only
financial statements.

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the parent company only financial statements in conformity with the Regulations and
the IFRSs endorsed by the FSC requires management to make judgments, estimates, and assumptions that
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the next period.

(@)

(®)

Valuation of inventories

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Company estimates the net
realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the reporting
period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. The net realizable value
of the inventory is mainly determined based on assumptions as to future demand within a specific
time horizon. Due to the rapid industrial transformation, there may be significant changes in the net
realizable value of inventories.

Judgment on whether company has substantial control over invested company

The Company held 41.58% of issued shares of Cameo Communication, Inc., and is the single largest
shareholder of the investee. However, the specialization of Cameo Communication, Inc., such as
manufacturing, product development and business development is different from the Company.
Besides, the main management of Cameo Communication, Inc. is not appointed by the Company,
which shows that the Company has no actual ability to lead the relevant business activities of Cameo
Communication Inc. As a result, the Company has no substantial control over Cameo
Communication, Inc., only significant influence.
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(6) Explanation of significant accounts:

(2)

(b)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Cash on hand $ 168 191
Checking and saving accounts 614,061 151,200
Cash and cash equivalents $ 614,229 151,391

Please refer to 6(v) for the exchange rate risk and sensitivity of financial assets and liabilities of the
Company.

A time deposit is qualified as a cash equivalent when it has a maturity of three months or less from
the date of acquisition and it is held for the purpose of short-term cash commitments. Otherwise,
they are classified as other financial assets.

Financial Assets and Liabilities
(i)  Details as follows

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss - current
Cross currency swaps $ 14,560 -
Forward foreign exchange contracts 198 -
$ 14,758 -
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
—current
Cross currency swaps $ 177 9,803
Forward foreign exchange contracts 8,420 -
$ 8,597 9,803

1)  On February 17, 2021, the Company increased investment in Cameo and the
shareholding ratio increased from 17.35% to 41.58%. The Company transferred from
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income to investments
accounted for using the equity method and reclassified from other equity loss to retained
earnings amounting to $54,847 thousand.

2)  For disclosures on credit, currency and interest rate risks in financial instruments, please
refer to note 6(w).

3)  Asof December 31, 2022 and 2021, no financial assets are pledged as collateral.

(Continued)

303



D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

(ii) Non-hedging-derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge certain foreign exchange and interest risk in
which the Company is exposed to arising from its operating, financing and investing activities.
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, transactions that do not qualify for hedging accounting are
presented as held-for-treading financial assets were as follows:

1)  Derivative financial assets

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Contract Contract
amount amount
(thousand) Currency Maturity date (thousand) Currency Maturity date
Cross currency swaps:
USD $ 28,200 USD 2023.01 - - -
~2023.03
JPY $ 1,800,000 JPY 2023.01 - - -
~2023.02
Forward foreign
exchange contracts:
EUR (sell) 1,400 EUR 2023.02 - - -
CAD (sell) 900 CAD 2023.01 - - -
~2023.02

2)  Derivative financial liabilities

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Contract Contract
amount amount
(thousand) Currency Maturity date (thousand) Currency Maturity date
Cross currency swaps:

USD $ - uUSD - 1,700 uUsD 2022.02

EUR 2,400 EUR 2023.01 10,000 EUR 2022.02
~2023.02

JPY - JPY - 1,800,000 JPY 2022.01

~2022.03
AUD 600 AUD 2023.01 - - -
CAD 500 CAD 2023.01 - - -
Forward foreign
exchange contracts:

EUR (sell) 6,300 EUR 2023.01 - - -
~2023.02

AUD (sell) 1,700 AUD 2023.01 - - -
~2023.03

CAD (sell) 1,000 CAD 2023.02 - - -

JPY (sell) 1,025,060 JPY 2023.01 - - -
~2023.03
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Notes and accounts receivable (including related parties) and other receivables

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Notes receivable for operating activities $ 5,660 5,283
Accounts receivable (including related parties) for operating

activities 1,673,238 225,117

Other receivables 26,730 240,518

1,705,628 470,918

Less: Loss Provision (1.109) (888)

$ 1,704,519 470,030

The Company applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of
lifetime expected loss provision for all notes and accounts receivables. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due, as well as incorporated forward looking information. The loss provision as of 2022
and 2021 was determined as follows:

December 31, 2022
Weighted- Loss
Gross carrying average allowance
amount loss rate provision
Current $ 1,342,631 0.08% 1,079
90 days or less past due 354,781 0.01% 30
91 to 180 days past due 8,216 0.00% -

$ 1,705,628 1,109

December 31, 2021

Weighted- Loss
Gross carrying  average loss allowance
amount rate provision
Current $ 455,439 0.18% 842
90 days or less past due 15,479 0.30% 46
$ 470,918 888

The movements in the provision for notes and accounts receivable and other receivables were as
follows:

2022 2021
Balance at January 1, 2022 and 2021 $ 888 1,096
Impairment loss recognized (reversal gain) 221 (208)
Balance at December 31, 2022 and 2021 $ 1,109 888
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Inventories
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Finished goods S 383,227 88.874

The operating cost comprises of cost of goods sold, write-down loss (reversal gain) of inventories to
net realizable value, warranty costs and other loss (gain). For the year ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, the cost of goods delivered were $6,097,178 thousand and $495,756 thousand,
respectively. The warranty expenses, inventory losses from obsolescence and others amounted to
$32,151 thousand and $21,580 thousand for the year ended December 31 2022 and 2021,
respectively. In 2022, the Company assesed the net realizable value of inventories in consideration
of the market share trend and the life cycle of products, and reversed the write-down loss of
inventories to net realizable value to reduce cost of goods sold by $1,721 thousand. In 2021, the
Company recognized write-down loss of inventories to net realizable value of $3,545 thousand,
because of the shortage of materials and the increase in logistics time to increase stocking.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no inventories were pledged as collateral.
Investments accounted for using equity methods
Investments accounted for using equity methods were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Subsidiaries $ 7,843,797 7,273,419
Associates 1,416,631 1,394,856
9,260,428 8,668,275
Less: Credit balance of equity investment (In other non-current
liabilities) (807.154) (752.453)
$ 8,453,274 7,915,822

(i) In November 2022, the Company reorganized and bought back 1.56% shares of D-Link
Systems from D-Link Holding for $24,426 thousand (US$782 thousand).

(ii) In December 2022, the Company reorganized and bought back 0.10% shares of D-Link
Australia from D-Link International for $20 thousand (US$1 thousand).

(iii) YEOCHIA, the Company’s the investment accounted for using equity method, reduced its
capital by cash in 2021, and the Company received cash for $200,000 thousand.

(iv) D-Link Canada, the Company’s investment accounted for using equity method, redued its
capital by cash in 2021, and the Company received cash for $67,512 thousand (CAD$3,000
thousand).

(v) YEOCHIA and YEOMAO, the Company’s investments accounted for using equity method,
carried out liquidation procedure in December 2021, were liquidated in July 2022 and October
2022, respectively.
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Subsidiaries

Please refer to the 2022 consolidated financial statements.

Associates
Name of Name of relationship
Associate with the Company
Cameo The major business

Communication, activities are
Inc. (Cameo) manufacturing and selling
of network system
equipment and its
components, as well as
researching and
developing of related
technologies. It is the

supplier of the Company.

Principal
place of Ownership interest/
business/ Voting rights held
Registered  December 31, December 31,
Country 2022 2021
Taiwan 41.58 % 41.58 %

a)  The financial information on Cameo was summarized as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Current assets $ 3,871,200 1,693,178
Non-current assets 1,732,411 3,397,654
Current liabilities 1,484,128 875,644
Non-current liabilities 885,525 5,966,476
Net assets $ 3,233,958 3,130,351
Net assets attributable to investee's shareholders $ 3,233,958 3,130,351
2022 2021
Operating revenue S 3,379,117 2,479,234
Net Income $ 94,973 390,654
Other comprehensive income (loss) 8,634 (57.188)
Total comprechensive income $ 103,607 333,466
Total comprehensive income attributable to invetee's
sharecholders $ 103,607 333,466
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2022 2021

The Company's share in associate's net assets at

beginning of year $ 1,301,552 -
The Company's share in associate's total

comprehensive income 43,061 189,571
Increase of investment - 1,111,981
The Company's share in associate's net assets at end

of year 1,344,613 1,301,552
Less: unrealized gains (30,471) (9,185)
Add: goodwill 102,489 102,489
Carrying amounts of investments accounted for using

equity method $ 1,416,631 1,394,856

b)  The market value of public listed or OTC investees of the Company accounted for
using equity method was as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Cameo $ 1,416,590 1,567,876

The Company originally held 17.35% shares of Cameo and accounted for financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income $414,471 thousand. The
Company increased investments amounted $799,999 thousand in Cameo on
February 17, 2021 and became to hold 41.58% shares of Cameo after increasing
investments. Therefore, the Company had a significant influence on Cameo and
accounted for investments accounted for using equity methods.

3)  Pledges

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no investments accounted for using equity methods
were pledged as collateral.

(f)  Right-of-use assets

The Company leases buildings. Information about leases was presented below:

Buildings
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 18,321
Decrease (8,209)
Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 10,112
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 16,065
Increase 3,214
Decrease (958)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 18,321
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Accumulated Depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2022
Increase
Decrease
Balance at December 31, 2022
Balance at January 1, 2021
Increase
Decrease
Balance at December 31, 2021

Carrying amount:

Balance at December 31, 2022
Balance at December 31, 2021
Balance at January 1, 2021

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Buildings

$ 6,818
2,857
(3.634)

$ 6,041
$ 4,137
3,639
(958)

S___6818

S____407
s__11503

$¢

2022
Balance as of
Balance as of December 31,
January 1, 2022 Increase Decrease Transfer 2022
Cost:
Land $ 531,453 - - 531,453
Buildings 548,803 919 - - 549,722
Others 626,454 43,575 154,848 - 515,181
1,706,710 44,494 154,848 - 1,596,356
Accumulated
depreciation:
Buildings 430,564 5,115 - - 435,679
Others 548,639 47,204 154,848 - 440,995
979.203 52,319 154,848 - 876,674
$ 727,507 (7,825) - - 719,682
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2021
Balance as of
Balance as of December 31,
January 1, 2021 Increase Decrease Transfer 2021

$ 531,453 - - - 531,453
548,086 717 - - 548,803
722,347 30,884 126,777 - 626.454
1,801,886 31,601 126,777 - 1,706,710
425,572 4,992 - - 430,564
623,929 51,487 126,777 - 548,639
1,049,501 56.479 126,777 - 979.203
$ 752,385 (24,878) - - 727,507

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no property, plant and equipment were pledged as collateral.

Investment property

Cost:
Land
Buildings

Accumulated

Depreciation:

Buildings
Accumulated
impairment:

Buildings

2022

Balance as of Balance as

January 1, of December
2022 Increase Decrease Transfer 31, 2022

$ 30,000 - - - 30,000
22,196 - - - 22,196
52,196 - - - 52,196
12,320 396 - - 12,716
1,000 - - - 1,000
$ 38.876 (396) - - 38.480
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2021
Balance as of Balance as
January 1, of December
2021 Increase Decrease Transfer 31,2021
Cost:
Land $ 30,000 - - - 30,000
Buildings 22,196 - - - 22,196
52,196 - - - 52,196
Accumulated
Depreciation:
Buildings 11,924 396 - - 12,320
Accumulated
impairment:
Buildings 1,000 - - - 1,000
$ 39,272 (396) - - 38.876
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Book value $ 38,480 38,876
Fair value $ 73,181 51,328

Investment properties are commercial real estate that are leased to third parties. The lease contract
includes an initial non-cancellable period of 3 years. Subsequent renewals are negotiated with the
lessee and no contingent rents are charged. For further information of rental income, please refer to
note 6(t). Besides, direct operating expenses related to investment property were $292 thousand and
$296 thousand in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the fair value of investment property was evaluated based on the
comparable deal information with similar location and category or appraisal report.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no investment properties were pledged as collateral.

Intangible assets

2022
Balance as
Balance as of of
January 1, December
2022 Increase Decrease  Amortization 31,2022

Patents 15,028 - - (2,692) 12,336
Computer software costs 19,139 1,071 - (13,808) 6,402
Other intangible assets 11,295 42,263 (711) (12,170) 40,677
$ 45,462 43,334 (711) (28,670) 59,415
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2021
Balance as
Balance as of of
January 1, December
2021 Increase Decrease  Amortization 31,2021

Patents 17,720 - - (2,692) 15,028
Computer software costs 43,113 4,147 (2,322) (25,799) 19,139
Other intangible assets 13,467 10,097 - (12,269) 11,295
$ 74,300 14,244 (2,322) (40,760) 45,462

Other long-term and short-term loans

For further information on other long-term and short-term loans from the subsidiaries, please refer to

note 7(b).

The details requirements and terms of the long-term and short-term loans of the Company were as

follows:
(i)  Other long-term and short-term loans

Maturity  December 31,

December 31,

Currency Interest rate year 2022 2021
Other short-term loans EUR 1% 2022 $ - 313,645
Other short-term loans JPY 0.5% 2022~2023 421,749 433,258
Other long-term loans USD - 2027 752,346 -
$ 1,174,095 746,903
Unused credit facilities $ 3,236,868 4,117,132

Lease liabilities
The amounts of lease liabilities for the the Company were as follows:

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021
Current $ 1,956 4,033
Non-current $ 2,469 7,846
The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:

2022 2021
Interests on lease liabilities $ 111 201
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 2,096 2,760
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The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the the Company were as follows:

Total cash outflow for leases

Real estate leases

2022
4,848

2021
6,543

The Company leases buildings for its office space, and the leases of office space typically run for 2
to 5 years. Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period of the same
duration after the end of the contract term.

Provisions — current

2022

Balance as

Balance as of
of January Effect of  December

1, 2022 Increase Reversed exchange 31,2022
Warranties $ 62,860 8,529 - - 63,982
Legal proceedings and royalties 119,067 106,963 (34.134) 7.706 199,602
$_ 181,927 115,492 (34,134) 7,706 263,584
2021

Balance as

Balance as of
of January Effect of  December

1,2021 Increase Reversed exchange 31,2021
Warranties $ 69,562 - (1,324) - 62,860
Legal proceedings and royalties 132,650 52,431 (55,628) (1.138) __ 119,067
$_ 202,212 52,431 (56.,952) (1,138) 181,927
Refund liabilities
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021

Refund liabilities $ 26,765 24,840

Due to the application of IFRS 15, the provision of sales allowance was reclassified from other
payable to refund liabilities.
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(n) Employee benefits

®

The reconciliations of the present value of the defined benefit obligations and fair value of
plan assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligations $ 70,547 86,814
Fair value of plan assets (80.571) (75.551)
Net defined benefit (assets) liabilities $ (10,024) 11,263

Based on the Company’s pension plan, each employee earns two months of salary for the first
fifteen years of service, and one month of salary for each year of service thereafter. The
maximum retirement benefit is forty-five months of salary. Payments of retirement benefits
are based on the years of service and the average salaries for six months before the employee’s
retirement.

1)  Composition of plan assets

The Company’s allocates 2% of each employee's monthly wage to the labor pension
personal account at Bank of Taiwan in accordance with the provisions of Labor Pension
Act, whereby, the labor pension personal account will make pension payment in advance.

The Company’s Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to
$80,571 thousand at the date of reporting date. For information on the utilization of the
labor pension fund assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please
refer to the website of the Labor Pension Fund Supervisory Committee.

2)  Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations in 2022 and 2021 were

as follows:
2022 2021
Defined benefit obligation at January 1 $ 86,814 91,577
Current service costs and interests 1,227 1,197
Remeasurement of the defined benefit liabilities
— Actuarial losses from changes in demographic
assumption - 118
— Actuarial gains from changes in the financial
assumptions (5,647) (5,109)
— Actuarial (gains) losses from changes in
experience adjustments (8,629) 7,971
Benefits paid (3.218) (8.940)
Defined benefit obligation at December 31 $ 70,547 86,814
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Movements in the fair value of the plan assets

The movements in the present value of the plan assets in 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

2022 2021
Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $ 75,551 80,892
Interest income 605 324
Remeasurement of the net plan assets
— Actuarial return on plan assets (excluding

interests) 5,830 1,293
Contributions made 1,803 1,982
Benefits paid (3,218) (8,940)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 S 80,571 75,551

Expenses recognized in profit or loss

The Company’s expenses recognized in profit or loss for 2022 and 2021 were as follow:

2022 2021
Current service costs $ 532 831
Net interest on the net defined benefit obligation 90 42
$ 622 873

2022 2021
Operating costs $ 9 14
Selling expenses 355 485
Administrative expenses 136 164
Research and development expenses 122 210
$ 622 873

Remeasurement of the net define benefits liabilities recognized in other comprehensive
income

The Company’s remeasurement of the net define benefit liabilities recognized in other
comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were as
follows:

2022 2021
Balance on January 1 $ 49,017 47,330
Recognized (20,106) 1,687
Balance on December 31 $ 28,911 49,017
(Continued)

315



D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

6)  Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Discount rate 1.400 % 0.800 %
Future salary increases 3.000 % 3.000 %

The Company has a net defined benefit asset as of December 31, 2022 and no
contributions are expected to be made within one year.

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 13.00 years and 14.00
years in 2022 and 2021, respectively.

7)  Sensitivity analysis

The impact on present value due to the changes in the actuarial assumptions in 2022 and
2021 was as follows:

Effective of defined benefit

liabilities
Increase Decrease

December 31, 2022

Discount rate (0.25% change) $ (2,202) 2,289
Future salary increase (0.25% change) 2,071 (2,007)
December 31, 2021

Discount rate (0.25% change) (2,955) 3,080
Future salary increase (0.25% change) 2,788 (2,696)

The analysis of the impact of sensitivity is based on the situation that other assumptions
remain constant. In actual situation, many changes in assumption might be linked. The
way the Company used to calculate sensitively analysis is as same as the one used in
calculating the net pension obligation.

The assumptions used to prepare sensitively analysis in this period are the same as the
previous financial statements.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Company set aside 6% of the contribution rate of the employee’s monthly wages to the
labor pension personal account of the Bureau of the Labor Insurance in accordance with the
provisions of the Labor Pension Act. The Company set aside a fixed amount to the Bureau of
the Labor Insurance without the payment of additional legal or constructive obligations.
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316



(0)

D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

The amounts of the Company’s pension expenses under defined contribution pension plan in
2022 and 2021 were as follows and the amounts were contributed to the labor pension personal
accounts of Bureau of the Labor Insurance:

2022 2021
Operating costs $ 131 138
Operating expenses 26,568 34,177
$ 26,699 34,315

Income Taxes

Income tax expenses (benefits) for the years ended 2022 and 2021 were summarized as follows:

2022 2021
Current income tax expense (benefit) $ 14,320 (3,150)
Deferred tax expense 15,771 2.485
Income tax expenses (benefits) S 30,091 (665)

The amounts of income tax benefit recognized in other comprehensive income were as follows:

2022 2021
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign
operations $ 97,156 (45,730)

Reconciliations of income tax expense (benefit) and profit before tax were as follows:

2022 2021
Profit before income tax S 139,324 238,532
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate $ 27,865 47,706
Share of profit of subsidiaries and associates accounted for using
equity method (39,492) (22,223)
Investment income from domestic company (3,257) (39,764)
Unrecognized changes of temporary differences 79,845 (30,713)
Income tax adjustments on prior years and others (34,870) 44,329
Income tax expenses (benefits) S 30,091 (665)
(Continued)
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities
(i)  Unrecognized deferred income tax assets
The unrecognized deferred income tax assets were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Deductible temporary differences

Unrealized expenses $ 38,698 24,132
Provisions for warranty 12,796 12,572
Unrealized impairment 24,318 24,318
Unrealized gross profit from sales 60,250 -
Others 47,233 47,167
183,295 108,189
Operating loss carry forward 220,003 215.264
$ 403,298 323,453
(ii) Recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities
Exchnage
differences
on
translation
of foreign
Intra-group financial Loss carry
transactions  statements forward Others Total

Deferred income tax assets:

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 39,428 323,611 337,696 - 700,735
Recognized in profit or loss (15,771) - (52,033) - (67,804)
Exchnage differences on translation

of foreign financial statements - (97,156) - - (97,156)

Balance at December 31, 2022 $ 23,657 226,455 285,663 - 535,775

Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 61,681 277,881 242,431 5,697 587,690
Recognized in profit or loss (22,253) - 95,265 (5,697) 67,315
Exchnage differences on translation

of foreign financial statements - 45,730 - - 45,730

Balance at December 31, 2021 $ 39,428 323,611 337,696 - 700,735
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Investments
under equity
method Others Total
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ 296,578 41,118 337,696
Recognized in profit or loss (53,510) 1,477 (52,033)
Balance at December 31, 2022 S 243,068 42,595 285,663
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ 242,431 25,465 267,896
Recognized in profit or loss 54,147 15,653 69,800
Balance at December 31, 2021 S 296,578 41,118 337,696

In accordance with the ROC Tax laws, the operating loss carry forward assessed by the tax
authorities are deductible from taxable income for a ten-year period. As of December 31, 2022,
the Company’s unused loss carry forward available to offset future taxable income and the
year of expiry were as follows:

Years of loss Unused amount Year of expiry
2017 $ 1,486,983 2027
2019 162,350 2029
2020 620,355 2030
2021 258,641 2031

S 2.528.329

The Company’s income tax return had been examined by the tax authorities through 2020.

(p) Share capital and other equity

®

Common stock

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the authorized capital amounted to $8,800,000 thousand
(including $750,000 thousand authorized for the issuance of the employee stock options). As
of December 31, 2022 and 2021, all the paid-in capital consisted 599,837 thousand shares,
with a par value of $10 per share, amounting to $5,998,365 thousand.

For the purpose of optimizing the return on equity and capital structure, the Company reduced
its capital by returning the amount of $521,596 thousand, at a capital reduction rate of 8%
common shares, to its shareholders, based on a resolution approved during its board meeting
held on March 17, 2021.

This capital reduction was approved by the shareholders’ meeting on July 5, 2021, and had the
effective registration by the competent Authority. The record date of the capital reduction is on

September 1, 2021, and all relevant change registrations of the capital reduction was finished
on October 5, 2021.

(Continued)
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Capital surplus
The balances of capital surplus were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

Common stock in excess of par value $ 1,037,080 1,217,030
Treasury share transactions 39,310 39,310
Expity of share-based payment transactions 129,459 129,459
Expiry of redeemed options of convertible corporate bonds 81,454 81,454
Changes in equities of the Company's ownership interests

in subsidiaries 55,320 55,320

Total $ 1,342,623 1,522,573

According to the R.O.C. Company Act, realized capital surplus can only be reclassified as
share capital or be distributed as cash dividends after offsetting against losses. The
aforementioned realized capital surplus includes share premium and donation gains. According
to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities Issuers, the
amount of capital surplus to be reclassified under share capital should not exceed 10% of the
paid-in capital each year.

On March 29, 2022, the Company's Board of Directors decided to distribute the cash dividends
by using the capital surplus of $0.3 per share, with the ex-dividend base date and cash payment
date set on August 2, 2022 and August 31, 2022, respectively.

Retained earnings
1) Legal reserve

According to the ROC Company Act No. 237, the Company must retain 10% of its
annual income as a legal reserve until such retention equals the amount of authorized
common stock.

In accordance with Ruling No. 10802432410 issued by the Ministry of Economic Affairs
on January 9, 2020, the amount of retained earnings allotted to legal reserve shall be
calculated based on "net earnings after income taxes, plus any other amount recognized
in undistributed retained earnings" since the earnings distribution in 2019. When the
legal reserve has exceeded 25% of the Company’s paid in capital, the excess may be
distributed as dividends in cash or stocks based on the resolution of the shareholders’
meeting if there is no accumulated deficit.

2)  Special reserve

In accordance with Ruling No. 1010012865 issued by the Financial Supervisory
commission on 6 April, 2012, a special reserve equivalent to the net debit balance of
shareholders’ equity shall be made from the current after-tax net income and the prior
unappropriated earnings pursuant to existing regulations promulgated by SFB. The
Company shall not distribute the special reserve equivalent to the net debit balance of
shareholders’ equity from the prior fiscal years made from the prior unappropriated
(Continued)
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earnings. Any special reserve appropriated may be reversed to the extent that the net
debit balance reverses.

3)  Earning distribution

In accordance with the Company’s articles of incorporation, if there are earnings at year-
end, 10 percent should be set aside as legal reserve and special earnings reserve or
reversal in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act after the payment of income
tax and offsetting accumulated losses from prior years. The remaining portion will be
combined with earnings from prior years, and the board of directors can propose methods
of distribution to be approved by the shareholders” meeting.

The Company’s appropriation of earnings for 2021 has no earnings to distribute after
earnings being retained as legal reserve and special earnings. The appropriation of
earnings for 2021 was approved by the shareholders' meeting on May 27, 2022.

The Company’s appropriation of earnings for 2020 had been proposed in the Board
meeting held on March 17, 2021. After offsetting accumulated losses from prior years,
the Board of Directors decided to distribute cash dividends $0.3 per share. The
appropriation of earnings for 2020 was approved by the shareholders’ meeting on July 5,
2021. Information on the appropriation of earnings for 2020 was available at the Market
Observation Post System website.

4)  Dividend policy

The Company has carried out its Residual Dividend Policy to align with the (i) whole
market (ii) industrial growth characteristics (iii) long term financial plan (iv) talent
acquisition, and (v) pursuing business development. After deducting the balance from the
items mentioned above, the Board of Directors shall adopt a proposal for the residual
balance and the previous year’ s earnings to be submitted for approval during the
shareholders” meeting. The total amount of dividends to be distributed to the
shareholders shall be no less than 30% of the distributable earnings for the current year.
According to the budget plan for its capital, the Company shall distribute stock dividends
to retain the required funds; and any remainder, which should not be less than 10% of the
total dividends, can be distributed by cash.

(iv) Other equity
Unrealized

gains (losses)
on financial

Exchange assets measured
differences on at fair value
translation of through other

foreign financial comprehensive
statments income

Balance at January 1, 2022 $ (1,863,596) (2,439)
The Company 493,832 -
Associates 10,500 (25,488)
Associates-liquidation - (16,266)
Balance at December 31, 2022 S (1,359,264) (44,193)
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Unrealized
gains (losses)
on financial

Exchange assets measured
differences on at fair value
translation of through other

foreign financial comprehensive
statments income
Balance at January 1, 2021 $ (1,520,585) (88,606)
The Company (343,882) 49,816
Associates 871 (9,248)
The Company-disposal - 54,847
Subsidiaries-disposal - (9,248)
Balance at December 31, 2021 $ (1,863,596) (2,439)

(q) Earnings per share
The calculations of earnings per share of the Company were as follows:

(i)  Basic earnings per share

2022 2021
Profit of the Company for the year $ 109,233 239,197
Outstanding ordinary shares 599.837 634,610
Basic earnings per share (dollar) $ 0.18 0.38
(i) Diluted earnings per share
2022 2021
Profit attributable to owners of ordinary shares (diluted) $ 109,233 239,197
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding
(basic) $ 599,837 634,610
Employeess’ compensation has not been resolved by the
shareholders’ meeting 677 1,071
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) 600,514 635,681
Diluted earnings per share (dollar) $ 0.18 0.38

For calculation of the dilutive effect of the stock option, the average market value is assessed
based on the quoted market price where the Company’s option is outstanding.

(Continued)

322



(O]

(s)

D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i)  The Company revenue from contract revenue

Major product / service lines 2022 2021
Network communication products $ 6,937,651 786,679
Services 303,178 605,896
$ 7,240,829 1,392,575
Primary geographical markets 2022 2021
Asia and others $ 4,899,634 1,392,575
Europe 1,547,964 -
America 793,231 -
$ 7,240,829 1,392,575

In 2021, the Company’s revenue from customer contracts mainly consisted of sales of network
communication products in Taiwan, as well as royalties and service income received from the
purchase and sales of products by overseas subsidiaries.In 2022, the Company adjusted its
transaction model based on the overall management plan of the Group, wherein it would
purchase from various suppliers and then sell to overseas subsidiaries.

(i)  Contract liabilities
1) The Company recognized contract revenue related to contract liabilities:

December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
Contract Liabilities — current (sales) S 34,853 23.819

2)  The Company recognized $21,506 thousand and $6,692 thousand in sales from the
beginning balance of contract liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

Remuneration to employees and directors

The Company’s articles of incorporation require that earnings shall first be offset against any deficit,
then a minimum of 1% to a maximum of 15% will be distributed as employee remuneration, and a
maximum of 1% will be allocated as directors’ remuneration. The earnings shall be considered as
the annual income before tax and remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors. The
resolution for earnings distribution shall be decided by two-third of the voting rights exercised by the
directors present at the board of directors' meeting who represent a majority of the directors.
Employees who are entitled to receive the above mentioned employees remuneration, in share or
cash, include the employees of the subsidiaries of the Company who meet certain specific
requirement.
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In 2022 and 2021, the Company estimated its employees' remuneration amounted to $7,372
thousand, and $12,621 thousand, respectively, and Directors' remuneration amounted to $737
thousand and $1,262 thousand, respectively. The estimated amounts mentioned above are calculated
based on the net profit before tax, excluding the remuneration to employees and directors of each
period, multiplied by the percentage of remuneration to employees and directors as specified in the
Company's articles of incorporation. These remunerations were expensed under operating expenses
during 2022 and 2021.

There was no difference between the Company’s estimated and the actual distribution amount in
2021. Related information would be available at the Market Observation Post System website.

Other income and losses

(i) Interest income

2022 2021
Interest income from bank deposits $ 2,402 3,508
Interest income from others 184 41
Total Interest income $ 2,586 3,549
(ii) Other income
2022 2021
Rental income $ 5,058 2,398
Others 4,364 2,721
Total $ 9,422 5,119
(iii) Other gains and losses
2022 2021
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment $ 4 5
Foreign currency exchange gains 4,944 14,520
Valuation gains (losses) from financial assets and
liabilities 15,964 (30,439)
Others (2,783) -
Total $ 18,129 (15,914)
(Continued)
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(iv) Financial costs

Interest expense
Other financial costs

Lease liability interests

Net financial costs

(u) TItems that were reclassified to other comprehensive income

2022 2021
(4,367) (5.507)
(111) (201)

(111) 01)
(4.478) (5,708)

Details of the reclassification adjustments of other comprehensive income in 2022 and 2021 were

summarized as follow:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign financial
statements

Change in foreign currency exchange from the Company

Change in exchange differences on translation of foreign
financial statements recognized in other comprehensive
income

Share of other comprehensive income accounted for using
equity method

Change in foreign currency exchange from associates

Share of other comprehensive income from associates
(v) Financial instruments
(i)  Category of financial instruments

1)  Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —
current

Notes receivable, accounts receivable and other
accounts receivable (including related parties)

Refundable deposits

325

$

2022 2021
590,988 (389,612)
590,988 (389.,612)

10,500 871
10,500 871

December 31,

$

December 31,

$

2022 2021
614,229 151,391
14,758 -
1,704,519 470,030
19,900 4,542
2,353,406 625,963
(Continued)



D-LINK CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

2)  Financial liabilities

December 31,

December 31,

2022 2021

Short-term loans $ 421,749 746,903
Long-term loans 752,346 -
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss — current 8,597 9,803
Notes payable, accounts payable and other payables

(including related parties) 1,871,769 327,386
Guarantee deposit received 3,074 3,074
Lease liability (current and non-current) 4,425 11,879

$ 3,061,960 1,099,045

(i) Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk:

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to credit risk.
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the maximum amount exposed to credit risk amounted to
$2,353,406 thousand, and $625,963 thousand, respectively.

(iii) Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including

estimated interest payments but excluding the impact of netting agreements.

Contractual  Within six 6-12 Over five
Book value  cash flows months months 1-2 years 2-5 years years
December 31, 2022
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Other long-term and
short-term loans $ 1,174,095 1,176,174 1,067 422,761 - 752,346 -
Notes payable 2,056 2,056 2,056 - - - -
Accounts payable 1,057,913 1,057,913 1,057,913 - - - -
Accounts payable to
related parties 603,049 603,049 603,049 - - - -
Other payables 208,751 208,751 208,751 - - - -
Lease liability 4,425 4,510 1,029 988 2,493 - -
Guarantee deposits
received 3,074 3,074 3,074 - - - -
Derivative financial
liabilities
Cross currency swaps 177 177 177 - - - -
Forward foreign exchange
contracts 8,420 8,420 8,420 - - - -
$_ 3,061,960 _ 3,064,124 _ 1,885,536 423,749 2,493 752,346 -
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Contractual  Within six 6-12 Over five

Book value  cash flows months months 1-2 years 2-5 years years
$ 746,903 752,132 2,690 749,442 - - -
11 11 11 - - - -
131,025 131,025 131,025 - - - -
9,282 9,282 9,282 - - - -
187,068 187,068 187,068 - - - -
11,879 12,192 2,101 2,101 3,757 4,233 -
3,074 3,074 3,074 - - - -
9.803 9,803 9.803 - - - -
$_ 1,099,045 _ 1,104,587 345,054 751,543 3,757 4,233 -

The Company does not expect that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur
significantly earlier or at significantly different amount.

(iv) Currency risk

D

Financial assets :

Monetary items:
uUSD

Derivative financial

instruments:
EUR

JPY

CAD

Investment accounted for
using equity method:

UsD
CAD
AUD
MXN
JPY
CLP

2022
Foreign Exchange
currency rate
$ 41,487 30.71
$ 52 30.71
55,377 0.23
8 22.68
$ 238,864 30.71
7,037 22.68
7,893 20.93
2,178 1.58
2,635,526 0.23
217,279 0.04
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$_ 1,273,974

1,598
12,975
185

$ 14,758

7,335,056
159,585
165,200

3,444
617,517
7,763

$__ 8,288,565

Foreign
currency

5,562

239,242
12,851
7,460
10,799
2,568,276
294,227

2021

Exchange
rate

27.69

27.69
21.74
20.08
1.35
0.24
0.03

The Company’s significant exposures to foreign currency risk were as follows:

TWD

154,001

6,624,612
279,408
149,831

14,527
618,180
9,582

7,696,140
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2022 2021
Foreign Exchange Foreign Exchange
currency rate TWD currency rate TWD
Financial liabilities:
Monetary items:
USD $ 78,199 30.71 2,401,337 4,363 27.69 120,803
EUR - - - 10,051 31.36 313,254
JPY 1,863,888 0.23 436,718 1,802,553 0.24 433.872
$_ 2,838,055 867,929
Derivative financial
instruments:
uUsSD $ 126 30.71 3,876 10 27.69 270
JPY 19,859 0.23 4,653 29,626 0.24 7,131
EUR - - - 71 31.36 2,402
CAD 3 22.68 68 - - -
$ 8,597 9,803
Credit balance of equity
investment:
UsD $ 20,435 30.71 627,565 22,915 27.69 634,518
BRL 30,490 5.89 179.589 23,777 4.96 117,935
$ 807,154 752,453

2)

Note: The amounts were calculated by the net value of investees timing comprehensive shareholding ratio, except
investing premium or discount and recognition of intra-group transation.

Because the Company has various functional currencies, information of the foreign
currency exchange gains and losses of the monetary financial assets and liabilities is
aggregaely disclosed. The total foreign exchange gains and losses, including realized and
unrealized, were gains $4,944 thousand and $14,520 thousand for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The Company’ s exposure to foreign currency risk arises from the translation of the
foreign currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, account
receivables, other receivables, loans, account payables, and other payables that are
denominated in foreign currency. A 1.5% of appreciation (depreciation) of each
consolidated components currency, other than the functional currency, against the
functional currency as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 would have increased or
decreased the net income after tax by $71,082 thousand and $74,639 thousand,
respectively, assuming all other variables were held constanting.

(v) Interest rate analysis

Please refer to the notes on liquidity risk management for the risk of interest rate exposure of
the Company’s financial assets and liabilities.
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The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to the interest rate risk of derivative
and non derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. Regarding liabilities with
variable interest rates, the analysis is based on the assumption that the amount of liabilities
outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year. The rate of change is
expressed as the interest rate increases or decreases by 0.5% when reporting to management
internally, which also represents the Company management’ s assessment of the reasonably
possible interest rate change.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value
1)  The information of levels in the fair value hierarchy

the Company measures the financial instruments at fair value based on a recurring basis.
The levels of fair values were as follows:

December 31, 2022
Assets and liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Measured at fair value on recurring
basis
Derivative instruments
Assets:

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss — current $ 14,758 - 14,758 -

Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss — current 8,597 8,597 -

December 31, 2021
Assets and liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Measured at fair value on recurring
basis

Derivative instruments

Liabilities:
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss — current  § 9,803 - 9,803 -

2)  Valuation techniques

The Company measures the fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets by a quoted price. The market price of stock exchange is based on the listed
equity instruments. For other financial instruments, like forward currency option
contracts, cross currency swaps and foreign currency option contracts, the Company
measures the fair value of its financial assets and liabilities using the observable inputs
and the valuation technique from the perspective of market participants.

3)  Transfer from Level 1 to Level 2

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.
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(vii) Assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

1)  Information of fair value

Except for those listed in the table below, the carrying amounts of the Company’ s
financial instruments not measured at fair value (including cash and cash equivalents,
notes receivable, accounts receivable/payable and other receivables/payables)
approximate their fair values.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Book value Fair value  Book value Fair value
Non-financial assets:
Investment property $ 38.480 73,181 38.876 51,328
December 31, 2022
Assets and liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-financial assets:
Investment property $ 73,181 - - 73,181
December 31, 2021
Assets and liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Non-financial assets:
Investment property  $ 51,328 - - 51,328

2)  Valuation techniques
The assumptions used by the Company to determine the fair value are as follows:

a)  The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and other financial instruments
are approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.

b)  The fair value of investment property is based on the comparable deal information
with similar location.

(w) Financial risk management

®

Overview

the Company is exposed to the following risks rising from financial instruments:
1)  Credit risk

2)  Liquidity risk

3)  Market risk

This note expresses the information on risk exposure and objectives, policies and process of
risk measurement and management of the Company. For detailed information, please refer to
the related notes of each risk in interim financial statements.
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Structure of risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
risk management framework. The Board has given the department directors a task to establish
and dominate regulations of risk management to effectively ensure operations of risk
management. The personnel change in department directors should be reported to the Board of
Directors.

The Company use internal control systems, risk management procedures, and regulations of
risk management as the basis of various business risk management standards. The Company’s
risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and to be adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’ s activities. The Company, through training and
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance
with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Board of
Directors is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which
are reported to the Board of Directors and Audit Committee.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers, investment securities and hedge derivatives.

1) Accounts receivable

The credit risk exposure of the Company arises from the operations and financial
conditions of each customer and the demographics of the Company’s customer base,
including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate.
However, the Company operates worldwide, and thus, risk is diversified. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, revenue from each foreign customer does not exceed 5%
of the Company’s revenue and therefore, there is no concentration of credit risk.

The Company has completed in setting the credit risk management policies, and has
established Institutional Credit Review Committee and Credit Risk Management
Department, which are responsible for managing credit policies and client’s credit risk.
Based on the global risk management, credit rating and analysis are required to
customers on credit in advance and granted credit limits. For customers who made their
payments other than cash, regular reviews on credit limits are required to ensure the
creditworthiness of customers.
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Allowance for bad debt is set based on the lifetime expected credit loss of each customer.
In order to mitigate the risk of default, the Company has purchased guarantees, with
appropriate insured amount for customers in high-risk countries. High risks customers
without insurance should make their payments in advance or provide sufficient credit
guarantees. In addition, when the creditworthiness of customers worsens, they should be
placed on a restricted customer list. The credit rating for these customers should be
downgraded and the transactions on sales credit should be restricted.

The Company has set the allowance for bad debt account to reflect the possible losses on
account and other receivables. The allowance for bad debt account consists of specific
losses relating to individually significant exposure from customers with financial
difficulties or operating conflicts. The allowance for bad debt account is based on
expected credit loss and historical collection record of similar financial assets or the
possibility of breaching the contracts.

2)  Investment on securities and derivative financial instruments

The credit risk of bank deposits, fixed income investments and derivative financial
instrument are measured and monitored by the Company’s finance department. As the
Company will select financial institutions with good credit ratings as its counterparties
and diversify its investment in different financial institutions, and do not expect to have
any default risks and significant concentration of credit risk.

3)  Guarantees

Pursuant to the Company’s policies, it is only permissible to provide financial guarantees
to subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has not provided any
guarantees to a third party.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. the Company’ s approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’ s
reputation. the Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and short term bank facilities at
an amount in excess of expected cash flows on financial liabilities over the succeeding 60
days. This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be
predicted, such as natural disasters. the Company has unused short term bank facilities for
$3,236,868 thousand as of December 31, 2022.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as changes in foreign exchange rates,
interest rates or equity prices that affects the Company's income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters to minimize the influence on change in
market price or control within expectable scope.
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the Company buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage
market risks. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines of risk management.

1))

2)

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and loans that are
denominated in currencies other than its respective functional currencies. The functional
currencies of the Company are primarily denominated in New Taiwan Dollars (TWD)
and US Dollars (USD) and include denominated in Euro (EUR), Chinese Yuan (CNY),
Japanese Yen (JPY) and Brazilian Real (BRL) of other countries in which the
subsidiaries registered. Purchases are mainly denominated in USD while sales are
denominated in USD, EUR, CNY, TWD, British Pounds (GBP), Australian Dollar
(AUD), Canadian Dollar (CAD), JPY, South Korean Won (KRW), Russian Ruble
(RUB), Indian Rupee (INR), BRL, and other currencies.

At any point in time, the Company hedges its currency risk based on its actual and
forecast sales over the following six months. the Company also uses nature hedges on
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and maintained the hedge ratio at
50% and above. the Company uses forward exchange contracts and foreign-exchange
options, with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date, to hedge its
currency risks.

Generally, the currencies of loans in the Company are denominated in its functional
currencies and are incorporated in net exposure on loan requirement denominated in
foreign currencies as mentioned above to ensure the net exposure is maintained at
acceptable level.

Transactions in derivative financial instruments adopt economic hedge to prevent
currency risk from financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. The
gains and losses of hedged items are expected to offset gains or losses that arise from the
fluctuations in exchange rates. The valuation gains and losses on financial assets consist
of transactions that do not qualify as hedging accounting.

Interest rate risk

The Company’s bank loans are at fixed rate. Therefore, the change in market interest rate
will not affect the cash flow of the future interest payment of the Company, hence, there
is no significant interest rate risk.

Capital management

The Company’s fundamental management objective is to maintain a strong capital base. Capital
consists of ordinary shares, capital surplus, retained earnings and other equities. The Board of
Directors monitors the capital structure regularly and selects the optimal capital structure by
considering the capital scale, overall operating environment, operating characteristics of the industry
in order to support future development of the business. The current aim for debt-to-equity ratio is
set within 100%. As of the reporting date, the debt-to-equity ratio is considered appropriate.
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Debt-to-equity ratio:

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021
Total liabilities $ 4,558,939 2,486,326
Less: cash and cash equivalents (614,229) (151,391)
Net debt $ 3,944,710 2,334,935
Total equity S 8,909,672 8,477,358
Debt-to-equity ratio 44.27% 27.54%

As of December 31, 2022, the methods of the Company’s capital management remained unchanged.
Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

Information of non-cash-traded investing and financing activities for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 were as follows:

(i)  Requirement of right-to-use assets through lease agreement, please refer to note 6(k).
(i) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Non-cash changes

January 1, Fair value December
2022 Cash flows _Exchange changes Others 31,2022
Other short-term loans  $ 746,903 (325,154) - - - 421,749
Other long-term loans - 752,346 - - - 752,346
Lease liabilities 11,879 (2,752) - - (4,702) 4,425
Guarantee desposits
received 3.074 - - - - 3.074
Total liabilities from
financing activities $__ 761,856 424,440 - - (4,702) 1,181,594
Non-cash changes
January 1, Fair value December
2021 Cash flows  Exchange changes Others 31,2021
Other short-term loans  $ 845,263 (98,360) - - - 746,903
Lease liabilities 12,247 (3,582) - - 3,214 11,879
Guarantee desposits
received 3.074 - - - - 3.074
Total liabilities from
financing activities ~ $__ 860,584 (101,942) - - 3,214 761,856
(Continued)

334



D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

(7) Related-party transactions:

(2)

Names and relationship with related parties

The followings are entities that have had transactions with related party during the periods covered

in the financial statement:

Name of related partgy

Relationship with the Company

D-Link Holding Company Ltd. (D-Link Holding)
D-Link Canada Inc. (D-Link Canada)

D-Link Japan K.K. (D-Link Japan)

D-Link Investment Pte.Ltd. (D-Link Investment)
D-Link Sudamerica S.A. (D-Link Sudamerica)
D-Link Brazil LTDA (D-Link Brazil)

D-Link Latin America Company Ltd.(D-Link L.A.)
D-Link Mexicana S.A de C.V (D-Link Mexicana)
D-Link Systems, Inc. (D-Link Systems)

D-Link International Pte. Ltd. (D-Link International)
D-Link Australia Pty Ltd. (D-Link Australia)
D-Link Middle East FZCO (D-Link ME)

D-Link Korea Limited (D-Link Korea)

D-Link Trade M (D-Link Moldova)

D-Link Russia Investment Co., Ltd (D-Link Russia
Investment)

D-Link Malaysia SDN. BHD (D-Link Malaysia)
D-Link Service Lithuania, UAB (D-Link Lithuania)

Yeochia Investment Co., Ltd.

Yeomao Investment Co., Ltd.

Yeotai Investment Co., Ltd.
D-Link (Europe) Ltd. (D-Link Europe)

D-Link Shiang-Hai (Cayman) Inc. (D-Link Shiang-Hai
(Cayman))

D-Link Holding Mauritius Inc. (D-Link Mauritius)
00O D-Link Russia (D-Link Russia)

00O D-Link Trade (D-Link Trade)

Success Stone Overseas Corp. (Success Stone)
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A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary

A subsidiary
A subsidiary

An associate (Carried out
liquidation was completed July,

2022)

An associate (Carried out
liquidation was completed

October 1, 2022)
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary

A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
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Name of related partgy

Relationship with the Company

Wishfi Pte. Ltd. (Wishfi)

D-Link India Ltd. (D-Link India)

TeamF1 Networks Private Limited (TeamF1 India)
D-Link (Holdings) Ltd. and the subsidiary D-Link (UK) Ltd.

(D-Link UK)
D-Link France SARL (D-Link France)
D-Link AB
D-Link Iberia SL (D-Link Iberia)

D-Link Mediterraneo SRL (D-Link Mediterraneo)
D-Link (Netherlands) BV (D-Link Netherlands)
D-Link (Deutschland) GmbH (D-Link Deutschland)

D-Link Polska Sp. Z.0.0. (D-Link Polska)

D-Link (Magyarorszag) kft (D-Link Magyarorszag)

D-Link s.r.o

D-Link Adria d.o.o

D-Link Shiang-Hai Co., Ltd.

Netpro Trading (Shiang-Hai) Co., Ltd.
D-Link Peru S.A.

D-Link de Colombia S.A.S

D-Link Guatemala S.A.

D-Link Argentina S.A.

Cameo Communication, Inc.

Amigo Technology Inc.
Amit Wireless Inc.
Sapido Technology Inc.
E-Sheng steel Co. Ltd

336

A subsidiary (Logout was
completed in January 2022)

A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary

A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary
A subsidiary

An associate (Due to increasing
shareholding in February 2021,
the Company became to have
significant influence with it and
the relationship changed from
the corporate director to an

associate.)
Other related parties
Other related parties
Other related parties
Other related parties
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(b) Significant related party transactions
The Company's significant sales to related parties were as follows:

(i)  Sales revenue

2022 2021
Subsidiaries $ 6,299,187 146,077
Associates-Cameo 50 191
Associates-others 1,617 -
$ 6,300,854 146,268

The average credit terms extended to related parties and third-party customers were
approximately 30-90 days. However, credit terms to related parties might be further extended
when necessary.

(i) Service revenue

2022 2021
Subsidiaries:
D-Link International $ 78,219 527,142
Others 109,697 42,262
Associates:
Others 2.730 -
$ 190,646 569,404

(iii) Purchases

The amounts of significant purchases by the Company from related parties were as follows:

2022 2021

Subsidiaries: $ 83,019 2,045
Associate:

Cameo 1,434,699 14,796
Other related-parties:

Amigo 706,972 10,124

Amit 6,700 -

$ 2,231,390 26,965

The payment term of related parties was 30-90 days. There were no significant differences in
purchasing terms between related parties and third-party suppliers.
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(iv) Accounts receivable due from related parties

)

The receivables to related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,

Account Related party categories 2022 2021
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries — D-Link
International $ 82,248 52,526
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries — D-Link Systems 240,255 -
Accounts receivable Associates — D-Link Europe 280,006 7,960
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries —D-Link ME 382,258 1,554
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries — D-Link Japan 143,758 -
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries —D-Link India 225,073 15,576
Accounts receivable Subsidiaries — Others 151,575 3,153
Accounts receivable Associates —Cameo - 86
Accounts receivable Other related parties — Sapido 10 -
Other receivables Subsidiaries — D-Link
International 976 7,793
Other receivables Subsidiaries — Others 21,071 4,906
Other receivables Associates —Cameo 73 -
Other receivables Associates — Yeochia - 71,169
Other receivables Associates — Yeomao - 143,616
Other receivables Other related parties — Amit - 5,573
$ 1,527,303 313,912

The Company's other receivables from its associates, Yecohia and Yeomao, were mainly due
to the liquidation right arising from the liquidation Yeochia Investment and Yeomao
Investment. They were liquidated in July 2022 and October 2022, respectively, and the
benefits under other equity were transferred to retained earnings of $16,266 thousand.

Other current assets
The Company's pre payments to related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Account Related party categories 2022 2021

Other current assets Associates —Cameo $ 5,082 -
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338



(vi)

(vii)

D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

Accounts payable to related parties were as follows :

The payables to related parties were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Account Related party categories 2022 2021
Accounts payable Subsidiaries —D-Link
International $ 59 207
Accounts payable Subsidiaries — others 1,559 -
Accounts payable Associates —Cameo 453,134 3,635
Accounts payables Other related-parties — Amigo 146,742 5,440
Accounts payable Other related-parties — Amit 1,555 -
Other payables Subsidiaries —others 3,276 6,656
Other payables Associates —Cameo 3,326 4,762
Other payables Other related parties — Sapido 2,100 -
Other payables Other related parties — Amigo 12,235 -
Other payables Other related parties — Amit 6,490 659
Temporary payments  Subsidiaries — Others 3,378 -
Contract liabilities Subsidiaries — Others 14,342 -
$ 648,196 21,359

Other payables mainly consist of interest payments to subsidiaries and payments to
parties for after-sales maintenance of products and various services due to business

related

transactions; other payables to associates include payables for equipment and others.

Services purchased from related parties

The services purchased from related parties were as follows:

2022 2021
Subsidiaries — others $ 17,555 -
Associates —Cameo 847 12,085
Other related parties — Amigo 10,096 3,436
Other related-parties — Amit 14,466 -
$ 42,964 15,521
(Continued)
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(viii) Property transaction

1) Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets acquired

The acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets from the related
parties were as follows:

2022 2021
Associates:
Cameo 7,510 3,436
Other related parties:
Amigo 32,574 5,814
Amit 472 -
Sapido 2.000 -
$ 42,556 9,250
(ix) Other gains and losses
Account Related party categories 2022 2021
Interst income Other related parties — Amigo - 41
Other gains and losses Associates — Other (2,167) -
Other gains and losses Other related parties — Amigo 96 -
$ (2,071) 41

x)

Other gains and losses consist of interest income, gain on disposal of miscellaneous equipment
and other losses arising from the liquidation of share of subsidiaries.

Lease

The Company leased the office building to other related parties— Amigo and entered into a
one-year lease agreement for $3,663 thousand with reference to the office rental rate in the
neighboring areas in October 2021. For the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Company recognized rent income of $3,488 thousand and $1,300 thousand, respectively.

The Company also leased the office building to Cameo and entered into a one year lease
agreement for $640 thousand in March 2022. For the year ended December 31, 2022, the
Company recognized rent income of $524 thousand.

The Company also leased out its office buildings to its subsidiaries at the amounts of $24
thousand and $72 thousand, resulting in the recognition of $23 thousand and $68 thousand as
rental income for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
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Borrowing from Related Parties

The borrowing from related parties were as follows:

2022 2021
Subsidiaries — D-Link Japan $ 421,749 433,258
Subsidiaries — D-Link Europe - 313,645
Subsidiaries — D-Link Russia investment 752,346 -
$ 1,174,095 746,903

The interest paid to the related parties amounted to $2,626 thousand and $5,437 thousand for
the year 2022 and 2021, respectively. The amounts were calculated based on the the interest
rate agreed between each related party and the Company. The interest-bearing borrowings
provided by related parties were unsecured. In addition, the Company borrows short-term loan
from D-Link Europe, with amounts ranging between $0 thousand and $315,881 thousand for
the year 2022, and had been fully paid by the end of the year.

Guarantee

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had provided a guarantee to its related-
parties which borrowed from financial institutions with the credit limit as follow:

2022 2021
Subsidiaries:
D-Link Europe $ 122,473 116,864
D-Link Shiang-Hai 153,540 69,225
D-Link Trade - 13,845
$ 276,013 199,934

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had used its endorsement guarantees
amounting to $119,476 thousand and $59,987 thousand respectively.

Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

2022 2021
Short-term employee benefits $ 43,480 85,582
Post-employee benefits 904 5,959
$ 44,384 91,541
(Continued)
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(8) Pledged assets:None

(9) Commitments and contingencies:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d

(e)

®

(2

The Company”’ s subsidiary, D-Link Brazil, had disputes regarding prior year's insufficient invoices
attached to sales return with the local tax authorities, and had filed administrative litigation and
administrative remedy. D-Link Brazil had accrued possible tax, interest and penalty.

The Company’ s subsidiary, D-Link India, had disputes regarding prior year's declaration tax on
customs with the local tax authorities. Based on its evaluation, the Company believes the litigation
will not have any significant impact on its current operations.

UNM RAINFOREST INNOVATIONS filed a lawsuit against the Company in February 2020,
alleging that some of the D-Link’s products infringed its patents. The Company has retained its
attorneys in the US and is currently building defense with product suppliers. Based on its evaluation,
the Company believes the litigation will not have any significant impact on its current operations.

Israel Consumers Council filed a group lawsuit against the Company's subsidiary D-Link
International, in 2020, alleging that D-Link International was suspected of restricting product resale
prices in Israel. D-Link International has appointed its attorneys to handle and negotiate a settlement.
Based on its evaluation, the Company believes the litigation will not have any significant impact on
its current operations.

In 2022, Atlas Global filed a lawsuit against the Company, alleging that some of D-Link’s products
have infringed its patents. Hence, the Company has appointed attorneys to handle the case. The
Company believes the litigation will not have any significant impact on its current operations.

TurboCode LLC filed a lawsuit against the Company in 2022, alleging that some of the D-Link’s
products infringed its patents. Hence, the Company has appointed attorneys to handle the case. The
Company believes the litigation will not have any significant impact on its current operations.

The Company is currently under negotiations with a number of companies regarding the royalty on
patents. In addition to the abovementioned lawsuits, there are other disputes that are in the
negotiation process, and therefore the amount of liabilities is unclear. The Company has accrued the
possible expense.

(10) Losses Due to Major Disasters: None.

(11) Subsequent Events: None.
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(12) Other:
The information on employee, depreciation, and amortization expenses, by function, was summarized as
follows:
For the year ended December 31
2022 2021
By funtion| Cost of Operating Cost of Operating
By item Goods Sold | Expense Total Goods Sold | Expense Total
[Employee benefits
Salaries 2,481 546,370 548,851 2,822 707,457 710,279
Labor and health insurance 291 51,079 51,370 301 62,931 63,232
Pension 140 27,181 27,321 152 35,036 35,188
Remuneration of directors - 5,257 5,257 - 5,524 5,524
Others 113 18,077 18,190 146 21,375 21,521
Depreciation 4 55,568 55,572 1 60,513 60,514
|JAmortization - 28,670 28,670 - 40,760 40,760

the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 additional information for the number of
employees and employee benefits were as follows:

2022 2021
Number of employees 513 674
Number of directors who were not employees 6 6
The average employee benefit $ 1,274 1,243
The average salaries and wages $ 1,083 1,063
The adjustment rate of average employee salaries 1.88 % (2.57Y%

Supervisor's remuneration $ - -

The Company's salary and remuneration policy (including directors, managers and employees) are as
follows:

Directors: The remuneration to directors is determined by reference to their attributes, positions, as
well as their industry levels, which shall be regularly revised by the "Directors and Functional
Committee Members Remuneration Management Measure" in accordance with the Company’ s
articles of incorporation. The above conditions are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors thereafter.

Managers: For remuneration to new managers and managers whose annual salary have changed in
the current year, the human resource department determined their remuneration by reference to the
industry levels. The above conditions are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board of Directors thereafter.

Employee: For employee remuneration, which is based on the reference to the annual external salary
survey, employee salary level within the peer industry, taking into consideration the Company’s
operating status and budget planning, the Company determined their annual salary adjustments,
annual bonus, promotion scheme, distribution of employee remuneration based on principles, long-
term compensation scheme, etc., taking into account each employee’s performance appraisal results,
the Company’s overall operating performance, as well as the need for sustainable development.
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(13) Other disclosures:

(2)

Information on significant transactions:

The following was the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of

Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022:

(i)  Loans to other parties:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Highest
balance Collateral
financing Actual | Range of |Purposes of| Transaction
to other interest | fund | amountfor | Reasons dividual
parties amount  [rates d financing | business for funding
Nameof | Nameof | Account | Related |duringthe| Ending | during the | the period | forthe | between two | short-term | Allowance Toan limits
Number | lender | borrower | name party | period | balance | period %) | borrower | parties | financing |for bad debt| Ttem Value | (Note)
1 [otin ID-Link  Other Yes 317459 317as9] 317450 ss0| 2 - perating - - - 2,797,257
linernational [Shiang-Hai Jaccounts [Capital
receivable -
Frelated
arties
1 ID-Link I-Link [Other Yes 597.646|  360357( 360357 - 2 - Convert - - - 2,797.257| 2,797,257
linternational [Shiang-Hai Jaccounts firom
I IAccount
eveivable to
foan
keceivable
2 ID-Link RussiafD-Link [Other Yes 752346 | 752,346 752,346 - 2 - perating - - - 767444 | 767444
linvestment  [Corporation Jaccounts “apital
Ireceivable -
Irelated
arties
3 |p-Link Japan [o-Link fother Yes 21740 421749 421740 0so| 2 - Operating - - - 617517 617517
KK orporation faccounts apital
receivable -
related
arties
4 JpLink pLink — Jother Yes 164349 164349 101,897 10| 2 - perating - - - 200,050 200,050
laccounts [Capital
GMbH
Note 1: Purpose of fund financing for the borrower
1. For those companies with business transaction with the Company, please fillin 1
2. For those companies with short-term financing needs, please fll in 2.
Note 2: Total amount of loans from D-Link International to the Company and the parent company’s 100% directly or indirectly owned bsidiaries shall not exceed 100% of the net worth of D-Link International

Note 3: Total amount of loans from D-Link Russia Investment to the Company shall not exceed 100% of the net worth of D-Link Russia Investment

Note 4: Total amount of loans from D-Link Japan K K. to the Company shall not exceed 100% of the net worth of D-Link Japan K K.

Note 5:Total amount of loans from D-Link Deutschland to the Company and the ultimate parent company’s 100% directly or indirectly owned overseas subsidiaries shall not exceed 100% of the net worth of D-Link Deutschland,

Note 6: Only disclose funding loan limits that are still valid until end the year of 2022

(i) Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Ratio of
Counter-party of accumulated
guaranteeand | Limitation on|  Highest amounts of Parent Subsidiary |E:
amountof | balance for | Balance of guarantees and company to
Actual Property | endorsements to| Maximum [endorsements/ | guarantees | third parties
and and and usage | pledged for |net worth of the| amount for | guarantees to fto third partie on behalf of
ionshi amount and latest guarantees  [third parties on| on behalf of | companies in
Name of with the | for a specific | during as of during the | endorsements | financial behalf of parent Mainland
No. | guarantor | Name | Company | enterprise | the period |reporting date| period (Amount) statements sub: company China
0 [p-Link  [D-Link 2 1,999,455 122473 122473 62324 - 137 % 5,998,365 N
[Corporation |Europe
0 [p-Link  [D-Link 2 1999455 153,540 57152 B 172% 5,998,365 Y N Y
“orporation [Shiang-Hai

Note 1: The endorsement and guarantee amount for a single company shall not exceed 1/3 of the Company’s capital.

Note 2: The endorsement and guarantee total amount shall not exceed the Company’s capital.
Note 3: Relationship between the endorser/guarantor and the party being endorsed/guaranteed is classified into following categorics

1. Having business relationship.

The Company owns more than 50% equity shares in the entity, directly or indirectly.

An entity owns more than 50% equity shares in the Company, directly or indirectly.

Note 4: The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
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(iii) Securities held as of December 31, 2022 (excluding investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures):

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vii)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Category and Ending balance
Name of holder name of Relationship Account Shares/Units [ TPercentage of [ pi o Not
security with company| title (thousands) ying valuelownership (%), ote
ID-Link EHOO [None Non current financial assets at fair] 749,663 - 411 % -
IC: value through profit or loss
D-Link EWAVE None Non current financial assets at fair] 83,334 - 1.89 % -
ICe value through profit or loss
ID-Link It one on current financial assets at faif 500,000 - 1.84 % -
ICorporation value through profit or loss
D-Link ICHIA None on current financial assets at faif] 73,500 - 6.68 % -
(Corporation Information value through profit or loss
“orporation
D-Link luBICOM None on current financial assets at faif 926,814 - 3.05 % -
(Corporation value through profit or loss
ID-Link [Purple Comm, Inc. [None on current financial assets at fair] 3,385,417 - 1410 % -
(Corporation value through profit or loss
D-Link Slobal Mobile  [None Non current financial assets at fair] 6,600,000 - 239% -
IC “orp. value through profit or loss
D-Link Holding _[Best 3C None on current financial assets at faif 600,000 B 1.88 % -
value through profit or loss
D-Link Holding _ [E20 None on current financial assets at faif 252,525 - 0.05 % -
value through profit or loss
[YEOTAT Stemeyte one on current financial assets at fai] 18,950 215 0.01 % 215
value through other
comprehensive income
[YEOTAT aimei None on current financial assets at fai] 231,342 12377 021 % 12377
value through other
comprehensive income
ID-Link India [CICIMUTUAL  |None “urrent financial assets at fair 310,132 37,716 % 37,716
FUND value through profit or loss
D-Link India DITYA BIRLA |None Current financial assets at fair 258,923 34207 - % 34,297
UTUAL FUND value through profit or loss
D-Link India INIPPON INDIA_|None “urrent financial assets at fair 16,719 33,606 - % 33,606
MUTUAL FUND value through profit or loss
[D-Link India [TATA MUTUAL |None |Current financial assets at fair 25,004 32,126 % 32,126
FUND value through profit or loss
ID-Link India SBIMUTUAL  |None |Current financial assets at fair 27,909 35,895 % 35,895
FUND value through profit or loss
D-Link India HDFC MUTUAL |None “urrent financial assets at fair 20,926 33,788 - % 33,788
JFUND value through profit or loss
D-Link India UTIMUTUAL _ |None Current financial assets at fair 27,993 37,690 - % 37.690
[FUND value through profit or loss
ID-Link India JAXISMUTUAL |None “urrent financial assets at fair 24,571 22,280 % 22,280
JFUND value through profit or loss
Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of

the capital stock: None.

Acquisition of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.

Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the capital stock: None.

Related-party transactions for purchases and sales with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20% of the

capital stock:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
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Transactions with terms Notes/Accounts
Transaction details different from others receivable (payable)
Percentage of total
Percentage of notes/accounts
Name of Nature of receivable
company Related party i i Amount ul ayment terms|  Unit price |Payment terms|Ending balance] (payable) Note
ID-Link ID-Link [Subsidiary \(Sales and (920,101 (13) % 0 days 82,248 5%
[Corporation ~ [international lservice revenuc)|
ID-Link ID-Link Systems [Subsidiary \(Sales and (540,088, ®) % |75 days. - - 240,255 14%
|Corporation lservice revenue)|
ID-Link ID-Link Canada [Subsidiary |(Sales and (158,061 2) % 0 days 43,643 3%
[Corporation kervice revenue)|
ID-Link ID-Link Europe [Subsidiary [(Sales and (1,547,963 22)% 0 days - - 280,006 17%
|Corporation lservice revenue)|
ID-Link ID-Link ME [Subsidiary (Sales and (1,302,058 (18) % 0 days 382,258 23%
[Corporation lervice revenue)|
ID-Link ID-Link ISubsidiary  [(Sales and (199,263 (3) % [60 days - - 26,026 2%
|Corporation  [Australia lservice revenuc))
(Continued)




D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

Transactions with terms Notes/Accounts
Transaction details different from others receivable (payable)
[Percentage of total
Percentage of notes/accounts
Name of Nature of total receivable
company _|Related party ionshi Amount__pu ayment terms| _Unit price _|Payment terms|Ending balance| __ (payable) Note
ID-Link ID-Link Japan ~ [Subsidiary ~ [(Sales and (622,582 ©) % [60 days - - 143,758 9%
|Corporation lservice revenue)|
D-Link D-Link India ~ [Subsidiary  [(Sales and 939617 (13)% W5 days - - 225,073 13%
(Corporation lervice revenuc)
ID-Link D-Link Trade  [Subsidiary ~ [(Sales and (140,493 @) %  [180days - - - %
(Corporation lervice revenue)
D-Link ‘ameo ameo isan  [Purchase 1,434,699 23 % b0 days - - (453.134) Q@n%
|Corporation ssociate of the
“ompany
D-Link IAMIGO dther related  [Purchase 706,972 11 %  [p0days - - (146,742) ©%
|Corporation arty
ID-Link ID-Link [Parent company [Purchase 841,882 54 % |60 days (82.248) 6%
Intemnational ~ [Corporation
ID-Link Systems [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 560936 90 % 75 days - - (240,255) (59)%
“orporation
D-Link Canada [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 156,763 73 % |60 days (43,643) ©67)%
(Corporation
ID-Link Europe [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 1,540,225 0 days - - (280,006) (75)%
ICorporation
D-Link ME  [D-Link IParent company [Purchase 1301467] 42 % 0 days - - (382,258) “8)%
(Corporation
ID-Link ID-Link [Parent company [Purchase 198788 91 % f60 days (26,026)] 94)%
lAustralia ‘orporation
D-Link Japan ~ [D-Link IParent company [Purchase 597478 85 % |60 days - - (143,758) (86)%
“orporation
ID-Link India ~ [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 879724 22 % S days (225,073) (36)%
Corporation
ID-Link Trade ~ [D-Link [Parent company [Purchase 140,405 9 % 180 days - - -
“orporation
D-Link ID-Link Europe [The ultimate ~ [Sales (3268200 (13)%  [60 days (1,362) %
[International arent company
s D-Link
(Corporation
ID-Link D-Link ME  [The ultimate ~ [Sales (246.990)  (10)%  [60 days - - 203,906 15%
International [parent company
s D-Link
“orporation
ID-Link ID-Link Trade  [The ultimate ~ [Sales (351349 (14)%  [180 days 502,756 36%
lInternational arent company
s D-Link
Corporation
D-Link Europe [D-Link [The ultimate ~ [Purchase 326,820 17 % 60 days - - 1362
lInternational  [parent company
s D-Link
“orporation
ID-Link ME  [D-Link [The ultimate ~ [Purchase 246,990 8 %  [60days (203,906) (26)%
linterational  [parent company
s D-Link
Corporation
D-Link Trade [The ultimate ~ [Purchase 351,349 23 % (180 days - - (502,756) (55)%
lparent company
s D-Link
“orporation
[D-link Shiang-  [D-Link Trade  [The ultimate ~ [Sales (886,577 (87 %  [150 days 397466 96%
[Hai Inc. arent company
s D-Link
ICorporation
ID-Link Trade ~ [D-link Shiang-  [The ultimate ~ [Purchase 886,577 58 %  [150 days - - (397.466) “3)%
lparent company
-Link
“orporation
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D-LINK CORPORATION

Notes to the Financial Statements

(viii) Receivables from related parties with amounts exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20% of the capital stock:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Amounts
Name of Nature of Ending Turnover Overdue received in Allowance
company Counter-party relationship balance rate Amount Action taken | subsequent period | for bad debts
ID-Link Corporation [D-Link Systems  [Subsidiary 240,255 4.67 - - 69.360 -
ID-Link Corporation [D-Link Europe [Subsidiary 280,006 10.70 98,535
ID-Link Corporation [D-Link ME [Subsidiary 382,258 6.78 61415
[D-Link Corporation [D-Link Japan [Subsidiary 143,758 831 51,579
ID-Link Corporation [D-Link India [Subsidiary 225073 731 128,083
ID-Link International [D-Link ME [The ultimate parent 203,906 0.65 203,906
company is D-Link
“orporation
D-Link International [D-Link L.A. [The ultimate parent 638497 638497 B
ompany is D-Link
Corporation
[D-Link International [D-Link Brazil The ultimate parent 167.458 0.03 167458 17.897
company is D-Link
(Corporation
ID-Link International [D-Link Trade [The ultimate parent 502756 0.56 465,919 56,392 -
ompany is D-Link
“orporation
ID-link Shiang-Hai  D-Link Trade [The ultimate parent 397.466 595 82,289
inc. company is D-Link
Corporation

Note 1: Over three months during the normal credit period.

Note 2: The amount represents collections subsequent to December 31, 2022 up to February 10, 2023

(ix) Trading in derivative instruments:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
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Derivative
Company Name Instruments Category Holding Purpose Contract Amount Book Value Fair Value
[Non-trading :
ID-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap JUSD UsSD 28,200 1,585 1,585
ID-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap VPY JPY 1,800,000 12,975 12,975
ID-Link International (Cross currency swap ICNH CNH 127,134 2,674 2,674
D-Link Corporation [Forward foreign [EUR (Sell) EUR 1,400 13 13
lexchange contract
ID-Link Corporation [Forward foreign ICAD (Sell) CAD 900 185 185
lexchange contract
ID-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap ~ [EUR EUR 2,400 (71)| (71
D-Link International (Cross currency swap  [EUR EUR 800 (709)| (709
ID-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap ~ [AUD AUD 600 (56)| (56
ID-Link Corporation (Cross currency swap  [CAD CAD 500 (50)| (50
ID-Link International (Cross currency swap ~ [CNH CNH 41,664 (475)| (475
ID-Link Corporation [Forward foreign IEUR (Sell) EUR 6,300 (3,105)| (3,105
lexchange contract
ID-Link Corporation [Forward foreign IAUD (Sell) AUD 1,700 (644) (644
lexchange contract
ID-Link Corporation [Forward foreign ICAD (Sell) CAD 1,000 (18)| (18
lexchange contract
ID-Link International [Forward foreign [DR (Sell) IDR 21,805,000 (19) (19
lexchange contract
ID-Link India [Forward foreign IINR (Sell) INR 227,782 (56)| (56
lexchange contract
D-Link International [Forward foreign IBRL (Sell) BRL 26,625 (2,007)| (2,007
lexchange contract
ID-Link International [Forward foreign ICNH (Buy) CNH 24,301 (297)| (297)
lexchange contract
ID-Link Corporation [Forward foreign UPY (Sell) JPY 1,025,060 (4,653)| (4,653
lexchange contract
ID-Link International [Forward foreign IKRW (Sell) KRW 4,420,970 (3,171)| (3,171
lexchange contract
(Continued)




(b)

Information on investees:

D-LINK CORPORATION
Notes to the Financial Statements

The following was the information on investees for the year ended December 31, 2022 (excluding information on investees in Mainland China):

(In Thousas

inds of New Taiwan Dollars)

Main Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2022 Net income Share of
Name of Name of businesses December 3 Shares Percentage of | Carrying | (losses) | profits/losses of
investor investee Location and products 2022 IDecember 31.2021) _(thousands) ownership value | ofinvestee investee Note
ID-Link ID-Link Jusa [Marketing and after-sales 1,672,702 1625875 45,045,007 10000 % 1507525 44,144 44,144 [D-Link Corporation
[Corporation ~~ [Systems ervice in USA hcquires 1.56% of D-LINK |
Systems from D-Link
[Holding in November 2022
ID-Link ID-Link [Canada [Marketing and afier-sales 216,354 216,354 5.736,000 10000 % 153,846 (133,045 (133.045)
[Corporation anada ervice in Canada
ID-Link ID-Link Isingapore Global marketi 1,941,986 1941986 ] 66.074.660 9936 % 2478811 (267, (37.521)(100% shares owned by D-
|Corporation  [international rocurement and after-sale [Link Corporation and D-
bervice [Link Holding.Share of loss
Finvestee includes the
mounts of transations
etween affliated
ompanics.
ID-Link ID-Link LA [CaymanIsland  [Marketing and afier-sales 326,600 326,600 41,000 10000 % (627565 - -
[Corporation ervice in Latin America
ID-Link ID-Link [Chile [Marketing and after-sales 6,512 6.512 199,999 100.00 % 9.134 @161 (2.161){100% shares owned by D-
[Corporation udamerica bervice in Chile [Link Corporation and D-
[Link Holding
ID-Link [Mexico [Marketing and after-sales 301,036 301,036 152,066 100.00 % 3444 (12,785 (12,785)100% shares owned by D-
[Corporation ervice in Mexico [Link Corporation and D-
[Link Sudamerica.
D-Link ID-Link Brazil [Brazil [Marketing and afier-sales 932,197 932,197] 2,964.836,727 R (38,146 (38.943)(100% shares owned by D-
[Corporation ervice in Brazil [Link Corporation and D-
[Link Holding
ID-Link ID-Link ME  JUAE [Marketing and after-sales 71484 71484 5 83339 1033412 148,303 148,303 [100% shares owned by D-
[Corporation bervice in Middle East and [Link Corporation and D-
Africa [Link Intemational
ID-Link ID-Link |Australia [Marketing and after-sales 16,764 16,744 1,000,000 10000 % 156,385 8,931 8,931 [The Company acquires
[Corporation ustralia ervice in Australia and New) 10% of D-LINK
ealand Australia from D-Link
linternational in December
po22
ID-Link ID-Link IB.v.1 Jinvestment company 2242837 2242837 68,062,500 10000 % 1.664,029 182,310 62,373 [Share of profit of investee
[Corporation ~ [Holding fincludes the amounts of
ransations between
flliated companies.
ID-Link (Germany [Marketing and after-sales - - 120,050 10,169 - 100% shares owned by D-
ICorporation ervice in Germany Note 2 lLink Corporation directly
ind indireetly. Share of
[profit of subsidiaries
ccounted for using equity
method was recognized in
ID-Link Europe.
ID-Link ID-Link Japan [lapan [Marketing and after-sales 595310 595,310 9.500 10000 % 626409 15,302 15,302
[Corporation ervice in Japan
ID-Link ID-Link [singapore Jinvestment company 67,191 67,191 2,200,000 100.00 46318 129,066 129066
ICorporation  [investment
D-Link [veochia  [Taiwan Jinvestment company - - - - o - - - ILiquidation completed in
[Corporation Note 2 uly 2022
ID-Link [Veomao  [Taiwan Jinvestment company - - - - o - [Liquidation completed in
[Corporation ctober 2022
ID-Link Veotai [Taiwan Jinvestment company 146,000 146,000 14,600,000 10000 % 44434 (1.916) .916)
[Corporation
ID-Link ameo [Taiwan [Manufacturing and sell 1102479 L102479] 137,532,003 458 % 1416631 94,973 18,203 [Share of loss of investee
[Corporation computer network fincludes the amounts of
quipment and its ransations between
omponents and related affliated companics.
fechnology research and
fdevelopment
ID-Link ID-Link Trade [Russia [Marketing and after sales 66,538 66,538 - 10000 % 48,141 129,252 129,252
llnvestment ervice in Russia Note 2
ID-Link Trade ~ [T-COM  [Russia [Marketing and after sales 12,485 12,485 - 40.00 % 1874 (4293 (8.468)
ervice in Russia Note 2
ID-Link ID-Link lustralia [Marketing and after sales - 2 - B o - - - lin December 2022, D-Link
finternational  Australia ervice in Australia and New Jinternational transferred
[zealand fits shareholding in
ID-Link Australia to the
Company
ID-Link ID-Link ME  JUAE [Marketing and after sales 34260 34.260 1 16.67 32428 148,303 - ID-Link ME share’s profit
international ervice in Middle East and ecognized in D-Link
lAfrica orporation
ID-Link ID-Link Korea [Korea [Marketing and after sales 44,300 44,300 330,901 10000 % (39.744) (6351 (©6.351)
linternational ervice in Korea
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ain Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2022 Net income
Name of Name of businesses December 31, ares Percentage of | Carrying | (losses) | profits/losses of
investor investee Location and products 2022 December 31, 2021]_(thousands) owners! value | ofinvestee investee Note
ID-Link ID-Link Trade [Republic of [Marketing and after sales 13 13 - 100.00 % 92 6 6
linternational M. [Moldova ervice in Moldova Note 2
ID-Link ID-Link Russia[BV1 Jinvestment company 789,757 780.757] 25,000,000 10000 % 767,444 (43985 (43,985
international ~ finvestment
ID-Link ID-Link [Malaysia [Marketing and after sales 6,130 6,130 800,000 100.00 % 7876 155 155
international  [Malaysia ervice in Malaysia
ID-Link ID-Link [Lithuania [Marketing and after sales 3574 3574 1000 100.00 % 4617
jinternational ~ [Lithuania ervice in Lithuania
ID-Link Holding [D-Link UK. [Marketing and after sales 971,21 971203 32497 10000 % 970342 @53 (253.432)
[Furope bervice in Europe
[D-Link Holding [D-Link [singapore [Global marketing. 8,466 8.466 425,340 0.64 (267,555 - ID-Link International share’s|
finternational procurement and after sales foss recognized in D-Link
ervice orporation
ID-Link Holding {000 D-Link [Russia [After sales service in Russia 11,309 11,309 - 100.00 5617 327 327
[Russia Note 2
ID-Link Holding [D-Link [Mauritius Jinvestment company 186,789 186,789 200,000 10000 % 1,040,489 154913 154913
[Mauritius
ID-Link Holding [D-Link |Cayman Islands ~ [investment company 654,974 654,974 50,000 10000 % (266,983 281,526 281,526
(Cayman)
ID-Link Holding ~ [Wish [singapore [Research, development, - - - - - - - ancellation of registration
Imarketing and after sales fin January, 2022
hervice
ID-Link Holding _[Success Stone[BVI Jinvestment company 297027 297,027 9,822 10000 % 170,952 (484 (484)
ID-Link Holding [MiiiCasa  [Cayman|sland  [investment company 61,087 61.087] 21,000,000 28.98 %4 - - -
JHolding
ID-Link Holding ~[D-Link Brazil [Brazil [Marketing and after sales - - 100 - 9 - (38,146 - ID-Link Brazil share’s loss
ervice in Brazil ecognized in D-Link
orporation
ID-Link Holding [D-Link [Marketing and after sales - - 1 - % - (2,162 - ID-Link Sudamerica share's
udamerica bervice in Chile foss recognized in D-Link
Corporation
ID-Link Mauritius [D-Link India_[india [Marketing and after sales 340,319 340,319 15,114,663 51029 1038838 308,594 157,445
ervice in In
ID-Link Mauritius [TeamF 1 India [india Technical services for 8 8 1 0.01 % 14 6374 1]100% shares owned by D-
oftware and hardware [Link Mauritius and D-Link
ystem integration jindia
ID-Link India ~ [TeamF 1 India [india [Fechnical services for 84,114 84,114 10499 99.99 % 6374 6,373 [100% shares owned by D-
boftware and hardware [Link Mauritius and D-Link
bystem integration findia
D-Lick LA [D-Link Peru [Peru [Marketing and after sales - - 1 0.03 (1,380 - ID-Link Peru S.A. share's
SA ervice in Peru foss recognized in D-Link
[Sudamerica
ID-Link ID-Link de ~ [Colombia [Marketing and after sales 22213 2213 143,605 100.00 4917 (139 (139)
[Sudamerica olombia ervice in Colombia
AS.
ID-Link ID-Link |Guatemala [Marketing and after sales 410 410 99,000 99.00 % - - Jin liquidation process.
[Sudamerica uatemala bervice in Guatemala
A
ID-Link ID-Link Peru [Peru [Marketing and after sales 38 38 3499 99.97 5449 (1,380 (1,350)
[sudamerica SA ervice in Peru
ID-Link ID-Link [Mexico [Marketing and after sales 6 6 3 - 6 (12,784 - ID-Link Mexicana sh
[Sudamerica  [Mexicana ervice in Mexico foss recognized in D-Link
orporation
ID-Link ID-Link Argentina [Marketing and after sales 2,750 2,750 100 100.00 7 - - ID-Link Argentina share's
[Sudamerica rgentina ervice in Argentina rofit recognized in D-Link
A udamerica. In liquidation
process
[D-Link Europe  [D-Link (Germany [Marketing and after sales 131,769 131,769 - 10000 % 200,050 10,169 10,169
IDeutschland ervice in Germany Note 2
ID-Link Europe  [D-Link AB ~ [Sweden [Marketing and after sales 9,022 9.022 15,500 100.00 % 16,394 1,008 1.008
ervice in Sweden
ID-Link Europe  [D-Link Iber [Marketing and after sales 1976 1976 000 10000 % 65371

ervice in Spain

ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link italy [Marketing and after sales 2177 2177 50,000 100.00 % 27,150 749 749
[Mediterraneo ervice in ltaly

ID-Link Europe  [D-Link UK. Jinvestment company - - 3 100.00 % 9.348 - -
Holdings)Lid|

ID-Link Europe  [D-Link FrancelFrance [Marketing and after sales 5287 114,560 10000 % 41913 2134 2,134

bervice in France

ID-Link Europe  [D-Link [Netherlands [Marketing and after sales 2132 2,132 50,000 100.00 % 8,376 539 539
etherlands ervice in Netherlands

ID-Link Europe  [D-Link PolskalPoland [Marketing and after sales 1210 1210 100 100.00 % [NIE) 1113
Sp Z.0.0. ervice in Poland

ID-Link Europe ~ [D-Link [Hungary [Marketing and after sales 523 523 300 100.00 % 59 59

ervice in Hungary

(Continued)
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Main

Original investment amount Balance as of December 31, 2022 Net income Share of
Name of Name of businesses December 31, ares Percentage of | Carrying | (losses) | profits/losses of
investor investee Location and products December 31, 2021]_(thousands) ownership value | ofinvestee investee Note
[D-Link Europe  [D-Link s.ro [Czech [Marketing and after sales 329 329 100 100.00 % 4374 412 412
ervice in Czech
ID-Link Ip-Link UK Juk [Marketing and after sales 300,100 100.00 % 9,348 -
|(Holdings)Ltd ervice in UK
ID-Link ID-Link [Croatia [Marketing and after sales 326 326 - 100.00 % 1203 @ (7in liquidation process
[Mediterraneo ~ |ADRIA d.0.0. ervice in Croatia Note 2
[eotai tramus  [Taiwan ch, development, 38,110 38,110 1832446 4118 % 1792 (5.969 (2.558)
and sell of
0. Lid esting equipment for
etwork

Note 1: Including recognition of profit (loss) from associates

Note 2: Limited Company

(c) Information on investment in mainland China:

(i)  The names of investees in Mainland China, the main businesses and products, and other information:

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Accumulated
Accumulated outflow of Net
Main Total outflow of flows | i from | income Accumulated
businesses amount | Method [investment from| Taiwan as of | (losses) |Percentage | Investment |  Book | remittance of
Name of and of paid-in of Taiwan as of December 31, | of the of income value carnings in
products capital estment | January 1, 2022| Outflow | _Inflow 2022 stee | ownership | (losses) Note2 | current period
Buy and sell of 598806 (2) 598,806 E - 598,806 | 280,732] 100.00% 280.732| (279321 B
hetworking equipment
Netpro _[Rescarch, development 2049 (2) 20037 B - 20,037 794 100.00% 794 14,399 B
Trading _|and trading business
[YouXiangfTechnical Service and 62,610 (3) - - - - 502[ 986% - 4111 -
import/Export trading
usiness

Note |

Method of Investment:

Type I: Direct investments in Mainland China

‘Type 2: Indirect investments in Mainland China

Type 3: Other

Note 2: The amounts in New Taiwan Dollars were translated at the exchange rates of USD 30.71, CNY 4.41 as of December 31, 2022

(i) Limitation on investment in Mainland China:

as of D

Accumulated Investment in Mainland China

ber 31, 2022

Investment Amounts Authorized by
Investment C ission, MOEA

Upper Limit on Investment

618,843

574,462

Note

Note: Since the Company has obtained the Certificate of Headquarter Operation, there is no upper limitation on investment
in Mainland China.

(iii) Significant transactions:

The significant inter-company transactions with the subsidiary in Mainland China, which were eliminated in the preparation
of consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in “Information on significant transactions”.

(d) Major shareholders:

Shareholding Shares

Percentage

Sharehold

’s Name

|Sapido Technology Inc.

59,818,400

9.97 %l

(14) Segment information:

Please refer to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of cash and cash equivalents
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount
Cash Petty cash and Foreign currency deposits $ 168
Bank deposits Checking and Saving accounts

NTD 181,737
USD : 6,972 (in thousands) 214,088
Other foreign currency deposits 218,236

S____ 614229

Note 1: The exchange rate of USD to NTD as of December 31, 2022 is 30.708.
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Item

D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of notes receivable
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Company A
Company B
Company C
Company D
Company E
Company F

Others (The amount of individual vendor included within“Others”does not exceed 5% of this

account balance.)

Note: Notes and accounts receivable are all generated by business activities.

353

Amount
1,032

460
507
378
714
2,205
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of accounts receivables
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item

Company G
Company H
Company I

Company J

Company K
Company L
Company M

Others (The amount of individual vendor included within“Others”does not exceed 5% of this
account balance.)

Less: Loss Provision

Amount

26,071
24,834
14,175
17,964
10,474

9,118
15,783

49,636

168,055

(1.109)
$ 166,946

Note: The accounts receivable from related parties are not included in the above payment. For details, please
refer to Note 7 to the financial statements.
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of other receivables
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount
Receivable amounts from advance payment of $ 22,047
subsidiaries
Receivable amounts from advance payment of 2,253

third parties

Others (The amount of individual vendor
included within“Others”does not exceed 5% of
this account balance.) 2,430

[ A

S____ 26730
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of inventories
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Amount
Net realizable
Item Cost value Note
Finished goods $ 403,266 395,937 Market price is

Less: Allowance for inventory write

downs and obsolescence (20,039)

$ 383,227
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of other current assets
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount
Prepaid software fees $ 36,491
Advance payment 25,488
Prepaid warranty fees 4,416
Sales tax receivable 12,187
Input tax 15,024
Temporarily payment 1,939

Others (The amount of individual vendor included within“Others”does not exceed 5% of this
account balance.)

3,207

s 98152
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D-LINK CORPORATION

Statement of changes in property, plant and

equipment
For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Balance as of Balance as of

January 1, December 31,

Item 2022 Increase Decrease Transfer 2022
Land $ 531,453 - - - 531,453
Buildings 548,803 919 - - 549,722
Others 626,454 43,575 154,848 - 515,181
$ 1,706,710 44,494 154,848 - 1,596,356

Statement of changes in accumulated depreciation of

property, plant and equipment

Balance as of

Balance as
January 1, of December
Item 2022 Increase Decrease Transfer 31, 2022 Note
Accumulated
Depreciation :
Buildings $ 430,564 5,115 - - 435,679  Notel
Others 548,639 47,204 154,848 - 440,995  Note2
$ 979,203 52,319 154,848 - 876,674

Note 1: Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives : 5~46 years.

Note 2: Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives : 2~9 years.
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of changes in right-of-use assets
For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Balance as of Balance as of
January 1, December 31,
Item 2022 Increase Decrease 2022
Buildings $ 18,321 - (8,209) 10,112

Statement of changes in accumulated depreciation of

right-of-use assets

Balance as of Balance as of
January 1, December 31,
Item 2022 Increase Decrease 2022
Accumulated Depreciation :
Buildings $ 6,818 2,857 (3,634) 6,041
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of changes in investment property
For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Balance as of

Balance as of

January 1, December 31,
Item 2022 Increase Decrease 2022
Land $ 30,000 - - 30,000
Buildings 22,196 - - 22,196
$ 52,196 - - 52,196
Statement of changes in accumulated depreciation of
investment property
Balance as of
Balance as of December 31,
Item January 1, 2022 Increase Decrease 2022
Buildings $ 12,320 396 - 12,716

Note: Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives. Estimated useful lives : 9~55 years.

Item

Statement of changes in accumulated impairment of

investment property

Balance as of
January 1,
2022 Increase Decrease

Balance as of
December 31,
2022

Bulidings

$ 1,000 - -

1,000
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of changes in intangible assets
For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Balance as of Balance as
January 1, of December
Item 2022 Increase Decrease  Amortization 31,2022 Note

Patents $ 15,028 - - (2,692) 12,336 Note 1
Computer software 19,139 1,071 - (13,808) 6,402 Note 2
costs
Other intangible
assets 11,295 42,263 (711) (12,170) 40,677 Note 2
Total $ 45,462 43,334 (711) (28,670) 59.415

Note 1: Patents are amortized from their acquisition and are recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis
over the estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of patents are 16 years.

Note 2: Amortization is calculated on the cost of the asset less its residual value and accumulated impairment,
and is recognized in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets.The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are 2~8 years.
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of other non-current assets
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount
Refundable deposits $ 19,900
Others 15,084
Total $ 34,984
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of short-term loans
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Term of Mortgages or
Type of loans Ending Balance contract Interest rate(%)  Financing limit guarantees
Loans from related parties $ 421,749 112 0.5~1 - None

Statement of long-term loans

Term of Mortgages or
Type pf loans Ending Balance contract Interest rate(%) _Financing limit guarantees
Loans from related parties $ 752,346 116 - - None
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(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Suppliers name

D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of note and accounts payables

December 31, 2022

Company a
Company b
Company ¢
Company d

Company e

Others (The amount of individual vendor included within“Others”does not exceed 5% of this

account balance.)

Note 1: Note payables and account payables are both generated from operating activities.

Amount
110,727

121,031
276,484
255,997
126,806

168,924

- 1Y0,747

$ 1,059,969

Note 2: Payables to related parties are not included in the payments above, please refer to Note 7 for further
information.
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of other payables
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount
Payables on salaries, bonuses, labor health insurances and pensions $ 98,302
Payables on research fees 14,034
Payables on equipment 23,571

Others (The amount of individual vendor included within*‘Others”does not exceed 30,000
thousand.) 72.844

$ 208,751
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of provisions - current
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount
Warranties $ 63,982
Litigations and royalties 199,602

$ 263,584
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of other current liabilities
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount
Payables on income taxes $ 22,345
Payables in lieu of untaken annual leave 22,953
Temporary receipts 27,661
Others (The amount of individual item within“Others” does not exceed 5% of this account
balance.) 6,001

$A
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of lease liabilities
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Discount
Item Desciption Lease term rate% Ending Balance
Buildings For office use 2~5 years 1.60~1.79 § 4,425
Less: classified as lease liabilities-
current (1,956)
Lease liabilities-non current $ 2.469
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of other non-current liabilities
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount
Investments accounted for using equity method-credit balance $ 807,154
Others 3,074

$ 810,228
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D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of operating revenue
For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Quantities (per piece) Amount
Sales Revenue:
Network communication products 20,057,048 $ 6,937,651
Service Revenue 303,178
S__7240829
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For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item
Beginning Inventories

Add : Purchases

Less: Ending Inventories

Transferring to expenses and others
Cost of goods sold
Warranty Costs
Losses related to inventories
Cost of network services
Others

D-LINK CORPORATION

Statement of operating costs

373

Amount

$ 110,634

6,370,743
403,266
12,311
6,065,800
17,509
12,921
27,027
4,351

JE—

$ 6,127,608



D-LINK CORPORATION

Statement of selling expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount Note
Personnel expenses $ 289,722
Royality expenses 6,258
Service expenses 7,371
Depreciation and amortization 46,187
Maintenance of software 2,209

Others (The amount of individual item within
"Others" does not exceed 5% of this account
balance.)
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52,680

$ 404,427



D-LINK CORPORATION

Statement of administrative expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount Note
Personnel expenses $ 118,250
Service Expenses 86,315
Depreciation and Amortization 13,410
Royality expenses 24,012
Maintenance of software 17,261

Others (The amount of individual item within
"Others" does not exceed 5% of this account
balance.)
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40,736

$ 299,984



D-LINK CORPORATION

Statement of research and development expense

For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount Note
Personnel expenses $ 234,735
Outsourcing research expenses 43,945
Depreciation and Amortization 24,641

Others (The amount of individual item within
"Others" does not exceed 5% of this account
balance.)
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$ 333,990



D-LINK CORPORATION
Statement of finance costs
December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Description Amount

Note

Interest expense $ 4,367
Others 111

S 4478
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D-LINK CORPORATION

Statement of other income and other gains and

losses
For the year ended December 31, 2022

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Item Amount

Other income:
Rental income $ 5,058
Others (The amount of individual item within "Others" does not exceed 5% of this account
balance.) 4,364
s oan
Other gains and losses:
Foreign currency exchange gains $ 4,944
Valuation gains from financial assets and liabilities 15,964

Others (The amount of individual item within "Others" does not exceed 5% of this account (2,779)
balance.)

$¢
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Taipei City, Taiwan, R.O.C. 886-2-6600-0123 886-2-2790-0977

D-Link Corporation






